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INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED 
(formerly l a o w n  as Inox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 

(CIN: U45207GJ2012PLC070279) 

Registered Office: Survey No. 1837 & 1834, At Moje Jetalpur, ABS Towers, 
Second Floor, Old Padra Road, Vadodara -390007, Gujarat 
Telephone: 0265 6198111/2330057; Fax: 0265 2310312 

Email id: investor@inoxgreen.com 
Website: www.inoxgreen.com 

NOTICE 

NOTICE is hereby given to the Members of Inox Green Energy Services Limited that the Tenth 
Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at the Registered Office of the Company at 
Survey No. 1837 & 1834, At Moje Jetalpur, ABS Towers, Second Floor, Old Padra Road, Vadodara, 
Gujarat 390007, on Wednesday, the 14fll day of September, 2022, at 12:30 P.M., to transact 
the following business: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS 

1. Adoption of Financial Statements 

To consider and adopt: 

a) the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended 
31" March, 2022, the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon; and 

b) the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended 
31" March, 2022 and the report of the Auditors thereon 

2. Re-appointment of Shri Mukesh Manglik (DIN: 07001509) as a Director of the 
Company 

To appoint a Director in place of Shri Mukesh Manglik (DIN: 07001509) who retires by rotation 
and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment. 

SPECIAL BUSINESS 

3. Approval of remuneration of M/s Jain Sharma and Associates (Firm Registration No. 
000270) for Cost Audit of the Company for Financial Year 2022-23 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as 
an Ordinary Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 141, 148 and all other applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 
(including any statutory modification(s) or amendment(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time 
being in force), the remuneration of Rs. 1,50,000 (Rupees One Lakh Fifty Thousand only) plus 
applicable taxes and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses, at actual, as approved by Board of 
Directors of the Company, to be paid to M/s Jain Sharma and Associates, Cost Auditors (Firm 
Registration no. 000270) of the Company for conducting'the audit of the cost records of the 
Company for the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2023 be and is hereby ratified and 
confirmed." 

An BNOP(GFL B E Y O N D  ,,,p,, , , ,y Group Company 
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"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby 
authorised to do all such acts and take all such steps as they may deem necessary, proper or 
expedient to give effect to this resolution." 

By Order of the Board of Directors 

Place: Noida 
Date: 12thAugust, 2022 

Pooja Paul 
Company Secretary 



Notes: 

I. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO AlTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL 
MEETING ("MEETING") IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT ONE OR MORE PROXIES TO 
ATTEND AND VOTE ON A POLL ONLY INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/ HERSELF AND A 
PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER. Proxies, in order to be effective, must be received at the 
Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the 
Meeting. 

2. A PERSON CAN ACT AS A PROXY ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS NOT EXCEEDING 
FIETY (50) AND HOLDING IN THE AGGREGATE NOT MORE THAN TEN PERCENT 
(10%) OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY. HOWEVER, A 
MEMBER HOLDING MORE THAN TEN PERCENT (lo%), OF THE TOTAL SHARE 
CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS MAY APPOINT A 
SINGLE PERSON AS PROXY AND SUCH PERSON SHALL NOT ACT AS PROXY FOR 
ANY OTHER PERSON OR MEMBER. 

3. The Statement pursuant to Section 102 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the Special 
Business in respect of Item No. 3 hereinabove is annexed hereto. 

4. Appointment/ Re-appointment of Director: 

The information required to be provided as per the Secretarial Standard (SS-2) issued by the 
Institute of Company Secretaries of India in respect of Director/s being appointed / re-appointed 
is given herein below: 

I 

Date of Birth and Age I 16th September, 1951,70 Years 

Name of Director Shri Mukesh Manglik 

Date of first appointment on the Board 

I 

Qualification I BE (Electrical), VJTI, Mumbai University 

21st October, 2014 

Directors Identification Number 

Experience/ Expertise in Specific 
Functional Area 

07001509 

He possesses more than four decades of experience 
in the field of design and development of power 
electronics & process controls including over 18 
years of experience in the wind industry with 
expertise in engineering, operations, maintenance 
and commissioning of wind turbine generators. He 
has been associated with Inox GFL Group since 
2008 and is spearheading the Company's 
Engineering and Product Development 
Department. He is also on the Boards of various 
Inox GFL Group companies. 

Directorship held in other Companies I. Inox Wind Limited 
2. Wind One Renergy Limited 
3. Vibhav Energy Private Limited 
4. Tempest Wind Energy Private Limited 
5. Resco Global Wind Services Private Limited 
6. Wind Three Renergy Limited 
7. Flurry Wind Energy Private Limited 
8. Suswind Power Private Limited 
9. Ripudaman U ~ j a  Private Limited 

Membership / Chairmanship of other 
Companies 

Inox Wind Limited 
1. Nomination and Remuneration Committee, 

Member 
2. IWL Committee of Board of Directors for 



Operations, Member 
3. Business Responsibility Committee, Member 

I The Number of Meeting of the Board 1 2 - 
attended during the year 
Remuneration last drawn 

5. Members desiring any relevant information on the accounts at the Annual General Meeting are 
requested to write to the Company Secretary at least seven days in advance at the Company's 
Corporate Office address so as to enable the Company to keep the information ready. 

Nil 

Relationship with other Directors, 
Manager and other Key Managerial 
Personnel of the Company 
Shareholding in the Company 

6. Members/ Proxies are requested to bring their filled in Attendance Slip and their copy of Annual 
Report to the Meeting. 

Not related to any Directors/ KMP 

Nil 

7. Corporate Members intending to send their Authorised Representative(s) to attend the Annual 
General Meeting are requested to send duly certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing 
such representative(s) to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting. 

8. The relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice of Meeting and in the Explanatory 
Statement are open for inspection by the Members of the Company at the Registered Office's on all 
working days (except Saturdays, Sundays and Public Holidays) between 11.00 A.M. to 01.00 P.M. 
upto the date of this Meeting. 



THE STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 102 (1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 201.1 

Item No. 3 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors has to be ratified by the 
Members of the Company. 

Accordingly, consent of the Members is sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution as set out at Item 
No. 3 of the Notice for ratification of the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for the Financial 
Year ending 31~t March, 2023. 

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives is, in any way, 
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the Notice. 

The Directors recommend the Resolution as stated at Item No. 3 of the Notice for approval of the 
Members by way of an Ordinary Resolution. 

By Order of the Board of Directors 

Place: Noida 
Date: 12thAugust, 2022 

Pooja Paul 
Company Secretary 



PROXY FORM 

[Form No. MGT-111 
[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 20141 

INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED 
(formerly l a o w n  as Inox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 

(CIN: U45207GJ2012PLCo7027g) 

Registered Office: Survey No. 1837 & 1834, At Moje Jetalpur, ABS Towers, 
Second Floor, Old Padra Road, Vadodara -390007, Gujarat 
Telephone: 0265 6198111/2330057; Fax: 0265 2310312 

Email id: investor@inoxgreen.com 
Website: www.inoxgreen.com 

Tenth Annual General Meeting - Wednesday, 14th September, 2022 at 12:30 P.M. 

Name of the 
Member (s) 

Registered Address : I 

E-mail ID 

Folio No./ Client ID : 

I/ We, being the Member(s) of shares of the above named 
Company, hereby appoint 

Name: E-mail ID: 

Address: 

Signature: 

Or failing him/ her 

Name: E-mail ID: 

Address: 

Signature: 

Or failing him/ her 

Name: E-mail ID: 

Address: 

Signature: 



For I Against I Abstain 

as my/ our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/ us and on my/ our behalf at the 10th Annual 
General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Wednesday, lqfll September, 2022, at 12:30 
P.M. at Survey No. 1837 & 1834, At Moje Jetalpur, ABS Towers, Second Floor, Old Padra Road, 
Vadodara-390007, Gujarat, India and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are 
indicated below: 

I I I I 

Ordinary Business 

Vote (Optional see Note 2) 
(Please mention no. of 
shares) 

Resolution 
Number 

b) the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of 
the Company for the Financial Year ended 3ist 
March, 2022 and the report of the Auditors 
thereon 

Resolution 

I. To consider and adopt: 
a) the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of 

the Company for the Financial Year ended 31~t 
March, 2022, the reports of the Board of 
Directors and Auditors thereon; and 

2. 

Signed this day of 2022. 

(Ordinary Resolution) 
Re-appointment of Shri Mukesh Manglik (DIN: 
0700i509) as a Director of the Company 
(Ordinary Resolution) 

3 

Revenue 
Stamp not less 
than Re. 1 

Special Business 

Approval of remuneration of M/s Jain Sharma and 
Associates (Firm Registration no. 000270) for Cost 
Audit of the Company for Financial Year 2022-23 
(Ordinary Resolution) 

Signature of Shareholder Signature of Proxy Holder(s) 

Notes: 

I. This form of proxy, in order to be effective, should be duly completed and deposited at the 
Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the 
Meeting. 

2. It is optional to indicate your preference. If you leave the 'For', 'Against' or 'Abstain' column blank 
against any or all of the resolutions, your proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she 
may deem appropriate. 



ATTENDANCE SLIP 

[To be handed over at the entrance of Meeting Hall] 

INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED 
(formerly known as  Inox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 

(CIN: U45207GJ2012PLCo70279) 

Registered Office: Survey No. 1837 & 1834, At Moje Jetalpur, ABS Towers, 
Second Floor, Old Padra Road, Vadodara -390007, Gujarat 
Telephone: 0265 6198111/2330057; Fax: 0265 2310312 

Email id: investor@inoxgreen.com 
Website: www.inoxgreen.com 

10th Annual General Meeting -Wednesday, 14th September, 2022, at i2:30 P.M. 

Regd. Folio No. /DP ID Client ID/Ben. A/C No.of shares 
held 

I certify that I am a registered shareholder/proxy for the registered Shareholder of the Company. 
I hereby record my presence at the 10th Annual General Meeting of the Company on Wednesday, 14th 
September, 2022, at 12:30 P.M. at Survey No. 1837 & 1834, At Moje Jetalpur, ABS Towers, Second 
Floor, Old Padra Road, Vadodara- 390007, Gujarat. 

Member's/Proxy's name in Block Letters Member's/Proxy's Signature 

Note: Please fill this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the hall. 



Route Map 

Survey No. 1837 & 1834 At Moje Jetalpur, ABS Towers, Second Floor, 
Old Padra Road, Vadodara- 390007, Gujarat 
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BOARD'S REPORT 

To the Members of 
, Inox Green Energy Services Limited 

Your Directors take pleasure in presenting to you their Tenth Annual Report together with the Audited 
Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended on 3ist March, 2022. 

I. FINANCIAL RESULTS 

Following are the working results for the Financial Year 2021-22: 

Amount in Rs. Lakhs 
Sr. 
No. 

I I I , I 

Particulars Standalone I Consolidated 

I. I Revenue from Operations 

11. 

111. 

IV. 

17,399.58 1 17,682.43 1 17,216.63 1 17,224.74 

V. 

VI. 

2021-22 

Other income 

Total Revenue Income (I+II) 

Total Expenses 

VII. 

VIII. 

As part of a strategic initiative, the Company hived off its EPC business by way of slump sale to Resco 
Global Wind Services Private Limited (RESCO), a fellow subsidiary, effective 31~t December, 2021. 

Post the hive off, the Company remains a pure 0 & M Company. 

2021-22 2020-21 

Share of profit/(loss) of 
associates 
Profit/(Loss) before 
exceptional item and tax from 
continuing operations (I11 - 

IX. 

X. 

2. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

2020-21 

1,017.13 

18,416.71 

19,078.06 

W+v> 
Total Tax expense 

Profit/(Loss) after tax for 
the period from 
continuing operations (VI 

As per applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules issued thereunder, the 
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year 2021-22 have been 
prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) prescribed under Section 133 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and other recognized accounting practices and policies to the extent 
applicable and on the basis of audited financial statements of the Company, its subsidiary companies, 
as approved by the respective Board of Directors. 

- 

(661.35) 

- VII) 
Profit/(Loss) for the period/ 
year from discontinued 
operations 
Profit/(Loss) after tax for 
the period/ year (VIII+IX) 

An !NO~,(GFL B E v o , 2 0  , t t F , , J , , y  Group Company 

1,486.35 

19,168.78 

19,940.33 

(221.23) 

(440.12) 

Registered Office : Survey No. 1837 & 1834, At  Moje Jetalpur, ABS Tower, Yd Floor, Old Padra Road, Vadodara-390 007, Gujarat, INDIA 
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- 

(771.55) 

(5,264.32) 

(5,704.44) 
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1,806.58 

19,023.21 

19,493.85 

(272.00) 

(499.55) 

1,403.79 
18,628.53 

19,963.68 
- 

(470.64) 

(6,691.40) 

(7,190.95) 

(1,899.14) 

(3,234.29) 

24.46 

(495.10) 

(461.31) 

(2,772.98) 

(8,824.52) 

(9,319.62) 

(12,579.30) 

(15,352.28) 



The Consolidated Financial Statements together with the Independent Auditor's Report form part of 
this Annual Report. The Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements for the Financial 
Year 2021-22 shall be laid before the Annual General Meeting for approval of the Members of the 
Company. 

3. DIVIDEND 

No dividend has been recommended by the Board of Directors for the year ended 31~t March, 2022. 

4. TRANSFER TO RESERVES 

During the year under review, the Company has not transferred any amount to General Reserves. 

5. NAME CHANGE OF THE COMPANY 

The name of the Company was changed from Inox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited to Inox 
Green Energy Services Limited w.e.f. 27th October, 2021 pursuant to the receipt of fresh certificate of 
incorporation in relation to change of name from the Registrar of Companies, Ahmedabad, Gujarat. 

6. INITIAL PUBLIC OFFER 

During the period under review, the Board of Directors of the Company on 6th December, 2021 and 
Shareholders on 1 2 t h  January, 2022 accorded their approval for fund raising, subject to receipt of 
requisite approvals, rnarket conditions and other considerations, by way of an initial public offer of its 
Equity Shares comprising of fresh issue of Equity Shares aggregating upto Rs. 500 Crore ("Fresh 
Issue") and/ or an offer of sale of Equity Shares by certain existing and eligible shareholders of the 
company, in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder ("Companies 
Act"), the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2018, as amended ("SEBI ICDR Regulations") and other applicable laws (the 
"OfferN).The Draft Red Hearing Prospectus (DRHP) was filed with SEBI on 7th February, 2022 which 
was withdrawn pursuant to the approval of the Board of Directors on 28thApril, 2022. 

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of the Company accorded their fresh approval in their 
respective meeting held on 9th May, 2022 and 26th May, 2022 for raising capital, subject to receipt of 
requisite approvals, market conditions and other considerations, by way of an initial public offer of its 
Equity Shares comprising of fresh issue of Equity Shares aggregating upto Rs. 500 Crore ("Fresh 
Issue") and/ or an offer of sale of Equity Shares by certain existing and eligible shareholders of the 
company, in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder ("Companies 
Act"), the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2018, as amended ("SEBI ICDR Regulations") and other applicable laws (the, "Offer"). 
The Draft Red Hearing Prospectus (DRHP) was filed with SEBI on 17th June, 2022. 

7. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

Appointments/ Resignations during the year under review and upto the date of this report: 

Ms. Bindu Saxena was appointed as an Additional and Independent Director of the Company by the 
Board of Directors in their meeting held on 14th December, 2021 for a term of five consecutive years 
with effect from 14th December, 2021 and her appointment was approved by the Members of the 
Company in the 21~t Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on 1 2 t h  January, 2022. 

Brief profile of Ms. Bindu Saxena 
She holds a degree in bachelor's in law from Lucknow University, Uttar Pradesh. She is a practising 
Advocate and is a Partner of the Law Firm M/s. Swarup & company, New Delhi. She h& over 30 

years of experience as corporate attorney with experience of commercial transactions and projects in 
India and overseas. 

In the opinion of the Board, she is a person of high integrity and possesses s1ulls/ expertise/ 
competencies including in the following areas: Accounts and finance, financial management, audit 
management, taxation, corporate governance, administration, legal and compliance and business 



strategy and management. Due to her vast and varied experience including as Independent Director 
on the Board of various companies including listed companies, she is exempted to take the online 
proficiency self assessment test conducted by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs. 

Shri Mukesh Manglik (DIN: O ~ O O I ~ O ~ ) ,  who has attained 70 years of 'age, was re-appointed as a 
Whole-time Director of the Company by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on 14th 
December, 2021 for a further period of two years with effect from 19th May, 2022 and his re- 
appointment was approved by the Members of the Company in the 21st Extra-Ordinary General 
Meeting of the Company held on 12th January, 2022. 

Shri Manoj Shambhu Dixit (DIN: 06709232) was re-appointed as a Whole-time Director of the 
Company by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on 14th December, 2021 for a further period 
of two years with effect from 8th October, 2022 and his re-appointment was approved, by the 
Members of the Company in the 21~t Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on 12th  

January, 2022. 

The Members of the Company in the 2 1 S t  Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on 
12th January, 2022 had approved continuation of Shri Shanti Prashad Jain (DIN: 00023379) as an 

, Independent Director who is above 75 years of age to hold office upto the expiry of his present term 
i.e. upto 28th May, 2024. 

Appointment of Shri Mukesh Manglik (DIN: 07001509) who retires by rotation and being eligible, 
and being eligible have offered himself for re-appointment. 

Necessary resolutions in respect of Director seeking appointment and his brief resume pursuant 
Secretarial Standard -2 issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India are provided in the 
Notice of the Annual General Meeting forming part of this Annual Report. 

Particulars of shares held by Non-Executive Director 

% of total share 
holdine 

Name of Non-Executive Director 

Shri Vineet Valentine Davis 
Shri Venltatanarayanan 

8. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY 

No. of shares held 

Sankaranarayanan 
Shri Shanti Prashad Jain 
Ms. Bindu Saxena 

The salient features and objectives of the Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company are 
as under: 

Nil 
Nil 

a. To lay down criteria for identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may 
be appointed in Senior Management of the Company in accordance with the criteria laid down by 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and recommend to the Board their appointment and 
removal; 

- 
Nil 
Nil 

Nil 
Nil 

b. To formulate criteria for determining qualification, positive attributes and Independence of a 
Director; 

Nil 
Nil 

c. To determine the composition and level of remuneration, including reward linked with the 
performance, which is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate Directors, KMP, 
Senior Management Personnel & other employees to work towards the long term growth and 
success of the Company. 

The Nomination and Remuneration Policy has been uploaded on the Company's website; 
~vww.inoxnreen.com and can be accessed at https:llwvw.inoxgreen.co~nlPDF/ann 8.pdf. 



9. DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE 

The Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors confirming that they meet 
the criteria of independence as prescribed under the provisions of Section 149 (6) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with the Schedules annexed thereto and Rules made thereunder. They have also 
confirmed that they have complied with the Code of Conduct as prescribed in the Schedule IV to the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

lo. FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

The Familiarization Programme seeks to update the Independent Directors on various matters 
covering Company's strategy, business model, operations, finance, risk management etc. It also seeks 
to update the Independent Directors with their roles, rights, responsibilities, duties under the 
Companies Act, 2013 and other statutes. 

Formal Letter of Appointment: 

Independent Directors of the Company has been issued a formal Letter of Appointment setti& out in 
detail the terms of appointment, duties and responsibilities. 

Separate Meeting of Independent Directors: 

As stipulated under Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act"), read with Schedule IV of the 
said Act, a separate meeting of the Independent Directors of the Company was held on 11th February, 
2022 with the following agenda: 

review the performance of Non-Independent Directors, Board as a whole and Chairperson of the 
Company; and 
to assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company 
Management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform 
their duties. 

11. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 

Performance Evaluation forms containing criteria for evaluation of Board as a whole, Committees of 
the Board and Individual Directors and Chairperson of the Company were sent to all the Directors 
with a request to provide their feedback to the Company on the Annual Performance of Board as a 
whole, Committees of Board and Individual Directors for the Financial Year 2021-22. Further, based 
on the feedback received by the Company, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee at its 
Meeting held on 11th February, 2022 had noted the Annual Performance of each of the Directors and 
recommended to the Board to continue the terms of appointment of all the Independent Directors of 
the Company and the Board of Directors of the Company at its Meeting held on 11th February, 2022 

noted that the performance of Board, Committees of the Board and Individual Directors and 
Chairperson (including Chairperson, Independent Directors) is evaluated as highly satisfactory by 
this evaluation process. 

12. MEETINGS OF THE BOARD 

During the year under review, the Board met 10 (Ten) times on the following dates; 21~t June, 2021, 

25th June, 2021, 13th August, 2021, 6th October, 2021, 14th October, 2021, 15th November, 2021, 6th 
December, 2021,14th December, 2021, 18th January, 2022 and 11th February, 2022. The intervening 
gap between the two Meetings was within the time limit prescribed under Section 173 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

13. COMMInEE OF THE BOARD 

(i) AUDIT COMMIlTEE 

During the year under review, the Audit Committee was reconstituted and its terms of reference 



were revised on 14th December, 2021. It presently comprises of four Directors namely Shri V. 
Sankaranarayanan, Independent Director as Chairman, Shri Shanti Prashad Jain & Ms. Bindu 
Saxena, Independent Directors and Shri Mulzesh Manglik, Whole-time Director as Members of 
the Committee. 

The composition of Audit Committee is in compliance of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with relevant Rules made thereunder. 

During the Financial Year 2021-22, the Audit Committee met 7 (Seven) times on the following 
dates, 25th June, 2021, 13th August, 2021, 6th October, 2021, 14th October, 2021, 14th December, 
2021,18th January, 2022 and 11th February, 2022. 

(ii) NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

The terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee were revised on 14" 
December, 2021. It comprises of three Directors namely Shri Venlzatanarayanan 
Sankaranarayanan, Independent Director as Chairman, Shri Shanti Prashad Jain, Independent 
Director and Shri Vineet Valentine Davis, Non-Executive Director as Members of the Committee. 

The composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee is in compliance of Section 178 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant Rules made thereunder. 

During the Financial Year 2021-22, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee met 4 (Four) 
times on 2is t  June, 2021,13thAugust, 2021,14& December and 11th February, 2022. 

(iii) CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE 

The terms of reference of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee were revised on 14th 
December, 2021. It comprises of three Directors namely Shri Mukesh Manglik, Whole-time 
Director as Chairman, Shri Vineet Valentine Davis, Non-Executive Director and Shri 
Venlzatanarayanan Sankaranarayanan, Independent Director as Members of the Committee. 

The composition of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is in compliance of Section 135 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant Rules made thereunder. 

During the Financial Year 2021-22, the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee met 2 (Two) 
time on 25th June, 2021 and 13fhAugust, 2021. 

(iv) STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 

During the year under review, the Stakeholders Relationship Committee was constituted and its 
terms of reference were defined on lqth December, 2021. It comprises of three Directors namely 
Shri Venkatanarayanan Sankaranarayanan, Independent Director as Chairman, Shri Manoj 
Shambhu Dixit, Whole-time Director and Shri Vineet Valentine Davis, Non-Executive Director as 
Members of the Committee. 

The composition of Stakeholders Relationship Committee is in compliance of Section 178 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant Rules made thereunder. 

(v) RISK MANAGEMENT 

During the year under review, the Risk Management Committee was constituted and its terms of 
reference were defined on 14th December, 2021. It comprises of three Directors namely Shri 
Manoj Shambhu Dixit, Whole-time Director as Chairman, Shri Venlzatanarayanan 
Sankaranarayanan, Independent Director and Shri Vineet Valentine Davis, Non-Executive 
Director as Members of the Committee. 

The Company has in place a mechanism/ Enterprise Risk Framework to inform the Board about 
the risk assessment and minimization procedures to review key elements of risks viz. regulatory, 
legal, competition and financial risks etc. involved and measures taken to ensure that risk is 



controlled by means of a properly defined framework. In the Board's view, there are no material 
risks which may threaten the existence of the Company. 

14. DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT AS PER SUB-SECTION (5) OF SECTION 
134 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained 
by your Directors, they make the following statements in terms of Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies 
Act, 2013: 

i. in the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards had been 
followed and there are no departures from the requirements of the Accounting Standards; 

ii. the Directors had selected such Accounting Policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the loss of the Company for 
that period; 

iii. the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

iv. the Directors had prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concern basis; 

v. the Directors had laid down Internal Financial Controls to be followed by the Company and that 
such Internal Financial Controls were adequate and were operating effectively; and 

vi. the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

15. PARTICULARS OF LOANS GIVEN, INVESTMENTS MADE, GUARANTEES GIVEN AND 
SECURITIES PROVIDED 

Particulars of Loans given, Investments made, Guarantees given and Securities provided along with 
the purpose for which the Loan or Guarantee or Security is proposed to be utilized by the Recipient 
are provided in the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company. Please refer to Notes No. 39, 
42 and 43 to the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company. 

16. CONTRACTS AND ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES 

All contracts/ arrangements/ transactions entered by the Company during the year under review with 
Related Parties are approved by the Audit Committee and/or Board and/or Shareholders, wherever 
necessary, as per the provisions of Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 
Rules framed thereunder. The Company had not entered into any contract/ arrangement/ transaction 
with Related Parties which could be considered material in accordance with the Policy of the 
Company on materiality of Related Party Transactions. 

All transactions entered with Related Parties for the year under review were on arm's length basis and 
in the ordinary course of business. Further, there were no material related party transactions during 
the year under review. Hence, disclosures in Form AOC-2 is not required. 

17. DEPOSITS 

The Company has not accepted any deposits covered under Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013. 



18. SHARE CAPITAL AND DEBT STRUCTURE 

Authorised Share Capital 

During the year under review, the Authorised Share Capital of the Company was increased from 
Rs.i~a,oo,oo,ooo/- divided into 15,20,00,000 Equity Shares of &.lo/- to Rs. 2o~,oo,oo,ooo/- 
divided into 20,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. lo/- each pursuant to approval accorded by the 
Members of the Company at their 18th Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on 24th June, 2021. 

The Authorised Share Capital was further increased from Rs. 2o~,oo,oo,ooo/- divided into 
20,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. lo/- each to Rs. ~~o ,oo ,oo ,ooo/ -  divided into 
24,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 101- each totalling to Rs. 2~o,oo,oo,ooo/- and 20,00,00,000 
Preference Shares of Rs. 101- each totalling to Rs. ~OO,OO,OO,OOO/- each, pursuant to approval 
accorded by the Members of the Company at their 1gth Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on 2 1 ~ t  

October, 2021. 

The Authorised Share Capital was again increased from Rs. ~~o,oo ,oo ,ooo/ -  divided into 
24,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 101- each totalling to Rs. 2~o,oo,oo,ooo/- and 20,00,00,000 
Preference Shares of Rs. 101- each totalling to Rs. ~OO,OO,OO,OOO/- to Rs. ~oo,oo,oo,ooo/- divided 
into 30,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 1.01- each totalling to Rs. ~oo,oo,oo,ooo/- and 
20,00,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs. lo/- each totalling to Rs. 2oo,oo,oo,ooo/-, pursuant to 
approval accorded by the Members of the Company at their 2 0 t h  Extra Ordinary General Meeting held 
on 26th November, 2021. 

As at 31s' March, 2022, the Authorised Share Capital stood at Rs. 500 Crore. 

Paid-up Share Capital 

During the year under review, the Paid-up Share Capital of the Company was increased from Rs. 
128,61,99,270/- to Rs. 4,35,01,62,580 upon allotment of Equity Shares and Preference Shares, details 
of which are as follows: 

Date of 
allotment 

June 30, 
2021 

November 
3, 2021 

Type of 
Security 

Equity 
Shares 

Equity 
Shares 

Equity 
Shares 

Reason/ Nature 
of allotment 

Preferential 
allotment in lieu of 
repayment of 
existing unsecured 
loans, and interest 
accrued therein, 
extended to our 
Company from 
time to time by 
Inox Wind 
Limited. 
Preferential 
allotment in lieu of 
repayment of debt 
owed to Inox 
Wind Limited on 
account of receipt 
of materials/ 
services etc, by our 
Company from 
time to time. 
Allotment 
pursuant to the 
conversion of 

Names of the 
allottees 

Allotment of 
52,300,035 
Equity Shares 
to Inox Wind 
Limited 

Allotment of 
22,104,727 
Equity Shares 
to Inox Wind 
Limited 

Allotment of 
24,801,587 
Eauitv Shares 

No. of 
Shares 
allotted 

5,23,00,035 

2,21,04,727 

2,48,01,587 

Cumulative 
no. of 
Shares 

18,09,19,962 

20,30,24,689 

22,78,26,276 

Face 
value 
(Rs.) 

10 

10 

10 

Issue 
price 
per 
Shar 
e 
(fie) 
80.64 

80.64 

80.64 

Form 
of 
consid 
eratio 
n 

Other 
than 
cash 

Other 
than 
cash 

Cash# 



late of 
llotment 

lovember 
,2021 

lovember 
2,2021 

)ecember 
3,2021 

)ecember 
1,2021 

series D- to Inox Win 
i,ooo,ooo 4% Limited 
optionally 
convertible 
debentures of 
$1,000 each and 
series E- 
1,000,000 4% 
optionally 
convertible 
debentures of 
$1,000 each 
issued to Inox 
Wind Limited on 
November 5, 2015 
and November 17, . . 
1201~ respectively. I 

'referenc ]private ~lacement~~l lotment  ( 

, Shares pursuant to 149,548,514 
conversion of Preference 
inter-corporate Shares to Inc 
deposits, extended Wind Limited 
to our Company 
from time to time 
by Inox Wind 
Limited and in 
lieu of repayment 
of debt owed to 
Inox Wind 
Limited on 
account of receipt 
of materials/ 
services etc. by our 
Company from 
ltime to time. 

Cauitv IPreferential 1 Refer to Note 
;Lare> 1 allotment in lieu of1 

repayment of debt 
owed to the 
allottees on 
account of receipt 
of materials/ 
services etc, by our 
Company from 
ltime to time 

Zquity l~referential 1 Refer to Note 
&ares lallotment in lieu of1 2 

repayment of debt 
owed to the 
allottees on 
account of receipt 
of materials/ 
services etc. by our 
Company from 
ltime to time 

'referenc IPrivate ~lacementl~llotment of 

hmulative 
LO. of 
Shares 

37,73,74,79' 

38,05,36,99, 

'ace 
alue 
b . 1  

- 

- 
11 

Form , f 
:onsid 
:ratio 
1 

3ther 
han 
:ash 

3ther 
:han 
sash 

Other 
than 
?ash 

Other 
than 
cash 



Date of 
allotment 

from time to time 
bv Inox Wind 

Type of 
Security 

Limited and in 
lieu of repayment 
of debt owed to  
Inox Wind 
Limited on 
account of receipt 
of materials/ 
services etc. by our 
Company . from 
time to time. 

Face 
value 
(%.I 

Reason/ Nature 
of allotment 

Issuc 
price 
Per 
Shar 
e 
(Rs.) 

Form 
of 
consid 
eratio 
n 

Names of the 
allottees 

# Consideration for such Equity Shares was paid upfront at the time of allotment of the optionally 
convertible debentures. 

Note I: Allotment of 620,040 Equity Shares to La1 Singh (for and on behalf of M/s La1 silngh & 
Construction Company), 620,039 Equity Shares to Rahul Shrikant Joshi (on behalf of partnership 
firm M/s Anant Electricals & Engineers), 248,016 Equity Shares each to Dalwinder Singh Chahal (on 
behalf of partnership firm Bharat Cargo Movers), Panvinder Singh Chahal (on behalf of partnership 
firm Bharat Cargo Movers), Sarla Devi (for and on behalf of M/s Uttam Fabricators), Mohit Shamrao 
Jadhav (on behalf of partnership firm Firstnotch Solutions) and SMP Infracon LLP, 186,012 Equity 
Shares to Swaroop Dan Detha (for and on behalf of M/s Kaviraj Infracon), 130,208 Equity Shares to 
Dowpati Siva (on behalf of partnership firm M/s Raft & Mech Engineering), 124,008 Equity Shares 
to Daljit Singh Chahal (on behalf of partnership firm Bharat Cargo Movers), 62,004 Equity Shares 
each to Rajkumar Nandlal Gupta (on behalf of partnership firm Kandla Earth Movers), Neha 
Rajlumar Gupta (on behalf of partnership firm Kandla Earth Movers) and Prakash Ramchandra 
Patil (for and on behalf of M/s Madhur Electricals) and 55,804 Equity Shares to Challagundla 
Sudharani (on behalf of partnership firm M/s Raft & Mech Engineering), in lieu of repayment of 
debt owed to them on account of receipt of materials/services etc. by our Company from time to 
time. 

No. of 
Shares 
allotted 

Note 2: Allotment of 868,056 Equity Shares to Amrik Singh and Sons Crane Services Private 
Limited, 415,427 Equity Shares to Anaisha Solutions Private Limited, 248,016 Equity Shares each to 
Rahul Shrikant Joshi (on behalf of partnership firm M/s Anant Electricals & Engineers), Ashok 
Pruthviraj Katha (for and on behalf of M/s Pashwanath Scrape Trading Co.) and Windcare India 
Private Limited, 186,012 Equity Shares to Active Protection Services Private Limited, 148,810 Equity 
Shares to K.R. Composites Private Limited, 124,008 Equity Shares each to Jayendrasinh K. Vala (for 
and on behalf of M/s Raviraj Enterprises), Mahesh Sadanand Poojari (for and on behalf of M/s S. 
Poojari & Co.), Dalwinder Singh Chahal (on behalf of partnership firm Bharat Cargo Movers) and 
Panvinder Singh Chahal (on behalf of partnership firm Bharat Cargo Movers), 105,407 Equity 
Shares to Arvind Rampher Yadav (for and on behalf of M/s Shriram Fibertech & Shri Balaji 
Enterprises), 99,206 Equity Shares each to Radhe Shyam (for and on behalf of M/s Radhe Krishna 
Infra Enterprises) and Zakir Hussain (for and on behalf of M/s M.S. Engineering,Worls), 62,004 
Equity Shares each to Kalyani Devanand Sapltal (for and on behalf of M/s Shiv Shaltti Enterprises), 
Rameshwar Mulaji Jogi (for and on behalf of M/s Rameshwar Transport Co.), Lalchadhirbhai 
Jethurbhai Kothival (for and on behalf of M/s Manyata Enterprises), Ranmal Jethurbhai Kothival 
(for and on behalf of M/s Manyata Enterprises), Sumitra (for and on behalf of M/s Guni Wind 
Shaltti), Daljit Singh Chahal (on behalf of partnership firm Bharat Cargo Movers) and Stella 
Engineering Solutions Private Limited, 49,603 Equity Shares each to Amrit La1 Aanjana (for and on 
behalf of M/s Amrit Enterprises) and Vinod Kumar Sharma (for and on behalf of M/s Mansi 
Enterprises), 41,336 Equity Shares each to Rohit Rajkishore Gupta (for and on behalf of M/s Yorls 
Equipment), Veena Rajltishore Gupta (for and on behalf of M/s Yorks Equipment) and Rajkishore 
Munshilal Gupta (for and on behalf of M/s Yorks Equipment), 31,002 Equity Shares each to Atul 
Yashwant Patlu (for and on behalf of M/s Sarvesh Electricals), Nitin Kumar (for and on behalf of M/s 
S D International), Usha Chaudhary (for and on behalf of M/s S D International), Nitin Kumar (for 
and on behalf of M/s D N Infra Build Tech Services) and Usha Chaudhary (for and on behalf of M/s 
D N Infra Build Tech Services), 22,321 Equity Shares to Salamuddin Shah (for and on behalf of M/s 

Cumulative 
no. of 
Shares 



Salamuddin Shah) and 15,501 Equity Shares each to Jaywant Supadu Shinde (on behalf of 
partnership firm Krishana Electricals and Services) and Sagar Deepak Deore (on behalf of 
partnership firm Krishana Electricals and Services) in lieu of repayment of debt owed to them on 
account of receipt of materials/services etc. by our Company from time to time. 

Optionally Convertible Debentures 

During the year under review, the outstanding Series C and D of 4% Optionally Convertible 
Debentures of Rs. 1,000 each of the Company aggregating to Rs. 200 Crore were fully redeemed. 

Non-Convertible Debentures 

As at 3iSt March, 2022, 9.50% 1,950 Rated, Listed, Secured, Redeemable, Non-Convertible 
Debentures aggregating to Rs. 120 Crore were outstanding. 

19. SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES INCLUDING JOINT VENTURE AND ASSOCIATE 
COMPANIES 

As a part of its strategic business restructuring, the Company executed a share purchase agreement 
on 18th Oct,ober, 2021 with its Holding and Promoter Company, Inox Wind Limited Limited to sell the 
entire issued and paid up equity share capital of its wholly owned subsidiary, Resco Global Wind 
Services Private Limited ('RESCO'). Consequent upon the said sale, RESCO ceased to be Company's 
subsidiary w.e.f. 19th October, 2021. 

Further, during the year under review, the Company executed share purchase agreements on 25th 
October, 2021 to sell the entire issued and paid up equity share capital of its below mentioned 6 (Six) 
wholly owned subsidiaries to its fellow subsidiary, Resco Global Wind Services Private Limited: 

i. Marut-Shakti Energy India Limited; 
ii. Sarayu Wind Power (Kondapuram) Private Limited; 

iii. Sarayu Wind Power (Tallimadugula) Private Limited; 
iv. Vinirrmaa Energy Generation Private Limited; 
v. Satviki Energy Private Limited and 

vi. RBRK Investments Limited. 

Consequent upon the sale, the aforementioned companies ceased to be Company's subsidiaries w.e.f. 
29th October, 2021. 

The Company has the following Subsidiaries as on 31st March, 2022 which are engaged in the 
business of power generation through renewable sources of energy: 

2. 1 Wind Two Renergy Private Limited 

S. No. 

I. 

3. / Wind Three Renergy Limited 1 

Name of Subsidiary Company 

Wind One Renergy Limited 

I 

4. 1 Wind Four Renergy Private Limited 
I 

5. 1 Wind Five Renergy Limited 
I 

6. 1 Suswind Power Private Limited 
I 

7. 1 Vasuprada Renewables Private Limited 
I 

8. 1 Ripudaman Urja Private Limited 

I 

12. 1 Ravapar Wind Energy Private Limited 

9. 
10. 

11. 

Vibhav Energy Private Limited 
Haroda Wind Energy Private Limited 

Khatiyu Wind Energy Private Limited 



13. 

14. 

15. 

16. 

I 

19. / Flurry Wind EnergyPrivate Limited 

Nani Virani Wind Energy Private Limited 

Vigodi Wind Energy Private Limited 

Aliento Wind Energy Private Limited 

Tempest Wind Energy Private Limited 

17. 

18. 

The Report on the performance and financial position of each of the Subsidiaries, Associates and 
Joint Ventures of the Company, in Form AOC-I, pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 
129 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 201.4 is annexed to this 
report as Annexure A which has also been uploaded on the website of the Company. 

Vuelta Wind Energy Private Limited 

Flutter Wind Energy Private Limited 

Post the closure of the financial year under review, the Company sold its entire investment held in its 
wholly owned subsidiary, Wind Two Renergy Private Limited ('WTRPL') to Torrent Power Limited, a 
part of Torrent Group on 30th July, 2022. Pursuant to the transfer of shares, WTRPL ceased to be a 
subsidiary of the Company w.e.f. 30th July, 2022. 

The Company does not have a joint venture or associate company as per the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

20. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS 

The Company has adequate internal financial controls commensurate with its size and nature of its 
business and is operating satisfactorily. The Board has reviewed Internal Financial Controls of the 
Company and the Audit Committee monitors the same in consultation with Internal Auditors of the 
Company. In the opinion of the Board, there exist adequate internal financial controls with reference 
to the financial statements. 

21. VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 

The Company has adopted Whistle Blower Policy to report concerns about unethical behavior, actual 
or suspected fraud. Adequate safeguards have been provided in the Policy to prevent victimization of 
Directors/ Employees. No personnel have been denied access to the Audit Committee. 

22. INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

There are no reservations, qualifications or adverse remarks in the Independent Auditor's Report. 
The notes forming part of the Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31St March, 
2022 are self-explanatory and do not call for any further clarifications under Section 134(3)(f) of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

During the year, the Independent Auditors had not reported any matter under Section 143(12) of the 
Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, no detail is required to be disclosed under Section 134(3)(ca) of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

23. INDEPENDENT AUDITORS 

M/s. Dewan P.N. Chopra & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. ooo472N) were 
appointed as Independent Auditors of the Company at the 6th Annual General Meeting (AGM) held 
on 11th July, 2018 to hold office from the conclusion of 6th AGM till the conclusion of the 11th AGM of 
the Company. They have confirmed that they are not disqualified from continuing as Auditors of the 
Company. 



24. COST AUDITORS 

In terms of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records and 
Audit) Amendment Rules, 2014, the cost audit records maintained by the Company are required to be 
audited by a Cost Accountant in practice who shall be appointed by the Board. In view of the above, 
the Company appointed M/s. Jain Sharma and Associates, Cost Auditors (Firm Registration No. 
000270) to audit the cost audit records maintained by the Company for Financial Year 2022-23 on a 
remuneration of Rs. 1,50,000 (Rupees One Lalch Fifty Thousand only). As required under the 
referred Section of the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant Rules, the remuneration payable to the Cost 
Auditor is required to be placed before the Members in a General Meeting for their ratification. 
Accordingly, a resolution seeking Members' ratification for the remuneration payable to M/s. Jain 
Sharma and Associates, Cost Auditors has been included in the Notice convening the 10th Annual 
General Meeting. 

The Cost Audit Report submitted by M/s. Jain Sharma and Associates, Cost Auditors in respect of 
Financial Year 2020-21 was filed with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, New Delhi within the 
prescribed time limit. 

During the year under review, the Cost Auditors has not reported any matter under Section i43(12) of 
the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, no detail is required to be disclosed under Section 134(3)(ca) of 
the Companies Act, 2013. 

25. SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

In terms of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment 
& Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company had appointed M/s. VAPN & 
Associates, Company Secretaries to conduct Secretarial Audit of the Company for the Financial Year 
2021-22. The Secretarial Audit Report given by M/s. VAPN &Associates, in Form MR-3, is annexed 
to this report as Annexure B. The said report does not contain any qualification, reservation, 
adverse remark or disclaimer. 

During the year under review, the Secretarial Auditors had not reported any matter under Section 
i43(12) of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, no detail is required to be disclosed under Section 
134(3)(ca) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

During the year under review, the Company has complied with the requirements of mandatory 
Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

26. STATE OF THE COMPANY'S AFFAIRS 

On standalone basis, the total revenue income of the Company for the Financial Year 2021-22 was Rs. 
17,399.58 Lakhs as compared to previous year of Rs. 17,682.43 L a b .  The loss before tax is Rs. 
(661.35) Lalchs for the year under review, as compared to previous year loss before tax of Rs. (771.55) 
Lakhs. 

27. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

In terms of Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12 of the Companies 
(Management &Administration) Rules, 2014, the Annual Return, in Form MGT -7, is available on the 
Company's website, ~mmv.inoxgreen.com and can be accessed at 
https:l,/wwcv.inoxgreen.comjPDF,/Forin MGT 7 IGESL 2022.pdf. 

28.CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN 
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

Information in respect of conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings 
and outgo pursuant to Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 8 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, in the manner prescribed is annexed to this report as Annexure C. 



29. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

In terms of Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Report and Accounts are being sent to the 
Members of the Company excluding information on employees' particulars which is available for 
inspection by the Members at the Registered Office of the Company during the business hours on 
working days of the Company up to the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. If any Member 
is interested in obtaining such information, he/she may write to the Company Secretary at the 
Corporate Office of the Company. 

30. INSURANCE 

The Company's property and assets have been adequately insured. 

31. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) COMMITTEE AND CSR ACTMTIES: 

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee comprises of three Directors namely Shri Multesh 
Manglilt, Whole-time Director as Chairman, Shri Vineet Valentine Davis, Non-Executive Non- 
Independent Director and Shri Venkatanarayanan Sankaranarayanan, Independent Director as 
members of the Committee. 

The composition of CSR Committee is in compliance of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with relevant Rules made thereunder. The CSR Policy of the Company is disclosed on the website of 
the Company; https://inoxp;reen.com/PDF/IWISL%2o- 
%2oCSR%20Committee%20Poli~y%2o2~i.o6.202~.pdf. The report on CSR activities as per 
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014 is annexed to this Report as Annexure D. 

32. INFORMATION UNDER THE SEXUAL HARRASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 

The Company has in place Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment Policy in line 
with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition 
and Redressal) Act, 2013. Your Company has formed an Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) to 
redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, 
temporary, trainees) are covered under this Policy. 

The following is the summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed off during the 
year 2021-22: 

.MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL 
POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF 
THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT 

No. of Complaints outstanding at the beginning of the year 
No. of Complaints Received 
No. of Complaints disposed of 
No. of Complaints Pending at the end of the year 

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company 
which have occurred between the end of the Financial Year of the Company to which the Financial 
Statements relate and the date of this report. 

Nil 
Nil 

Not Applicable 
Nil 

34. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS 
OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY'S 
OPERATIONS IN FUTURE 

There are no orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status 
and Company's operations in future. 



35. DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDINGS PENDING UNDER THE 
INSOLVENCYAND BACKRUPTCX CODE, 2016 

During the year under review, there are no such applications admitted under the Insolvency and 
Banlzruptcy Code, 2016. 

36, ONE TIME SETTLEMENTS 

During the year under review, there is no one time settlements done with any banks or financial 
institutions. 

37, ACIOiOWLEDGEMENT 

Your Directors express their gratitude to all external agencies for the assistance, co-operation and 
guidance received. Your Directors place on record their deep sense of appreciation for the dedicated 
services rendered by the worlcforce of the Company. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Place: Noida 
Date: 12th August, 2022 

Mukesh Manglik 
?. Whole-time Director 

DIN:o7001509 









Statement related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures: Nil 

[ Sr. No. I Particulars Name 

I. 

2. 

Latest Audited Balance Sheet date 
Date on which the Associate or Joint Venture was 

3. 

Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations: Nil 

associated or acquired 
Shares of Associates/ Joint Ventures held by the 
Company on the year end 

Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year: Nil 

Not Applicable 
4. 
5. 

6. 

7. 
i. 

ii. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
I 

Number 
Amount of Investment in Associates/ Joint Venture 
Extent of holding % 
Description of how there is significant influence 
Reason why the associate/ joint venture is not 
consolidated 
Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest 
Balance Sheet 
Profit/ Loss for the year 
Considered in consolidation 
Not considered in consolidation 

~irgc'tor 
DIN: 06709232 DIN: 06709239 

Place: Noida 
Date: 12th August, 2022 

Govind Prakesh Rathor Pooja Paul 
Chief Financial Officer Comany Secretary 



VAPN & ASSOCIATES, 
COMPANY SECRLTA RIPS 

FORM NO. MR-3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022 
[Pzirszinnt to Section 204(1) oftlze Corlzpnnies Act, 2013 and Rzile No. 9 oftlze Colnpmies 

(Appoi~zt~nelzt and Re~~tzi~zeration ofManagerial Personnel) RziZes, 20141 

To, 
The Members 
Inox Green Energy Services Limited 
(Formerly known as: "Inox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited") 
CIN: U45207G J2012PLC070279 
Registered Office: Survey No. 1837 & 1834, At Moje Jetalpur, ABS Towers, Second 
Floor, Old Padra Road, Vadodara Gujarat 390007 
Corporate office: Inox Towers, Plot No.17 Sector 16A Noida 201301 Uttar Pradesh 

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with Rule-9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, on the compliance of applicable statutory 
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Inox Green Energy 
Services Limited [Formerly known as Inox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited] 
(hereinafter called the "Company") during the financial year from Olst  April, 2021 to 
31st March, 2022 ('the year'/ 'audit period'/ 'period under review'). 

We conducted the Secretarial Audit in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis 
for evaluating the Company's corporate conducts / statutory compliances and 
expressing our opinion thereon. 

We are issuing this report based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, 
minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 
Company, the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and 
authorised representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, the explanations 
and clarifications given to us and the representations made by the Management, we 
hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has during the audit period 
covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2022, generally complied with the 
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board 
processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and 
subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 
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1. Compliance with statutory provisions: 

1.1. We report that, we have examined the books, papers, minute books, 
forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company 
for the financial year ended on March 31, 2022 according to the 
applicable provisions of (as amended): 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') and the Rules made there 
under read with notifications, exemptions and clarifications 
there to; 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and 
the rules made there under; 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and bye-laws 
framed there under; 

(iv) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'): - 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015; 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018; and 

(c) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of 
Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021. 

(v) The listing agreements entered into by the Company with the 
BSE Limited (BSE) in relation to listing of its Non- Convertible 
Debentures. 

1.2. In relation to the period under review, the Company has, to the best of 
our knowledge and belief and based on the records, information, 
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explanations and representations furnished to us, Company in general 
has complied with the laws mentioned in clause (i) to (v) of paragraph 
1.1. 

1.3. During the period under review, we are informed that the Company 
was not required to comply with the following laws / rules / 
regulations and consequently was not required to maintain any books, 
papers, Minute books or other records or file any forms / returns 
under: 

(i) The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999, and the rules and 
regulations made thereunder; 

(ii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial 
Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 

(iii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibitions of 
Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

(iv) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based 
Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2021; 

(v) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an 
Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 .regarding 
the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

(vi) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity 
Shares) Regulations, 2009; 

(vii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of 
Securities) Regulations, 2018; 

2. Board Processes: 

2.1. We further report that, the Board of Directors of the Company is duly 
constituted with a proper balance of Executive Directors, Non- 

3 I P a g e  2.6  
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Executive Directors and Independent Directors including Women 
Director as required pursuant to Companies Act, 2013 . 

2.2. There were changes in the composition of the Board of Directors and it 
has been carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act 
during the period under review. 

2.3. Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board 
Meetings. Agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least 7 
(seven) days in advance except in respect of Board Meetings and 
Committee Meetings which were held on shorter notice, in compliance 
with Section 173(3) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

2.4. A system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 
clarifications on the agenda items before the meetings and for 
meaningful participation at the meetings; and 

2.5. All the decisions made in the Board/Committee meeting(s) were 
carried out with unanimous consent of all the Directors/Members 
present during the meeting and dissent, if any, have been duly 
incorporated in the Minutes. 

3. Compliance mechanism: 

3.1. We further report .that, there seems to be adequate systems and 
processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations 
of the Company to monitor and ensure compliances with applicable 
laws, rules, regulations, and guidelines. 

3.2. During the Financial Year under report, the Company has generally 
complied with the provisions of the applicable Acts, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Secretarial Standards etc. 

3.3. The compliance by the Company with applicable finance laws like 
Direct and Indirect tax laws has not been reviewed in this audit since 
the same have been subject to review by Statutory Financial Auditor 
and other designated professionals. 
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4. Specific events / actions: 

We further report that during the audit period under review, having a major 
bearing on the Company's affairs, in pursuance of the above referred laws, 
rules, regulations and standards were: 

(i) The Company has increased its Authorised Share Capital from 
Rs.152,00,00,000/- (Rupees One Hundred Fifty-Two Crore only) 
divided into 15,20,00,000 (Fifteen Crore Twenty Lakh) Equity Shares of 
Rs.lO/- (Rupees Ten only) to Rs. 205,00,00,000/- (Rupees Two 
Hundred Five Crore only) divided into 20,50,00,000 (Twenty Crore 
Fifty Lakh) Equity Shares of Rs. lo/-  (Rupees Ten only) each by 
creating 5,30,00,000 (Five Crore Thirty Lakh) Equity Shares of Rs.lO/- 
(Rupees Ten only) each, pursuant to approval accorded by the 
members of the Company at their Extra Ordinary General Meeting 
held on 24th June, 2021. 

(ii) Further, the Company has increased its Authorised Share Capital from 
Rs. 205,00,00,000/- (Rupees Two Hundred Five Crore only) divided 
into 20,50,00,000 (Twenty Crore Fifty Laltl~) Equity Shares of Rs. lo/-  
(Rupees Ten only) each to Rs. 440,00,00,000/- (Rupees Four Hundred 
Forty Crore only) divided into 24,00,00,000 (Twenty-four Crore) Equity 
Shares of Rs. lo / -  (Rupees Ten only) each totalling to Rs. 
240,00,00,000/- (Rupees Two Hundred Forty Crore only) and 
20,00,00,000 (Twenty Crore) Preference Shares of Rs. lo/-(Rupees Ten 
only) each totalling to Rs. 200,00,00,000/- (Rupees Two Hundred Crore 
only) each, pursuant to approval accorded by the members of the 
Company at their Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 21st 
October, 2021. 

(iii) Further, the Company has increased its Authorised Share Capital from 
Rs. 440,00,00,000/- (Rupees Four Hundred Forty Crore only) divided 
into 24,00,00,000 (Twenty-four Crore) Equity Shares of Rs. lo/-  
(Rupees Ten only) each totalling to Rs. 240,00,00,000/- (Rupees Two 
Hundred Forty Crore only) and 20,00,00,000 (Twenty Crore) Preference 
Shares of Rs. lo/-(Rupees Ten only) each totalling to Rs. 
200,00,00,000/- (Rupees Two Hundred Crore only) to Rs. 
500,00,00,000/- (Rupees Five Hundred Crore oidy) divided into 
30,00,00,000 (Thirty Crore) Equity Shares of Rs. lo/-  (Rupees Ten only) 
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each totalling to Rs. 300,00,00,000/- (Rupees Three Hundred Crore 
only) and 20,00,00,000 (Twenty Crore) Preference Shares of Rs. lo/-  
(Rupees Ten only) each totalling to Rs. 200,00,00,000/- (Rupees Two 
Hundred Crore only), pursuant to approval accorded by the members 
of the Company at their Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 26th 
November, 2021. 

(iv) The Company has changed its name from 'Inox Wind Infrastructure 
Services Limited' to 'Inox Green Energy Services Limited', pursuant 
to approval accorded by the members of the Company at their Extra 
Ordinary General Meeting held on 21st October, 2021. Father, the 
Registrar of Companies (ROC) Ahmedabad Gujarat accorded its 
approval change of the name dated 27th October, 2021. 

(v) The Board of directors of the Company at their meeting held on 6th 
October, 2021, accorded approval for issuance of 20,00,00,000 (Twenty 
Crore) 0.01% Non-Convertible, Non-Cumulative, Participating, 
Redeemable Preference Shares of the face value of Rs. 10 each the 
Company, fully paid up, at par, for an aggregate value not exceeding 
Rs. 200,00,00,000 (Rupees Two Hundred Crore only) to IWL, upon 
conversion of their ICDs including interest thereon and payables on 
account of supply of material/services/ others from time to time, in 
part or in entirety, on a private placement basis. 

(vi) The Board of directors of the Company at their meeting held on 6th 
October, 2021, accorded approval for sale of entire investment held in 
equity shares of Resco Global Wind Sesvices Private Limited, wholly 
owned subsidiary, to Inox Wind Lkited, holding Company. 

(vii) The Board of directors of the Company at their meeting held on 6th 
October, 2021 accorded approval for conversion of series D & E - 4% 
optionally convertible debentures of Rs. 1,000/- each of the Company 
aggregating Rs. 200 crore which are held by Inox Wind Limited 
(holding Company) into 2,48,01,587 equity shares of the Company. 

(viii) The Board of directors of the Company at their meeting held on 6th 
October, 2021 accorded approval for sale of entire investment held in 
equity shares of 6 (six) wholly owned subsidiaries of the company to 
Resco Global Wind Services Private Limited, a related party. 
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The details of equity shares issued during the year under review are as under: 
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Reason of 
allotment 

Preferential 

Form of 
consideration 

Other than 

Names 

allottees* 

lnox 

Issue 
price 
Per 

Equity 
Share 

80.64 

Face 
value 

10 

Date of 
allotment 

Tune 30, 

Number of 
Equity 
Shares 
allotted 

52,300,035 
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optionally convertible debentures. 

Reason of 
allotment 

convertible 

November 
12,2021 

December 
13,2021 

/\Consideration 

'Apartfronz Znox W i n d  Limited, which is our Pronzotel; none of the otler allottees are part of 
the Promoter Group. 

Form of 
consideration 
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Names 
of 

allottees* 

3,162,203 

4,027,779 

for sticlz 

Issue 
price 
Per 

Equity 
Share 

(7) 

Face 
value 
('I 

Date of 
allotment 

10 

10 

Equity Shares 

Number of 
Equity 
Shares 
allotted 

80.64 

80.64 

zuas paid 

Refer to 
Note 1 

Refer to 
Note 2 

upfront 

Other than 
cash 

Other than 
cash 

at the tinze of 

debentures of 
?1,000 each issued 
to Inox Wind 
Limited on 
November 5, 2015 
and November 17, 
2015 respectively. 
Preferential 
allotment in lieu 
of repayment of 
debt owed to the 
allottees on 
account of receipt 
of 
materials/ services 
etc. by our 
Company from 
time to time 
Preferential 
allotment in lieu 
of repayment of 
debt owed to the 
allottees on 
account of receipt 
of 
materials/ services 
etc. by our 
Company from 
time to time 

allotnzent of the 
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Note 1: Allohzent of 620,040 Equity Slzares to La1 Singh @r and on behalfof M/s  La1 Singlz 
6 Const~zrction Conzpany), 620,039 Equity Shares to Rahtil Slzrikant Joshi (on belzalf of 
partnerslzip fimz M/s  Anant  Electricals 6 Engineers), 248,016 Eqtrity Shares each to 
Dalwinder Singh Clzalzal (on belzalf of partnership filnz Blzamt Cargo Movers), Parzoinder 
Singlz Clzahal (on behalf of partnerslzip fi1wz Blzarat Cargo Movers), Smla D m i  for and on 
belzalf of M/s  Uttanz Fabricators), Molzit Slzanzrao Jadlzav (on behalf of partnership firnz 
Firstnotclz Solutions) and S M P  Inpacon LLP, 186,012 Equify Shares to Szoaroop Dan D e t h  
@r and on belzalf of M/s Kaviraj Inflacon), 130,208 Eqtiify Shares to Dozupati Siva (on belzalf 
of partnerslzip firnz M/s  Raft b Mech Engineeling), 124,008 Eqtiity Slzm-es to Daljit Singlz 
Clzalzal (on belzalf of partnershipfirnz Blzarat Cargo Movers), 62,004 Eqtiity Shares each to 
Rajktmzar Nandlal Gzipta (on belzalf of pmtnerslzip firnz Kandla Earth Movers), Nehn 
Rajkunzar Gtrpta (on belzalf of partnerslzip firm Kandla Eartlz Movers) and Prakash 
Ranzclzandra Patil for and on belzalfof M/s  Madlztrr Electricals) and 55,804 Eqtiity Shares to 
Clzallagundla Sudlzarani (on behalf of partnership f i l m  M/s  Raft 6 Meclz Engineering), in 
lieu of repaynzent of debt owed to tlzem on accotint of receipt of nzate~ials/setvices etc, by otir 
Conzpany ponz tinze to tinze. 

Note 2: Allotnzent of 868,056 Equity Shares to Anzlik Singh and Sons Crane Sewices 
Private Linzited, 415,427 Equify Shares to Anaislza Solutions Private Linzited, 248,016 
Eqtiity Slzares each to Rahtil Slzlikant Joshi (on belzalf of partnership firvlz M/s  Anan t  
Elect1icals 6 Engineers), Aslzok Prutlzviraj Katlza CfOr and on belzalf of M/s  Pashzuanatlz 
Scrape Trading Co.) and Windcare India Private Linzited, 186,012 Equity Slzares to Active 
Protection Services Private Linzited, 148,810 Equify Slzares to K.R. Conzposites Private 
Linzited, 124,008 Equity Slzares eaclz to Jayendrasinlz K. Vala for and on  behalf of M/s  
Raviraj Entelp1ises), Malzeslz Sadanand Poojari for and on behalf of M/s S.  Poojar-i b Co.), 
Dalzuinder Singlz Clzalzal (on behnlfofpartnerslzipfirnz Blzarat Cargo Movers) and Parzoinder 
Singh Clzalzal (on behalf of partnershipfirnz Blzarat Cargo Movers), 105,407 Eqtiify Shares to 
Arvind Ranzplzer Yadav for and on  behalf of M/s  Shriranz Fiberteclz 6 Slzri Balaji 
Enterprises), 99,206 Eqtiify Shares each to Radhe Slzyanz for and on belzalf of M/s  Radhe 
Krishna Infra Enterprises) and Zakir Hussain for and on  belzalf of M/s M.S.  Engineering 
Works), 62,004 Equify Shares each to Kalyani Dmanand Sapkal for and on behalf of M/s 
Shiv Slzakti Enterprises), Ranzeshzoar Mz~laji Jogi for and on behalf of M/s  Ranzeslzwar 
Transport Co.), Laklzadhirblzai Jetlzurblzai Kothival for and on  behalf of M/s  Manyata 
Enterprises), Rannzal Jetlzurblzai Kotlzival (fbr and on belzalf of M/s  Manyata Enterprises), 
Sunzitra for and on belzalf of M/s  Gtrni W i n d  Slzakti), Daljit Singlz Clzalzal (on belzalf of 
partnerslzip firnz Bharat Cargo Movers) and Stella Engineering Solutions Private Linzited, 
49,603 Eqtiity Shares eaclz to Anzrit Lal Aanjana for and on  belzalf of M/s  Anzlit Entei-plises) 
and Vinod Kunzar Sharnza for and on behalf of M/s Mansi Enterplises), 41,336 Eqtiify 
Shares eaclz to Rohit Rajkishore Gzipta for  and on belzav of M/s  Yorks Equipnzent), Veena 
Rajkishore Gupta f i r  and on  belzalf of M/s Yorks Equipment) and Rajkishore Munslzilal 
Gtipta (j%r and on behalf of M/s  Yorks Eqt~ipnzent), 31,002 Equity Slzares each to Attil 
Yaslzzuant Patki @r and on belzalf of M/s  Salvesh Electricals), Ni t in  Ktlnzar for and on 
belzalf of M/s S D International), Uslza Clzatidhnvlj @r and on behalf of M/s  S D 
International), Nit in Kunzar @r and on behalf of M/s  D N Infra Btrild Teclz Services) and 
Usha Clzaudlzary for and on behay of M/s  D N Infla Bziild Tech Services), 22,321 Equity 
Shares to Salanztiddin Shalz for and on behalf of M/s  Salanztiddin Shalz) and 15,501 Equity 
Shares each to Jayzoant Supadu Shinde (on belzalf of partnership firnz Krishana Electricals 
and Services) and Sagar Deepak Deore (on belzalf of partnerslzip firnz Krislzana Electricals and 
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Seuoices) in lieu of repaynzent of debt ozoed to t7zen.z on accotint of receipt of nzaterials/semices 
etc, by our Conzpanyfionz tinze to tinze. 

The details of Preference shares issued during the period under review are as 
under: 
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r 3,2021 

December 
31,2021 

4 

5,04,51,486 10 10 

wind 
Limited 

Inox 
wind 
Limited 

than 
cash 

Other 
than 
cash 

Placement 
pursuant to 
conversion of 
inter-corporate 
deposits, 
extended to our 
Company from 
time to time by 
Inox Wind 
Limited and in 
lieu of 
repayment of 
debt owed to 
Inox Wind 
Limited on 
account of 
receipt of 
materials/ 
services etc. by 
our Company 
from time to 
time. 
Private 
Placement 
pursuant to 
conversion of 
inter-corporate 
deposits, 
extended to our 
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time to time by 
Inox Wind 
Limited and in 
lieu of 
repayment of 
debt owed to 
Inox Wind 
Limited on 
account of 
receipt of 
materials/servi 
ces etc. by our 
Company from 
time to time. 

(ix) The Company has adopted new set of Articles of Association pursuant 
to the approval of Shareholder in Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held 
on January 12,2022. 

(x) During the period under review, pursuant to the approval of 
Shareholder in Extra-Ordinary General Meeting ("EGM") held on 
January 12, 2022, the Company has approved to raising of the Capital 
through an Initial Public Offer ("IPO") of amount up to 75000 million 
(including share premium) including by way of a fresh issuance of 
Equity Shares, out of the authorized share capital of the Company 
and/or an offer of sale of Equity Shares by certain of the existing and 
eligible shareholders of the Company. 

Accordinly, the Draft Red Herring Prospectus was filed with the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India on February 7,2022 which was 
withdrawn pursuant to the approval of the Board of Directors dated 
April 28,2022. 

(xi) The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on May 9, 
2022 and Shareholders of the Company in their meeting held on May 
26, 2022 again accorded fresh approval for raising of the Capital 
through an Initial Public Offer ("IPO") of amount up to 75000 million 
(including share premium) including by way of a fresh issuance of 
Equity Shares, out of the authorized share capital of the Company 
and/or an offer of sale of Equity Shares by certain of the existing and 
eligible shareholders of the Company. 
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In relation to the aforesaid specific events/actions, the Company has, to the best of 
our knowledge and belief and based on the records, information, explanations, and 
representations furnished to us, complied with the applicable laws, rules, 
regulations, circulars, notification made thereunder. 

For VAPN & Associates 
Practicing Company Secretaries 

Firm Registration No.: P2015DE045500 

P RABH AKAR ~ ~ ~ ~ ! , ' ~ ~ f ~ ~ ~ $ R  
KUMAR Date: 2022.08.03 12:46:18 

+05'301 

Prabhaltar I<umar 
Partner 

Membership No.: F5781 
CP. No.: 10630 

ICSI UDIN: F005781D000732617 
Place: New Delhi 
Date: 03~d August 2022 

Note: This report is to be read with a letter of even date by the secretarial auditor, 
which is annexed as 'Annexure A' and forms an integral part of this report. 
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To, 
The Members 
Inox Green Energy Services Limited 
(Formerly ltnown as: Inox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 
CIN: U45207G J2012PLC070279 

Registered Office: Survey No. 1837 & 1834, At Moje Jetalpur, ABS Towers, Second 
Floor, Old Padra Road, Vadodara Gujarat 390007 
Corporate Office: Inox Towers, Plot No.17 Sector 16A Noida 201301 Uttar Pradesh 

Our Secretarial Audit Report (Form MR-3) of even date for the period from l S t  

April 2021 to 3 1 S t  March 2022, is to be read along with this letter. 

1. The Company's management is responsible for the maintenance of secretarial 
records and compliance with the relevant provisions of corporate and other 
applicable laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, and standards. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on the secretarial records produced for 
our audit. 

2. We have followed such audit practices and processes as we considered 
appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the 
contents of the secretarial records. 

3. We have verified the secretarial records furnished to us on a test basis to see 
whether the correct facts are reflected therein. We also examined the 
compliance procedures followed by the Company on a test basis. We believe 
that the processes and practices we followed provide a reasonable basis for 
our opinion. 

4. While forming an opinion on compliance and issuing this report: 

Office: 
Plot No.1, Shiva Enclave, 03rd moor, Pitampura, New Delhi-110034 

Tel: 011 49058932/45~340789,98100 11532 
Email: info@vapn.in 



VAPN & ASSOCIATES, 
COMPANY SECRETARIES 

(a) We have considered compliance-related action taken by the Company for 
the period from 1st April 2021 to 31St March 2022. 

(b) We have considered compliance-related actions taken by the Company 
based on independent legal/ professional opinion/ certification obtained as 
complying with the law. 

(c) We have taken an overall view, based' on the compliance procedures and 
practices followed by the Company. 

5. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of the financial 
statement (including attachments and annexures thereto), financial records, 
and books of accounts of the Company, as they are subject to audit by the 
Auditors of the Company, appointed under Section 139 of the Act. 

6. We have obtained and relied on the Management's representation about the 
compliance of laws, rules, and regulations and happening of events, wherever 
required. 

7. Our Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability 
of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the 
management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

For VAPN & Associates 
Practicing Company Secretaries 

Firm Registration No.: P2015DE045500 
Peer Review No.975/2020 

PRABHAKAR ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ $ R  
KUMAR Date: 2022.08.03 12:46:46 

+05'301 

Prabhakar I<umar 
Partner 

Membership No.: F5781 
CP. No.: 10630 

ICSI UDIN: F005781D000732617 
Place: New Delhi 
Date: 03rd August 2022 
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Annexure C 

Information as required under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 

(A) Conservation of Energy 

(i) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy: Nil 
(ii) The steps taken by the Company for utilising alternate sources of energy: Nil 
(iii) the capital investment on energy conservation equiptments: Nil 

(B) Technology absorption 

Crane less Operation 

We optimize cost as well as save time in crane less operation. Cost saving in crane less operation as 
compared to operations with Crane is Rs. 50 Lakh/WTG. 

We are replacing following component with crane less operation- Generators, Gear Boxes and 
Blades. 

Gear Box Oil Filtration 

Oil Filtration started for the cost saving of Gear Box Oil replacement. It was clearly specified that Oil 
filtration will be helpful to achieve cleanliness code up to National Aerospace Standard (NAS) Value 
and life of lubricant, component increased with Oil filtration to prevent the failure of Gear Box. 

Cost saving in Oil Filtration as compared to Gear Box Oil Replacement is Rs. 2.08 Lalh /WTG 

Up Tower Blade repairing 

Blade Repairing started at up Tower, earlier repairing was done after dismantling of blade. 
Cost Saving in up Tower repairing as compared to repairing after dismantling of blade is Rs. 2 
Lal&s/ Blade and time saving results upto 2 weela in 3 Blade repairing. 

(C) The Expenditure Incurred On Research And Development 

Nil 

(D) Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo 

Foreign exchange Earned - Nil 
Foreign exchange Outgo - Nil 



Annexure D 

Report on CSR Activities of the Company as per Companies (Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy Rules, 2014 

The Composition of CSR 
Committee 

Sr . 
No. 

I. 

Provide the web-linc 
where Composition of 
CSR committee, CSR 
Policy and CSR projects 
approved by the board are 
disclosed on the website 
of the company 
Provide the details of 

Particulars 

Brief outline on CSR 
Policy of the Company 

Impact assessment of 
CSR projects carried out 
in pursuance of sub-rule 
(3) of rule 8 of the 
Companies (Corporate 
Social responsibility 
Policy) Rules, 2014, if 
applicable (attach the 
report) 
Details of the amount 
available for set off in 
pursuance of sub-rule (3) 
of rule 7 of the Companies 
(Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy) 
Rules, 2014 and amount 
required for set off for the 

Compliance 

The CSR Policy adopted by the Company includes activities which are 
prescribed under Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013. 

financial year, if any 
Average net profit of the 
company as per section 
i35(5) (calculated for 3 
preceding financial years 

1 i.e $3' 2018-19, Fjl 2019- 
20 and EY 2020-21) 1 (a) ,Two percent of 
average net profit of the 
com any as per section 

S. 
No. 

I. 

2. 

I Davis I Director) 

Web-link of composition of the CSR Committee 
https://~~vw.inoxgreen.coin/board-committees.html. 

Name of 
Director 

Shri Multesh 
Manglik 

Shri Vineet 
Valentine 

3. I ShriV. I Member - 

Web-link of CSR Policy is https://~z?v.inoxgreen.corn/policies.html. I 
Web-link of CSR projects approved by the Board for Financial Year 

Designation / 
Nature of 
Directorship 

Chairman 
(Whole-time 
Director) 
Member (Non- 
Executive 

2 

Sankaranaraya 
nan 

Not Applicable 

2 

(Independent 
Director) 

Rs. (9,384.88) Lalchs 

Number of meetings of 
CSR Committee 

Rs. (187.70) Lalhs 

held 
during 
the year 

2 

2 

attended 
during 
the year 

2 



the CSR projects or 
programmes or activities 
of the previous financial 

135(5) 
(b) Surplus arising out of Not Applicable 

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: 

years. 
(c) Amount required to be 
set off for the financial 
year, if any 
(d) Total CSR obligation 
for the financial year 
(7a+7b- 7 ~ ) .  

Not Applicable 

Nil (Since average 2% net profit of preceding three financial years is 
negative) 

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: 

Total Amount 
Spent for the 
Financial Year 
(in Rs.) 

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year: 

Not Amlicable 

Amount Unspent (in Rs.) 
Total Amount transferred to 
Unspent CSRAccount as per 
Section 135(6) 

Not Amlicable 

(10) 
Mode of 
Impleln 
enta 
tion - 
Direct 
(Yes/No 
) 

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads Nil 

Amount transferred to any fund specified under 
Schedule VII as per second proviso to section 135(5) 

Amount 

(7) 
Amou 
nt 
alloca 
ted 
for 
the 
projec 
t 
(in 
Rs.) 

(6) 
Proje 
ct 
durat 
ion 

(8) 
Mode of 

No. 

Date of 
transfer 

(11) 
Mode of 
Implementation 

Through 
Implementing 
Agency 

(7) 
Mode of 

(1) 1 (2) 1 (3) 1 (4) 1 (5) 
S. I Name 1 Item from I Local I Location of the 

Date of transfer Name of the 
Fund 

(8) 
Amou 
nt 
spent 
in 
the 
curre 
nt 
finan 
cia1 
Year 
(in 
Rs.) 

(4) 
Local 
area 
(Yes/ 
No) 

(3) 
Item 
from 
the 
list of 
activit 
ies 
in 
Sched 
ule 
VII 
to the 
Act 

(1) 
S. 
No. 

Name 

(6) 
Amount 

Not Applicable 

ofthe 
Project 

Amount 

(9) 
Amoun 
t 
transfe 
rred to 
Unspen 
t CSR 
Accoun 
t for 
the 
project 
as per 
Section 
135(6) 
(in 
Rs.1 

(2) 
Na 
me 
of 
the 
Pro 
ject 

CSR 
Registr 
ation 
Numb 
er 

(5) 
Location 
ofthe 
project 

the 
list of 
activities 
in 
Schedule 
VII 
to the Act 

Sta 
te 

Distr 
ict 

area 
(Yes/ 
No) 

Project spent 
for 
the 
project 
(in Rs.) State Distri 

ct 

Implementa 
tion - 
Direct 
(Yes/No) 

Implementation - 
through 
Implementing 
Agency 
Name CSR 

Registrati 
on 
Number 



(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable : Not Applicable 

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year Not Applicable 
(8b+8c+8d+8e) 
(g) Excess amount for set off, if any 

S. No. 1 Particular 
(i) I Two percent of average net profit of the company as per 

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: 

Amount (in Rs.) 
Nil 

(ii) 
(iii) 
(iv) 

(v) 

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial 
year(s) : 

section 135(5) 
Total amount spent for the Financial Year 
Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 
Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or 
activities of the previous financial years, if any 
Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years 
[(iii)-(iv)] 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

Nil 

lo. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or 
acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise details). 

Amount 
spent in the 
reporting 
Financial 
Year (Rs. in 
Lakhs) 

- 
- 
- 
- 

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s) : Nil 

Amount 
remaining to 
be spent in 
succeeding 
financial years 
(Rs. in Lalchs) 

- 

Amount 
transferred to 
Unspent CSR 
Account under 
section 135 (6) 
(Rs. in Lakhs) 

S. No. 

1. 

2. 

3. 

Amount transferred to any fund 
specified under Schedule VII as per 
section 135(6), if any 

(9) 
Status of the 
project - 
Completed/ 
Ongoing 

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset: Nil 

Precedi 
ng 
Financia 
1 
Year 

2018-19 
2019-20 
2020-21 

Name of 
the Fund 

- 
- 

Not Applicable 

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is 
registered, their address etc.: Nil 

Total 

(6) 
Total 
amount 
allocated 
for the 
project 
(in Rs.) 

Amount 
(Rs. in 
Lakhs) 

- 
- 
- 
- 

(4) 
Financial 
Year in 
which the 
project was 
commence 
d 

(3) 
Name 
ofthe 
Proje 
ct 

(1) 
S. 
No. 

Date of 
transfer 

- 

- 

(7) 
Amount 
spent on 
the project 
in the 
reporting 
Financial 
Year (in 
Rs.1 

(5) 
Project 
Duratio 
n 

(2) 
Project 
ID 

(8) 
Cumulative 
amount 
spent at the 
end of 
reporting 
Financial 
Year. (in 
RS.1 



(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of 
the capital asset): Nil 

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per 
section 135(5): Not Applicable 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
P 

Place: Noida 
Date: 12th August, 2022 

Director 
DIN: 06709239 

Mukesh Manglik 
Whole-time Director 

DIN:o70oi509 
Chairman, CSR Committee 



Chartered Accountants 

(1- 109, Defence Colony, New Delhi - 110 024, India 

Phones : +91-11-24645895/96 E-mail : audit@dpncitldia.com 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Members of lnox Green Energy Services Limited 

(Formerly known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the standalone financial statements of lnox Green Energy Services Limited ("the Company"), 
which comprise the balance sheet as at 31St March 2022, and the statement of Profit and Loss, statement of 
changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a 
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs 
of the Company as at March 31,2022, and loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that 
date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of 
the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent 
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements 
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Emphasis of matter 

1. We draw attention to Note 40 of the standalone financial statements which describes that the Company 
have a system of obtaining periodic confirmation of balances from various parties (other than disputed 
parties). The External Balance Confirmations were sent to banks and parties and certain party's balances 
are subject to confirmation/reconciliation. Adjustments, if any will be accounted for on 
confirmation/reconciliation of the same, which in the opinion of the management will not have a material 
impact. I 

2. We draw attention to Note 48 of the standalone financial statements which describes the management's 
assessment of the impact of the outbreak of Covid-19 on property plant & equipment, revenue, trade 
receivables, advances, investments and other assets. The management believes that no adjustments are 
required in the financial statements as there is no impact in the current financial year. However, in view of 
the highly uncertain economic environment and its likely effect on future revenues due to Covid-19, a 
definitive assessment of the impact on the subsequent years is dependent upon circumstances as they 
evolve. 

Head Office: 57-H, ConnaughtCircus, New Delhi - 110 001, India Phones : +91-11-2332235911418 Email : dpnccpQdpncindia.com 

Branch Office: D-295, Defence Colony, New Delhi - 110 024, India Phones : +91-11-24645891/92193 E-mail : dpnc@dpncindia.com 



3. We draw attention to Note 51 to the standalone financial statements regarding the complete erosion of the 
net worth of Wind Four Renergy Private Limited ("WFRPL"), a wholly-owned subsidiary in which the 
company has investment amounting to Rs.2,591.40 Lakh in Equity Share Capital as on 31 March 2022. For 
the reasons stated by the management in the note, recoverability of investment is dependent on the 
performance of WFRPL over the foreseeable future and improvement in its operational performance and 
financial support from the company. 

Our Opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of 
the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 
separate opinion on these matters. 

[ The Key Audit Matters I How our audit addressed the key audit matter 
-- 

Litigation Matters 

The Company has certain significant pending 
proceedings with JudiciallQuasi-Judicial for various 
complex matters with contractor/transporter, customer 
and other parties, continuing from earlier years. 

Further, the company has material uncertain tax positions 
including matters under dispute which involves significant 
judgment to determine the possible outcome of these 
disputes. 

Refer to Note 42 of the Standalone Financial Statements. 

Due to the complexity involved in these litigation matters, 
management's judgement regarding recognition and 
measurement of provisions for these legal proceedings is 
inherently uncertain and might change over time as the 
outcomes of the legal cases are determined. Accordingly, 
it has been considered as a key audit matter. 

Discontinued operations 

Refer note 47 to the accompanying standalone financial 
statements for the accounting policy and related 
disclosures respectively. On 06 October 2021, as a part 
of the business reorganization, the Company's Board of 
Directors have approved transfer of its EPC business to 
wholly owned subsidiary ('WOS') of its Company, lnox 
Wind Limited('lWL'), RESCO Global Wind Service Limited 
('RESCO'), with an objective to segregate the EPC 
Business and Operations and Maintenance 
Business(referred as 'O&M Business') of the Company. 
The divestment has been approved by the shareholders 
of the Company in their Extra-ordinary General Meeting 
held on 21 October 2021. 

Subsequently on 31 December 2021, to implement the 
above divesture, the Company has executed a Business 
Transfer Agreement ('BTA') with RESCO to transfer EPC .- 

Assessed the management's position through 
discussions with the in-house legal expert and 
external legal opinions obtained by the Company 
(where considered necessary) on both, the 
probability of success in the aforesaid cases, and the 
magnitude of any potential loss. 
Discussed with the management on the development 
in these litigations during the year ended March 31, 
2022. 
Rolled out enquiries to the management of the 
Company and noted the responses received and 
assessed the same. 
Assessed the objectivity, independence and 
competence of the Company's legal counsel (where 
applicable)involved in the process and legal experts 
engaged by the company, if any. 
Reviewed the disclosures made by the Company in 
the financial statements in this regard. 

Our audit procedures included, but were not limited to, the 
following in relation to the discontinued operations: 

9 Obtained an understanding of the management 
process for ensuring classification, measurement, 
disclosure and allocations for the identified disposal 
groups 

9 Referred the BTA signed between the Company and 
RESCO for divestment of EPC Business segment; 

9 Reviewed the assessment performed by the 
management for accounting and presentation of 
these transactions in accordance with applicable 
accounting standards 

k Reviewed the assets and liabilities being transferred 
to RESCO are in accordance with the terms of BTA 

k Tested the arithmetical accuracy of computations 
used by management to determine the amounts 
being transferred 

> Assessed management's conclusions regarding the 
allocations of the asset,. liabilities, income_ and 



business undertaking, together with all assets and 
liabilities as specified in the BTA in relation to the EPC 
business as a going concern through slump sale. The 
assets and liabilities of the EPC business amounting to 
098,598.55 lakhs and 098,128.71 lakhs respectively are 
transferred to RESCO from the date BTA becoming 
effective and difference on assets and liabilities 
amounting 0469.84 lakhs on transfer of the EPC 
Business undertaking has recorded as purchase 
consideration receivable. The company has completed its 
compliance with the terms and conditions of BTA on 31 
December 2021 and consequently, the BTA has become 
effective from that date. 

We identified this as a key audit matter for current year 
audit in view of the significance of the impact of these 
restructuring transactions have on the standalone 
financial statements including the amounts involved and 
exercise of management judgments with respect to 
identification and segregation of assets and liabilities and 
allocation of costs pertaining to EPC Business segment 
and O&M Business Segment. 

expenses that are assigned to the discontinued 
operations for the respective segments' 

9 Assessed reasonableness of management's 
judgement with respect to the likelihood and 
expected timing of the implementation of the 
restructuring; 

9 Verified the disclosure and presentation of financial 
statement in accordance with Ind AS- 105 
'Noncurrent Assets held for sale and discontinued 
operations' 

9 Assessed the appropriateness and adequacy of the 
related disclosures in the standalone financial 
statements of the Company in accordance with the 
applicable accounting standards. 

I 

Alternate audit procedure carried out in light of COVID- 19 outbreaks 

We have identified such an alternative audit procedure as 
a key audit matter. 

As precautionary measures against COVID-19, the 
statutory audit was conducted via making arrangements 
to provide requisite documents1 information through an 
electronic medium as an alternative audit procedure. 

a) Scanned copies of necessary recordsldocuments 
deeds, certificates and the related records made available 
electronically through e-mail or remote secure network of 
the Company; and 

As a part of the alternative audit procedure, the Company 
has made available the following information1 records1 
documents1 explanations to us through e-mail and remote 
secure network of the Company: - 

b) By way of enquiries through video conferencing, 
dialogues and discussions over the phone, e-mails and 
similar communication channels. 

It has also been represented by the management that the 
data and information provided electronically for the 
purpose of our audit are correct, complete, reliable and 
are directly generated from the accounting system of the 
Company, extracted from the records and files, without 
any further manual modifications so as to maintain its 
integrity, authenticity, readability and completeness. In 
addition, based on our review of the various internal audit 
reportslinspection reports (as applicable), nothing has 
come to the knowledge that makes us believe that such 
an alternate audit ~rocedure would not be adeauate. 



lnformation Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures 
to Board's Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder's lnformation (hereinafter referred to as "the Reports"), 
but does not include the Standalone Financial Statements and our auditor's report thereon. The Report is expected to 
be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report. 

Our opinion on the Standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the Standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to 
be materially misstated. 

Management's Responsibil i ty for  the StandaloneFinancial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 
("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of 
the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting standards specified under section 133 of 
the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for the safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and 

. other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; 
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statement that gives a 
true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concerned and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations or 
has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting process 

Auditor's Responsibilities fo r  the Audit  o f  the StandaloneFinancial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to issue an auditor's report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone 
financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. W e  also: 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 



r Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are 
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has an adequate internal financial 
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

r Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

r Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report 
to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as 
a going concern. 

r Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that individually or in 
aggregate, make it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial 
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the 
scope of our audit work and evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 
misstatements in the standalone financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit 
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure 
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (1 1) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give 
in the "Annexure A statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the 
extent applicable. 

2. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the 
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions 
of section 197 of the Act. 



3. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 
a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 

and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books; 

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the 
statement of changes in equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account; 

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act; 

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as of 31st March 2022 taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as of 31st March 2022 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act; 

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company 
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure B"; 

g. The litigation matters described under Note 42 in the event of being decided unfavourable, in our 
opinion, may have an adverse impact on the functioning of the company; 

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position other 
than disclosed in the Standalone Financial Statements (Refer Note 42 of the Standalone Financial 
Statements; 

ii. Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were 
any material foreseeable losses; 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company; 

iv. (a)The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as 
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested 
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the 
company to or in any other person(s) or entity (ies), including foreign entities 
("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") 
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than 
as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from 
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, 
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Clltimate Beneficiaries; and 



(c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to mylour notice that has caused us to 
believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule I 1  (e) contain any material 
misstatement. 

v. There is no dividend declared or paid during the year by the company. 

For Dewan P. N. Chopra & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

Place of Signature: New Delhi 
Date: 1 3 ' ~  May 2022 



ANNEXURE-AT0 THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

jReferred t o  i n  ~ a r a n r a ~ h  - 1 under the headina of  " R e ~ o r t  on Other Leaal and Reuulatory 
Requirements" of  our  Report of  even date.) 

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the standalone 
financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and explanations given by 
the management and the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal course of the audit 
and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we report that: - 

(0 (a) (A) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative 
details and situations of property, plant and equipment. 

(B) The company hasmaintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets. 

(b) The management has physically verified the property, plant and equipment at reasonable intervals 
and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

(c) Based on our examination of the registered sale deedltransfer deedlconveyance deed provided to 
us, we report that the title in respect of all immovable properties except land acquired for road, 
disclosed in the financial statements included under Property, Plant and Equipment are held in the 
name of the Company as at the balance sheet date. 

(d) The company is not revaluing its property, plant and equipment during the year; hence paragraph 3 
(i) (d) does not applyto the company. 

(e) Based on the management representation, there is no proceedings have been initiated or are 
pending against the company for holding any Benami property under the Benami Transactions 
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder, hence the paragraph 3 (i) (e) is not 
applicable on the company. 

(ii) (a) On the basis of our examination of the books of accounts and records and in our opinion, the 
management has physically verified the inventory at reasonable intervals, the coverage and procedure 
of such verification by the management is appropriate and no discrepancies of 10% or more in the 
aggregate for each class of inventory have been found by the management. 

(b) On the basis of our examination of the books of accounts and records, the company has been 
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees from banks or financial institutions on 
the basis of security of current assets and the quarterly returns or statements filed by the company with 
Such banks or financial institutions are not in agreement with the books of account of the Company. 
The details of the same are given below: 

- -- .. . . - -. 

Remarks 
including 

subsequent 
rectification, 

if any 

There is 
no revised 
statement 
filed till date 

- - - . . . 

As per 
books of 
accounts 

(Amount Lakhs) in 

26,940.95 

Amount as 
per 

return & 
statements 
(Amount in 

Lakhs) 

26,785.05 

For the 
Quarter 

June 2021 

Difference 
(Amount 
In Lakhs) 

155.90 

34,769.20 33,627.00 
June 2021 

Sanction 
Amount to 

which 
discrepanci 
es relates 
(Amount in 

Lakhs) 

20~000.00 

Nature of the 
Current Assets 

Trade 
Receivable 
(without 
adjustment of 
provision) 

20,000.00 
1,142.28 

Inventory There is 
no revised 
statement 
filed till date --- -. . . -. - - 



Trade 
March Receivable 

adjustment of 

September 
2021 

September 
2021 

December 
2021 

December 
2021 

I I provision) 

20,000.00 

20,000.00 

March 
2022 

Trade 
Receivable 
(without 
adjustment of 
provision) 

lnventory 

20,000.00 

20,000.00 

28,780.00 

30,460.00 

28,879.77 

40,001.74 

Trade 
Receivable 
(without 
adjustment of 
provision) 

lnventory 

no revised 
statement 
filed till date 99.77 

9,541.74 

20,000.00 

There is 
no revised 
statement 
f~led ti! date - 

There IS 

no revised 
statement 
flled till date 

- - -  - 

There IS 

no revlsed 
statement 
frled trII date .- -- -- 
There IS 

no revrsed 
statement 
filed till date 

lnventory 
no revised There l S I  
statement 

(iii) On the basis of our examination of the books of accounts and records, the company has made 
investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of 
loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties 

(a) Based on the examination of the books of accounts and records of the company, the company has 
provided loans or provided advances in the nature of loans or stood guarantee, or provided security to 
any other entity. The details of the same has been given below: - - 

Fi uresjn l_akh_sL 
I Particulars I Guarantees I Security 1 Loans -i"- Advances in 1 1 nature of Ipans- 

Aggregate amount granted1 
provided during the year 
- Subsidiaries 
- Joint Ventures 
- Associates 
'- Fellow Subsidiary 
- Holding Company 
Balance outstanding as at 
balance sheet date in respect 
of above cases: - 
- Subsidiaries 
- Joint Ventures 
- Associates 
- Fellow Subsidiary 
- Holding Company 

(b) Based on the examination of the books of accounts and records of the company, the investments 
made, guarantees provided, security given and the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and 
advances in the nature of loans and guarantees provided are not prejudicial to the company's interest. 

.- 

10,000.00 

15,226.70 

9,000.00 
4,500.00 



(c) Based on the examination of the books of accounts and records of the company, the loans are 
repayable on demand and there is no stipulation of schedule of repayment of principal and repayment 
of interest accordingly we are unable to make specific comment on the regularity of repayment of 
principal and interest. 

(d) Based on the information provided by the management, the loans are repayable on demand and 
hence paragraph 3(iii)(d) is not applicable. 

(e) Based on the information provided by the management, the loans are repayable on demand and 
hence paragraph 3(iii)(e) is not applicable. 

(f) Based on the examination of the books of accounts and records of the company, the company has 
granted loans repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment. The 
details of the same are given below: - 

IRs. In Lakh) 

(iv) In our opinion, in respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security provisions of section 105 and 
186 of the Companies Act, 201 3 has been complied with. 

(v) The company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposited; hence 
paragraph 3(v) of the order is not applicable. 

--- - - 
Related p_ldrt&s 

- 3,593 - 60 

- .- 
-- 3,59-:3 60 

100 00% 
- - - - -  :-'-I 

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the company pursuant to the Rules made by 
the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148 of the Act, and are of the 
opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. tiowever, 
we have not, nor we are required, carried out details examination of such accounts and records. 

Promoters 
The aggregate amount of loansladvances In 
nature of loans 

- Repayable on demand (Al_ 
- Agreement does not specify any 

terms or period of repayment (6)  
Total (A+B) 

Percentage of loans1 advances in nature of 
loans to the total loans -- 

(vii) (a) On the basis of our examination of the records of the company, amounts deductedlaccrued in the 
books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, Provident 
fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, 
value-added tax, cess and any other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited during the 
year by the company with the appropriate authorities, though there has been a slight delay in a few 
cases, to the extent applicable to it. 

All Parties 

-- 3,593.60 

3,593.60 
100.00% 

- 

In our opinion, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident fund, income tax, sales tax, 
value-added tax, duty of customs, service tax, cess and other material statutory dues were in arrears 
as at 31 March 2022 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable except 
as mentioned below in the table 

Due 

-- 

Name of the 
Statute 

Building and 
other 
constructioi~ 
workers Act, 
1996 

Nature of the 
dues 

Labour Cess 
011 

coi~struction 

Amount 

(In Lakhs) 

- 
256.83 

Period to which 
the amount 
relates 
- 

- 

- 



I EST Act,1948 / Employee /O.1(1 

I I State I 
Insurance 
Payable 

I Act 

Labour 
Welfare Fund 

I I 

Income Tax I Interest on 1 462.49 I Act, 1961 I TDS I 

Labour 
Welfare Fund 

0.49 

I I 

GST Acts, 2017 1 Interest on I 113.31 

' PT Act, 1987 

/ GST 

FY 2012 -- 
onwards 

Professional 
Tax Pajrable 

20.54 

(b) On the basis of our examination of the books of accounts and records, the details of the dues 
referred to in subclause (a) above that have not been deposited on account of any dispute are as 

I 

under: - 
-- 

Forum where the 
dispute is pending 

.. . .. - ... - 

Appellate Autho~.i~!*, 
AP 

-- -. -. . - - 

Appellate Authority, 
AP 

-- . - . . - 

Appellate Authority, 
AP 

. 

Appellate Authorily, 
AP 

- .- . - . - - 
Joint Conimissionc~r - 

V, State GST. 
Emal<ulam 

Re-opening of Case 
before assessing 

offices 
-. - 

CIT Appeals 
(Faceless) 

- .. - . . . .. 

Name of the 
Statute 

Andhra 
Pradesl~ 
Central Sales 
Tax Act, 1956 
Andhra 
Pradesh 
Central Sales 
Tax Act, 1956 
Andhra 
Pradesh 
Value Added 
Tax Act, 2005 
Andhra 
Pradesl~ 
Value Added 
Tax Act, 2005 
Kerala Value 
Added Tax 
Act, 

The 
Rajasthan 
VAT Act 
Incoil~e Tax 
Act, 1961 

Amount 

(In Lakhs) 

31.40 

1.97 

121.61- 

30.40 

246.86 

697.31 

- -- -- 
9.19 

Nature of dues 

Demand on account of 
rnisi~latch in Input Tax 
Credit 

De~nand on account of 
lllis~l~atch in Input Tax 
Credit 

Demand on account of 
~nisl~latch in Input Tax 
Credit 

Demand on account of 
penalty due to 
mismatcl~ in Input Tax 
Credit 
De~nand imposed on 
account of probable 
suppression and 
omission by VAT 
Officer 
Entsy Tax Demand 

-- 
Penalty Order on 
account of conceal~~~ent  
of incoine 

Period to which 
the amount 
relates 

FY 2016-17 

FY 2017-18 

FY 2016-17 

FY 2016-17 

FY 2016-17 

FY 2015-16, FY 
2016-17 & FY 

2017-1 8 -- 
Assessment Year 

2017-1 8 

Labour Laws 216.00 

-- - - -. 

Denland for BOCW 
cess and others 

-- -';espe;;r:l..bLxl r 

~. - - 



(viii) On the basis of our examination of the books of accounts and records, there are no transactions which 
are not recorded in the books of account and have been surrendered or disclosed as income during 
the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961), hence clause 3 (viii) is 
not applicable to the company. 

(ix) (a) On the basis of our examination of the books of accounts and records and in our opinion, there is 
no default in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any 
lender. 

(b)According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, 
we report that the company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution 
or government or any government authority. 

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has 
utilized the money obtained by way of term loans during the year for the purposes for which they were 
obtained. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and the procedures performed by us, 
and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we report that no funds 
raised on a short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the company except out of the 
inter corporate deposit received from the holding company, a sum of Rs.9,348.50 Lakhs has been 
utilized for long term purpose. 

(e) According to the information and explanations are given to usand on an overall examination of the 
standalonefinancial statements ofthe company, we report that the company has not taken anyfunds 
from any entity or person on account of or to meet theobligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint 
ventures except as mentioned in Note 53(x)(b) to the standalone financial statement. 

( f )  According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we 
report that the company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its 
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. 

(x) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the 
company has not raised money by way of initial public offer1 further public offer (including debt 
instruments). Hence paragraph 3(x) of the order is not applicable. 

(xi) (a) In our opinion, no fraud by the company or any fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported 
during the course of our audit. 

(b) Based on our examination of the records of the Company and in our opinion, no report under sub- 
section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as 
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government. 

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistleblower complaints received by the 
company during the year. 

(xii) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi company. Hence, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not 
applicable. 



(xiii) Based on our examination of the records of the Company and in our opinion, transactions with the 
related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of 
such transactions have been disclosed in the standalonefinancial statements as required by the 
applicable accounting standards. 

(xiv) (a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the company has an internal audit system 
commensurate with the size and nature of its business. 

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports issued to the Company during the year and covering 
the period upto March, 2022 under audit. 

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion during the year the cornpany 
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its 
directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the 
company. 

(xvi) (a) Based on our examination of the records of the Company, the Company is not required to be 
registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of lndia Act 1934. 

(b) Based on our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not conducted any 
non-Banking financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid Certificate of the Registration from 
the Reserve Bank of lndia Act, 1934. 

(c) Based on our examination of the records of the Company, the Company is not a Core lnvestrrrent 
company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of lndia and accordingly, 
there is no requirement to fulfill the criteria of a CIC. 

(d) Based on our examination of the records of the Company, there is no CIC as part of the group and 
therefore Clause 3 (xvi) (d) is not applicable to the cornpany 

(xvii) Based on our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has incurred cash losses 
amounting to Rs. 3,120.84 Lakhs during the financial year and amounting to Rs. 6,901 .OO Lakhs in the 
immediately preceding financial year respectively. 

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly this clause is 
not applicable. 

(xix) According to the information and explanations are given to us and on the basis of the financial ratfos, 
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other 
information accompanying the standalonefinancial statements, our knowledge of the Board of 
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the 
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material 
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities 
existing at the date of the balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the 
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the 
company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report 
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of 
one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due. 



(xx) According to the information and explanations given to us, Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 is 
not applicable to the Company. Hence paragraph 3(xx) of the said order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

For Dewan P. N. Chopra & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

Place of Signature: New Delhi 
Date: 1 3 ' ~  ~a~ 2022 



ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF RAVINDER HEIGHTS LIMITED 

Report on the lnternal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over firlarlcial reporting of lnox Green Energy Services 
Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2022, in conjunction with our audit of the standalonefinancial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for lnternal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based 
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively 
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the company's pol~cres, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the 
Companies Act, 201 3. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting 
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by 
lCAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable 
to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of lnternal Financial Controls and, both 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting were established and maintained arid if 
such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and 
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalonefinancial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting, 

Meaning of lnternal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalonefinancial statements 
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's iriternal 
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 



maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions 
of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to 
permit preparation of standalonefinancial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with 
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that 
could have a material effect on the standalonefinancial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility 
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may 
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may 
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls syslern over 
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 
March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Corrlpany 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

For Dewan P. N. Chopra & Co. 
Chartered Accou,n ta@s~~ 

i P a $ e r  ' ,)$+>.- 
Me bershi$~o. bb&-PL$ 
UDIN: 22505371AKUWM154' 
Place of Signature: New Delhi 
Date: 13 '~  ~a~ 2022 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITfD (formerly Known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 
CIN: U45207GJ2012PLCO70279 
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31  March 2022 

('f in Lakhs) 

Particulars Notes 
AS at As at 

31  March 2022 3 1  March 2021 

ASSETS 
1 Non-current assets 

(a) Property, plant and equipment 
(b) Capital work-in-progress 
(c) Intangible assets 
(d) Financial assets 

(i) Investments 
-in subsidiaries 
-In associates 
(ii) Other non-current financial assets 

(e) Deferred tax assets (net) 
(f) Income tax assets (net) 
(g) Other non-current assets 

Total Non - current assets 
2 Current assets 

(a) Inventories 
(b) Financial assets 

(i) Tvade receivables 
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 
(iv) Loans 
(v) Other current financial assets 

(c) Other current assets 
Total Current assets 

Total Assets 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly Known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 
CIN: U45207GJ2012PLCO70279 
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31  March 2022 

(T In Lakhs) 

Particulars 
As at As at 

Notes 
31  March 2022 31  March 2021 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
EQUITY 
(a) Equity share capital 17 
(b) Equity component of compound financial instrument 20a 
(c) Other equity 18 

Total equity 

LIABILITIES 
1 Noncurrent liabilities 

(a) Financial liabilities 
Borrowings 

(ii) Other financial liabilities 
(b) Other non-current liabilities 
(c) Provisions 

Total Non-current liabilities 

2 Current liabilities 
(a) Financial liabilities 

(i) Borrowings . 

(ii) Trade payables 
a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises 

and small enterprises 

-total butstanding dues of creditors other than 
micro enterprises and small enterprises 

(iii) Other financial liabilities 
(b) Other current liabilities 
(c) Provislons 

Total current liabilities 

Total Equity and Liabilities 

The accompanying notes ( 1  to  58) are an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements 

As per our report of even date attached 
For Dewan PN Chopra & Co. 

Place : New Delhi 
Date : 13 May 2022 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 9 

V 
Vineet Valentine Davis 
Director 
DIN : 06709239 

~ o v i n d  Prakash Rathor 
Chief Financial Officer 

Place : Noida 
Date : 13 May 2022 

Director 
DIN : 06709232 

p o o j a ~ a u l  
Company Secretary 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly Known as lnox Wlnd Infrastructure Services Limited) 
CIN: U45207GJ2012PLCO70279 
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022 

(T In Lakhs) 

Particulars Notes 2021-22 2020-21 

Revenue 
Revenue from operations 26 
Other Income 27 
Total lncome (I) 

Expenses 
O&M and Common infrastructure facility expense 
Purchases of stock-in-trade 
Changes in inventories 
Employeebenefits expense 
Finance costs 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 
Other expenses 
Total Expenses (11) 

Profit/(Loss) before exceptional Item and tax from continulng operations (I- 
i1=111) 
Profit/(Loss) before tax from contlnulng operatlons (Ill - IV = V) 
Tax expense (IV): 

Deferred tax 

Profit/(Loss) after tax for the perlod from contlnulng operations (111-iV=V) (440.12) (499.55) 

Dlscontlnued operations (Refer Note 47) 
Profit/(Loss) for the periodfyear from discountinued operations 
Tax credit from discountinued operations 
Profit/(loss) after tax for the period/year from dlscontlnued opearations 

(Vi) 

Porfit/(loss) after tax for the periodfyear (V+VI=VIi) (5,704.44) (7,190.95) 

Other Comprehensive Income from continulng operations (VIII) 
A (I) ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans 
Tax on above 

Other Comprehensive income from dlrcontlnued opearations (IX) 
'A (i) ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans 
Tax on above 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year (VII +VIII+IX=X) 

Earnings earnings/(loss) per share (f) for continuing operations (Face value of 
Earnings earnings/(loss) per share (T) for discontinued operations (Face value 
The accompanying notes (1  to 58) are an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements 

As per our report of even date attached 

Place : New Deihi 
Date : 13 May 2022 

For and on behalf of the Board of ~p,ectors 

Govlnd Prakash Rathor Poo)a &ul 

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 

Place : Noida 
Date : 13 May 2022 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly Known as lnox  W ind  Infrastructure Services Limited) 
CIN: U45207GJ2012PLCO70279 
Standaldne Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31  March 2022 

.(P in  Lakhs) . 

Particulars 
2021-2022 2020-2021 

Profit/(loss) after tax for the year form continuning operations 
Profit /(loss) after the tax for the year form discontinued operations 
Adjustments for: 

Taxe~pense (2,488.15) (3,786.01) 
Finance costs 10,029.97 14,495.33 
Interest income (892.44) (778.91) 
~ l iowance for expected credit losses 3,555.49 1,995.91 
Bad debts, remissions and liquidated damages 1,364.81 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 4,883.63 4,908.25 
Loss on conversion o f  OCD 
Net (gains)/loss on derivative portion of compound 
financial instrument 

Net (gains)/loss on Mutual Fund 
Profit on Sale investment in subsidiaries 
Impairment in value of inter-corporate deposit t o  subsidiaries 

Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes 
Movements in working capital: 

(Increase)/Decrease in Trade receivables 
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories 
(1ncrease)JDecrease in Other financial assets 
(increase)/Decrease in Other assets 
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade payables 
Increase/(Decrease) in Other financial liabilities 
Increase/(Decrease) in Other liabilities 
Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions 
Cash generated from operations 

income taxes paid 
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities 

I'urchase of property, plant and equipment (including changes in capital 
work-in-progress, capital creditors and capital advance) 

Investment in subsidiaries and associates 
Purchase of mutual funds 
Interest received 
Inter corporate deposits given 
Inter corporate deposits received back 
Movement in Bank fixed deposits 

Net cash (used in) investing activities 

Cash flows from financing activities 
Proceeds from non-current borrowings 

Repayment o f  non-current borrowings 

proceeds from/(repayment of) short term loans (net) 
Finance costs 

Net cash generated from financing activities 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash an3 cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 
Cash and cash equivalents at  the end o f  the year 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly Known as lnox W ind  Infrastructure Services Limited) 
CIN: U45207GJ2012PLCO70279 
Standalone Statement o f  cash flows for the year ended 3 1  March 2022 

(4inLakhs) 
Particulars 

2021-2022 2020-2021 

Changes in  liabilities arising f rom financing activities during year ended 3 1  March 2022 

Particulars Current borrowings Non Current 
borrowings Equity Share Capital 

Opening Balance 78,858.39 47,749.98 12.861.99 
Conversion of Debenture into Equity 
Conversion of iCD into preference share 
Conversion of ICD into Equity 
Cash flows 
lnterest expense 
lnterest paid 
lnterest convert ti Equity Share 
lnterest Transfer as per BTA 
Transfer through ETA 
issue of share capital other than cash considerat 3299.91 
Closing Balance 39,995.91 29,621.14 23,501.62 

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities during the year ended 3 1  March 2021 

Particulars Non Current 
Current borrowings borrowings Equity Share Capital 

Opening Balance 79,065.06 59,286.41 11,621.30 
Conversion of Debenture into Equity (10,000.00) 1,240.69 
Cash flows 21,673.89 (3,868.38) 
Interest expense 5,631.44 3,183.70 
interest paid (4,777.33) (3,754.70) 
Unwinding cost of compounding financial 2,902.95 
instrument 
Closing Balance 

Notes: 
1 The above standalone statement of cash flows has been prepared and presented under the indirect method. 
2 components of cash and cash equivalents are as per Note 15 
3 The accompanying notes ( 1  to  58) are an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements 

As per our report of even date attached 
For and on behalf of the Board o f  Directors 

avis A* 6irector o j  Rjx' 

DIN : 06709239 DIN : 06709232 

Govind PrakasR Rathor Pooja Paul 
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 

Place : New Delhi 
Date : 13 May 2022 

Place : Noida 
Date : 13 May 2022 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly Known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 
Statement of changes i n  equltyfor the year ended 31  March 2022 
A, Equity share capital 

- 

- - 3." 
- - 

Balance as at 31 March 2022 ' ( f i n  Lakhs) 
(8alance at the beginning of ]changes ~n ~qu i ty l~esta ted balance l~hanges in equity l8alance 
the current reporting period I .. 

Share Capital due at the beginning share capital at the end of 
to prior period of the current during the current the current 

(errors reporting period year lreporting period 1 
Balance as at 31 March 2021 . 

I Balance at the beginning of l~hanges in ~qu i ty l~esta ted balance (changes in equity l8al'ance 
Ithe previous reporting period 

(*) Other comprehensive income for the year classified under retained earnings is in respect of remeasurement of defined benefit plans. 

B. Other equity 

The accompanying notes (1  to 58) are an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Particulars 

Balance as at 1 April 2020 
Additions during the year: 
Transfer on account of Redemption of Debenture 
Security Premium 
Stamp duty paid on increase of authorised share capital 
Proflt/(loss) for the year from continuing operations 
Profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued operations 
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax (*) 
from continuing operations 
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax (*) 
from discontinued operations 

Total comprehensive income for the year 

Transfer from retained earnings 

Balance as at 1 April 2021 
Additions during the year: 
Transfer on account of Conversion of OCD 
Security Premium 
Stamp duty paid on increase of authorised share cap~tal 
Profit/(ioss) for the year from continuing operations 
Profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued operations 
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax (*) 
from continuing operations 
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax (*) 
from discontinued operations 
Total comprehensive Income for the year 

Transfer from retained earnings 
Balance as at 31 March 2022 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors h 

Director 
DiN : 06709239 

( t i n  Lakhs) 

Total 

(6,969.31) 

8,759.31 
(26.80) 

(499.55) 
(6,692.17) 

11.60 

3.00 

. 1,555.38 

(5,413.94) 

3,290.28 
75,158.37 

(139.65) 
(440.12) 

(5,264.32) 

28.63 

(4.66) 
72,628.53 

67,214.59 

Securities 
premium 

8,289.88 

8,759.31 
(26.80) 

8,732.51 

17,022.38 

75,158.37 
(139.65) 

75,018,72 

92,041.10 

Govind Prakash Rathor pooja P;UI 
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 

Place : New Deihi 
Date : 13 May 2022 

Reserve 
Debenture 

Redernptlon 
Reserve 

1,800.00 

(1,800.00) 

(1,800.00) 

Piace : Noida 
Date : 13 May 2022 

and Surplus 

Retained 
earnings 

(17,059.19) 

(499.55) 
(6,692.17) 

11.60 

3 00 

(7,177.13) 

(24,236.32) 

3,290.28 

(440.12) 
(5,264.32) 

28.63 

(4.66) 
(2,390.19) 

(26,626.51) 

General Reserve 

1,800.00 

1,800.00 

1,800.00 

1,800.00 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly Known as lnox Wind 
lnfrastructure Services Limited) 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2022 

1, Company information 

lnox' Green Energy Services Limited ("the Company") is a public limited company incorporated in India. The 
Company is engaged in the business of Erection, Procurement and Commissioning (''EPC"), Operations and 
Maintenance ("O&Mn), Common lnfrastructure Facilities services and Development of wind farm services for WTGs. 
The Company is a subsidiary of lnox Wind Limited which is a subsidiary of lnox Wind Energy Limited and its ultimate 
holding company is lnox Leasing and Finance Limited. The area of operations of the Company is within India. 

The Company's registered office is located at Survey No. 1837 & 1834 ABS Tower, 2nd Floor, Old Padra Road, 
Vadodara- 390007, Gujarat. 

2 .  Statement of compliance and basis of preparation and presentation 

2.1 Statement of Compliance 

These financial statements are the separate financial statements of the Company (also called standalone financial 
statements) and comply in all material aspects with the Indian Accounting Standards ("lnd AS") notified under 
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") and other relevant provisions of the Act. 

2.2 Basis of Measurement 

These Financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company's functional currency. 
All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise indicated. 

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments 
that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the significant accounting 
policies. 

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. 

Fair value is the price that would be received t o  sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or 
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company 
takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics 
into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or 
disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for leasing transactions that 
are within the scope of Ind AS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to  fair value but are not fair value, 
such as net realizable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36. 

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on 
the degree to  which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs t o  
the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows: 

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity 
can access at the measurement date; 
Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or 
liability, either directly or indirectly; and 
Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly Known as lnox Wind 
Infrastructure Services Limited) 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the period ended 31  March 2022 

2.3 Basis of Preparation and Presentation 
Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard initially 
adopted or a revision to  an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use. 

These financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting policies are 
applied consistently to  all the periods presented in the financial statements. 

Any asset or liability is classified as current if it satisfies any of the following conditions: 
the asset/liability is expected to be realized/settled in the Company's normal operating cycle; 
the asset is intended for sale or consumption; 
the asset/liability is held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
the asset/liability is expected to  be realized/settled within twelve months after the reporting period; 
the asset is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used t o  settle a liability for at 
least twelve months after the reporting date; 
in the case of a liability, the Company does not have an unconditional right to  defer settlement of the liability 
for at least twelve months after the reporting date. 

All other assets and liabilities are classified as non-current. 

For the purpose of currentlnon-current classification of assets and liabilities, the Company has ascertained its 
normal operating cycle as twelve months. 

These Financial Statements were authorized for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 13 May 2022. 

2.4 Particulars of investments in  subsidiaries and associates as at 31 March 2022 are as under: 
Proportion of the 

ownership interest and 
voting rights 

Name of the investee 

a) Subsidiaries 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 
100% 

Flutter Wind Energy Private Limited 
Flurry Wind Energy Private Limited 
Tempest Wind Energy Private Limited 
Vuelta Wind Energy Private Limited - 
Aliento Wind energy Private Limited 
Vasuprada Renewables Private Limited 
Suswind Power Private Limited 
Ripudaman Urja Private Limited 
Vibhav Energy Private Limited 
Vigodi Wind Energy Private Limited 
Haroda Wind Energy Private Limited 
Khatiyu Wind Energy Private Limited 
Nani Virani Wind Energy Private Limited 
Ravapar Wind Energy Private Limited 
Wind Four Renergy Private Limited (w.e.f. 01 January 
2021) 
b) Associates 
Wind Two Renergy Private Limited 
Wind Four Renergy Private Limited (w.e.f. 31 
December 2020) 
Wind Five Renergy Limited 
Wind One Renergy Limited 

Principal place of business 
and country of 
incorporation 

India 
India 
India 
India 
India 
India 
India 
India 
India 
India 
India 
India 
India 
India 

India 

India 

India 

India 
India 



lNOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly Known as lnox Wind 
Infrastructure Services Limited) 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the period ended 31  March 2022 

I Wind Three Renergy Limited India I 100% 1 
See Note 7 for subsidiaries accounted as 'associates' on cessation of control and vice versa. 

3. Significant Accounting Polices 

3.1 Business combinations 

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a 
business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of 
the assets transferred by the Company, liabilities incurred by the Company t o  the former owners of the acquiree 
and the equity interests issued by the Company in exchange of control of the acquiree, Acquisition-related costs are 
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred. 

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, 
except that: 

deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related to  employee benefit arrangements are 
recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Taxes and Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits 
respectively; 
assets (or disposal Group) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with lnd AS 105 Non-current Assets 
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that Standard. 

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling 
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) 
over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. 

In case of a bargain purchase, before recognising a gain in respect thereof, the.Company determines whether there 
exists clear evidence of the underlying reasons for classifying the business combination as a bargain purchase. 
Thereafter, the Company reassesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the 
liabilities assumed and recognises any additional assets or liabilities that are identified in that reassessment. The 
Company then reviews the procedures used to  measure the amounts that Ind AS requires for the purposes of 
calculating the bargain purchase. If the gain remains after this reassessment and review, the Company recognises it 
in other comprehensive income and accumulates the same in equity as capital reserve. This gain is attributed t o  the 
acquirer. If there does not exist clear evidence of the underlying reasons for classifying the business combination as 
a bargain purchase, the Company recognises the gain, after reassessing and reviewing (as described above), directly 
in equity as capital reserve. 

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders t o  a proportionate share of 
the entity's net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either at fair value or at the non- 
controlling interestsJ proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree's identifiable net assets, The 
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests 
are measured at fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another Ind AS. 

When the consideration transferred by the ~ o m p a n i  in a business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting 
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair 
value and included as part of the consideration transferred in a business combination. Changes in the fair value of 
the contingent consideration that qualify as. measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with 
corresponding adjustments against goodwill or capital reserve, as the case may be. Measurement period 
adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during the 'measurement period' 
(which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the 
acquisition date. 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly Known as lnox Wind 
Infrastructure Services Limited) 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the period ended 3 1  March 2022 

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as 
measurement period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent 
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and i t s  subsequent 
settlement i s  accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is 
remeasured at fair value at subsequent reporting dates with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in 
profit or loss. 

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Company's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is 
remeasured to its acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gain or loss, if any, i s  recognised in profit or loss. 
Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have previously been recognised in 
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment would be appropriate if that 
interest were disposed of. 

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by'the end of the reporting period in which the 
combination occurs, the Company reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. 
Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement period (see above), or additional assets or 
liabilities are recognised to  reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the 
acquisition date that, if known, woul'd have affected the amounts recognised at that date. 

3.2 Goodwill 

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the 
business (see Note 3.1 above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Company's cash-generating units (or 
groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. 

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently 
when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the-recoverable amount of the. cash-generating unit is 
less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill 
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in 
the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill i s  recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for 
goodwillls not reversed in subsequent periods. 

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill i s  included in the 
determination of the profit or loss on disposal. 

3.3 Revenue recognition 

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount that 
reflects the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those products or services. 

Revenue from time and material and job contracts is recognised on output basis measured by units delivered, 
efforts expended, number of transactions processed, etc. 
Revenue related to fixed price maintenance and support services contracts where the Company is standing .' 

ready to provide services is  recognised based on time elapsed mode and revenue is straight lined over the 
period of performance. 
Revenue from services rendered is recognised. in profit or'loss in proportion to  the stage of completion, of 
transaction at the reporting date and when the costs incurred for the transactions and the costs to complete 
the transaction can be measured reliably, as under: 
Revenue from EPC is recognised on the basis of stage of completion by reference to surveys of work performed. 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly Known as lnox Wind 
Infrastructure Services Limited) 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the period ended 3 1  March 2022 

Revenue from operations and maintenance and common infrastructure facilities contracts is recognised over 
the period of the contract, on a straight-line basis w.e.f signing of contracts. 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is recognised when it is 
probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to  the Company and the amount 
of income can be measured reliably. Revenue is net of returns and is reduced for rebates, trade discounts, 
refunds and other similar allowances. Revenue is net of goods and service tax. 
Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume discounts, 
service level credits, performance bonuses, price concessions and incentives, i f  any, as specified in the contract 
with the customer. 
Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers. Revenue from subsidiaries is recognised based on 
transaction price which is at arm's length. Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue 
earned over billings on contracts. 
Contract assets are classified as unbilled receivables (only act of invoicing is pending) when there is 
unconditional right to  receive cash, and only passage of time is required, as per contractual terms. 
Unearned and deferred revenue ("contract liability") is recognised when there is billings in excess of revenues. 
The billing schedules agreed with customers include periodic performance based payments and / or milestone 
based progress payments, Invoices are payable within contractually agreed credit period. 
In accordance with Ind AS 37, the Company recognises an onerous contract provision when the unavoidable 
costs of meeting the obligations under a contract exceed the economic benefits to  be received. 
Contracts are subject to  modification to  account for changes in contract specification and requirements. The 
Company reviews modification to contract in conjunction with the original contract, basis which the transaction 
price could be allocated to  a new performance obligation, or transaction price of an existing obligation could 
undergo a change. In the event transaction price is revised for existing obligation, a cumulative adjustment is 
accounted for. 

Use of significant judgments in revenue recognition 
The Company's contracts with customers could include promises to  transfer multiple products and services to  

a customer. The Company assesses the products / services promised in a contract and identifies distinct 
performance obligations in the contract. Identification of distinct performance obligation involves judgement to  
determine the deliverables and the ability of the customer to  benefit independently from such deliverables. 

The Company uses judgement to  determine an appropriate standalone selling price for a performance 
obligation. The Company allocates the transaction price to  each performance obligation on the basis of the 
relative standalone selling price of each distinct product or service promised in the contract. Where standalone 
selling price is not observable, the Company uses the expected cost plus margin approach to  allocate the 
transaction price to  each distinct performance obligation. 

The Company exercises judgement in determining whether the performance obligation is satisfied at a point 
in time or over a period of time. The Company considers indicators such as how customer consumes benefits as 
services are rendered or who controls the asset as i t  is being created or existence of enforceable right t o  
payment for performance t o  date and alternate use of such product or service, transfer of significant risks and 
rewards to  the customer, acceptance of delivery by the customer, etc. 

Revenue for fixed-price contract is recognised using percentage-of-completion method. The Company uses 
judgement to  estimate the future cost-to-completion of the contracts which is used t o  determine the degree of 
completion of the performance obligation. 
Contract fulfilment costs are generally expensed as incurred except for certain software licence costs which 
meet the criteria for capitalisation. Such costs are amortised over the contractual period or useful life of licence 
whichever is less. The assessment of this criteria requires the application of judgement, in particular when 
considering if costs generate or enhance resources to  be used t o  satisfy future performance obligations and 
whether costs are expected to  be recovered. 

Dividend income is recorded when the right to receive payment is established. Interest income is recognised using 
the effective interest method. 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly Known as lnox Wind 
Infrastructure Services Limited) 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the period ended 3 1  March 2022 

3.3.1 Other income 

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised on time basis, by reference'to the principal outstanding at the 
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate which exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through 
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition, Insurance claims are 
recognised to the extent there is a reasonable certainty of the realizability of the claim amount. 

3.4 Leases . . 

Ind AS 116 introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all 
leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset i s  of low value. A lessee is required to 
recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability 
representing its obligation to make lease payments. 

3.5 Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are 
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to  the 
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. 

lnterest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending the.ir expenditure on qualifying 
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. 

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred. 

3.6 Employee benefits 

3.6.1 Retirement benefit costs 

Recognition and measurement of defined contribution plans: 

Payments to defined contribution benefit plan viz. government administered provident funds and pension schemes 
are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions. 

Recognition and measurement of defined benefit plans: 

For defined benefit plan, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with 
actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each reporting period. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial 
gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding 
net interest), is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other 
comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive 
income is  reflected immediately in retained earnings and is not reclassified to  profit or loss. Past service cost is 
recognised in profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount 
rate to the net defined benefit plan at the start of the reporting period, taking account of any change in the net 
defined benefit plan during the year as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Defined benefit costs are 
categorised as follows: 

service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and 
settlements); 
net interest expense or income; and 
remeasurement 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly Known as lnox Wind 
Infrastructure Services Limited) 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the period ended 3 1  March 2022 

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item 'Employee 
benefits expense'. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs. 

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the consolidated balance sheet represents the actual deficit or 
surplus in the Company's defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to  the present ,' 

value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future contributions 
to  the plans. 

3.6.2 Short-term and other long-term employee benefits 

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to  employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick 
leave, bonus etc, in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected 
to be paid in exchange for that service. 

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the 
benefits expected t o  be paid in exchange for the related service. 

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of the 
estimated future cash outflows expected to  be made by the Company in respect of services provided by employees 
up to the reporting date. 

3.7 Taxation 

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. 

3.7.1 Current tax 

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as 
reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in 
other years, items that are never taxable or deductible and tax incentives. The Company's current tax is calculated 
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, 

3.7.2 Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the 
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax 
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised 
for all deductible temporary differences t o  the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against 
which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not 
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of 
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, 
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill. - 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries 
and associates, except where the Company is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is 
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from 
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments'are only recognised to  the extent that it is 
probable that there will be sufficient taxable,profits against which the benefits of the temporary differences can be 
utilised and they are expected to  reverse in the foreseeable future. 
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to  the 
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to  
be recovered. 

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to  apply in the period in which the 
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the 
manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to  recover or settle the carrying amount 
of its assets and liabilities. 

3.7.3 Presentation of current and deferred tax : 

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to  items that are recognised in 
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in 
other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the 
initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the business 
combination. 

The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where i t  has a legally enforceable right to  set off 
the recognized amounts and where it intends either to  settle on a net basis, or to  realize the asset and settle the 
liability simultaneously. In case of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities, the same are offset if the Company 
has a legal'ly enforceable right to  set off corresponding current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the 
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the 
Company. 

3.8 Property, plant and equipment 

An item of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) that qualifies as an asset is measured on initial recognition at cost. 
Following initial recognition, property, plant and equipment are carried at cost, as reduced by accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses, i f  any. 

The Company identifies and determines cost of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment separately, i f  
the part has a cost which is significant to  the total cost of that item of'property, plant and equipment and has useful 
life that is materially different from that of the remaining item. 

Cost comprises of purchase price / cost of construction, including non-refundable taxes or levies and any expenses 
attributable to  bring the PPE to  its working condition for its intended use. Project pre-operative expenses and . 
expenditure incurred during construction period are capitalized to  various eligible PPE. 60rrowir-t~ costs directly 
attributable to  acquisition or construction of qualifying PPE are capitalised. 

Spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment that meet the definition of property, plant and 
equipment are capitalized at cost and depreciated over their useful life. Costs in nature of repairs and maintenance 
are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss as and when incurred. 

Cost of assets not ready for intended use, as on the Balance Sheet date, is shown as capital work in progress. 
Advances given towards acquisition of property, plant and equipment in outstanding at each Balance Sheet date are 
disclosed as Other Non-Current Assets, 

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of PPE (other than freehold land and properties under 
construction) less their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-line method. The useful lives 
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prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 are considered as the minimum lives. If the management's 
estimate of the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the time of acquisition of the asset or of the 
rema'ining useful life on a subsequent review is shorter than that envisaged in the aforesaid schedule, depreciation 
is provided at a higher rate based on the management's estimate of the useful lifelremaining useful life. The 
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, 
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. 

PPE are depreciated over its estimated useful lives, determined as under: 
Freehold land is not depreciated. 
On other items of PPE, on the basis of useful life as per Part C of Schedule II to  the Companies Act, 2013. 

The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period 
over which the assets are likely to  be used. 

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are 
expected to  arise from its use, or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of 
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount 
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss. 

3.9 lntangible assets 

lntangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated 
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is recognised on a straight-line basis over their 
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed at the end of each reporting 
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis, lntangible assets with 
indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, 

lntangible assets acquired in a business combination and recognised separately from goodwill are initially 
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost). Subsequent to  initial 
recognition, intangible assets acquired in a business combination are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation 
and impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets as above. 

.. An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or 
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the 
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of. the asset, are recognised in profit or .loss when the asset is 
derecognised. 

Estimated useful lives of intangible assets 

Estimated useful lives of the intangible assets are as follows: 
Software 6 years 

3.10 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill 

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets 
(other than goodwill) to  determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment 
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order t o  determine the extent 
of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, 
the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to  which the asset belongs. When a 
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to  individual cash- 
generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to  the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a . 

reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified. 
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Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the 
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current 
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which,the estimates of future 
cash flows have not been adjusted. if it is not possible to measure fair value less cost of disposal because there is no 
basis for making a reliable estimate of the price at which an orderly transaction to sell the asset would take place 
between market participants at the measurement dates under market conditions, the asset's value in use is used as 
recoverable amount. 

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) i s  estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the 
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to i t s  recoverable amount. An impairment loss is 
recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is 
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that the increased carrying amount does 
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the 
asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or 
loss. 

3-11 lnventories 

Inventories are valued at lower of the cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using weighted average cost 
basis. 

Cost of inventories comprises all costs of purchase, duties and taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable 
from tax authorities) and all other costs incurred in bringing the inventory to their present location and condition. 

Cost of work-in-progress includes the cost of materials, conversion costs, an appropriate share of fixed and variable 
overheads and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Net realisable 
value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of . 

completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

3.12 Provisions and contingencies 

The Company recognizes provisions when a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event 
exists and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle such 
obligation and the amount of such obligation can be reliably estimated. 

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to  settle the present 
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the 
obligation. If the effect of time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate 
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the 
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. 

A disclosure for a contingent 1iability.i~ made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, 
but probably will not require an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or the amount of such 
obligation cannot be measured reliably. 

When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits is remote, no provision or disclosure is made. 
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Contingent liabilities acquired in a business combination are initially measured at fair value at the acquisition date. 
At the end of subsequent period, such contingent liabilities are measured at the higher of the amounts that would 
be recognised in accordance with Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets and the amount 
initially recognised less cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with Ind AS 18 Revenue, if any. 

3.13 Financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company member becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. . 
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities 
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from 
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs 
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are 
recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

A] Financial assets 

a) Initial recognition and measurement: 

Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 
On initial recognition, a financial asset is recognised'at fair value, in case of financial assets which are recognised at 
fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), its transaction costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. In 
other cases, the transaction costs are attributed to the acquisition value of the financial asset. 

b) Effective interest method: 

The effective interest method is  a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating 
interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate i s  the rate that exactly discounts estimated . 
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest 
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, 
where appropriate, a shorter period, to  the net carrying amount on initial recognition. 

lncome is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified 
as at FVTPL, Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in the "Other income" line item. 

c) Subsequent measurement: 

For subsequent measurement, the Company classifies a financial asset in accordance with the below criteria: 
i. The Company's business model for managing the financial asset. and 
ii. The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. 

Based on the above criteria, the Company classifies its financial assets into the followin'g categories: 

i. ~inancial assets measured at amortized cost: 

A financial asset is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met: 

a) The Company's business model objective for managing the financial asset is to hold financial assets in order to  
collect contractual cash flows, and 

b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to  cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 
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This category applies to cash and bank balances, trade receivables, loans, certain investments and other financial 
assets of the Company. Such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective , 

. interest method. 

The amortized cost of a financial asset is also adjusted for loss allowance, if any, 

ii. Financial assets measured at  FVTOCI: 

Afinancihl asset is measured at FVTOCI if both of the following conditions are met: 
a) The Company's business model objective for managing the financial asset is achieved both by collecting 

contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and 
b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to  cash flows that are solely payments of 

principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

Investments in equity instruments, classified under financial assets, are initially measured at fair value. The 
Company may, on initial recognition, irrevocably elect to measure the same either at FVTOCI or FVTPL. The 
Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Fair value changes on an equity instrument 
are recognised as other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless the Company has elected to measure such 
instrument at FVTOCI. 

The Company does not have any financial assets in this category. 

iii. Financial assets measured at FVTPL: 

Afinancial asset is measured at FVTPL unless it i s  measured at amortized cost or at FVTOCl as explained above. 
This is a residual category applied to all other investments of the Company. Such financial assets are subsequently 
measured at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value changes are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss, 
Dividend income on the investments in equity instruments are recognised as 'other income' in the Statement of 
profit and Loss. 

d) Derecognition: 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is 
derecognized (i.e, removed from the Company's Balance Sheet) when any of the following occurs: 

i. The contractual rights to cash flows from the financial asset expires; 
ii. The Company transfers its contractual rights to receive cash flows of the financial asset and has substantially 

transferred all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset; 
iii. The Company retains the contractual rights to receive cash flows but assumes a contractual obligation to pay 

the cash flows without material delay to one or more recipients under a 'pass-through' arrangement (thereby 
substantially transferring all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset); 

iv. The Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all risk and rewards of ownership and does not retain 
control over the financial asset. 

In cases where the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the 
financial asset, but retains control of the financial asset, the Company continues to recognize such financial asset to 
the extent of its continuing involvement in the financial asset. In that case, the Company also recognizes. an 
associated liability. 

The financial asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that 
the Company has retained. 
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On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the 
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other 
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have 
otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. 

e) Impairment of financial assets: 

The Company applies expected credit losses (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of loss allowance on the 
following: 
i. Trade receivables 
ii. Financial assets measured at amortized cost (other than trade receivables) 
iii. Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

In case of trade receivables, the Company follows a simplified approach wherein an amount equal to lifetime ECL is 
measured and recognized as loss allowance. ' 

In case of other assets (listed as ii and iii above), the Company determines if there has been a significant increase in 
credit risk of the financial asset since initial recognition. If the credit risk of such assets has not increased 
significantly, an amount equal to 12-month ECL is  measured and recognized as loss allowance. However, if credit risk 
has increased significantly, an amount equal to lifetime ECL is measured and recognized as loss allowance. 

Subsequently, if the credit quality of the financial asset improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in 
credit risk since initial recognition, the Company reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12- 
month ECL. 

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the 
contract and all the cash flows that the company expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the 
original effective interest rate. 

12-month ECL are a portion of the lifetime ECL which result from'default events that are poisible within 12 months 
from the reporting date. Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over 
the expected life of a financial asset. 

ECL are measured in a manner that they reflect unbiased and probability weighted amounts determined by a range 
of outcomes, taking into account the tlme value of money and other reasonable information available as a resuit of 
past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. 

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to measure lifetime ECL on its portfolio of trade 
receivables. The provision matrix is prepared based on historically observed default rates over the expected life of 
trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates, At each reporting date, the historically observed 
default rates and changes in the forward-looking estimates are updated. 

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as expense/income in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss under the head 'Other expensesl/'Other income' 
B] Financial liabilities and equity instruments 

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in 
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an 
equity instrument. 
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i. Equity instruments:- 

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of 
its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the entity are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue 
costs. 

Repurchase of the entity's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is 
recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's own equity instruments. 

ii. Compound financial instruments:- 

Compound financial instruments issued by the Company comprise of convertible debentures denominated in INR 
that can be converted to equity shares at the option of the holder. The debentures will be converted into equity 
shares at the fair value on the date of conversion. 

The fair value of the liability component of a compound financial instrument is determined using a market interest 
rate of a similar liability that does not have an equity conversion option. This value is recorded as a liability on an 
amortised cost basis until extinguished on conversion or redemption of the debentures.. The remainder of the 
proceeds is  attributable to equity portion of the instrument net of derivatives if any. The equity component is 
recognised and included in shareholder's equity (net of deferred tax) and isnot subsequently re-measured. The 
derivative component is recognized at fair value and subsequently carried at fair value through profit or loss. 

Interest related to the financial liability is recognized in profit or loss (unless it qualifies for inclusion in the cost of an 
asset). In case of conversion at maturity, the financial liability is reclassified to equity and no gain or loss is 
recognized. 

iii. Financial Liabilities:- 

a) Initial recognition and measurement : 

Financial liabilities are recognised when a Company member becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. Financial liabilities are initially measured at the fair value. 

b) Subsequent measurement: 

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Financial 
liabilities carried at fair value 'through profit or loss are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

The Company has not designated any financial liability as at FVTPL other than derivative instrument. 

c) ~ereco~n i t ion  of financial liabilities: 

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability i s  discharged or cancelled or expires. 
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or 
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the 
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying 
amount of the financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid i s  recognized in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss. 
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3.14 Earnings Per Share 

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to the equity shareholders 
of the Company by'the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted 
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is  adjusted for events, 
such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares that have changed the number of equity 
shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is  adjusted for the effects 
of all dilutive potential equity shares, except where the results would be anti-dilutive. 

3.15 Recent Accounting Pronouncement 

On 24th March, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") through a notification, amended Schedule Ill of the 
Companies Act, 2013. The amendments revise Division I, II and Ill of Schedule I l l  and are applicable from 1 s t  April, 
2021. 
Balance Sheet: 
i) Lease liabilities should be separately disclosed under the head 'financial liabilities', duly distinguished 

as current or non-current. 
ii) Certain additional disclosures in the statement of changes in equity such as changes in equity share capital 

due to prior period errors and restated balances at the beginning of the current reporting period. 
iii) Specified format for disclosure of shareholding of promoters. 
iv) Specified format for ageing schedule of trade receivables, trade payables, capital work-in-progress and 

intangible asset under development. 
v) If a company has not used funds for the specific purpose for which it was borrowed from banks and 

financial institutions, then disclosure of details of where it has been used. 
vi) Specific disclosure under 'additional regulatory requirement' such as compliance with approved schemes of 

arrangements, compliance with number of layers of companies, title deeds of immovable property not held 
in name of company, loans and advances to promoters, directors, key managerial personnel (KMP) and 
related parties, details of benami property held etc. 
Statement of profit and loss: 
Additional disclosures relating to  Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), undisclosed income and crypto or 
virtual currency specified under the head 'additional information' in the notes forming part of the 
standalone financial statements. 

The amendments are extensive and the Company will evaluate the same to give effect to them as required by law. 

4 Critical accounting judgements and use of estimates 

In application of Company's accounting policies, which are described in Note 3, the Directors of the Company are 
required to make judgements, estimations and assumptions about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are 
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical 
experience and other factors that are considered to  be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates'are 
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of 
revision or future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. 
4.1 Following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at 

the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. 
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a) Useful lives of Property, Plant & Equipment (PPE) & intangible assets: 

The Company has adopted useful lives of PPE as described in Note 3.8 & 3.9 above. The Company reviews the 
estimated useful iives of PPE & intangible assets at the end of each reporting period. 

b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes 

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value in accordance with the accounting policies mentioned 
above. 

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements at fair value on a recurring basis, the 
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing 
categorization at the end of each reporting period and discloses the same. 

When the fair values of financials assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be measured 
based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques, including the 
discounted cash flow model, which involve various judgements and assumptions. Where necessary, the Company 
engages third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. 

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in determining the fair values of various assets and 
liabilities are disclosed in Note 37. 

c) Other assumptions and estimation uncertainties, included in respective notes are as under: 

Recognition of deferred tax assets is based on estimates of taxable profits in future years. The Company 
prepares detailed cash flow and profitability projections, which are reviewed by the board of directors of the 
Company. The Company's tax jurisdiction is India. Significant judgments are involved in estimating budgeted 
profits for the purpose of paying advance tax, determining the provision for income taxes, including amount 
expected to be paid / recovered for uncertain tax positions - see Note 34. 
Measurement of defined benefit obligations and other long-term employee benefits: key actuarial assumptions 
-see Note 38 
Assessment of the status of various legal cases/claims and other disputes where the Company does not expect 
any material outflow of resources and hence these are reflected as contingent liabilities. Recognition and 
measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an 
outflow of resources -see Note 42 
Impairment of financial assets -see Note 37 
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5 : Property, plant and equipment 
(Tin Lakhs) . 

As at As at 
Particulars 31  March 2022 31 March 2021 

Carrying amount of: 1,126.09 1,126.09 
Freehold Land 3,602.78 1,502.85 
Roads 

79,277.94 73,441.41 Plant & equipment 98.18 119.93 . 
Furniture and fixtures 0.86 1.20 
Vehicles 8.35 11.46 
Office equipments 

Total 

~ ~ t e :  Assets mortgaged/pledged as security for borrowings are as under: 
(T in Lakhs) 

As at 
31 March 2021 

1,126.09 
1,502.85 

73,441.41 
119.93 

1.20 
11.46 

76,202.94 

Carrying amounts of: 

Freehold land 
Buildings 
Piant and equipment 
Furniture and fixtures 
Vehicles 
Office equipment 
Total 

As at 
31 March 2022 

1,126.09 
3,602.78 

79,277.94 
98.18 

0.86 
8.35 

84,114.20 
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5 : property, plant and equipment 
(Fin Lakhs) 

Total 

83,395.12 
7,050.95 

90,446.07 

12,794.33 

1,03,240.40 

Accwnulated Depreciation: 

Galancc? as at 1 April 2020 
Eliminated on disposal of asset 
Depreciatior; for the year 
Balance as at  1 April 2021 

Office Equipment 

143.97 
3.51 

147.48 
1.55 

149.03 

- I 2,185.70 

1,240.24 

3,425.94 

Net carrying amount ' Land - Freehold I 

Vehicles 

2.84 

2.84 

2.84 

I 

Plant and 
equipment 

73,441.Cl 
79,277.94 

Furniture and 
Fixtures 

217.23 

217.23 

217.23 

1.30 

0.34 

1.64 

0.34 

, 1.98 

7,313.93 

3,258.30 

10,582.23 

3,556.51 

14,138.74 
! 

1,502.85 
3,602.78 

I$ at 31 March 2021 
As at 31 March 2022 

Particuiars 

Cost or deemed cost: 
Balance as at 1 April 2020 
Additions 
Borrowing cost capitalised 
Disposals 
Balance as at 1 April 2021 
Additions 
Borrowing cost capitalised 
As at 31 Mzrch 2022 

73.97 

23.33 

97.30 
21.75 

119.05 
1,299.81 

4,725.75 

Furniture and I 
Vehicles I Office Equipment I Total 

1,126.09 
1,126.09 

Land - Freehold 

1,126.09 

1,126.09 

1,126.C9 

licads plant and i equipment 

126.99 I 9,701.89 

Fixtures 

119.93 
98.18 

3,563.68 
1,365.11 

4,928.79 

3,399.74 

8,328.53 

9.03 

136.02 
4.66 

140.68 

78,341.31 
5,682.33 

84,023.64 
9,393.04 

93,416.68 

4,541.24 

14,243.13 
4,883.07 

19,126.20 

1.20 1 11.46 

0.86 1 8.35 

76,202.94 
84,114.20 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly Known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 3 1  ~arch.2022 

5a. Capital-Work-in Progress (CWIP) 

There is no project under CWlP where completion is overdue. Further there is no 
project which has exceed in cost compare to its original plan. 
For Capital Commitment, refer note 43 

CWlP 

Projects in progress 

Projects temporarily suspended 

As at 
31 March 2022 

1,156.09 
19.18 

1,175.27 

CWlP 

Projects in progress 
Projects temporarily suspended 
Total 

Amount in CWIP for a period of 

Total 

Amount in CWIP for a period of 

Less than 1 Year 

3,191.52 

More than 
years 

944.40 
19.18 

1-2 Years 

529.61 

2-3 Years 

13.98 

p p p p - p  

Less than 1 
Year 

197.71 

1-2 Years 

2-3 Years lrlore than 3 year 

1,044.35 

19.18 

4,765.48 

19.18 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly Known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 
Notes to  the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

6 : lntangible assets 
(if i n  LakhsJ 

Particulars 
As at  As a t  

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

Carrying amounts of: 
Software 

Details of Intangible Assets 

Accumulated amortisation 
Balance as at  1 April 2020 
Amortisation expense for the year 
Balance as at 1 April 2021 405.73 

Amortisation expense for the year 
Balance as at  31 March 2022 L 

Total - 

407.29 

407.29 

- 
-El 

407.29 

Particulars 

Cost or Decmed Cost 
Balance as a t  1 April 2020 
Additions 
Balance as at  1 April 2021 
Additions 
B~iance as at  31 March 2022 -- 

Kt carrying amount 
As at 31 March 2021 

---- I 0.97 0.97 ----- 

S o f t w z  

407.29 

407.29 

407.29 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly Known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

( t i n  Lakhs) 

As at As at As at As at 
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

Nos, Nos. Amount Amount 

7 : lnvestments 

Non-current 
7(a), lnvestment in subsidiaries (at cost) 
. -investments i n  equity instruments (unquoted) 

-in fully paid up equity shares of T 10 each 
Marut Shakti Energy India Limited 
Sarayu Wind Power (Taliimaduguia) Private Limited 
Satviki Energy Private Limited 
Vinirrmaa Energy Generation Private Limited 
Sarayu Wind Power (Kondapuram) Private Limited 
RBRK lnvestments Limited 
Vasuprada Renewables Private Limited 
Suswind Power Private Limited 
Ripudaman Urja Private Limited 
Vibhav Energy Private Limited 
Haroda Wind Energy Private Limited 
Vigodi Wind Energy Private Limited 
Aliento Wind Energy Private Limited 
Tempest Wind Energy Private Limited 
~ i u r i y  Wind Energy Private Limited 
Vuelta Wind Energy Private Limited 
Flutter Wind Energy Private Limited 
Nani Virani Wind Energy Private Limited (refer note (iv) below) 
Ravapar Wind Energy Private Limited 
Khatiyu Wind Energy Private Limited 
Sri Pavan Energy Private Limited (refer note (i) below) 
Resco Global Wind Service Private Limited 
Wind Four Renergy Private Limited (refer note (i) below) 

Less: Provision for diminution in value of investment 

-Investments in debentures (unquoted) (fully paid up) 

Compulsory Convertible Debenture of Nani Virani Wind Energy Private Limited (refer note (iv) & 63900' 
(9) below) 

7b. Investment i n  associates (trade investment) 
Wind Two Renergy Private Limited (refer note (if), (iii) & (iv) below) 32510000 32510000 3,251.00 3,251.00 
Wind Five Renergy Limited (formerly Known as Wind Five Renergy Private Limited) (refer note (iii) 18510000 18510000 1,851.00 1,851.00 
& (iv) below) 
Wind One Renergy Limited (formerly Known as Wind One Renergy Private Limited) (refer note (iii) 10000 10000 1.00 1.00 
& (iv) below) , . 
Wind Three'Rcnerey Limited (formerly Known as Wind Three Renergy Private Limited) (refer note 10000 10000 1.00 1.00 
(iii) & (iv) below) 

5,104.00 5,104.00 

Notes: 

(i) Various binding agreements entered into with party has ceased to exist w.e.f: 01 January 2021 as per term and conditions of the agreement. The Company has gained 
control over such company in terms of Ind AS 110: Consolidated Financial Statements. Therefore, the Company has accounted for investment in such company as 
investment in 'subsidiary' from the date of gaining control. 

(ii) The Company has neither right to variable returns from its investment with the investee nor the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly Known as inox Wind Infrastructure Sewices Limited) 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 3 1  March 2022 

(iii) The Company has entered into various binding agreements (including call &put  option agreement and voting rights agreement) with a party to, inter-olio, transfer the 
shares of such companies at a future date and defining rights of the ~espective parties. in view of the pr~visions of these binding agreements, it is assessed that the 
Company has ceased to exercise control over such companies in terms of ind AS 110: Consolidated Financial Statements. Therefore, the Company has accounted for 
investment in such companies as investment in 'associate' from the date of cessation of control. 

(iv) Shares and debentures have been pledge by the Company as additional security for loan availed by the respective subsidiary/associate company. 

(v) Value of investment for T 6,393.89 1akhs includes value of deemed equity as per ind AS 109 is 'C 3232.89 Lakhs 

(vi) Durir~g the period the com?any has sold its Investment in Marut shakti Energy India Limited on 29 Oct,2021 at a consideration of T 61.11 lakh, Sarayu Wind Power 
(Tallimadugula) Private Limited on 29 Oct.2021 dt a consideration o f t  1 lakh, Satviki Energy Private Limited on 29 Oct,2i)21 at a consideration of T 83.50 lekh, Vinirrrnaa 
Energy Generation Private Limited on 29 Oct,2021 at a consideration of t 5 iakh, Sarayu Wind Power (Kondapuram) Private Limited on 29 Oct,2021 at a consideration of il 
lakh, RBKK investments Limited on 29 Oct,2021 at a consideration of 4 7 lakh and Resco Global Wind Service Private Limited on 19 Oct,2021 at a consideration of 4 1 Lakh. 

, ( t in  Lakhs) 

Particulars 
As at As at 

3 1  March 2022 31 March 2021 

Aggregate carrying value of unquoted inves?ments 
Aggregate amount of diminution In value of investments 

Category-wise other investments (as per ind AS 109 classification) 
Carried at Cost 
Carried at M P L  



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly Known as I ~ O X  Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 
Notes to the standalone financjal statements for the year ended 3 1  March 2022 

(Tin Lakhs) 

Particulars 
As at AS at 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

Current 

8: Loans t o  related parties (Refer Note 39) 
-Inter-corporate deposits to  related parties 

Considered good 
Considered doubtful 4,719.36 

4,062.99 8,912.07 

less: Provision for doubtful inter-corporate deposit (4,719.36) 

-Inter-corporate deposits to  other parries 12.57 

Total 4,062.99 - 4,205.28 

Loens or advances granted to promoters, directors or KMPs: 
As at  31  March 2022 

Type of Borrower Loans and Advances in 

ALat 31 March 2021 - 

Type of Borrower the nature of loan outstanding 
the nature of loans 

Promoter - 
O E o r s  - 
Kh?Ps 
Related Parties 

Promoter ! -- \I' I 

9 : Other financial assets 

Non-cur=! 

4,062.99 

Security deposits 
Non-current bank balatices (Refer Note 16) 
klnbilleil revenue (Refer note below) 
Others 

100% 

Total 50,%5.97 --- 47,340.47 

Current 
l lnbi l~ed revenue (Refer note below) 
Consideration fleczivable on Disposal of €PC Division 463.84 

-- 
Total 2,218.96 --- 3,938.77 

~ o t c :  Unbiiisd revenue i j  r.la5sifled as financial asset as right to consideratiorl is  unconditionsl upon psssaee of timc. 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly Known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 
Notes to  the standalone financial statements for the year ended 3 1  March 2022 

10. Deferred tax balances 

Year ended 31  March 2022 

Deferred tax (liabilities)/assets i n  relation to: 
I I I 

Particulars 

. 

Deferred tax (liabilities)/assets in relation to: (T in Lakhs) 

Straight lining of 0 & M revenue 
Allowance for expected credit losses 
Defined benefit obligations 
Effects of measuring investments at fair 

Year ended 31  March 2021 

value 
Other financial assets 
Business loss 

Closing 
balance 

6,805.45 
(15,895.75) 

2,685.22 
79.78 

16,530.02 

25.97 

10,230.69 

2,320,05 
12,550.74 

Equity component of Compound 
financial instrument 
Other deferred tax assets 

Adjusted 
against 

current tax 
liability 

- 

Recognised 
Opening 

in profit or 
balance 

loss 

~ecognised 
directly in  

equity 

Other deferred tax liabilities 

Recognised 
in Other 

comprehensive 
income 

(12.87) 

(12.87) 

(12.87) 

MAT credit entitlement 2,320.05 

Total 6,297.18 3,786.10 

Recognised 
in profit or 

loss 

1,706.46 
(288.86) 

1,242.52 

5.95 
143.87 

1,758.25 

(2,080.02) 
2,488.17 

2,488.17 

Particulars 

Property, plant and equipment 
Straight lining of 0 & M revenue 
Allowance for expected credit losses 

Defined benefit obligations 
Business loss 
Equity component of Compound 
financial instrument 
Other deferred tax assets 
Other deferred tax liabilities 

MAT credit entitlement 

Total 

(T in  Lakhs) 
I 

Opening 
balance 

5,098.99 
(15,606.89) 

1,442.70 
86.70 

16,386.15 

(1,758.25) 

2,105.99 
7,755.39 
2,320.05 

10,075.44 

other 
directly in 

comprehensive 

Adjusted 
against Closing 

5,098.99 

The Company has recognised deferred tax assets on its unabsorbed depreciation and business losses carried forward. The Company has 
executed long term operation & maintenance contracts with the customers. Revenue in respect of such contracts will get recogni;ed in 
future years as per the accounting policy of the Company. Based on these contracts, the Company has reasonabie certainty as on the date 
of the balance sheet, that there will be sufficient taxable income available to realize such assets in the near future. Accordingly, the 
Company has created deferred tax assets on i t s  carried forward unabsorbed depreciation and business losses. 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly Known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

Particulars 
As at As at 

31 March 2022 3 1  March 2021 

11: Income tax assets (net) 

Income tax paid (net of provisions) 

Total 

12 : Other assets 

Capital advances 
Balances with government authorities 

- Baiances in Service tax, VAT & GST accounts 

Total 

Advance to suppliers 
balances with government authorities 

- Baiances in Service tax, VAT & GST accounts* 
prepayments - others 
Advance for Expenses 
Other Recoverable 

Total 
* includes GST input tax credit blocked by the department amounting $640 Lakhs and Refer Note 57 

13: Inventories 
(at lower of cost and net reaiisabie value) 

Construction materials 
Project development, erection & commissioning work-in-progress* 
Common infrastructure facilities work-in-progress* 

Total 
*Refer Note 51  

14 :Trade receivables 

(Unsecured) 

Current 

Considered good- Unsecured 
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses 

Total 
(For Ageing, refer Note 33(0) 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly Known as lnox Wind infrastructure Services Limited) 
Notes to  the standalone financial statements for the year ended 3 1  March 2022 

(T i n  Lakhs) 

Particulars 
As a t  As at 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

15: Cash and cash equivalents 

,: Balances with banks 
in Current accounts 
in Cash credit accounts 

Cash on hand 

Total 

16: Other bank balances 

Fixed deposits with orieinai maturity period of more than 3 months but less than 12 months* 
Fixed deposit with original maturity for more than 12 months* Interest accrued 

Less: Amount disclosed under Note 9 - 'Other financial assets-Non current' 

Total 

Notes: 
*Other bank balances include margin money deposits kept as security against bank 
guarantees as under: , 

a) Fixed deposits with original maturityfor more than 3 months but less than 12 

months 
Fixed deposits with original maturity for more than 12 months 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly Known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

17: Equity share capital 
(T in Lakhs) 

Particulars 
As at As at 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

Authorised capital 
30,00,00,000 (31 March 2021: 15,20,00,000) equity shares of 4 10 each* 30,000.00 15,200.00 

20,00,00,000 (31 March 2021: nil) Preference shares of 7 10 each* 20,000.00 

Total 50,000.00 15,200.00 

Issued, subscribed and paid up 
23,50,16,258 (31 March 2021: 12,86,19,927) equity shares of T 10 each 

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021 
(a) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and 

Amount (T in Amount (3 in 
at the end of the year No. of Shares No. of Shares 

lakhs) lakhs) 

Equity share capital 
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 12,86,19,927 12,861.99 11,62,12,979 11,621.30 

Shares issued during the year 10,63,96,331 10,639.64 1,24,06,948 1,240.Gg 

Shares outstanding at the end of the year 

(b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares 

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of T 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held 
and entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will 
be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Company, In proportion of their shareholding. 

(c) Shares held by holding company 

lnox Wind Limited(*) 

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021 

Amount (4 in Amount (f in 
No. of Shares No. of Shares 

lakhs) lakhs) 
22,05,31,701 22,053.17 12,65,72,781 12,657.28 

(d) Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021 

shares: No. of Shares '%of  holding No, of Shares %of holding 

lnox Wind Limited(*) 
Total 

(*) Including shares held through nominee sharehoiders. 



(e) Allotment of Equity Shares by way of Conversion 
During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company has converted its 4th & 5th trenches of debentures amounting to T 10,000.00 Lakhs 
each into 2,48,01,587 number of shares and unsecured debt amounting to $39,187.57 into 4,85,95,701 number of shares at a price of S 
80.641 per share. 

(f) Allotment of Equity Shares in lieu of other than Cash Consideration 

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the company has issued 3,29,99,043 number of shares 3 t  a price of TSO.G?/ per share, for a 
consideration other than cash in lieu of the debt/liability/provisions owed to the allottees on account of receipt of material / services / 
others / interest etc, from time to time. 

(g) Shareholding of Promoters as under: 

Balance as at 31  March 2022 

A s s 3 1  March 2021 

% Changes 
during the year 

-4.57% 
-4.57% 

Share held by promoters at the end of the year 

Share held by promoters at the end of the year 
PromconcName I No .of Sha_re I %of total Slrare 

Promoter Name 
lnox Wind Limited 
Total 

%Changes 
during the year 

lnox Wind Limited F 1 12,65,72,7si 1 98.41% -1.59% 

No .of Share 
22,05,31,701 
22,05,31,701 

%of total Share 
93.84% 
-- 93.84% 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly Known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 
Notes t o  the standalone financial statements for the year ended 3 1  March 2022 

18: Other equity . . 
(P in  Lakhs) 

As at As at 
Particulars 

3 1  March 2022 3 1  March 2021 

Security Premium 92,041.10 17,022.38 
Retained earnings (26,626.51) (24,236.32) 
General reserve 1,800.00 1,800.00 

Total 

18 (i) General reserve 

Balance at beginning of the year 1,800.00 
Add: Transfer from Debenture Redemption Reserver on redemption of 

1,800.00 
debenture 

Balance at  the end of the year 

. 18 (ii) Retained earnings: 
~alancc at beginning of year 
profit/(loss) for the year 
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax 
Transfer on account of Conversion of OCD 

- 
Balance at the end of the year (26,626.51) (24,236.32) 

The amount that can be distributed by the Company as dividends to its equity shareholders is determined based on the 

financial statements o f  the Company and also considering the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and also subject 

to  levy of dividend distribution tax, if any. Thus, the amounts reported above may not be distributable in entirety. 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly Known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services ~ im i ted)  
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

(Tin Lakl~s) . 

As at As at 
Particulars 31 March 2022 3 1  March 2021 

20: Non current borrowings 

Secured loans 
a) Debentures 
Redeemable non convertible debentures 
b) Rupee term loans 
From banks 

: c) Working capital term loans 
From banks 

Unsecured loans 
a) Debentures 
Optionally convertible debentures - Liability portion of compound financial 
instrument 

Total 
Less: Disclosed under Note No. 24 & 21: Other current financial liabilities- 
- Current maturities of non-current borrowings 
-Interest accrued 

Total 

Note: for terms of repayment and securities etc. Refer Note 20a 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMI'SED (formerly Known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

20a: Terms of repayment and socudties etc. 

( t i n  L a k h s L  
As at As at 

Particulars 31 March 2022 
31 March 2021 - 

al Ruoee term loan from lClCl Bank Ltd:- , . 
Working capital long term loan is secured by second pari passu charge on existing & future movable fixed assets 
and current assets t o  lClCl Bank carries interest MCLR+2.5% p.a. Principal repayment pattern o f  the loan is as 
under: 

---- 
Month Principal Principal 
Feb-22 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly Known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 3 1  March 2022 

20a: Terms of repayment and securities etc. 

b) Working capital long term loan from Yes Bank Ltd:- 
Working capital lone term loan is secured by second pari passu charge on existing &future niovable fixed assets and current assets to Yes Bank carries 
interest MCLR+l% with a capping @ 9.25% p.a. 100% credit guarantee by National Credit Guarantee Trust Company Limited. Principal repayment 
pattern of the loan is as under: 
Month Principal Principal 
Feb-22 50.00 

Mar-22 50.00 

Apr-22 50.00 50.00 

May-22 50.00 50.00 

Jun-22 50.00 50.00 

JuI-22 50.00 50.00 

Aug-22 50.00 50.00 

5ep-22 50.00 50.00 

Oct-22 50.00 50.00 

NOV-22 50.00 50.00 

Dcc-22 50.00 50.00 

Jan-23 50.00 50.00 

Feb-23 50.00 50.00 

Mar-23 SO.00 50.00 

Apr-23 50.00 50.00 

May-23 50.00 50.00 

Jun-23 50.00 5O.OC 

JuI-23 50.00 50.00 

Aug-23 50.00 50.00 

5ep-23 50.00 50.00 

Oct-23 50.00 50.00 
50.00 50.00 NOV-23 

Dec-23 50.00 53.00 

Jan-24 50.00 50.00 

Feb-24 50.00 50.00 

Mar-24 50.00 50.00 

Apr-24 50.00 50.00 

May-24 50.00 50.00 

Jun-24 50.00 50.00 

Jul-24 50.00 50.00 

Aug-24 50.00 50.00 

Sep-24 50.00 50.00 

Oct-24 50.00 50.00 

SOV-21 50.00 50.00 

Dec-24 50.00 50.00 

Jan-25 50.00 50.00 

Feb-25 50.00 50.00 

Mar-25 50.00 50.00 

Apr-25 50.00 50.00 

May-25 50.00 50.00 

Jun-25 50.00 50.00 

Jul-25 50.00 50.00 

Aug-25 50.00 50.00 

Sep-25 50.00 50.00 

Oct-25 50.00 50.00 

NOV-25 50.00 50.00 

Dec-25 50.00 50.00 

Jan-26 50.00 50.00 

Total 2 , 3 0 0 . 0 0 , 4 0 0 . 0 0  



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly Known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

20a: Terms of repayment and securities etc. 

c) Rupee term loan from Yes Bank Ltd:- 
Rupee term loan taken from Yes Bank Ltd is secured by unconditional and irrevocable corporate guarantee from Gujarat Fluorochemicals Limited and 
second charge on existing and future movable Rxed assets of the Company anid carries interest MCLR plus spread 0.15% p.a.. Principal repayment 
oattern of the loan is as under: 

( f i n  Lakhs) . 
Month Principal Principal 
JuI-21 2,50000 

- .  2,500.00 -- 

d) Rupee term loan from lnduslnd Bank Ltd:- 
Rupee term loan Is taken from Induslnd Bank Ltd is secured by second pari passu charges on the current assets, cash flowe and receivables both present 
S Futdre of the Company and carries interest @ MCLR plus 0.20% p.a. Principal repayment pattern of'the loan is as under: 

(Tin Lakhs] - 
Month Principal Principal -- 
Mar-21 400.00 
Jun-21 400.00 
Sep-21 500.00 
Dec-21 500.00 
Mar-22 500.00 
Jun-22 500.00 500.00 
Sep-22 500.00 500.00 
Total 1,000.00 3,300.00 

e) Debentures (secured):- 
i) 3950 non convertible redeemable debentures of T 10 Lakhs each fully paid up, are issued at par, and carry intercst @ 9.50% p.a. payable semi 
annually. The maturity pattern of the debentures is as under: 

- (7 in lakhs) 
Principal Principal Month 

Sop-21 3,5'00.00 
Mar-22 4,000.00 
Sep-ZZ 4,000.00 4,000.00 
Mar-23 . 4,000.00 4,000.00 
Sep-23 4,000.00 4.0'30.00 . . 

12,000 00 19,500.00 
First pari passu charge on ail the movable fixed assets and first ranking exclusive charge on the immovable property of the Issuer situated in the 
districts of Amreli, Surendranagar and Rajkot in Gujarat. NCD's are further secured by an unconditional, irrevocable and contlnqfng corporate guarantee 
from "Gujarat Fluorochemicals Ltd". 

f)RupeeTerm loan from HDFC 
Term loan is taken from HDFC Bank by frist pari passu charges on the plant and machinery of thc Company and carries interest MCLR+l p.a. Restriced 
to 9.5% Princioal reoavment aattern of the loan is as under: . . '  . 

- (Tin LakhsJ- 
Month Principal Principal 
Apr-23 416.67 
May-23 
Ju?-23 
Jul-23 
Aug-23 
Sep-23 
Oct-23 
NoV-23 
Dec-23 
Jan-24 
Feb-24 
Mar-24 
Total 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly Known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31  March 2022 

20a: Terms of repayment and securities etc. 

g) Debentures (unsecured) :- 
The debentures'of ? 1,000 each, fully paid up, are issued to the holding Company, at par, and carry interest @ 4% p.a. The eiltire amount of debentures 
is convertible into fully paid up equity shares o f f  10 each at the option of the debenture holder, at  the end of the term of the respective debentures. 
The equity shares will be issued at the price as per the valuation report to be obtained at each conversion date. i f  not converted, the debentures are 
redeemable at par. The maturity pattern of the debentures is as under: 

For Year ended 3 1  March 2021 
Debenture Series Date of allotment Maturity Number of Amount 

Period Debentures ( f i n  Lakhs) 

Series E 17th Nov.2015 7 years 10,00,000 10,000.00 

Series D 5th Nov.2015 6 years 10,00,000 10,000.00 

Total 20,04000 20,000 
The o~t ional lv convertible debentures are presented i n  the balance sheet as follows: 

( f i n  Lakhs) 

Particulars As at As at 
3 1  March 2022 31  March 

2021 

Face value of debentures issued 
Less: Equity component of optionally convertible debentures 

, Less: Derivative portion 

5,616.18 
Add: Effect of unwinding cost, gain/ioss on derivative portion and interest paid 

20.10~1.33 

Equity component of optionally convertible debentures 5,031.62 

*The equity component of optionaliy convertible debentures has been presented on the face of the balance sheet 
net of deferred tax of T 1741.34 Lakhs. 



.INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly known as inox Wind infrastructure Services Limited) 
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20b : Preference share capital 
( t i n  Lakhs) 

As at As at 
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

Authorised capital 

20,00,00,000,0.33.% Non-C~nvertible, Non-Cumulative, Partitipating, Redeemable Preference Shares o f t  10 each 

Issued, subscribed and paid up 

20,00,00,000, 0.01% Non-Convertible, Non-Cumulative, Participating, Redeemable Preference Shares of TI0 each 20,000.00 

20,000.00~ 

( a )  Reconciliation c f  t h ~  number of 0.01% Non-Convertible, Non-Cumulative, Partic~patlng, Redeemable Preferer~ce Shares outstanding at the beeinning and at the end of 
the year: 

AS at 

Particulars 3 1  March 2022 
No. of shares (7 in Lakhs) -- 

Outstanding at the beginni~g of the year 

Shares issued during the year 

Outstanding at the end of tha year 

(b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to 0.01% Non-Convertible, Non-Cumulative, Participating, Redeemable Preference Sharer: 

The Company has only one class of preference shares having par va!ue of 9 10 per share. These preferene shares are bearing coupon rate @0.01% and are Non-Convertible, 
Non-Cumulative, i'articiparing, Redeemable Preference Shares (NCPRPS), fully paid-up, at par. These preference shares shall be redeemed at any time within a period of 5 
years from the date of allotment and subscriber to these NCPRPS also has right to demand the redemption at any time within a period of 5 years from the date of allotment. . 
These NCPRPS shall rank for d~vidend in priority to the Equity Shares of the Company and the holde~s of NCPRPS will be entitled to receive a participatory dividend in a 
financial year in which,the Com?any pays dividend to its equity shareholders (Participatory dividend). Such participatory dividend will Le payable at the same rate as the 
dividend paid on the equity shares. NCPRPS shall, in case of winding up, be entitled to rank, as regards repayment of capital and dividend (if declared by the Company), up to 
the commencement of the winding up, in priority to the equity Shares and shall also be entitled !o participation in profits or assets or surplus f~rlds, on the event of winding-up 
which may remain after the entire capital has been repaid. Holders of NCPRPS shall be paid dividend on a non-curnulntive basis. NCPRPS s h ~ l l  not be convertib:e into Equity 
shares, shall not carry any voting rights, shall be redeemable at par st any time within a period nct exceeding 5 (five) yedrs from the date of allotnient us per rhe provisions of 
the Cor~ipanies Act, 7.013. 

(c) Allotment of NCPRPS by way of Conversion 

Dilripp the year ended 31 hlarch 2022, the Company has converted unsecured debt including interest there on anto~mting to t 20.000.00 Lakh into 1.0,00,00,000 number'of 
shares at a price of 4 10/ per share. 

(c) Shares held by holding company 
As at AS at 

Particulars 3 1  March 2022 31 March 2021 

No, cf shares (Tin Lakhs) No. of shares ( t i n  Lakhs) 
- - 

IJIOX Wind limited ~ o , o o , c o , ~ ~  - 20,000.00 - 
20,000.00 i3,00,00,000 

Id) Details of shares held by each shart:ho!dnr I:olding more than 5% shares: - 
As at 3 1  March 2022 As at 3 1  March 2021 

Xame of Shareholder 
NO. of Shares .%of holding . No. of Shares 96 of holding 

lnox Wino Llmited 20,00,00,000 100.00% 

e. Shareholding of Promote'rs as undcr: 

As at 31 March 2022 -- --- 

As at 31 March 2021 
__I--- ----- 7-- 1 

' ~ha rp  l ~c ld  by promoters at the end of the year 1-L % Changes during 

Siiare held by promoters at the end of the year % Changes during 

Promoter Name +--- b~lnd Limited 

~Pror~oter  Name NO .of Share 

20,00,00,000 

2o,oo,uo,ouu 

%of total Share 

100.00% 

4 100.00% 

:he yea 

100.00% 

100.00% 



INOX GREEN ENERGYSEKV~CES LIMITED (formerly Known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 
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- - ( t i n  Lakhs) 

As at As a t  
Particulars 3 1  March 2022 3 1   arch 2021 

21: Other financial liabilities 

Derivative financial liabilities 

Total 

Current 

Interest accrued (refer note 20) 
- on borrowing 
- or] advartce from custcmerr. 
Creditors for capital expenditure 
Consideratior\ payabls for business combinations 
~mpioycc dues payables 
Other Payables 

Total 

22: Provisions 

 on-current 
Provision for employee benefits (Refer Note 38) 

Gratuity 
Compensated absences 

Current 
Provision for employee benefits (Refer Note 38) 

~ r i t u i t y  
Compensated absences 

Total 

23: Other Liabilities 

Nun-current 
Income received in advance 

Total 

Current 
Advances received from customers 
Income received in advance 
Statutory dues and taxer payable 
Other Pavables 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly Known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

(7 In  Lakhs) 

Particulars 
As at As at 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

24: Current borrowings 

Secured borrowings 
From banks 

-Cash Credit (*) 
-Over Draft (**) 
-Working Capital Demand Loand (***) 

Rupee term loans 
-Short Term Loanfl 

Current maturities of non-current borrowings (Refer Note 20) 

Unsecured borrowings 
From related parties 

-Preference Shares(refer note no 206) 
- Inter-corporate deposits from Subsidiary company(#t) 
- Inter-corporate deposits from holding company (U) 

Less: Disclosed under Note No. 21: Other current financial liabilities - 
- Interest accrued 

Total 

Terms of repavment 
'Cash credit Rs 491.39 Lakhs (Previous year Rs 4,953.79 Lakhs) taken from IClCl Bank and.Yes bank carries interest @ MCLR plus 2.15% (as at 31 March 2021 
MCLR Plus 0.35%)against corporate guarantee of Gujaraf Fiuorochemicals Limited and First Pari Passu chargc on Current assets & Second charge on. 
moveable fixed assets of the company. 

** Over Draft facility Nil (Previous year Ks. 18,199.48 Lakhs) taken from fDBl bank Limited carries interest @ MCLR plus 15bps pa against Fixed Deposit of 
Gujarat Fiuorochemicais Limited.' 

*** Working captal demand loan taken during the year amounting to Rs. 10,000 Lakhs carries interest @ MCLR plus 2.50% against corporate guarantee of, 
Gujarat Fi~iorochemicals Limited. 

#Rupee term loans during the year amounting t o  Rs. 1,300 Lakhs carries interest @ MCLR plus 2.00% (as at 3 1  March 2021 MCLR Plus 2.00%) against 
corporate guarantee of Gujarat Fluorochemicals Limited. 

#inter-corporate deposit from holding company is unsecured, repayable on demand and carries interest @ 7% to 12%pa 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly Known us lnox Wind Infrastructure S e ~ i c e s  Limited) 
Notes to  the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

Particulars 
As at As at 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

- 
25: Trade payables 

-Dues to  micro and small enterbrises 66.56 

- Dues t o  others 5,916.75 47,540.62 

Total 
(For Ageing, refer Note 331b) 

The Particulars of  dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises unoer Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Ueveloptnent Act, 2006 (MSMED Act): 

(f i n  Lakhs) 

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21 ---- -- 
Principal amount due to suppliers under MSMEDAct at the year end 66.56 

interest accrued and due to suppliers under MSMED Act above anan t ,  unpaid at the 3.65 
year end 

Payment made to suppliers (other than interest) beyond the appointed date during the 116.67 
year end 

interest paid to suppiicr under section 16 of MSMED Act during the year 

Interest due and payable to suppliers under MSMED Act for payments already made 8.16 

Interest accrued and not paid to suppliers under MSMED Act up to the year enJ 156.41 
. .  

Note:The above information has been disclosed in respect of parties whicll have been idelltitied on the basis of the information available 
with the Company. 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly Known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 3 1  March 2022 

(Tin Lakhs) ' 

2021-22 2020-21 Particulars 

-- 

26: Revenue from Operations 

Sale o f  services 
Other operating revenue 

27: Other Income 

a) Interest income 
Interest income calculated using the effective interest method: 
On fixed deposits with banks 
On Inter-corporate deposits 
On long term investment 
CBG interest income 
On income tax refunds 

b) Other gains 
Net gains on derivative portion of compound financial instrument 

c) Gain on investment carried at FVTPL 
Gain on fair valuation of investment in  Mutual Fund 

d) Other non operating income 
Insurance claims 
Rent Income 
Profit on sale of Investment 
Sundry Liability Written back 
Profit on cancilation of O&M Contract 
Total 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly Known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services ~ imi ted)  
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 3 1  March 2022 

- - (9 in  Lakhs) 

2321-22 2020-21 particulars 

- --- 

28: O&M and Common infrastructure facility expenses 

Construction material consumed 
Equipmcnts & machinery hire charges 
Subcontract~r cost 
O&M repairs 
Legal & professional fees & expenses 
Stores and spares consumed 
Rates & taxes and regulatory fees 
Rent 
Labour charges 
insurance 
Security charges 
Travelling & conveyance 
Miscellaneous expenses 

Total 

28a: Purchases of stock-in-trade 
purchases of stock-in-trade 

. r 

28b: Changes i n  inventories of work i n  progress 

purchases of stock-in-trade 
material consumed 

(Increasc)/Decrease in  work-in-progress 

29: Employee benefits expense 

Salaries and wages 
Contribution to provident and other funds 
Gratuity 
Staff welfare expenses 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly Known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

( f i n  Lakhs) 

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21 

30: Finance costs 

a) Interest on financial liabilities carried at amortised cost 
interest on borrowings 4,357.81 2,535.34 
b) Other interest cost 
Interest on delay payment of Taxes 45.34 

Other Interest 1.21 
c) Other borrowing costs 
Bank Guarantee Charges 247.38 355.98 
Corporate Guarantee Charges 564.38 257.22 

d) Unwinding cost of compound financial instrument 
Total 

31: Depreciation and amortisation expense 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 
Amortisation of intangible assets 

Total 

32: Other Expenses 

Legal and professional fees and expenses 
Directors' sitting fees 
Allowance for expected credit losses 
Liquidated damages 
Loss on Convesion of OCD 
Miscellaneous expenses 

Total 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LlMiTED (formerly Known as lnox Wind  Infrastructure Services Limited) 

Notes t o  the  standalone financial statements for  the year ended 31 March 2022 

33. Ageing Schedule 
(a) Trade Receivable Ageing 
AS at 31  March 2022 

iT in Lakhsl 

good 
(ii) Undisputed Traoe reccivable -which have 
significant increase in credit r isL 
(iii] Undisputed Trade receivatlt -credit 

Total 

5,828.76 

-- 
outstanding for following periods from date of transaction 

As at 31  March 2021 

Particulars 
2-3 Years 

(I) Undisputed Trade receivable considered 4,428.88 495.24 249.79 

impaired 

(Iv) Disputed Trade receivrble considered good 369.93 365.15 
P 

(v) Disputed Trade receivebie -which have 
significant increase ir. credit risk 
r 

More t l l m  3 
years 

3.13 

(iii: Undisputed Trade ~cceivable -credit 

18.18 

Total 

26,031.91 

r- Particulars 

ki)sputed Trade receivable considered 

(b) Trade Payable Ageing 
AS at 3 1  Marc11 2022 

265.42 

Iimpa~red 

i(id) Disputed lrade receivable considered good 

Cv) Disputed Trade recekab'e -which have 
significant increase in credit risk li (0 Trade receivabic -credit impaired 

Outstanding for following periods from date of transnction 

221.53 

288.74 

As at 31 March 2021 

1,740.21 

More than 3 
years 

10,578.93 

Total 
Outstanding for following periods from date of  transaction 

hi) MSME - I I I - 
i(il)rs 2,698.13 1 1,829.14 ( - 734.80 
((ill] Pisputed d~r!s-MjU,F 1 1 

Less than 6 
month 

3,644.49 

179.51 

-- 

1-2 Years 

7,369.40 

6 months -1 Year 

2,537.28 

More than 3 

654.68 

2-3 years 

' 1,901.81 

351.80 

--- -- - -- - ears 
I 

2-3 Years Less than lYear  

5,916.75 

--+ 

1-2 Years 

237.97 

~ 

0.31 

-, 

--.-- 
1,050.31 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly Known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services ~ imi ted)  
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31  March 2022 

(c) Ratios 

Disclosure of Accouting Ratios as required by the Schedule lil. X Changes in Ratios between 31  March 2022 and 31  March 2021 
are not comparable due to Discontinued Operation (as refer in Note 47) 

a) Current Ratio: Current Assets divided by Current Liability 
2021-22 2020-21 Particualrs 

31,075.43 94,730.15 Current Assets 
67.503.56 2,09,642.16 Current Liability . --,-- 

0.46 0.45 Ratio 
%Change from previous year 1.88% 

b) Debt Equity ratio=Total debt divided by Totai equitywhere total debt refer t o  sum of current 81 non current borrowing 
Particualrs 2021-22 2020-21 

Totai Debt 69,617.05 1,26,608.37 
90 716.22 30,738.33 --,. - -  Total Equity 0.77 11.79 

Ratio 
%Change from previous year -93.49% 

c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio (DSCR)=Earning available for debt services divided by total interest and principle repayments 

Particualrs 2021-22 2020-21 

Net operating income 4,553.56 12,211.85 
Debt Service 13,150.00 22,734.67 

principal Repayment 4,357.81 ' 8,815.14 
Interest 17,507.81 31,549.81 

0.26 0.39 Ratio 
-32;81% %Change from previous year 

d) Return on Equity Ratio=Net profit after tax divided by Equity 
Particualrs 2021-22 31  March 2021 

(440.12) (7,191.72) Net profit 
50,727.28 10,738.35 Total Equity -0.87% -66.97% 

Ratio -98.70% 
%Change from previous year 

e) Inventory turnover ratio-Cost of materials consumed divided by average inventory 
2021-22 31  March 2021 Particualrs 

cost of material consumed 4,829.57 12,701.52 

Average inventory 1,710.07 32,730.60 
2.82 0.39 Ratio 

%Change from previous year 627.77% 

f) Trade Receivable turnover ratio= Sales divided by average receivables 
2021-22 31  March 2021 Particualrs 

17,399.58 24,360.24 Sales 
Average revcivabies 11,890.86 24,423.75 

1.17 1.00 Ratio - 
%Change from previous year 17.15% 

g) Trade Payable turnover ratio=Purchase divided by average tradc payables 
Particualrs 2021-22 31  March 2021 

6.272.92 12,679.93 Purchase 
26,761.97 44,511.54 Avcrage trade payable 0.23 0.28 

Ratio 
-17.72% %Change from previous year 

h l  Net capital turnover ratio- Revenue from operations divided by Net working capital whereas net workirg capital= current 
assets-currents liabilities 

2021-22 31  March 2021 Particualrs - 17,399.58 24,360.24 
Revenue frorn operations (36,428.13) 

(1,14,912.01) Net Working capital -47.76% -21.20% 
Ratio 175.31% 
%Change from previous Year 



i) Net profit ratio-Net profit after tax divided by Revenue from Operations 
2021-22 3 1  March 2021 Particualrs 

(440.12) (7,191.72) Net Profit 
17.399.58 24,360.24 ~evenue from operations -2.53% 

-29.52% Ratio 
%Change frompre~iolrs year -91.43% --- -- 

j) Return on capital employed=Earning before interest and tases(~~1~)divided by Capital Fmployed 
Particualrs 2021-22 - 31 March 2021 

4,553.56 3,517.51 EBlT 
1,60,332.30 35,656.91 Cap:tai employed 2.84% 9.86% 

Ratio 
-71.21% %Change from previous year - 

k) Return on investment= Net profit divided by Net Worth 
2021-22 3 1  March 2021 Pal ticualrs 

(440.12) (-1,191.72i Net profit 
90,716.22 10,738.35 Net worth 

-0.49% -66.97% Ratio 
%Change from previous year --- -99.28% 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly Known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

34. lncome tax recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 

(Tin Lakhs) 

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21 

Current tax 
In respect of the current year 
Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit 

Deferred tax 
In respect of the current year 
Taxation pertaining to earlier years 

Total income tax expense recognised in the current year 

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows: 

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21 

Profit/(loss) before tax for the year from continuing operations (661.35) (771.55) 

profit/(Loss) before the tax for the year from discontinued 
operations 

lncome tax expense calculated at 34.944% (2,862.82) (3,836.09) 

Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable 
profit 

Income tax expense recognised in statement of profit and loss (2,488.15) (3,786.10) 

The tax rate used for the year ended 31 March 2022 and for the year ended 31 March 2021, in reconciliations above is the 
corporate tax rate of 34.944% payable by corporate entities in India on taxable profits under the Indian tax laws. 

Provision for tax in the standalone financial statement for the year ended 31  March 2022 and year ended 31 March 2021 are only 
provisional in the respective years and subject to change at the time of filing of lncome Tax Return based on actual 
addition/deduction as per provisions of lncome Tax Act 1961. 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly Known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 
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35. Earnings per share 

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21 

Basic earninn/[Joss) wer share - 

Profit/(loss) for the year from the continued operations (T in Lakhs) (440.12) (499.55) 

Profit/(loss) for the year from the dis-continued operations (T in Lakhs) (5,264.32) (6,691.40) 

Weighted average number of equity shares used in calculation of basic 
and diluted EPS (Nos) 

Nomir~al value of each share (in 7 )  10.00 10.00 
Earnings earnings/(loss) per share (T) for continuing operations [Face 

(0.22) (0.42) 
value of Rs.10 per share] 
Earnings earnings/(loss) per share (7) for discontinued operations [Face 

(2.67) (5.51) 
\~alue of Rs.10 per share] 
Diluted Farnings earnings/(loss) per share (7)  for continuing operations 

(0.22) (0.42) 
[Face valye of Rs.10 per share] 
Diluted Earnings earnings/(loss) per share (7) for discontinued operations 

(2.67) (5.51) 
[Face value of Rs.10 per share] 

Note: There is no anti-dilutive effect for the year ended 31 March 2022 and for the year ended 3 1  March 2021 respectively, hence Diluted 
earning /(loss) per share is same. 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly Known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 
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36. Capital Management 
For the purpose of the Company's capital Management, capital includes issued equity share capital, security premium and all other .- 

equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. 
. The Company's capital Management objectives are: 

to ensure the Company's ability to continue as a going concern 

to  provide an adequate return to  shareholders by pricing products and services commensurately with the level of risk. 

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of 

the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, 

return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total 

equity.'The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and bther payables, less cash and cash 

equivalents, excluding discontinued operations, if any. 

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as follows: 

Non-current borrowings 
Current maturities of long term debt 
Current borrowings 
interest accrued and due on borrowings 
Total debt 
Less: Cash and bank balances (excluding bank deposits 
kept as lien) 
Net debt 
Total Equity 
Net debt to equity ratio 

(Tin Lakhs) 

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital Management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that i t  meets 

financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. No changes were 

made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended 31 March 2022. 

As at 
31 March 2021 Particulars 

As at 
31 March 2022 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES Lli"4lTED (formerly Known as lnox Wind infrastructure Services Limited) 
Notes to  the standalone financial statements for the year ended 3 1  March 2022 

37. Financial Instrument 

a) Financial assets 
Measured at amortised cost 
(a) Cash and bank balances 
(b) Trade receivables 
(c) Loan; 
(d) investments 
(e) Other financial assets 

(i) Categories of financial instruments (Tin Lakhs) 

(b) Financial liabilities 
Measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 
Other non current derivative financial liabilities 

Measured at amortised cost 
(a) Borrowings 
(b).Trade payables 
(c) Other financial liabilities 

r 

Sub 

As at 
31 March 2022 

As at 
31 March 2021 

7,534.37 
6,820.31 
4,062.99 
6,508.91 

52,534.24 

The carrying amount reflected above represents the Company's maximum exposure to  credit risk for such financial assets. Investment in 
subsidiaries and associates are classified as equity investment have been accounted as at historic cost. Since these are scope out of Ind AS 109 
for the purpose o f  measurement, the same have not been disclosed in the above table. 

3,197.44 
22,961.40 

4,205.28 
6,393.89 

'50,800.99 

P 

Sub total 
Total Financial Liabilities 

(ii) Financial risk management 
The Company's corporate finance function provides services to  the business, coordinates access to financial market, monitors and manages the 

financial risits relating to  the operations o f  the Company through internal risk reports'which analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of the 

total 

77,122.31 
77,122.31 

risk. rhese risks include market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and other p:.ice risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. 

1,99,322.22 
1,99,802.45 

(iii) Market Risk 
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash ffows of a firancial instrument will fluctuate because of change in market price. The . 

77,46032 

69,617.20 
5,916.75 
1,587.76 

Company aoes not have any foreign currency exposure, hence is not subject to  foreign currency risks. Further, the Company does not have any 

87,559.00 

480.23 

1,22,373.45 
47,607.18 
29,341.59 

investments other than strategic investments in subsidiaries, so the company is not subject to  other price risks. Market risk comprise of interest 

rate risk and other price risk. 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly Known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 
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37. Financial Instrument 

(iii)(a) Interest rate risk management 

Interest rate risk refers to  the possibility that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
market interest rate. The Company is exposed to  interest rate risk because it borrows funds at both fixed and floating interest rates. The risk 
is managed by the Company by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings. 

lnterest rate sensitivity analysis 

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the exposure to  interest rates for floating rate liabilities at the end of the 
reporting period. For floating rate liabilities, a 50 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to'key 
management personnel and represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates. 

If ir,terest r.ates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the Company's profit for the year ended 
31 March 2022 would decrease/increase by S 95.77 Lakhs net of tax (for the year ended 3 1  March 2021 would decrease/increase by 7 
109.59 Laklls net of tax) . This is rnainly attributable to the Company's exposure to  interest rates on its variable rate borrowings. 

(iii)(b) Other price risks 

The Company's non listed equity securities as susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future values of the 
investment securities. Management monitors the investment closely to mitigate its impact on profit and cash flows. 

(iv) Credit risk management 

Credit risk refers to  risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to  the Company, Credit risk 
arises primarily from financial assets such as trade receivables, other balances with banks, loans and other receivables: 

a) Trade receivables 

Credit risk arising from trade receivables is managed in accordance with the Company's established policy, procedures and control relating 
to  customer credit risk management. The -Company is providing O&M services and is having long term contracts with such customers: 
Accordingly, risk of recovery of such amounts is mitigated. Customers who represents more than 5% of the total balance of Trade Receivable , 

for the year ended 31  March, 2022 is S 3,542.77 lakhs (for the year ended 3 1  March 2021 is Rs. 13,236.81 Lakhs) are due from 6 major 
customers (Prcviuos year 6 major customers) who are reputed parties. All trade receivables are reviewed and assessed for default at each 
reporting period. 

For trade receivables, as a practical expedient, the Company computes credit loss allowance based on a provision matrix. The provision 
matrix is prepared based on historically observed default rates over the expected life of trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking 
estimates. The provision matrix at the end of the reporting period is as follows and during the year the Company has changed the provision 
matrix considering the long term outstanding and credit risk. 

- 

Ageing 

0-1 Ycar 
1-2 Year 
2-3 Year 
3-5 Year 
Above 5 Year 

Exp?cted credit loss (%) 

2021-2022 

1% 
10% 
15% 

25% 

100% 

2020-2021 

1% 
5% 
10% 
15% 
100% 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly Known as inox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 
Notes to  the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

37. Financial Instrument 

Age of receivables 
(T in  Lakhs) (7 i n  Lakhs) 

1-2 Year 
2-3 Year 515.21 2,139.78 
3-5 Year 8,354.96 

Movement in the expected credit loss allowance : 
(Tin Lakhs) (Tin Lakhs) 

Above 5 Year 

Particulars 

I 2,224.28 

b) Loans and Other Receivables 

Gross trade receivables 

Balance at beginning o f  the year 
Movement in expected credit loss allowance - further allowance 
Movement in expected credit loss allowance - on account of transfer of CPC Business 
Movement in expeckd credit loss allowance - amount written off/ (amount written 
back) -- 
Balance for the year endea 3 1  March 2022 

The Conlpany applies expected credit losses (ECL) model for measurement and recoanilio~i of loss allowance on the loans given by the 
Company Lo the external parties. FCL is the difference between all contractual cash flcws that are due to  the Company in accordance with 
the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive (i.e., all cash silortfalls], discounted at the original efFective interest 
rate. 

7,068.96 1 27,090.25 

The Company determines i f  there has been a significant increase in credit risk of the financial asset since initial recognition. If the credit risk 
of such ascets has not increased significantly, an amount equal to  12-month ECL is measured and recognized as loss allowance, However, i f  
credit risk has increased significantly, an amount equal to lifetime ECL is measured and recognized as loss allowance. 

*Expected credit loss (ECL) is not ca!culated for Balance outstanding with Group Companies. 

4,128.85 
146.96 

(4,027.15) 

248.66 

. L 

12.month ECL are a portion of the lifetime ECL which result from default events that are possible within 12 months f r o v  the reporting date. 
Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial ascec. 

2,294.94 
1,995.91 

162.00 

4,128.85 

ECL are measured in a manner that they reflect unbiased and probability weighted amounts deternlincd by a range of outcomes, takirg into 
account the time value of money and other reasonable information available as a result of past events, current conditioi~> and forecasts of 
future economic conditions. 

ECL inlpairment loss allowance (o; reversal) recognized d u r i ~ g  the peri3d is reccgnized as income/expense in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss under the head Other Income/Other expenses respectively. 

c) Other financial assets 
Credit risk arising from other I;a!ances with banks is limited because the counterparties are banks. 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly Known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

37. Financial Instrument 

(v) Liquidity Risk Management 

.. Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the committee o f  board of directors of the Company and its holding 
company, which has established an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Company's short, medium 
and long-term funding and, liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, 
banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the, maturity 
profiles of financial assets and liabilities. 

(vi) Liquidity risk tables 

The following tables detail the Company's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agrced repayment 
periods. The tables have becn drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the 
Company can be required to  pay. The tables include both interest and principal cash flows, To the extent that interest flows arc floating rate, , 

the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curves at the end of the reporting period. The contractual maturity is based on the 
earliest date on which the Company may be required to  pay. 

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities including estimated interest payments as at 3 1  . 

March 2021: 

a) Non-Derivative Financial Liabilities : 
The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities including estimated interest 
payments as at 3 1  March 2022: 

(4 in  Lakhs) 

. 

' 

(T in  Lakhs) 

Total 

69,617.80 
5,916.75 
1,587.76 

77,122.31 

Particulars 

As at 3 1  March 2022 
Borrowings 
Trade payables 
Other financial liabilities 
Derivative financial liabilities 
Total 

Total 

1,22,373.45 
17,607.18 
29,341.59 

480.23 

1,99,801.45 

1 to 5 year 

16,425.96 

16,425.96 

Less than 1 
year 

53,191.84 
5,916.75 
1,587.76 

60,696.35 

5 years and 
above 

5 years and 
above 

1 to  5 year 

24,918.56 

480.23 
25,398.79 

Particulars 

As at 3 1  March 2021 
Borrowings 
Trade payables 
Other financial liabilities 
Derivative financial liabilities 
Total 

Less than 1 

year 

97,454.89 
47,607.18 
29,341.59 

1,74,403.66 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly Known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 
Notes t o  t h e  standalone financial statements for the  year ended 31 March 2022 

37. Financial Instrument 

(vii) Fair Value o f  the  Comp~ny's  financial assets and financial liabilities that  are measured a t  fair value on  a recurring basis: 

(viii) Fair value o f  financial assets and flnancial liabilities that  are no t  measured a t  fair value (but fair value disclosures are 
required) 

' (4 i n  lakhs) 

The carrying amount o f  financial assets and financial liabilities measured a t  amortised cost in  the financial statements are a 
reasonable approximation o f  their fair values since the Company does not  anticipate that the carrying amounts would be 
significantly different from the values that would eventually b s  received or settled, 

Relationship of 
unobse~vable inputs to 

fair value 

(480.23) Level2 curves at the end of the reporting 
(Refel - 1 1 1 period) and contract interest rates, 

discounted at a rate that reflects the 
credit risk of various counterparties. 

During the period, there were no transfers between Level 1 and level 2 

Significant 
unobservable 

input(s) 

Financial assets/ 
(Financial liabilities) 

(8) Optionally 

Fair Value 
Hierarchy 

Valuation Technique(s) &key inputs 
used 

Discounted cash flow. Future cash 
flcws are estimated based on forward 
exchange rates (from observable yield 

'Fair Value as at 

31 March 
2022 

31 March 
2021 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly Known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 3 1  March 2022 

38. Employee benefits: 

(a) Defined Contribution Plans 
The Company contributes to the Government managed provident and pension fund for all qualifying employees. 

Contribution t o  provident fund of S 80.67 Lakhs (31 March 2021 : S 85.38 Lakhs ) is recognized as an expense and included in 
"Contribution to provident and other funds" in  Statement of Profit and Loss. 

(b) Defined Benefit Plans: 

The Company has defined benefit plan for payment of gratuity to  all qualifying employees. It Is governed by the Payment of Gratuity 
Act, 1972. Under this Act, an employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to the specified bcneFt. The level of 
benefits provided depends on the employee's length of service and salary at retirement age. Tne Company's defined benefit plan is 
unfunded. 

There are no other post retirement benefits provided by the Company. 

The actuarial valuation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out as at 3 1  March 2022 by M js  Charan 
Gupta Consultants Pvt Ltd, Fellow of the lnstitute of the Actuaries of India (for 31 March 2021 by M/s Charan Gupta Consultants Pvt 
Ltd, Fellow of the lnstitute of the Actuaries of India). The present value of the defined benefit obligation, the ralated current service 
cost and past service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method. 

(Tin Lakhs) 
I I 

Acquisition adjustment In 

Current service cost 34.28 35.66 
Benefits paid (16.17) (12.03) 
Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligations (36.84) (22.44) 

139.18 3 47.99 

Movement i n  the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows : 

Particulars 

Opening defined benefit obligation 

I 

Current service cost 34.28 1 35.66 1 

Gratuity 

Components of amounts recognised in profit or loss and other comprehensive income are as under: 
(T in  Lakhs) 

As At 3 1  March 2022 

147.99 

As At 31 March 2021 

137.63 

As At 3 1  March 2021 Gratuity 

Interest cost 
Acquisition adjustment In  
Amount recognised in  profit or loss 
Actuarial (gain)/loss 
a) arisingfrom changes in  financial assumptions 
b) arising from experience adjustments 
Amount recognised i n  other comprehensive income 

As At 3 1  March 2022 

9.92 

4420 

(6.44) 
(30.41) 
(36.84) 

7.36 

9.17 

44.83 

(0.57) 
(21.87) 
(22.44) 
22.39 



li4OX GREEN ENERGY SERVICFS LIMITED (formerly Known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 Marcli 2022 

38. Employee benefits: 

Estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant 
factors such as supply and demand in the employment market. 

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations of gratuity ate as follows: 

These plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as interest rate risk and salary risk. 
a) Interest risk: a decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability. 

b) Salary risk: the present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference t o  the future salaries of plan 
participants. As such, a variation in the expected rate of salary increase of the plan participants will change the plan liability. 

As At 3 1  March 2021 

6.70% 
8.00% 
5.00% 

IALM (2012-14) 
Ultimate Mortality 
Table 

Particulars 

Discount rate (per annum) 
Expected rate of salary increase 
Employee attrition rate 

Mortality 

Sensitivity analysis 

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of defined obligation are discount ra:e and expected salary increase. The 

, sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes cf the respective assumptions occurine at the 
end of the reporting period, while holding ail other assumptions constant. 

As At 31 March 2022 

7.13% 
8.00% 
5.00% 

IALM (2012-14) 
Ultimate Mortality 
Table 

If salary escalation rate is increased by 0.50% 
if salary escalation rate is decreased by 0.50% I- 

---- 

Particulars 

If discount rate is increased by 0.50% 
if discount rate is decreased by 0.50% 

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obl'gation as i t  is 
unlikely that the change in assun~ption would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated. 
Furthermore, in  presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated 
using the projected [:nit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined 
benefit obligation liability recognised in the balance sheet. 

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years. 

Gratuity 

Year ended 
3 1  ~ g r c h  2022 

(7.27) 
7.91 

Year ended 
3 1  March 2021 

(7.42) 
8.12 



lNOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly Known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

38. Employee benefits: 

Discounted Expected outflow i n  future years (as provided in  actuarial report) 
(Tin Lakhs) 

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

Expected outflow in 1st Year 
Expected outflow in 2nd Year 
Expected outflow in 3rd Year 
Expected outflow in 4th Year 6.77 
Expected outflow in 5th Year 6.31 5.92 
Expected outflow in 6th to 10th Year 106.70 105.59 - 

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation for the year ended 31 March 2022 reporting period is 14.96 years (31 
March 2021 : 14.01 years). 

(c) Other long term employment benefits: 
Annual leave &Short term leave 

The liability towards compensated absences (annual and short term leave) for the year ended 31 March 2022 based on actu~riai 
valuation carried out by using projected accrued benefit method resulted in decrease in  liability by S 6.59 iakhs (31 March 2021: 
increase in liability by 4 5.48 lakhs), which is included in the employee benefits in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations of compensated absences are as follows: 

Particulars ' 31 March 2021 

Discount rate 
Expected rate of salary increase 
Employee attrition rate 

Mortaility rate 

8:00% 
5.00% 

IALM (2012-14) 
Ultimate Mortality 

8.00% 
5.00% 

IALM (2012-14) 
Ultimate Mortality 





INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED [formerly Known as lnox W ind  Infrastructure Services Limited) 

Notes t o  t he  standalone financial statements f o r  the year ended 31  March 2022 

39. Related Party Disclosures: 

ii. Other Related parties with whom there are transacticns daringthe year 

Key Management Personnel (KMP) 
- Mr. Vineet Valentine Davis - Whole-time director ( ~ $ 0  18 May 2020) 

Mr. Vineet Valentine Davis - Non executive director (w.e.f. 19 May 2020 ) 

Mr. Manoj Shambhu Dixit - Whole-time director 
Mr. Mukesh Manglik - Non executive director (uoto 18 May 2020) 
Mr. Mukesh Manglik - Whole-time director (w.e.f. 19 May 2020 ) 
Mr. Shanti Prasad Jain - Non executive director 
Mr. VSankaranarayanan - Non executive director 
Mrs. Bindu Saxena- Non executive director (w.e.f 14 DecemSer,2021) 

Fellow Subsidaries 

1. Marut Shakti Energy India Limited (w.e.f. 29 October, 2021)** 
3. Sarayu Wind Power (Tallimadugula) Private Limited (w.e.f. 29 October, 2021)** 
5. Sarayu Wind Power (Kondapuram) Private Limited (w.e.f. 29 October, 2021)" 

7. Resco Global Wind Service Private Limited (w.e.f. 19 October, 2021)** 

2. Satviki Energy Private Limited (w.e.f. 29 October, 2021)** 
4. Vinirrmaa Energy Generation Private Limited (w.e.f. 29 October, 202l)** 
6. RBRK Investments Limited (w.e.f. 29 October, 202l)** 

8. Gujarat Fluorochemicals Limited ("GFCL") 
(earlier known as lnox Fluorochemicals Limited) 

'The Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad Bench ("NCLT") vide its order dated 2S~'anuary 2021 has approved a Composite Scheme of Arrangement (the "Scheme") between GFL Limited, lnox Renewables Limited and 
lnox Wind Energy Limited (wholly-owned subsidiaries of GFL Limited) as detailed below: 
a) Part A -  Amalgamation of lnox Renewables Limited into SFL Limited w.e.f. O i  April 2020 and 
b) Part B - Demerger of the Renewable Energy Business (as more particularly defined in the Scheme) and strategic investment of GFL Limited i n  lnox Wind Limited and other assets and liabilities pertaining to the said business into lnox 
Wind Energy Limited, a newly incorporated company for the purpose of vesting of the Renewab!e Energy Business w.e.f. 0 1  July 2020. 

The aforesaid Scheme become effective from 09 February2021. Upon the said Scheme becoming effective, lnox Wind Limited has become the subsidiary company of lnox Wind Energy Limited w.e.f. OlJuly 2020. 

** Refet to note 47 

***Various binding agreements entered i ~ t o  with party has ceased to  exist w.E.~. 0 1  January 2021 as per term and conditions of the agreement. The Company has gained control over such company i n  terms of Ind AS 110: Consolidated 
Financial Statements. Therefore, the Company has accounted for investment i n  such company as investment in 'subsidiary' from the date of gaining control. 

# IGESL has formed above wholly-owned subsidiaries for the purpose of carrying out business of generation and sale o f  wind energy. IGESL has entered into various binding agreements with a party to, inter-alia, transfer the shares of 
such companies at a future date and defining rights of the respective parties. In view of the provisions of these binding agreements, it is assessed that IGESL has ceased to  exercise control over such companies i n  terms o f  Ind AS 110: 
Consolidated Financial Statements. Therefore, IGESL has accounted for investment in such companies as investment in 'associate' from the dare of cessation of control. 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SEWICES LIMITED (fcrmc:Iy Known zs I r o x  Wind Infrastrucruie Senices ~ i m i t e d )  

Koies t o  t he  standalone financial staterneinh f o r t k c  year e ~ d e d  3 1  March 2022 

39. Reiated Party Disclosures: ( t i n  Laths) 

Total 
Particulars 

2021-2022 

Feilow Subsidiaries 

A) Transactions during the year 

Sale of goods and sernces 
lnox Wind Limited 

GFL Limited - 
lnox Wind Energy Limited 
Gujzrat F1:orochemicals Limited 
Marut Shakti Energy India Limited 

Wind One Renergy Limited 
Wind Two Renergy Private Limited 

Wind Five Renergy Limited 
Wind Tnree Renerey Limited 

Hoiiing/Subsidi2ry companies 

2020-2021 2021-2022 

Associates 

I 

5,320.91 2,365.62 2,365.62 5,323.91 18.06 
18.C6 

43.18 I 55.06 43.18 55.06 
514.14 539.85 514.14 539.85 

433.12 357.21 
357.21 125.02 308.09 6.06 55.61 

- .  6.06 55.61 
6.06 253.79 6.06 253.79 
5.88 160.82 5.88 160.82 
6.06 33.63 6.06 33.63 

836.32 836.32 

2020-2021 2C21-2022 

I 

1 2021-2022 2020-2021 

=GI,~~I wind s e w - 7  1,291.40 
1,291.40 Wind Four Renergy Private Limited 

1,140.33 ! 1,140.33 S V i r z n i  Wind Energy Private Limited 
514.14 8,337.78 5,105.34 6,812.52 $,087.35 24.06 503.85 . 1,501.1s 

2020-2021 

R3RK Investments Limited 

~ini:rmaa Energy Generation Private Limited 
Sstviki Enzrgy Private Limited 
Sarayu Wind Power (Kondapuram) Private Limitxi 
5aray1.1 Wind power (~allimadugula) Private Limited 

Total 

Purchase of goods and services 

lnox Wind Limited 

3.09 0.24 0.24 0.02 0.07 0.09 0.24 
0.24 0.02 0.07 0.08 C.24 
0.24 0.02 0.06 0.08 0.24 

0.02 0.06 0.24 
0.08 0.24 

0.24 0.02 0.06 0.42 1.20 
- I 0.12 G.30 1.20 - 

0,408.15 
9,408.15 

108.16 108.16 , 
G u j a r a t F l u o r o c h e m i c a l s  Limited _ I 1,236.77 

------------------- 
RBRK investments Limited 1,236.77 

1,236.77 9,408.15 Total 

RenVExpenses paid 
Gujarat Fluorochemicais Limited 

' Total 

108.16 

- .  

I 

9,408.15 1,344.93 

! 98,789.76 52,228.49 
I 1,000.00 - I 

99,789.76 52,228.49 - 

3.01 
3.01 

11n:c-rsorporate deposiD taken 

IRCX Wind Limited 

I Tstal 

I 

s.31 1 
2.01 

I I 
I 

98,739.76 1 52,228.49 I 
I I 

1 Wind Four Renergy Privare LimiteC I 1.C00.00 ( 
99,799.76 1 52,Z28.<9 1 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly Known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 

Notes t3 t he  standalone financial statcmen:s for  t he  year ended 31 March 2022 

39. Re!ated Party Disclosures: 
(T in Lakhs) 

Total Particulars ~oldingJSubsidiary companies Associates Fellow Subsidizries 

I 

Inter-corporate deposits refunded 
lnox Wind L~miteo 

lnox W ~ n d  Energy L~n i ted - 

W ~ n d  Four Renergy Prlvate L~rn~ted 

Total 

Inter Corporate Depos~t converted t o  Equity Share 
lnox W ~ n d  L~mlted 
Total 

Optionally Convertrble Debentures converted t o  Equ~ty Share 
lnox Wlnd Lim~ted 

Total 

Issue of Non-Convertible, Non-Curnulatwe, Participating, 
Redeemable Preference Shzres 

lnox Wind L~mttea 

47,357 31 

10,000 00 

1.41 

57,358.72 

39,187 57 

39,187.57 

20,COO 03 
20,000.00 

20,000 00 

20,000.00 

Nani Virani Wlnd Energy Private L~rnited 

Total 

A) Transactions ouring the year 

Investment i n  Equity Share during the year 
Nan1 V~rani Wlnd Energy Private Llm~ted 

Wind Four Renergy Pr~vate L ~ m ~ t e d  
Total 

Advance received back 

lnox Wlnd Energy Limited 

l,lOO.OO 

743.40 

740.40 

I 

41,197.84 

41,197.84 

10,000 00 
10,000.00 

6,390 30 

6,390.00 

2,138.00 

2,138.00 

- I 2,309.03 

47,357 31 

10,000 00 

1 41 

57,358.72 

39,187.57 

39,187.57 

20,000.00 

- 20,000.00 

20,000.00 

20,000.00 

- 

- 1 2,009.03 Total 

2,009.03 
2,009.03 

41,197.84 

41,197.84 

10,000 00 
10,000.00 

- 

6,390 00 

6,390.00 

2,138 00 

740.40 
2,878.40 



IXOX GREEN 5NEaGY SERVICES LIMITED [ i o r ze r l y  Knswn as lnox W ind  lnfrastruaure Seruicer ~ i m i t e d )  

~~t~~ to the standafonefinancia\ s;aten;enS fo r  t he  year ended 31 March 2022 

Fellow Subsidiaries Total 

39. Related Pa,Q Discl05bres: 

Particulars -__ .- I 
/ 2021-2622 2020-2021 2021-2022 $1 . 1 2020-2021 2021-2022 

2021-2322 

HoldingJSuSsidiary ccmpanies 

L _ -  

inter-corporate depozis given 
Marut Shakti Energy india Limited 548.79 54.39 

Satviki Energy Private Limited '- 
Wind power (Talllmadugula) F r i v~ te  Limited 

Vinirrmaa Energy Generation Private Limited 
sarayu wind Power (Kondapuram) Private Limited 

RBRK investments Limited 
Wind Four Renergy Private Limited 
Vasuprada Renewables Private Limited 

Tempest Wind Energy Private Limited ' - 
Aliento Wind Energy Private Limited 

. 

Flutter Wind Energy Private Limited 6.06 - 
Flurry Wind Energy Private Limited 1.42 6.27 

3.66 Vuelta Wind Energy Private Limited 1.61 -I.-- 1.45 6.2C 
Suswind Energy Private iimited I _ 

1.47 1 0.89 
1.67 I 2.38 
3.05 i 2.24 

0.65 - i Rlpudsman Eccrgy Private Xmited 3.57 ! 
Vibhav Energy Private Limited 0.7: 1 0.13 

Vigodi Wind Energy Private Limited 1.37 1 19.C2 - I -7 
Haroda Wind Energy Private Limited 3.83 . 18.64 1 

/ R~vaoar Wlnd Energy Private Limited 1.27 19.28 
I I 1.44. Khatiyu.Wind Energy Private Limited ' 19.28 

54.39 
0.89 

2.38 
2.24 
1.72 

834.43 
242.59 

0.15 
3.67 
6.23 
6.C6 
627 
3.56 
6.20 
0.65 

- I 

241.99 

. 

I ! 
1 

2.62 
42.19 
79.43 

Nan: Virani Wind Energy Private Limited 1 

0.13 

19.02 
18.54 
19.28 

19.28 
19.48 
0.03 

1,267.39 

2.52 

0.01 
0.01 
0.01 
0.01 

170.69 

- .  

- 

I 

-------------A:- 

- 

__------p- 

1.72 
834.43 

0.60 

I ?.,200.39 
2,373.64 696.33 1,025.40 241.99 1 

551.31 
1.48 
1.48 
3.06 
2.63 

212.88 
79.43 

0.78 
1.66 

2.25 
1.53 

1.42 

1.61 
1.45 
0.57 
C.71 
1.37 
0.83 
1.27 
1.44 

2,2GO.S4 
3,069.97 

0.78 1 0.15 
1.66 5.67 f -- 
1.50 6.23 -d--------- 

.Total 



INOX GREEN ENEAGY SERVlCES LIMITED (formcrly Known as lnor  Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 

Notes t o  the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

(T In Lakhs) 
33. Relatzd Party Drsclosures: 

Total 

2021-2022 

1 2 7  
571 55 

0 04 
20 83 

0 26 

4 98 
598.93 

1,535 00 
473.42 

0 74 
11 49 

946 43 

392.94 
3,360.02 

22 19 

Fellow 

2021-2022 

1 2 7  

4.98 
6.25 

946 43 

946.43 

22.19 

693 52 

693.52 

Particulars 

A) Transactions durlng the year 

Inter-corporate deposits received back - -  - 

Maru; Shaktt Energy lndla Ltm~ted 
RBRK Investments Ltm~ted 
Wlnd One Renergy Llrnlted 

Wlnd Three Renergy Lirn~ted 

2020-2021 

50 60 

15.50 

2 21 
2 21 

19 78 
2 21 
2 21 

94.72 

3,225 85 
1,036 71  

1,674 90 

174 52 

525 48 
6,637.46 

I 

Associates 

2021-2022 

0 04 
20 83 
0 26 -- - 

~- - - 

21.13 

Subsidiaries 

2020-2021 

1,674 90 

1,674.90 

455.53 
101.11 
556.64 

2020-2021 

Gujarat Fluorochem~cals L~mlted 
GFL Lim~ted A- 

\ 

Hoiding/Substd~ary 

2021-2022 

571 55 

40.80 
693.52 

40.80 

companies 

2020-2021 

50 60 
15 50 

455 53 
101.11 

Total //chn- -. 

2 21 
2 21 

19.78 
2 21 
2 2 1  

94.72 

3,225 85 
1,036 71  

174 52 
525.48 

4,962.56 

V~god~ Wlnd Energy Prlvate L~mited 
Haroda Wlnd Energy Prlvate Lrmlted 
Nan1 Viran~ Wlnd Energy Prlvate Llm~ted 
Khat~yu Wind Energy Private hmlted 
Ravapar Wlnd Energy Prlvate Llrnlted , 

Total 

Interest paid 
lnox Wind Llmlted 
-Cn triter-corporate deposlt 
-On debentures 
-On preference shares 
W~nd Four Renergy Prlvate Limited 

Gujarat Fluorochem~cals L~m~ted 
-On ~nter-corporate deposlt 
-On Cap~tal advance 

734.32 1 556.641 

pP 

-- 
571.55 

1,535 00 
473.42 

0 74 
11 49 

I GFL L~rn~ted 
-On 1n:er-corporate deposlt 

-On ~nter-corporate deposit 
Total 

392.94 
2,4U.59 

Guarantee Charges Received I 
Rescc Global Wlnd Service Prlvate bmited 
- 

Guarantee Charges paid 1 
lnox W~nd Energy L~rnlted 40 80 





INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES IJN~~TED (formerly Kncwn as I n o x w i n d  Infrastructure Service: Limited) 

Notes t o  t he  standalone financial statements f o r  t he  year ended 3 1  March 2022 

( t i n  Lakhs) 39. Related Party Disclosures: 

Particulars . 

A) Transactions during the year 

Reimbursement of expenses received/payments made on behalf 
by the company 

lnox Wind Limited 
lnox Wind Energy Limited 

Wind One Renergy Limited 
Wind Two Renergy Private Limited 

Wind Five Renergy Limited 
Wind Three Renergy Limited 
Waft Energy Private Limited 
Nani Virani Wind Energy Private Limited 

Total 

Reimbursement o f  expenses paid/payments made on behalf of 

the company 

lnox Wind Limited 
Gujarat Fluorochemicals Limited 
Wind Two Renergy Private Limited 
Resco Giobal Wind Service Private Limited 

lnox Wind Energy Limited 
Nani Virani Wind Energy Private Limited 

Wa? Energy Private Limited , 

 total^ 

Business Transfer Agreement 
F;esco Global Wind Service Private Limited (refer note NO 47) 

Total 

Total 

2021-2022 

1,286.80 

51.06 
605.02 

846.39 
44.4.52 

0.21 

10.48 

3,244.48 

1,788.18 

337.90 

. 59.50 

161.46 

19.39 

2,366.43 

469.84 
469.84 

Fellow 

2021-2022 

0.21 

0.21 

337.90 

161.46 

499.36 

469.84 

469.84 

2020-2021 

1,297.36 

55.61 

253.79 

160.82 
33.63 

100.87 

1,902.08 

675.05 

321.46 

331.41 
6.56 
0.02 

1,334.50 

Subsidiaries 

2020-2021 

321.46 

0.02 

321.48 

Associates 

2021-2022 

605.02 

846.39 
444.52 

1,895.94 

59.50 

59.50 

2020-2021 

55.61 

253.79 

160.82 
33.63 

503.85 

Holding/Subsidian/ 

2021-2022 

1,286.80 
51.06 

10.48 

1,348.34 

1,788.18 

19.39 

1,807.57 

companies 

2020-2021 

1,297.36 

100.87 

1,398.23 

675.05 

331.41 
6.56 

1,013.02 



GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITES ( farnrr iy  Krown as lnox Wind inirastruct~re S ~ " C ~ S  L:mitedl 

- 

K~~~~ to the stafidaione financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2C22 

39. Related Party D~scIosu~~S: (it in Lakhs) 

Feilow Subsidiaries Total I flolding/SubsidiarY ccnpanies Associates Particulars 2021-2022 2020-2021 2021-2022 2020-2021 

--- 

2020-2321 2021-2022 ( 2021-2022 

i 

2020-2021 

1,000.00 

1,000.00 5,060.00 1 

1 5,060.00 
1,000.0C 

6,060.00 
(it in Lakhs) 

Total 

2021-2022 

623.39 

0.01 

51.31 
57.92 

772.63 

!nox Wind Limited 
20,000.00 1 Total 

I .  I 

~olding/SubsidiarY companies Associates 

2020-2021 

20,699.03 

0.39 

1,236.33 

1,345.42 

708.24 

94.31 

1 24,083.72 

20,000.00 

Felir;w - 
2021-2022 

Particulars 
2021-2022 2021-2022 2020-2021 6) Balance as atthe end sf the half year - 

a) Amounts payable 
Trade and other pavble 

623.39 20,699.03 lnox Wind Limited 
0.39 

subsidiaries 

2020-2021 2020-2021 

1,345.42 

708.24 

2,053.66 

- 

Satviki Energy Private Limited 
1,236.33 - I 

7,073.03 

998.59 

8,071.62 

I 

RBRK investments Limited 
WAFT ENERGY PR%T.IM:TED 0.01 

GFL Limitcd 
lnox Wind Energy Lim~ted 
Gu]ara: ~iuorcchemicals Ljmited 57.92 

39,187.57 

10,030.00 

49,187.57 - 

20,000.00 

20,000.G3 

Z0,OOO.OC 

~ ~ ~ C ~ ~ ~ e r t i b [ e ,  ~on-tumulative, ParticipatinS, Redeemable 
preference Shares 

20,030.00 lnox Wind Limited 
23,coo.oo 

- I 

91.31 

.- 

I 

* - 
TO%! 

Wind T W ~  Rcfierm Privztt: Limited 
- I 94.31 i<ani ~i:~,,i \Wind Energy Private Limited - I 

57.97 1 I 91.31 22,030.C6 

I 

P--- 1 

~nter-corporate deposit payable 1 
39,187.57 , 7,073.33 lnox Wind Limited 

I 

- I 
! 998.59 ulind Four Renergy Private Limited 

- I , . ~ 10,000.00 

49,187.57 1 - 8,071.62 Tstal 
I 

. ~ p i ~ ~ ~ l l ~  Convertible Debentures cocverted to  Equity Share 20,COO.OO 1 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED ( f o h e r l y  Known as inox Wind InfrastruCture S e ~ i c e s  Limited) 

- 

~~t~~ to the standalone financial statemccts :or t he  year ended 31 +arch 2022 

2,987.18 

1,030.37 

328.42 
4,345.97 - 

2,415.67 

122.56 
10.34 

132.90 

39. Rclated party Disc~osures: 
lnterest payable on inter-corporate deposit 

122.56 2,987.18 lnox Wind Limited 
10:34 Wind Four Renergy Private Limited 

1,030.37 i GFL Lirnited 
Interest payable on debentures - I 

328.42 lnox Wind Limited 
132.90 4,345.97 - I 

Total 

interest payable on advance 2,415.67 
2,415.67 Gujarat ~luorochemica~s Limited 2,415.67 

Total 

Holdingfsubsidiary companies Associates 
Particulars 

2021-2022 2020-2021 2021-2022 2020-2021 
B) Balance as at the end of the year 

b) Amounts receivable 

lnox Wind Energy Limited 112.03 314.56 

Marut Shakti Energy lndia Limited 1,383.75 
. - 

36.00 Nani Virani LVind Energy Private Limited 
753.96 88.89 

Wind Three Renerfl Limited 3,248.44 
Wind Two Renergy Private United 

115.46 3,446.84 
Wind One Renergy Limited 

109.85 4.81 
Wind Five Renergy Limited 

148.93 1,698.31 314.20 7,454.05 
Total 

Advance received from CUs:Omer 
1 5,060.00 I inox wind Energy Limited 

Marut Shakti Energy lndia Limited 

Gujarat Fluorochemicals Limited 
5,060.00 

Total 

interest accrued on Preferance Share 
0.66 inox Wind Lirnited 

- 0.66 
Total 

( t i n  Lakhs) 

Capital Advance received from CUstOrIIer I 
144.3C 1 Wind Four Renergy Private Limited 

' 144.34 1 
Total I I - 

Total 

2021-2022 

724.86 
112:03 

36.90 
88.89 

115.46 
109.85 

1,187.99 

31.14 
100.00 
131.14 

Fellow 

2021-2022 

724.86 

724.86 

31.14 
100.00 
131.14 

I 

2020-2021 

314.56 

1,383.75 

753.96 

3,248.44 
3,446.84 

4.81 

9,152.36 

5,060.00 

16,748.98 
21,808.98 

I 

subsidiaries 

2020-2021 

16,748.98 
16,748.98 

0.66 

0.66 

145.34 
144.34 



1 3 ~ ) ~  GREEN ENERGY : E R V ~ L ~  ~ 1 : ~ l l - r ~ ~  {fcr;er!y Knowr: as lnox Wind lnfrastrcdure services Limited) 

, ~~t~~ to the  standalone financia! statenenrs tor t he  year ended 31  Niar ih  2322 

39. Related Party Disc;osures: (it in Lakks) , 
Total I 

2021-2022 

0.01 
0.01 
0.01 

0.01 
0.01 
0.41 

51.74 

650.00 1.33 

100.21 
102.72 
105.70 
102.56 
100.02 

18.34 
17.42 
1.04 
1.31 

i05.05 
18.60 
18.87- 

2,198.28 

Particulars 
Fellow subsidiaries 

I ~ c s c u  Global Wind Service Private Limited 

2021-2022 2020-2021 1 
1 

1,900.34 
2.58 

115.69 
0.89 

175.68 
2,785.25 

0.45 

72.57 
243.72 
650.26 0.55 

- 
98.55 

101.22 
10345 
101.14 
98.41 
16.96 
16.59 
0.32 
0.74 

1C3.61 
17.33 
17.38 

1.53 

[ ~ o t a l  
2,198.33 

2020-2021 

' 

Holding/Subsidisn/ companies 1 Associates 

1 

I 3,595.60 6,630.31 
693.12 

2021-2022 1 2020-2021 2021-2022 6)  Ezlacce es at the end of theyear 
2020-202? 

/ inter-corporate deposit receivable - 
I G a z t  Chakti E?,ergy India Limired I ---. 

. wind power (Tai!in~adugria) ? ? v i e  Limited, 1 - - 
5a:ayu  in? power (Kcndapuram) Pr;vate iimi:ed - 

! 

- 

I 
1,900.34 1 

2.32 1 
119.69 ' 

I 5aiviki Energy Private Limited 'F ! 

0.01 
0.01 
0.01 

723.28 
2.53 

5,906.73 

0.89 

0.45 

72.57 

650.26 

702.15 

0.01 1 * 

0.41 

51.74 

650.00 

- 1 

0.C1 

2,198.28 

Vibhav Energy Private Limited 
Ripdaman Urja Private Lirnited 

Vinlrrrnaa Energy Generation Private Limited 175.68 

RBRK Investments Limited 
I - I 2,785.25 

Wipd One Renergy Limited 
Wind Three Renerw Limited 
Wind Four Renergy Private L-imited 243.72 

Wind Five Renergy Limited 
Vasuprada Renewables Private Limited 1.33 0.55 

1C0.21 Tempest Wind Er,ergy Private Limited 98.55 

A!iento Wind inerey Private Grnited - 102.72 , 101,22 
Flur;er Wind Enrrw Private Livited 155.76 I 103.45 

. 

. - 

Suswind power Private Limited 
-Ravapar Wind Energy Private Limited 

I Khatiyu Wind Energy Private Limited 

98.41 
101.lA 

16.96 
16.59 

Flurry Wind Energ Private Limited 
Vuelta Wind Encrgy Private Limited 
Vigodi Wind Energy Private Limited 
Haroda Wind Energy Private Limited 

1.04 
1.51 

102.56 
1SO.C2 
18.34 
17.42 

0.32 
0.74 

105.05 
18.63 
18.82 

103.61 1 
17.33 
17.38 
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II*OX Bi~EiI - E K V I C ~  LIMITED (formeriy <tv~va as ~ n r  Wind:nfrastruc~dce Services Limited) 

~ ~ i ~ s  to t he  5tandalone financial statements f o r  t he  year ended 31 March 2C22 

- 

1 

(*I a mount is less than Rs. 0.01 Lakhs 

39. Reiated Party Disclosures: (Tin Lakhs) 

. . Particulars 

B) Balance as at the end of the year 

Total 

2021-2022 

3.03 

0.20 

18.17 

196.12 
0.25 

3.57 ' 

S.48 

0.12 

0.15 

3 . 3 1  

40.17 
43.68 

39.32 
40.65 

40.13 
3.61 

3.65 
0.79 

470.40 

6,390.00 

6,390.00 

118.91 

I 118.91 

2020-2021 

946.06 

126.62 

61.97 
0.01 

143.64 

665.21 

0.17 
' 16.78 

14.40 

125.90 
0.16 

1.65 

1.64 
0.04 

0.05 
28.02 

29.42 
, 29.64 

28.00 

29.62 
29.40 

1.67 
. 1.67 

C.31 

2,282.05 

6,390.00 

6,390.00 

3.85 
3.89 

0.01 

Total 

Other dues Payable 

interest on ~nter-corporate deposit receivable!% 
7- - 

Associates HoldingfSuSsidia.~ ronpanies 

I 

0.01 1 

Fellow 

2021-2022 

0.03 

2021-2022 2S21-1012 

WAFT ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED I 

subsidiaricc 

2010-2021 , 

- 

2020-2021 

0.17 

16.78 

125.90 

- .  

- .  

-- 

202G-2021 

Marut Shaki Energy India Limited 946.06 
- 
Sarayu Wind power (Tallimadugula) Private Limired 126.62 - 
5a:ayu Wind power (Kondapuram) Private Limited - 61.97 

Satviki Energy Private Umited - ,  0.01 

Vir.irrm;a Energy Generation Private Limited 143.64 

RBRK Investments Limited 665.21 
0.20 Wind One Renergy Limited I 

18.17 wind Three Renergy Limited 
Wind Four Renergy Private Limited 14.40 

Wind Five Renergy Limited 196.12 

0.16 Vasuprada Renewatiles Private Limited 0.25 

Vigodi Wind Energy Privzte Limited 3.57 1.65 

Haroda VJind Energy Private Limited ! 3.48 1.6C 

Vibhav Energy Frivate Limited C.12 0.04 

- 

- 

Ravapar Wind Energy Private Limited 
Khatiyu Wind Energy Private Litnited . 

Resco Global Wind Service Private Limited 

Total 

CCD 

0.05 

28.02 

29.42 

29.64 
28.00 

29.62 

Ripudaman Urja Private Limited 
Suswind Power Private Limited 

Tempest Wind Energy Private Limited 
Aliento Wind Energy Private Limited 
Flutter Wind Energy Private Limited 
Flurry Wind Energy Private Limited 

3.61 1.67 - I - - I 
. 3.65 1 1.67 

0.79 0.31 
0.82 255.09 2,139.20 224.49 142.85 

C.15 

39.31 
40.17 

SC.68 

39.32 
40.65 

I Vuelta Wind Energy Private Limited 

Nani Virani Wind Energy private Limited 

Total 

4C.13 

6,39%03 6,390.00 
6,33U.C3 6,390.00 

29.40 

Interest on CCD -- 118.51 
118.91 3.89 



- .  INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMiWD ( i o t m e r ! ~  Known as InoxVJind Infrastructcre Services Limited] 

Notes t o  t he  standalone financial statements f o r  t he  year ended 3 1  March 2022 

39. Relared Party Disclosures: 

C) Guarantees 

inox Wind Energy Limited ("IWEL") has issued guarantee and provided security i n  respect of borrowings by the Company. The outstanding balances of such borrcwings as at 31  March 2022 is 1,000.00 

Gujarat Fluorochemicals Limited ("GFCLU)(earlier known as lnox Fluorochemicals Limited), the fellow subsidiaries company, has issued guarantee and provided security in respect of borrowings by the Company. The outstanding 
balances of such borrowings as at 3 i  Mzrch 2022 is T 32,416.67 Lakhs (Previous Year? 77,395.00 Lakhs). Further GFCL has issued performance Bank Guarantee as at 31.03.2022 is ? 18,711.19 Lakhs. (Previous Year T 3,425.00 Lakhs) 

The Compank has issued Performance Bank Guarantee to 11 subsidiaries of 4 10,227.00 Lakhs. 

The Company has issued Corporate Guarzntee o f  ? 5,000.03 Lakhs to Nani Virani Wind Energy Private Limited against advance receivable under EPC Contract. 

The Company has provided security i.efirst pari-passu charge over the movable fixed assets, both present 2nd future, against term Loan from financial Institution taken by lnox Wind Limited (iWL) 

Notes: 

(a) Sales, purchases and service transactions with related parties are made at arm's length price. 

(b) Amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash or receipts of goods and services. 

(c) NO expense has been recognised for the year ended 31  March 2022 and 3 1  March 202lfor bad or d o u b ~ u i  trade receivables in respect of amounts owed by related parties. 

(d) There have been no other guarantees rcceived or provided for any related party receivables or payables. 

(e) Compensation of Key management personnel 
(T i n  Lakhs) 

Particulars 

Particulars 

(i) Remuneration / others 
- Mr. Manoj Dixit 
- Mr. Vineet Davis 

Mr. Milkesh Manglik 

Sitting fees paid to directors 

Total 

If in 

I 

Shcr::erm benefits 

post employement benefi'su 

Long term employement benefitsk 

Share based payments 

Termination benefits 
Sitring fees paid t o  directors 

Total 

31.33 

32.39 
. - 
923 
73.49 

33.11 

43.21 

49.94 
5.40 

131.66 

63.69 

9.80 
73.49 

126.26 

5.40 
131.66 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMiTED ( f o r m d y  Known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services ~ i m i t e d )  

iUotas t o  t he  standalone financial statements t o r  t he  year ended 31 March 2022 

39. Rerated Party Disclosures: 

the liabilities for the defined benefit acd ether long term tenef iu are provided on amuarid basis for ;hz Ccmpa*~, the amount peflainingto KMP are n h  included above. 

The re.mera?ion rf direcors and Key Micr iement  Perscnnel (K l iP)  is determined by the Nomination and Remuneration CcmmiCee having regard to the pedormance of individuals and market trends. 

i:octric;ltion to or;viiect Fund (definiJ roilirib~~tn; p!an) is RI. 2.43 Lakhs (previcus year Rs. 6.53 iakils) i~c luded :n the mff.ount of rernuncration reponed above. 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly Known as Inox W ind  Infrastructure Services Limited) 

Notes t o  t he  standalone financial statements f o r  t he  year ended 31 March 2022 

39. Related Party Disclosures: 

inter-corporate deposits are unsecured and repayabie on demand and carries interest @ 12% p.a. These loans,Securities and Guarantee are given for general business purposes. 

(c) Additional disclosure i n  respect of loans ~iven, as required by the Listing Agreement: (Tin Lakhs) 
I I I I I 

Name of the loanee 

Investment by the 
loanee in shares of 

I 3 1  March 2022 1 
- 

0.01 1 2.36 1 Nil I 

Marut Shakti Energy India Limited 

Sarayu Wind Power (Tallimadugula) Private Limited 

Sarayu Wind Power (Kondapuram) Private Limited 

3 1  March 2022 

31  March 2021 

3 1  March 2022 

3 1  March 2021 

3 1  March 2022 

3 1  M&202l 

Satv ik i~nergy Private Limited 

Vinirrmaa Energy Generation Private Limited 

RBRK Investments Limited 

3 1  March 2022 
27  M s r ~ h  7C71 

-- 
650.00 1 650.26 1 Nil I 

1,900.34 

0.01 

2.38 

0.01 

119.69 

0.45 1 I 0.45 0.45 
Wind One Renergy Limited 

( 31March2022 ( 
- 

1.33 1 1.33 ( Nil I 

3 1  March 2C21 

3 1  March 2022 

31  March 2021 

3 1  March 2022 

31  March 2021 

2,450.39 

1,900.34 

3.86 

2.38 

122.31 

119.69 

. -- ... ".".. -"-- 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

0.89 

0.01 

175.68 

0.01 

2,785.25 

51.74 

72.57 

243.72 

Wind Three Renergy Limited 

Wind Focr Renergy Private Limited 

Wind Five Renergy Limited 

=uprada Renewables Private Limited 

31  March 2022 

3 1  March 2021 

3 1  March 2022 

3 1  March 2021 

3 1  March 2022 

31  M l h  2021 

Tempest Wind Energy Private Limited 

Aliento Wind Energy Private Limited 

Flutter Wind Energy Private Limited 

Flurry Wind Energy Private Limited 

March 2C22 

0.89 

178.73 

175.68 

2,806.64 

2,785.25 

72.57 

72.57 

323.15 

243.72 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

NII 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

650.26 

. 11 14 Nil 

3 1  March 2021 

31  March 2022 

3 1  March 2021 

3 1  March 2022 

3 1  March 2021 

31  

31  March 2021 

3 1  March 2022 

1 3 0 5 4  

653.26 

1 Nil 105.70 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil . 

Nil 

Nil 

I 

0.55 1 0.55 

100.21 

98.55 

102.72 

101.22 

103.45 

102.56 

100.21 

98.55 

102.72 

101.22 

103.45 

102.56 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LlMlTCD (formerly i n o w n  as :ncx Wind Infrasiructure Services Limited) 

- Nc:es t o  t he  standalone financial sta:ements i c r  t he  year ended 31  March 2022 

39. Related Pam Disclosures: 

(c) Additiocal disclosure in respect of loans given, as rcquired by the Listing Agreement: (Tin Lakhs) 
1 I I 

Name of the loance 
Amount of loans Maximum balance I at the year end during the year 

investment by the 
loanee i n  shares of 

the comoanv 
I 

'Vuelta Wind Encrgy Private Limited i 
Vigodi Wind Energy Private Limited 

Earnda Wind Energy Private Limited 

Vibhav Energy Private Limited 

Ripsdaman Urja Private Limited 

Y 

[~hat i yu  Wind Energy Private Limited 1 id **--A,. ""9. 

Suswind Power Private Limited 

IRavapar Wind Energy Private Limited 

Nani Virani 'vVind Energy Private Limi:ed 

I 

51 lvlarcn LULL I R ~ ~ ~  Global Wind Service Private Limited 
3 1  March 2021 1 I 2.53 2.53 Nil 

3 1  March 2022 

3 1  March 2021 

3 1  March 2022 

3 1  Marsh 2G21 

3 1  March 2022 

31  March 2021 

3 1  March 2022 

3 1  March 2021 

3 1  March 2022 

3 1  March 2021 

3 1  March 2022 

100.02 

98.41 

18.34 

16.96 

17.42 

16.59 

1.04 

0.32 

1.31 

0.74 

105.05 

3 1  March 2021 103.61 103.61 

18.60. 

18.77 

18.81 

3 1  March 2022 , 
3 1  March 2021 

3 1  March 2022 

3 1  March 2021 

100.02 

98.41 

18.34 

18.66 

17.42 

18.66 

1.04 

0.32 

1.31 

0.74 

105.05 

Nil 

Nil 

Ril 

Nil 

Nil 

18.60 

17.33 

~, , 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nii 

Ni! 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil - ~ 

Nil I 

18.82 1 Nil 3 1  March 2022 t 18.82 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly Known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 
Notes t o  the standalone financial statementsfor the year ended 31  March 2022 

40: Balance Confirmation 

The Company has a system of obtaining periodic confirmation of balances from banks, trade receivables/payables/advances to vendors 
and other parties (other than disputed parties). The balance confirmation letters as referred in the Standard on Auditing (SA) 505 (Revised) 
'External Confirmations', were sent to banks and parties and party's balances are subject to confirmation/reconciliation. Adjustments, i f  
any v~ i l l  be accounted for on confirmation/reconciliation of the same, which in the opinion of the management will not have a material 
impact. 

42: Contingent liabilities 
(a) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts: claims made by contractors T 4,344.40 (as at 31  March 2021: 5,450.35 

lakhs) 

41: Particulars of payment to Auditors 
( f i n  Lakhs) 

Some of the suppliers have raised claims including interest on account of non payment in terms of  the respective contracts. The Company 
has contended that the suppliers have not adhered to some of the contract terms. At present the matters are pending before the 
jurisdictional authorities or are under negotiations. 

Particulars 

Statutory audit 
Tax audit and other audits under income-tax Act 
'laxation matters 
Certification fees 
Out of Pocket Expenses 
Total 

b) Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts: claims made by customers f 12,102.07 lakhs (as at 31  March 2021: P 932.00 . 
lakhs) 

2021-22 2020-21 

2.50 
5.62 

41.54 
0.28 

59.19 

c) Claims made by vendors in National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) for f 947.69 (as at 3 1  March 2021: P 714.55 
lakbs) 

d) Company has issued Performance Bank Guarantee to  Solar Energy Corporation of India is f 6,508.20 Lakhs (as at 3 1  March 2021: 9 
11,000.00 lakhs) 

e) In respect of VAT/GST matters 4 2,259.03 Lakhs (as at 3 1  March 2021: ;f 154.98 lakhs) 

The Company had received assessment orders for the financial years ended 31  March 2017 for demand of Rs 185.38 lakhs, in respect of 
Andhra I'radesh on account of VAT and CST demand on the issue of mismatch in ITC and non submission of statutwy forms. 'The Company 
has filed appeals before the first appellate authority in the matter of CST and VAT de~nands. The company has received entry tax demand 
order from Rajasthan VAT department for Rs 697.31 lakhs. The Company has also received tax demand from kcrela VAT for Rs. 251.13 
Lakhs.The Company has received show couse notice of Rs.1,125.20 Lakhs from GST Vadodara on account of input tax credit utilization and 
reply of same has been filed . 

f) Other claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts f 216.00 Lakhs (as st 31  March 2021: Nil) 

g) The Company has provided security i.e. first pari-passu charge over the movable fixed assets, both present and future, against term 
Loan from financial institution 

in respect'of above matters, no additional provision is considered necessary as the Company expects favourable outcome. Further, it is not ' '  

possible for the Company to estimate the timing and amounts of further cash outflows, if any, in respect of these matters. 

Due to unascertainable outcome for pending litigation matters with Court/Appeilate Authorities, the management expects no materiai 
adjustments on the standalone financial statements. 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly Knorvn as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 
Notes to  the standalone financial statements for  the year ended 31 March 2022 

43: Capital &other Conlmitments 

Capital Commitments 
(a) Estinjated amounts of contracts remaining to be exe~uted on capital account and not provided for (net of advances) is S 984.65 Ldkhs 
(as at 3 1  March 2023: i 2,295.29 lakhs) 

Other Commitmer~ts 
(b) Bank Guarantee issued by the Company to Power Grid Corporation of India Limited for 7 2,850.00 Lakhs (as at 31  Merch 2021: f 
2,500.00 iakhs) 

(c) Bank Guarantee issued by the Company to customer for 7 1,669 Lakhs (as at 31  March 2021: S 6,475.00 lakhs) 

44: Leases 
The Company has adopted ind AS 116 "Leases" effective from 01  April 2019 and considered all material leases contracts existing on 0 1  April 
2019. The Company neither have any existing material lease contract as on 0 1  April 2019 nor executed during the year. The adoption of the 
standard dose not have any impact on the financial statement of the company. Following are the details of iease contracts which are short 
term in nature: 

i. Amount recognized in  statement of profit and loss ( t i n  Lakhs) 
I I' 

Particulars 

bc luded in ren=lses: Expense relating to short-term leases 
I 

134.58 1 243.79 

ii. Amounts recognised in  the statyment of cash flows -- (<in Lakhs) 
7 -  I 1 

Particulars 

45: Segment Information 

The Company h3s presented segment information in the consolidated financial statements which are presented in the same financial 
report. Accordingly, in terms of Paragraph 4 of Ind AS 108 'Operating Segments', no disclosures :elated to segments are'prcsented it1 this 
standalone financial statements. 

46. Revenue from contracts with customers as per Ind AS 115 

(A) Disaggregated revenue information 

In the following table, revenue from contracts with customers is disaggregated by primary major products and service lines Since the 
Company has only one reportable business segment, no reconcilation of the disaggregated revenue is required: 

(Tin Lakhs) 
I 1 

'As at 
31 March 2022 

(B) Contract balances 

All the Trade Receivables and Contract Liabilities have been separately presented in notes to  accounts. 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 
Notes t o  the standalone financial statements for  the year ended 3 1  March 2022 

47. Note on  Discontinued Operations: 

1. Slump Sale of the Erection, Commissioning and Procurement Business (referred t o  as 'EPC Business'): 

On 06 October 2021, as a part of the business reorganisation, the Company's Board of Directors have approved transfer of its EPC business to wholly owned subsidiary 
('WOS') of its Company, inox Wind Limited('lWL1), RESCO Global Wind Service Limited ('RESCO'), with an objective t o  segregate the €PC Business and Operations and 
Maintenance Business(referred as 'O&M Business') of the Company. The divestment has been approveci by the shareholders of the Company in their Extra-ordinary 
General Meeting held on 21 October 2021. 

Subsequently on 3 1  December 2021, to implement the above divesture, the Company has executed a Business Transfer Agreement ('BTA') with RESCO to transfer EPC 
business undertaking, together with all assets and liabilities as specified in the BTA in relation to the €PC business as a going concern through slump sale. The assets and 
liabilities of the EPC business amounting t o  798,598.55 lakhs and 798,128.71 lakhs respectively arc transferred t o  RESCO from the date BTA becornice effective and 
difference on assets and liabilities amounting T469.84 iakhs on transfer of the EPC Business undertaking has recorded as purchase consideration receivable. The 
company has completed its compliance with the terms and conditions of BTA on 3 1  December 2021 and consequently, the BTA has become effective from that date. In 
this regard, the company on 3 January 2022 made the requisite disclosure to the BSE LimitcdlStock Exchange: 

"In continuation to our letter dated 6th October, 2021 and pursuant t o  Regulation 51  of the Securities and Exchange Board of lndia (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("Listing Regulations"), we would like to inform you that the Company has entered into a Business 
Transfer Agreement (BTA) t o  transfer its Erection, Procurement and Commissioning (EPC) of Wind Turbine Generators Business, on a slump sale basis, to its fellow 
subsidiary, Resco Global Wind Services Private limited for cash consideration of upto Rs. 3,000.00 Lakhs." 

7.. Share Sale ~urchase Agreement: 

On 06 October 2021, as a part of the business reorganisation, the Company's Board of directors have approved transfer of RESCO to  its company lnox Wind Limited .' 

(itwL'). 

Further, on 06 October 2021, as a part of the business reorganisation, the Company's Board of directors knave approved transfer of following whol'y owned subsidiaries 
(WOSs) t o  RESCO: 

a) Marut-Shakti Energy lndia Limited 
b) Satviki Energy Private Limited 
c) Sarayu Wind Power (Tallimaduguia) Private Limited 
d) Sarayu Wind Power (Kondapuram) Private Limited 
e) Vinirrmaa Energy Generation Private Limited 
f) KBRK investments Limited 

In respect of above business re-organisation to impiement'the divesture the Company has executed Share Saie Purchase ~greement with IWL and RESCO on 18 
October 2021 & 25 October 2021 respectively. 

The activities of the EPC business, Project Business and transfer of the ail subsidiaries as mentioned i r t  para 3 above of the Company, are col~sidered as "Disposal 
3. Company", a,?d presented as discontinued operation in accordance with the provisions c f  Indian Accounting Standard (ind AS) 105 -'Non-current Assets Held for Saie 

and Discontiniled Operations'. 



5. To give etfect of the aforesaid BTA agreement and Share Sale Purchase Agreement as stated above: 

INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly known as lnox Wind illfrastructur.' S c ~ i c e s  Limited! 
! 

Notes t o  the sttndalone financial statements for the year ended 3 1  March 2022 
i 
[ 

47. Note on  I)iscontinued ~pe ra t i ons :  
4. Financial performance dnd casn flows for the Disposal Group: 

(P in Lakhs) 1 

(a) As r&uired under the Ind AS 105, Company has re-presented the Statement of Profit and Loss for prior periods preseltted in the Slatzments so.that the 
disclosures relate t o  ail operations that have been discontinbed at the end of the reporting period for the latest period is presented. 

(b) 
The [PC Business has historically operated as part of the Company and not as a standalone entity. The figures representing the operations of the EPC Bclriness 
have been derived from the Company's accounting records and are presented as a discontinued operation. As part of the Company, the EPC Business is 
dependent upon the Company for all of its working capital and financing requirements as the Company uses a centralized approach to  cash management and 
financing of its operations. Accordingly, rinance Cost on all general-purpose borrowings inc!t~ding current maturities, have beer, allocated based cn the working 
capital requirement worked out by management on a reasonable basis for EPC business in each fi nancial year. 

1 
1 

.' i 

1 
i 
I 
I 
I 

. i 

Analysis of profit/(loss) from discontinued operations 
Revenue from opetations 

( 0 t k r r  inzomt- 

Expenses 
EPC, O&M and Commor~ infrastructure facility expense 
Changes in inver~tories of work-in-progress 

(') :ncome and expenses pertaining to ~ ~ ' ~ ' ~ u s i n e s s  have been allocated on a reasonable basis taking into consideration the respective costjprofir centres and 
employee head count and certain common expenses have been allocated basis the propoftionate of total expense of the EPC Dusiness and O&M Business. 

. . ,. 

The zompaay is i n  the process of compliance of various procedural terms and conditions as mentioned in the respective iender's No qblectipn Certificate (NOC) . 
and condition subsequent to the BTA. 

Purchases of stock-in-trade 
Lmpiopee Benefits Expenses 
Finance Costs 
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 1 Other Expenses 
Total Expense 
Lcss: Expecditure capitalized 
Net Expenses 
Profit/(Losr) before exceptional items and tax 
Stizre of profitj(loss) of associstes 
P:ofit/(Loss) before tax (III+IV=V) 
E~ceptionai itemsf 
~rofit/(l.oss) before tax from discontinued operations 
Tax Expense 
profit / (loss) after tax from discontinued operations 

Other Comprehensive Income 
ltenls that will not be re-classified t o  profit and loss 
Re-measurements of tl;e defined benefit plans 
i d x  'a above 

For tlte year ended 
31  March 2022 - 

9,001.00 
377.72 

9,478.72 

3,351.74 
1,547.03 

6. Coqtittgcnt Llabilitf for the'Disposa1 Group: The Contingent Liability for 30 assunled legal procerdltlg associated with BTA and Contingent Liability for SPA associated 
with Diss~osal Group which has been transferred are as under: 

(a) Claints against the Disposal Group r G t  acknowledged as debts: claim; mede b.1 contractors - P 597.80 Lakhs 

For the year ended 
31  March 2021 

6677.81 
1970.49 

8,648.30 

7,603.74 
(292.58) 

Some ofthe supplters have raised claims ir,cludirtp, interest on accoitnt of con payment in terms c f  the respective contracts. The Dsposal Group has contended that tl ie 
slippliers hat~e not adllere,l to scme of the contract terms. At present the matters are psnding hef:~re the jurisdlctlonal authorities or 3re under negotiations. 

l c \ a l  Ottier Comprehensive Income (4.66) 
loial Comprehensive income for the year - - 

2,995.22 
823.33 

4,815.07 

.1,=.6? 
1'1.010.00 

:L7,010.00 
(7,531.28) 

(7,531 23)  

(7,531.28) 
(7,266.92) 
(5,264,361 

(7,Y/) 

(b) Claims against the Cispusnl Grorrp not acknouiedged as debts: claims made by customets - P 5,709.10 Lakhs 

(c) CIaims made by vendo;s in National Company i.avJ Tribunal (NCLT) T 2,528.87 

7. [he Statement of Profit and Loss may not include all the actual expenses that would bave bean incurred had the EPC business operated as a standalone company 
during the periods presented and mFy not reflect finznciai performance had it operated as a standalone company during such periods. Acrual costs that would have 
been incurred if EPC business h ~ d  operated as a standalone company would depend on multiple factors, including organizational structurc., cepitai structure, ctrategic 
and tactical decisions made in various areas, including Information technology and Infrastructure. 
Theretore, the resulting fmancial performance in these Financial Statelnents may not be that which might have ex~sted i f  the LPC buihess had been a standaiono 

I 
I 

company. 

599.66 
8,444.62 

43.97 
2,509.32 

18,90C.73 

18,906.73 
(10,258.43) 

(10,258.43) 

(10,258.43) 
(3,537.99) 
(6,720.45) 

5.49 

I 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly Known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 

Notes t o  the standalone financial statements for the year ended 3 1  March 2022 

48: impact o f  Covid-19 

Due to outbreak of COViD-19 globally and in india, the company's management has made initial assessment of impact on business and 
financial risks on account of COVID-19. Considering that the company is in the business of Erection, procurctnent and operation & 
maintenance services of Wind Turbine Generator in Renewable Energy Sector, the management believes that the impact of this outbreak 
on the business and financial position of the company will not be significant. The management does not see any risks in the company's 
ability to continue as a going concern and meeting its liabilities. The company has used the principles of prudence in applying judgments, 
estimates and assumptions and based on the current estimates, the company expects to  recover the carrying amount of trade receivables 
including unbilled receivables, investments, inventories, advances and other assets. Further, Commissioning of WTGs and maintenance 
services against certain purchase/service contract does not require any material adjustment on account of delays, i f  any considerins 
disruption due to COVID-19. The eventual outcome of impact of the global health pandemic may be different from those estimated as on 
the date of approval of these financial statements. Due to the nature of the pandemic, the Cohpany will continue to  monitor 

. developments to identify significant uncertainties in future periods, if any. 

49.The Company has policy to recognise revenue from operations & maintenance (O&M) over the period of the contract on a'straight- 
line basis. O&M agreement of 111 WTGs (31 March 2021 Nil WTGs) has been cancelled/modified with different customers and also 
services amounting to $3582.70 Lakhs are yet to be billed for which services have been rendered. The company's management expects 
no material adjustments in the standalone financial statements on account of any contractual obligation and taxes & interest thereon, i f  

any. 

50, l'he Corr,pany incorporated wholly-owned subsidiaries (hereafter called as SPVs) under RfS (request for selection) for setting up wind 
farm projects as awarded by Solar Energy Corporation of india (SECI) under Tranche-Ill & iV (300MW). Thereafter, the Company has 
invested funds in SPVs in the form of equity shares and Inter Corporate Deposit for the execution of projects. As on March 31,2022, there 
are 6 subsidiaries in which projects are yet to be started. The company had invested amounting t o  4 6 Lakhs and S 856 Lakhs in the 
Equity shares and inter Corporate Deposit respectively in 6 SPVs. In the view of the management, the Company will be able to  realise the 
money from SPVs once the project will commission subject to the outcome of the resolution of the matter i f  any with the regulators and 
improvement in its future operational performance and financial support from the Company. 

51. Company incorporated a Wholly-owned subsidiary namely "Wind Four Renergy Private Limited" (WFRPL) for setting up wind farm 
projects as awarded by Solar Energy Corporation of India (SECi) under Tranche - I (SOW). The Company had invested funds in WFRPL in 
the form of Equity Share Capital for the execution of project. 1 he company had invested amounting to 4 2,591.40 Lakhs in the Equity 
Shares.The Company had filed an appeal against the Central Electrical Regulatory Commission (CERC) order dtd. 08th March, 2021 in 
Applellate Tribunal for Electricity ("APTEL") for further extension of scheduled commission date (SCod) and APTEL vide its order dtd. 11th 
January 2022 condoned the delay and extended the SCoD from i t s  date OF order, Subsequently, CERC filed an appeal against the APTEL 
order in Honorable Supreme Court and which is pending for disposal. In view c f  the management, the Company will be able to realize the 

I 
money from WFRPL once the project will commission subject to the outcome of litigation and improvement in its future operational 

I 
performance and financial support from the Company. 

I 



iNOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly Known as lnox Wind infrastructure Services Limited) 
Notes t o  the standalone financial statements for  the year ended 31 March 2022 

52: Corporate Social Responsibilities (CSR) 

The Company wa, not hbving net woith of rupees five hundred crore or more, or turnover nf rupees one thousand crore or mcre or a net profit of &pees five crore or 
more d16rin~ the immediately ptecedingftnanciai year and hence, provisions of Section 135 of the Act a,e not applicable to the Company during the year. I 

53: Other statutory inforlnations: 
(i) The company does not have any transaction ~11th the companiej struck off under SEC 248 of the Companies Act 2013 or section 560 of the Companies Act 1956 
during the year ended March 31,2022 and March 31,2021. 

(ii) There are no changes or satisfdction which are t o  be registered with the registrar of companies during the year ended Marcn 31,2022 and March 31,2021 except 
below: 

Fo rea r  ended 31 March 20T1 Pin lakhs 

(iii) The ~om~any ' co rn~ l i es  with the number of layers of companies in a~cordance with clause 8./ of Section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on 
number of layers) rules 2017 &ring the year ended March 31,2022 and March 31,2021. 

For year ended 31 March 2021: f i n  lnkhs 

(iv) Tibe Company has not invested or traded in crqptocurrency or viitual currency duringthe year erlded March 31,2027. and Mbrch 31,2021. 

Amount of 
Charges 

3,000 El- 

Charse Holder Name 

Arta ~ c c a p  Limited -- I, 

(v) No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the company for ho'ding Benalni property under the l'rohibitioli of Benami Prcperty Transaction Act 
1988 (as amended ill 2016) (formally the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder during the year ended March 31, 2022 
and March 31,2021. , . 

Location of ROC 

Ahmedabad 

Charge Holder Name . 

Nil 

(vi) The Company ltns not becn'declared 3 wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or goveriment or any government authorities during tile year ended 
March 31,2022 and March 31,2021. 

-- 
Amount of Delay i n  months. 
Charges 
Nil 

Location of ROC 

Nil 

(vii) The Conp~ny  has not c~~ te red  into any scheme of arrangement approved by the competent authority in ternis of sections 232 t o  237 of the Companies Act 2013 
during the year ended Marrh 31, 2022 and March 31,2021. 

Reason for delay 

Nil 

(viii) DII.ing the year ended March 31,2022 and March 31,2021, the Company has not surrendcred o i  disclosed as income any transactions not recorded in the bcoks 
of accounts i n  the course of 12x assessments under the incomeTax Act, 1961 (such as search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tar Act 1963). 

'(ix) During the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, the Co~vpany has not advanced.or loaned or invested funds (citltkr borrowed funds or the share 
prensium or kind of funds) to ar)y other person or entities, including foreign entities (intermediaries) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) 
that the intermediary shall: 
a, dir6ctiy or indirectly land ( J i  invest in other persons or entities identified in stly manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the compaw (ultimate beneficiaries) cr 

b, provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultiniatr beneficiaries. 

(x) Except below, During the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2023, the Company has no: received any funds from any persons or entities including foreign 
entities (Funding party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the cornpany shall : 

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest i n  other persons or entities ider~tiiied in any mannc: v~ i ia tsoe~e~ by or on bchair of the funding party (ultimate beneficiarizs) or 



b. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behaif of the ultimate beneficiaries. 

I I I 

Funding Party/Ultimate Benificary party Received (ICD) Paid (ICD) 
(f in Lakhs) (7 in Lakhs) I lurid I 

I I - 
Dates . I Marut Shakti Energy ind;a Limited 

Date of Fund 
Received and Date 
of Fund advanced 

inox Wind Limited 

Party t o  whom Funds Given 

551.31 

inox Wind Limited 

lnox Wind Limited 

inox Wind Limited 

551.31 

inox Wind Limited 

lnox Wind Limited 

lnox Wind Limited 

1.48 

1.48 

3.06 

iG Wind Limited 

inox Wind Limited 

lnox Wind Limited 

2.63 

212.88 

79.43 

2.25 

1.42 

3.06 

2.63 Sarayu Wind Power (Kondapuran~) Private Limited 

212.88 Dates RBRK investments Limited 

79.43 Dates Wind Four Renergy Private Limited 

0.78 

1.66 

1.50 

2.25 Dates I Flutter Wind Energy Private Limited 

I Flurry Wind Energy 

lnox Wind Limited 

lnox Wind Limited 

inox Wind Limited 

Inox Wind Limited 2,200.84 1 21200.84 IVarious Dates ( Resco Gioboi Wind Servirr I'rivato Limited 

In respect of aboge transaction, the company has complied relevant provisions of the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999, Companies Act 2013 and Preiention of 
Money-Laundering Act, 2002 to the extent applicable. 

0.78 Dates Vasuprada Renewables Private Limited 

Dates Tempest Wind Energy Private Limited 

Dates Aliento Wind Energy Private Limited 

inox Wind Limited 

lnox Wind Limited 

inox Wind Limited 

lnox Wind Limited 

inox Wind Limited 

(xi) Quarteiry retorns or statements of the current assets filed by the Company with banks or financial institutions are in agreement with books of accounts except 
below:- 

For the vear ended 31  March 2022 

Dates . 

Dates 

Dates 

1.61 

1.45 

0.57 

Value as per 
Return Value as per Reconciliation 

Name of  Lender and Type o f  facilities returns Reas011 o f  material discrepancies 
period/Type books o f  accounts amount 

submitted 

Satviki Energy Private Limited 

Sarayu Wind Power (Taiiinladu:uia) Private Limited 

Vinirrmaa Energy Generation Private Limited 

0.71 

1.37 

0.83 

1.27 

1.44 

Yes Bank and lClCi Bznk (Cash Credit/Working 
(Debtors) 26,785.05 

Capital/Demand Loan) 

1.61 

0.57 

The reported amount reccnciles 
26,940.95 155.90 

with gross debtorc 

0.71 

OA3 

Yes Bank and iCiCl Bank (Cash Credit/Working I(inventory) June'21 1 33,62700 1 34,769.28 1,1,12.28 

Capital/Demand Loan) I I 

Dates 

Dates 

Dates 

Yes Bank and lClCi Bank (Cash Crcdit/Working 
Sep,21 (Debtors) I I 28,780.00 

Capital/Dcmand Loan) 

Vuelta Wind Energy Private Limited 

Suswind Energy Private Limited 

Hipudaman Energy Private Limited 

Dates 

Oates 

Dates 

Dates 

Dates 

99,77 The reported amount reconciles 
28,879.77 1 '  I with g r x s  debtors 

Vibhav Energy Private Limited 

Vigodi Wind Energy Private Limited - 
Haroda Wind Energy Private Limited 

Ravapar Wind Energy Private Limited 

Khatiyu Wind Energy Private Limited 

Yes Bank and iClCl Bank (Cash CreditIWorking Sep'21 
(inventory) 

30,460.00 
Capitai/Demand Loan) 

Yes Bank and iClCl Bank (Cash CrcditIWorking Dec,21 (Debtors, 7,987.00 
Capitai/Demand Loan) 

6,158.84 
(1,828.16, The reported amount reconciles 

w ~ t h  gross debtors 



54: The Code on Social Security, 2020 ('Code') relating t o  employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits has received Presidential assent on 28 
September 2020, The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the effective date of the Code is yet t o  be notified and final rules for quantifying the 
financial impact are also yet to be issued. In view of this, the Company will assess the impact of the Code when relevant provisions are notified and will record related 
impact, i f  any, i n  the period the Code becomes effective. 

55: There have been no delays i n  transferring amounts required t o  be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund. 

56: The Previous year Figures have been regrouped,whereever necessary t o  confirm the current year Presentation 

57: The company has a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents as required by the Goods and Services Act("GSTAct"). Since the GSTAct 
requires existence of such information and documentation t o  be contemporaneous in nature, books of accounts of the company are also subject to filing of GST 
Periodic and Annual Return asper applicable provisions of GST Act to determine whether the ail transactions have been duly recorded and reconcile with the GST 
Portal. Adjustments, i f  any, arising while filing the GST Annual Return shall be accounted for as and when the return is filed for the current financial year. However, the 
management is of the opinion that the aforesaid annual return will not have any material impact on the Standalone financial statements. 

58: The Company incorporated following wholly-owned subsidiaries (hereafter called as SPVs) under RfS (Request for Selection) for setting up 250 MW wind farm 
projects as awarded by Solar Energy Corporation of India (SECI). As on 31  March 2022, there are inter aiia 5 SPVs i n  which project progress is as below: 

a) The extended scheduled commissioning date (SCoD) of SPV "Nani Virani Wind Energy Private Limited" was 12 September 2021. Considering office memorandum 
dated 17 March, 2022 issued by Ministry of New and Renewable Energy, the Company requested for the time extension in the SCoD of the said project of 50MW by 3 
months vide letter dated 24 March 2022 and same is pending as on date. The management is in discussion with authorities for necessary approvals/extension, 

b) For SPVs namely "Haroda Wind Energy Private Limited", "Khatiyu Wind Energy Private Limited", "Ravapar Wind Energy Private Limited" and "Vigodi Wind Energy 
Private Limited", the Holding Company has filed petition on 22 March 2022 before Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (CERC), New Delhi for termination of 
letter of award dated 03 November 2017, Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) dated 27 December 2017 for 200 MW, for relieving from financial implication and releasing 
of respective bank guarantees. The same is pending before CERC. 

As per our report of even date attached 
For Dewan PN Chopra & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Direc 
Chartered Accountants 

Place : New Delhi 
Date : 13 May 2022 

DIN : 06709239 

Govlnd Prakash Rathor . Pooja &I 
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 

Place : Noida 
Date : 13 May 2022 
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Chartered Accountants 

C-109, Defence Colony, New Delhi - 110 024, India 

Phones : +91-11-24645895/96 E-mail : audit@dpncindia.com 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Members of lnox Green Energy Services Limited 

(Formerly known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 

Report on the Audit  o f  the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Opinion 

W e  have audited the accorripanyirig consolidated financial statenients of nox Green Energy Services Limited 
(hereinafter referred to as the 'I ioldir~y (;ompanyU) and its subsidiaries (I-folding Company and its subsidiaries 
together referred to as "the Group") and its associates, wh~ch con'rprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at 
March 31, 2022, and the consolidated staterrlent of Profit and Loss, the consolidated statement of changes in 
equityand the consolidated cash flows Staternent for the year then ended, arid riotes to the consolidated 
financial statements, including a sumrnary of significant accounting policies (hereinafter referred to as "the 
consolidated financial statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and accordirig !o tlle explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
consolidated financial staterrients give the iriforrnation required by the Act in the nianner so required and give a 
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles gerierally accepted in India, of their consolidated 
state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2022, of consolidated loss, consolidated changes in equityand its 
consolidated cash flows for the year then onded. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of 
the Companies act, 2013. Our resporisibilities urltler those Siandac'ds are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Firiarlcial Statenlents section of our report. We are 
independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by ICAI, and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance witti the provisiorls of the (;ornpanies Act, 201 3. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Emphasis of matter 

1. We draw attention to Noto 49 of the Consolitlatcd Fi(i::lr~c:ials Staterrlent which describes the 
management's assessment of the impact of the outbreak of Covid-19 on property, plant and equipment, 
revenue, trade receivables, investments and other assets. The rnanagen'ient believes that no adjustments are 
required in the financial staternerits as there is no ~rnpact in th(? curront financial year. However, in view of 
highly uncertain economic environment arid its likely effect on f~itur'e revenues due to Covid-19, a definitive 
assessment of the impact on the subsequent years is deperjdcrlt I-ipofI c;ircumstances as they evolve. 

2. We draw attention to Note 41 of the Corisolidatctd i'it!ailc~al:; Statement which describes that the 
Group have a system of obtaining perlotlic confirmation of balances fr-orri various panies (other than disputed 
parties). The External Balance Confirrr~alioris were ssnt to barlito arl$ parties and certairi party's balances are 
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subject to confirmation / reconciliation. Adjustments, i f  any will be accounted for on confirmationlreconciliation 
of the same, which in the opinion of the management will not have a material impact. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the rnatter 

Key Aud i t  Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of 
the consolidated financial statements of the currerit period. These rnatters were addressed in  the context of our 
audit o f  the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in formirig our opinion thereon, and we do not 
provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

- 
Board of Directors have approved trarisfer of its EPC 
business to wholly owned subsidiary ('WOS') of its 
Company, lnox Wind Limited ('IWL'), RESCO Global 
Wind Service Limited ('RESCO'), with an objective to 
segregate the EPC Business arid Operations and 
Maintenance Business (referred as 'O&M Business') of 
the Company. The divestment has been approved by the 
shareholders of the lioldirig Company in their Extra- 
ordinary General Meeting held on 21 October 2021. 

. ~~ - - . . -. 

The Key Audit Matters ssed the key audit matter 
. . . -. - . - . 

Subsequently on 31 December 2021, lo ~mplornerit the 
above divesture, the Hold~ng Company has ctxecuted a. 
Business Transfer Agreement ('BTA') with Pt-SCO to - - - - -- - 

Lit igation Matters 
- ~ 

~ -- - 

The Group has certain significant pendincj lagal 
proceedings with JudiciallQuasi-Judicial for various 
complex matters with contractor/trarisporter, custorrler 
and other parties, continuing from earlier years. 

Further, the Group has material uncertain tax positions 
including matters under dispute which involves signifi(;arit 
judgment to determine the possible outcon.ie of these 
disputes. 

Refer to Note 38 of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements. 

Due to the complexity involved in these litigation matters, 
management's judgement regarding reco(jnilion and 
measurement of provisions for these legal' proceedings is 
inherently uncertain and might change over tima as the 
outcomes of the legal cases are determined. Accordingly, 
it has been considered as a key audit matter. 

pp---.......-. . --- - ~ . ---. ~ .~ - 

Discontinued operations 

Refer note 32 to the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements for the accountirig policy and related 
disclosures respectively. On 06 October 2021, as a part 
of the business reorganization, the Holding Company's 

groups 
L Referrctd the BTA signed between the Holding 

(;onipany arid RESCO for divestment of EPC 
t3usr1,css so(jrnent; 

i- lioviowed the assossrnent performed by the 

-~ - - -. - - - - . - 

2- /\ssessctl the management's position through 
discussions with the in-house legal expert and 
external legal opinions obtained by the Holding 
Company (where considered necessary) on both, the 
probability of success in the aforesaid cases, and the 
rriagnitutlc of any potential loss. 

> r3ist;ussed with the management on the development 
iri ttictsct litigations during the year ended March 31, 
202%. 

2. Rollod out of enquiry letters to the Holding 
Company's management and noted the responses 
received and assessed the same. 

2- A:;sossetl the objectivity, independence and 
cornpetcrice of the Company's legal counsel (where 
applicable) involved in the process and legal experts 
c?rlga$)cd by the company, if any. 

2- rievi(?w(+tl the disclosures made by the Group in the 
financial statements in this regard. 

-. . . - 

Our audit procedures included, but were not limited to, the 
lollowing iri relation to the discontinued operations: 

2- Oblairicd an .understanding of the management 
pr-ocess for ensuring classification, measurement, 
disclosure arid allocations for the identified disposal 

niariagcrnerit for accounting and presentation of 
ttieso transactions in accordance with applicable 
acco~~ntir ig standards 

2- lictviewed the assets arid liabilities being transferred 
to tilISCO are in accordance with the terms of BTA 

2- Tc:;totl tile arithmetical accuracy of computations 
i.rsed by rnanagemen! to determine the amounts 
b c ~ i ~ ( j  I ransferred 

i. Assc1;scd r~iangge~mcrit's conclusions - regarding the 



- - -. --- - 

transfer EPC business undertaking, togethor with all 
assets and liabilities as specified in the DTA in relation to 
the EPC business as a going concern throcrgh slump sale. 
The assets and liabilities of the EPC business amounting 
to 098,598.55 lakhs and l i98,128.71 lakhs respectively 
are transferred to RESCO from the date BTA becomirig 
effective and difference on assets and liabilities 
amounting 13469.84 lakhs or1 transfer of the EPC 
Business undertaking has recorded as purchase 
consideration receivable. The Holdincj conipariy has 
completed its compliance with the terms and coriditioris of 
BTA on 31 December 2021 and consequently, the U-1.A 
has become effective from that date. 

We identified this as a key audit matter for current year 
audit in view of the significaricc? of the impact of these 
restructuring transactions have on the consolidated 
financial statements including thc arrio~rnts involved and 
exercise of management judgments with respect to 
identification and segregation of assets arid liabilities arid 
allocation of costs pertaining to EPC Btrsiness segrnent 
and O&M Business Segment. 

. - -  ~ - ~~ - - 
allocations of the asset, liabilities, income and 
t:xpttrise:; that are ass~gned to the discontinued 
opc?ratioris for the respective segments 
Assessetl ~'easonableness of management's 
judgemeril with respect to the likelihood and 
expected timing of ttie implementation of the 
restriicturing; 

2. \/erifietl ttie disclosure and presentation of financial 
stalornerit in accordance with Ind AS- 105 
'Nonc~~rrerit Assets held for sale and discontinued 
oporatioris' 

b Assossetl the appropriateriess and adequacy of the 
rclated disclosures in the consolidated financial 
statomorits of the Group in accordance with the 
appl~cable accounting standards. 

I Alternate audit proccdGre carrigci out in  l ight of c ~ ) v I D - I Y  outbreaks 
. - .- .. - - - . . -- - - .- - ... . .~ 

against COV113-19, the a pad of the alternative audit 
statutory audit was conducted via making arrarigements rriade available the following information1 records1 
to provide requisite documents/ information throu(gh an (:xplanations to us through e-mail and remote 
electronic medium as an alternative audit procedure. secure network of the Group: - 

We have identified such an alternative autlit procotlure as 
a key audit matter. 

a) Scanned copies of necessary recordsldocuments 
dccds,  cort~f~c:iles and the related records made available 
eleclronically through e-mail or remote secure network of 
the Groi~p, arid 

b) By way of enquiries Ihrough video conferencing, 
dialo(juer; arid discussions over the phone, e-mails and 
similar communication channels. 

It has also beer) represented by the management that the 
data and information provided electronically for the 
purpose of our audit are correct, complete, reliable and 
are diroctly generated from the accounting system of the 
Company, extracted from the records and files, without 
any furlher rrianual modifications so as to maintain its 
integrity, a\itheriticity, readability and completeness. In 
addition, based on our review of the various internal audit 
reports/inspoc:tion reports (as applicable), nothing has 
come lo lhe knowledge that makes us believe that such 
an alternate audit procedure would not be adequate. 

~ - . 

Other  Informat ion [or  another  t i t le  i f  appropr iate s ~ ~ c t l  as "lnforrrration Other than the Consol idated 
Financia l  Statements and Aud i to r 's  Repor t  Ttlereon"] 

The Holding 'Company's Board of Directors is responsible for Ihe other inforrr~ation. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Management Discussion a r ~ d  Analysis, Board's Report including 
Annexures to.Boardls Report, Corporate Governance and Stiareholdc?.r's lriforrriatiori (hereinafter referred to as 



"the Reports"), but does not include the Consolidated Firiancial S!atc?rnents and our auditor's report thereon. 
The Report is expected to be made available to us after the datc of this auditor's report. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusiori thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated financial staternents, our responsibility is to read the other 
information identified above when it becorr~es available arid, in doirig so, consider whettier the other information 
is materially inconsisterit with the Standalone financial staternents or our ltriowledge obtained in the audit, or 
otherwise appears to be materially rriisstatetl. 

Responsibilities o f  Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial 
Statements 

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible-! Tor the preparation arid presentation of these 
consolidated financial statements in term of the requirerr~erits of the Companies Act, 2013 that give a true and 
fair view of the consolidated financial posttion, consolidated f~riaricial perforrnance arid consolidated cash flows 
of the Group including its Associates in accordance with the acc;ouritirig principles generally accepted in India, 
including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of 
the companies included in the Group arid of its associates are responsible for rnairitenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisioris of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and 
for preventing and detecting fraud!: arid other ~rregularities: [lie selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; makirig judgments arid estimates that arc? rer-lsonable arid prudent; and the design, 
implementation and maintenarlce of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for 
ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accouriting records, felevarit to the preparation and presentation of 
the financial statements that give a true arid fair view and arc iree from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by 
the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statornerits, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included 
in the Group and of its associates are responsible for assessing tho ability of the Group and of its associates to 
continue as a going concern, disclosiny, as applicable, rriatteis relatctd to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accountirig ~lnless rnanagemcnt erther intends lo irc~uldaie the Group or to cease operations, 
or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the G r o ~ ~ p  and of its associates are responsible 
for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and of its associates. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for ttlc Audit of  the Consolidatcid Finaricial Staterrrents 

Our objectives are to obtairi reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error, arid to issue an auditor's report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is riot a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detet:t a rrlaterial rriisstatement when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error arid are considered rnaterial if, iridividually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of user's taker1 on the basis of these consolidated 
financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgrnent arid maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

Identify and assess the risks of rnaterial misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design arid perform audit proc;edures responsive to tliose risks, arid obtatri audit evidence that 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinror! r h c  risk of riot detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than fclr orle resulling frorn error, as fraud rnay involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevarit to the :judi! in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of !he Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible 



for expressing our opiriiori on whether the cornpariy has adequate internal finaricial controls with reference to 
financial statements in place and the opc?rdting effectiveness of such coritrols. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policras used arid the rc?asonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management. 

Conclude on the appropriateness of rnanagernerit's use of the goirig concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a rnaterial uricertairity exists related to events or conditions that may 
cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its associates to continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uricertainty exists, we are! reyirired to draw atterition in our auditor's report to the 
related disclosures in the consolidated finaricial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit cvidence obtairied up to the date of our auditor's report. 
However, future events or coriditioris rnay cause the Group arid its associates to cease to continue as a going 
concern. 

Evaluate the overall presentation, structiire and content of the corisolidated financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the corisolidated financial stateriieriis reprc?serit the tiriderlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence? regardirig the f~nar~cial iriforrnatiori of the entities or business 
activities within the Group and its associates lo express ari opiriion or1 tile consolidated financial statements. 
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and perforrriarice of the audit of the financial statements of 
such entities included in the consolidated firiancial staterrlerits of which we are the independent auditors. For 
the other entities included in the corisolidated firiancial statc:rrierits, which have beeri audited by other auditors, 
such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supcr-vision arid performance of the audits carried out 
by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opiriion. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated firiaricial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the econornid decisioris of a reasonably kriowledyeable user of the 
consolidated financial statements rriay be irifl~.~ericetl. Wo consider (quantitative rnateriality and qualitative 
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work arid in evalclatirig the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate 
the effect of any identified misstatemerits in the corisolidated financial statements 

We communicate with those charged with governance of the tioldirig Corripariy and such other entities 
included in the consolidated firiaricial staternents of which we arc-! the iridependerit auditors regarding, among 
other matters, the planned scope and limrrig of [tic-: auciit and sigrilfrcsrit audit findings, iriclclding any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we ideritify during our audlt 

We also provide those charged with goverriarice with a staterrlent that vve have cornplied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to corrin-iuriicate with thern all relatioriships and other matters that 
may reasonably be thought to bear or1 our irideperidence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters cornrriunicated with lhose charged with governance, we determine those rrlatters that were of 
most significance in the audit of tho c:orisolitlated finaric~al slaternents of the current period and are therefore 
the key audit matters. We describe these rilatters in our atitlitor's report unless law or regulation precludes 
public disclosure about the rnatter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should 
not be communicated in our report becaiise the adverse coriseyuerices of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh, the public iriterest benefits of such cornrriunicatiori. 

Other Matters 

The consolidated finaricial staternerits also irir;lutle the (;roiipls share of net prof~tlloss of Rs. Nil for the year 
ended 31st March, 2022, as consid(-!red in lhe corisolida!od financial statements, in respect of 4 associates, 
whose financial statements have riot boeri audited by 11s. Theso firiaricial staterrlerits have been audited by 
other auditors whose reports have beeri furnislied to us by the Mariagernerit arid our opinion on the 
consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the arnourits arid disclosures included in respect of 
these subsidiaries and associates, and our report in terrns of sub--section (3) of Section 113 of the Act, in so far 
as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, arid associates, IS based solely or1 the reports of the other auditors. 



Our opinion on the consolidated financial staterrierits, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of Ihe above rriatters witti respect to our reliance on the work 
done and the reports of the other auditors arid the financial statenierlts I financial information certified by the 
Management. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory liccl uirert~ents 

As required by the Compariies (Autlitor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by the Central Government 
of India in terms of Section 143(1 1) of' thc Act, we give iri the "Aririexure A" a staternent on the matters 
specified in paragraphs 3 and I of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

2.With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auclitor's Report in accordance with the requirements 
of section 197(16) of the Act, as arnendetl: 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explariations given to us, the 
remuneration paid by the Corripariy to its diret:tors during ?tie year is in accordance with the provisions of 
section 197 of the Act. 

3.As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, [based on our audit arid on the consideration of report of the other 
auditors on separate financial statements and the other firiancial information of associates, as noted in the 
other matter 'paragraph,]we repor.[, to the extent applicable, !hat: 

(a) We have sought and obtairied all tht: iriformat~on anci explanations which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid corisolidated financial 
statements. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of acco~~r i t  as reqclired by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements have beer1 kept so far as it appears from our examination of those 
books and the reports of the other autiitors. 

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the CorisoIrd:itetl Staterrlent of Profit arid Loss, and the 
Consolidated Cash Flow Staternen! and Consolidated Staternerit of Changes Iri  equitydealt with by this 
Report are in agreement with the relevarit books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation 
of the consolidated flnaricial staternerils. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid corisolitlated financial :::taterr~ents comply with the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of ttie Act. 

(e) On the basis of  the written represerltatioris receivetl frorn Ihe directors of the Holdirig Company as on 
31st March, 2022 taken on record by the Boartl of C>irectors of the Holdirig Company and the reports of 
the stati~tory auditors of its subsidiary cornpariic?~, associate cornparlies none of the directors of the 
Group companies arid its associate companies is discqualified as on 31st March, 2022 from being 
appointed as a director in terrris ol Section 164 (2) ol thc? Act. 

(0 With respect to the adequacy of interrial financial controls over financial reporting of the Holding 
Company, its subsidiary companies and associate conlpariies arid the operatirig effectiveness of such 
controls, refer to our separate rctpori in Arinexure "13". 

(g) With respect to the other matters to bo included in ltie Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule I I of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014, ir.i our opir~iori arid to the best of our information and 
according to the explariatioris giver1 to usaritl based or1 the consideration of the report of the other 
auditors on separate financial slaterrierits as also Ihe other financial irlforrnatiori of the associates, as 



i. The consolidated financial staterrients disclose the irripact of perid~rig litigations on the 
consolidated firiaricial position of the Group arid its associates- Refer Note 38 to the consolidated 
financial staternerits. 

ii. Provision has been made in tile corisol~datetl financial staterrients, as required under the 
applicable law or accounting standards, for r~iaterial foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term 
contracts including derivative contracts - Refer (a) Note 34 to the consolidated financial 
statements iri respect of such items as it relales to the Group and its associates and (b) the 
Group's share of net profitlloss in respect of its associates. 

iii. There were rio amounts which were requireti to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Holtlirig C;ompany, arid it!; subsidiary cornpariies, associate companies. 

iv. (i) The rrianagcrrierit has ropresctrilcd that, to the best oi it's knowledge arid belief, as disclosed 
in the notes to the accounts. no f~irlds have beeri advanced or loaned or lrivested (either from 
borrowed funds or share pl-er~iiurn or any othc?r sources or kind of furitls) by the Holding Company, 
and its subsidiary companies, associate compariies to or in any other person(s) or entity (ies), 
including foreign entities ("lritermediaries"), witti the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or iridirectly lend or invest in other persons 
or entities identified in ariy ri2aririer whatsoever by or on behalf of ttie tioltlirig Company, and its 
subsidiary corriperiies, associatr? cofrrpanie:; ("l.lltirriate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, 
security or the lilte on behalf ol  the llll ir~iate Boriol~ciaries: 

(ii) The management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as disclosed 
in the notes to the accounts, no funds have beeri received by the Holding Company, and its 
subsidiary companies, associate companies from any person(s) or eritity (ies), including foreign 
entities ("Furiding Parties"), with the uriderstar~din!~, whether recorded in w~riting or otherwise, that 
the Holding Corripany, and its s[.rbsitiiar-y cori~panies arid associate corripanies shall, whether, 
directly or indirectly, lend or irivest In ottter persons or entities identified ~n arly manner whatsoever 
by or or1 behalf of the F~lntlirig I'arly ("illtimate Doneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security 
or the like on behalf of the Ultirnatc? Uerieficiaries: arid 

(iii) Based on ttie audit prot:edures that has corisidered reasonable arld appropriate in the 
circumstances, riothirig has come to our notice that has caused then.1 to believe that the 
representations urlder sub-clause (i) and (ii) coritaio ariy rnaterial misslalerrierit. 

v. There is no (lividend tlcclaretl or pald tluriri(j the year by the I-loldirig Company, and its 
subsidiary companies and assot;iate cornpariles 

For Dewan P. N. Chopra & Co 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn. No. 000gJ2, 

Place of Signature: New Deli-)I 
Date: 1 3 ' ~  May 2022 



ANNEXURE-A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Requirements: of our Report of even date.) 

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the consolidated 
financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and explanations given by 
the management and the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit 
and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we report that: - 

(xxi) ' According to the information and explanations given to us, there have been no qualifications or adverse 
remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (CARO) reports of 
the companies included in the consolidated financial statements, except for the following: 

Sr. 
No. 

(a) 
1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

Name 

(b) 
lnox Green Energy Services 
Limited 
Aliento Wind Energy Private 
Limited 
Flurry Wind Energy Private 
Limited 
Flutter Wind Energy Private 
Limited 
Haroda Wind Energy Private 
Limited 
Khatiyu Wind Energy Private 
Limited 
Ravapar Wind Energy Private 
Limited 
Ripudaman Urja Private Limited 

Suswind Power Private Limited 

Tempest Wind Energy Private 
Limited 

Vasuprada Renewable Private 
Limited 

Vibhav Energy Private Limited 

Vigodi Wind Energy Private 
Limited 
Vuelta Wind Energy Private 
Limited 

CIN 

(c) 
U45207GJ2012PLC07027 
9 
U40300GJ2018PTC10058 
5 
U40200GJ2018PTC10060 
7 
U403OOGJ2018PTC10060 
9 
U40300GJ2017PTC09981 
8 
U40300GJ2017PTC09983 
1 
U40300GJ2017PTC09985 
4 
U40300GJ2017PTC09714 
0 
U40300GJ2017PTC09712 
8 
U40106GJ2018PTC10059 
0 

U40100GJ2017PTC09713 
0 

U40106GJ2017PTC09823 
0 
U40300GJ2017PTC09985 
1 
U40106GJ2018PTC10059 
1 

Holding 
Company/subs 
idiary/ 
Associate 

(dl 
Holding 
Company 
Subsidiary 
Company 
Subsidiary 
Company 
Subsidiary 
Company 
Subsidiary 
Company 
Subsidiary 
Company 
Subsidiary 
Company 
Subsidiary 
Company 
Subsidiary 
Company 
Subsidiary 
Company 

Subsidiary 
Company 

Subsidiary 
Company 
Subsidiary 
Company 
Subsidiary 
Company 

Clause number of the CAR0 
report which is 
qualified or adverse 

(e) 
Clause ii (b), Clause vii (a), Clause 
ix(d), Clause (xvii) 
Clause vii(a) and Clause xvii 

Clause vii(a) and Clause xvii 

Clause vii(a) and Clause xvii 

Clause xvii 

Clause xvii 

Clause xvii 

Clause xvii 

Clause vii(a) and Clause xvii 

Clause vii(a) and Clause xvii 

Clause vii(a) and Clause xvii 

Clause xvii 

Clause xvii 

Clause vii(a) and Clause xvii 



For Dewan P. N. Chopra & Co. 

Place of Signature: New Delhi 
Date: 13th May 2022 

Clause vii(a) and Clause xvii 

Clause xvii 

Clause xvii 

Clause xvii 

Clause xvii 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

U40300GJ2017PTC09700 
3 
U40300GJ2017PTC09985 
2 

U40106GJ2017PLC09708 
8 

U40200GJ2017PLC09695 
6 

U40100GJ2017PLC09697 
3 

Wind Four Renergy Private 
Limited 
Nani Virani Wind Energy Private 
Limited 

Wind One Renergy Limited 

Wind Three Renergy Limited 

Wind Five Renergy Limited 

Subsidiary 
Company 
Subsidiary 
Company 

Associate 
Company 

Associate 
Company 

Associate 
Company 



ANNEXURE - "6" TO THE INDEPENDENT AIJDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE 
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEltrlEId'TS OF lnox Grr:cn Energy Services Lirnited 

Report on the lnternal Financial Controls [ h e r  Firrant:ial Reporting under Clause  (i) of Sub-section 3 o f  
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2 U I Y  ("the Act") 

In conjunction with our audit of the? consoiidated liriaricial statenrents of the Corrrpany as of and for the year 
ended March 31, 2022, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of lnox Green 
Energy Services Lirnited (hereinafter reforretl to as "the Holtling Company") and its subs~diary companies and 

, . 
its associate companies, which are companies ~ricorporated in India, as of that date. 

Management's Res;ponsibiliQy for Inter'nal Finarrci;~l Contruls 

The respective Board of Directors of ti-re Holding corupany, its subsidiary coripanies and its associate 
companies, which arc? c;orr~pariies incorpc~rated in Iridia, arc? responsible for establishing and maintaining 
internal finaricial controls based on the internal corrtrol over finaricial reporling criteria established by the 
respective company considering the esseritial corriporiorits of internal control stated iri the Guidance Note on 
Audit of lnternal Financial Controls Over i-~nancial Reporting issued by the lrlslitute of Chartered Accountants 
of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation arid maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were opc?rating effectively for itrisuririg Lhe orderly arid efficient conduct of its business, 
including adhererice to the rc?spective corripaoy's policies, thc safeguardirrg of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds arid errors, the accuracy arid corr1ple:teness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial irifor-niation, as required under !he Corrrpanies Act, 201 3 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opiriiori on !he Con.ipariy's internal finaricial controls over financial reporting 
based on our audit. We coriducled our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (li-ie "ll;uidarice Note") issued by the ICAI arid the Standards on 
Auditing, issued by lCAl and dec?n'ied lo bc: prescribctl under section l43(10) of the Conrpanies Act, 201 3, to 
the extent applicable to an audit of irilernal financial controls, both issued by the lristitute of Chartered 
Accountants of Iridia. Those Sttandard:; arid the Guidar!ce Note require that we (;omply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the atidii lo obiairi reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 
financial controls over finaricial report in!^ was eslahlishetl and rnaintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over finaricial reportirig and their opcratiricj effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting includeti obta~niri(~ ;In uriderstarldirig of internal finaricial controls over financial 
reporting, assessing the risk trial a rriater~al vver.lkriess cx~sts, and testing and evaluating the design and 
operating effectiveness of internal control i.)ased on the ass(>:js(?d risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor's judgement, includirig thr: assessrrwni of thc? risks oi rriaterial misstaterrient of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidericct we tiave obtained arid tti(1 audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in 
terms of their reports referred to in the Olli!?r Matter!; paragraph below, is sufficient arid appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the Corrrpan)/'s iriiernal f~rraricial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning o f  lnternal Finar~cial  Corrtrols u'icr' Finarrcial Reporting 

A company's internal iinancial control over fir\ar\cial repor-tlng is a process designetl to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial rc?por-lirr(j and iile preparatiori of firiaricial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with (generally ac:c:autetl accouriiir!g princ~ples. A cornparry's interrial financial control 
over financial repotting incl~ides ttiose policies arid [.)rocoduros that ( I )  pertairi to the rciaintenance of records 
that, in reasonable detail, accurately anti fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 



of financial statemerits in accordarice \vi!h gorierally accepietl accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being r;,;itle only in accordance with authorisations of management and 
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assiliance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the cornpariy's assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations o f  l r~ terna l  F inanc i~ i l  Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent lirriitations of internal I~naricial coritrols over financial reporting, including the possibility 
of collusion or improper rrianagerr\ent ovc:rr~(-ie of controls, r'11aterial misstatements due to error or fraud may 
occur and not be detected. Also, projeciions of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting to future periods are subject to thc risk that the iritc!rnal financial control over financial reporting may 
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the tlolding (:orripany,  is silbsldrary conipariies and its associate companies, which are 
companies incorporated ir-I India, have, in all rriaterial respects, an adequate internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting arid such ~riternal !iriari::ial controls ovor financial reporting were operating effectively as 
at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over firiaric:ral reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essc?ntial cornporiorits of ir-itorrial corltrol stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporliric) issued by \tie ICAI 

Other Matters 

Our aforesaid reports untler Seclron 14:3(3)(i) of the Act ori the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the 
internal financial controls over irriaricral reportirig lnsolar as it relates to 4 associate companies is based on the 
corresponding reports of tile auditors ol s~ici-i c:oriiparilos ~ricorporated In India. 

For Dewan P. N. Chopra 8. Co.  

Date: 1 3 ' ~  ~a~ 2022 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 

CIN: U45207GJ2012PLCO70279 

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022 

(7 in Lakhs) 

As at As at 
Particulars Notes 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

ASSETS 
Non-current assets 
(a) Property, plant and equipment 
(b) Capital work-in-progress 
(c) Intangible assets 
(d) Financial assets 

(i) Investments 
-In associates 

(ii) Other non-current financial assets 
(e) Deferred tax assets (net) 
( f )  Income tax assets (net) 

(g) Other non-current assets 

Total Non - current assets 

Current assets 
(a) Inventories 
(b)  Financial assets 

(i) Trade receivables 
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 
(iv) Loans 
(v) Other current financial assets 

(c) Other current assets 
Total Current assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED ( fo rmer ly  k n o w n  as lnox  W i n d  Inf rast ructure Services L imi ted)  

CIN: U45207GJ2012PLCO70279 

Consolidated Balance Sheet as a t  31 March 2022 

(T in  Lakhs) 

Particulars 
As at As at 

Notes 
31 March 2022 3 1  March 2021 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
EQUITY 
(a) Equity share capital 
(b) Equity component of compound financial instrument 

(c) Other equity 
Total equity 

LIABILITIES 
Non-current liabilities 
(a) Financial liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 
(ii) Other financial liabilities 

(b) Provisions 
(c) Other non-current liabilities 
Total non-current liabilities 

Current liabilities 
(a) Financial liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 
(ii) Trade payables 

a) total outstanding dues o f  micro enterprises and small enterprises 

b) total outstanding dues o f  creditors other than micro enterprises and small 
enterprises 

(iii) Other financial liabilities 
(b) Other current liabilities 
(c) Provisions 
Total current liabilities 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

The accompanying notes ( 1  t o  60) are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements 

As per our report of even date attached 
For Dewan PN Chopra & Co. For and o n  behalf o f  the Board of Directors 

Chartered Accountants n 

DIN : 06709232 

Govind Prakash Rathore 
Chief Financial Officer 

DIN : 06709239 

Pooja Paul 
Company Secretary 

Place : New De'lhi 
Date : 13 May 2022 

Place : Noida 
Date : 13 May 2022 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly known  as lnox  W ind  Infrastructure Services Limited) 

CIN:U45207GJ2012PLCO70279 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022 

(T in  Lakhs) 

Particulars 
Year ended Year ended 

Notes 
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

Revenue 
Revenue from operations 
Other income 
Total Revenue (I) 

Expenses 
O&M, Common infrastructure facility expenses 

Purchases of stock-in-trade 

Changes in inventories 
Employee benefits expense 
Finance costs 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 
Other expertses 
Total Expenscs (11) 
Less: Expenditure capitalised 
Net Expenscs 
Share of profit/(loss) of associates (Ill) 
Profit before exceptional items and tax (I - II t 111 = IV) 
Exceptional i t m  (V) 

Profit/(loss) before tax (IV-V=VI) 
Tax expense (VII): 
Current tax 
MAT credit entitlement 
Deferred tax - 
Taxation pertaining t o  earlier years 

Profit/(Loss) after tax for the year from continuing operations (VI-VII=VIII) 

r is continued operations (Refer Fiote 32) 
Profit/(Loss) for the year from discontinued oper~tions 
Other comprehensive income 
Tax credit from discontinued operations 
Profit/(loss) from Discontinued operations (aftor tax) (IX) 

Profit/(loss) after tax for the year (VIIIilX=X) 

Other Comprehensive income 
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified t o  profit or loss 

Remeasurement of defined benefit obligatior, 
Tax on above 
Total Otlier ~omprehensive income (XI) 

Total Compreherlsive incorne for tlre year (X t XI) 

Profit for the year attributable to  : 
-3wners of the company 
-Non-'Controlling ir~terests 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly known  as lnox W ind  Infrastructure Services Limited) 

CIN: U45207GJ2012PLCO70279 

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31  March 2022 
( f i n  Lakhs) 

Particulars 
Year ended Year ended 

Notes 
31  March 2022 ; 3 1  March 2023 -- 

Other Comprehensive income for the year from continuing operations 
-Owners of the company 28.64 0.64 
-Now Controlling interests 

Total Comprehensive income for the year 
-Owners of the company 
-Now Controlling interests 

Earnings per share for continuing operations [Face value of 710 per share] 

Basic earnings (not anr~ualised) (in T) 
Diluted earnings (not annualised) (in f )  

Earnings per share for discontinued operations [Face value of T I0  per share] 

Basic earnings (not annualised) (in f )  
Diluted earnings (not annualised) (in 7) 

The accompanying notes (1 to 60) are an'integral part of the consolidated financial statements 

As per our report of even date attached 
For Dewan PN Chopra & Co. 

Place i New Delhi 
Date : 13 May 2022 

For and on behalf of the Board o f  Directors 
h 

DIN : 06709239 

i 

&c/v\LJ 
Govind Prakash Rathore Pooja Paul 
Chief  ina an cia! Officer Company Secretary 

Place : Noida 
Date : 13 May 2022 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly known as lnox Wind infrastructure Services Limited) 

CIN: U45207GJ2012PLC070279 
Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2022 

- (Tin LakhsL 

Particulars Year ended Year ended 
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Profit/(loss) for the year after tax from continuing operations 
Profit/(loss) for the year after tax from discontinued operations 
Adjustments for: 

Tax expense 
Finance costs 
Interest income 
Share of (profit)/loss of associates 
Bad debts, remissions and liquidated damages 
Allowance for expected credit losses 
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 
Net (gains)/loss on derivative portion of compound financial instrument 
Profit on sale of investment 
Loss on Disposal of Subsidiaries 
impairment in value of inter-corporate deposit to subsidiary 
Loss on sale / disposal of property, plant and equipment 
Net (gains)/loss on Mutual Fund 

Movements in working capital: 
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade receivables 
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories 
(Increasa)/Decrease in Other financial assets 
(Increase)/Decrease in Other assets 
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade payabies 
increase/(Decrease) in Other financial liabilities 
increase/(Decrease) in Other liabilities 
Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions 

Cash generated from operations 
Income taxes paid 
Net cash generated from operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (including changes in capital 
WIi', capital creditors/advances) 

Sale of Investment in subsidiaries & associates 
(Purchase)/sale of mutual funds 
interest received 
inter corporate deposits given 
Inter corporate deposits received back 
Movement in Bank fixed deposits 

Net cash (wed in) investing activities 

Cash flows ffom financing activities 
Proceeds from non-current borrowings 
Repayment of non-current borrowings 
Proceeds frorn/(repayment of) short term borrowings (net) 
Finance costs 

Net cash generated from financing activities 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 
'On account consolidation adjustment* 
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiary 

Cash and cash equivalents at Ihc end of the year 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 

CIN: U45207GJ2012PLCO70279 

Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2022 
( t  in  Lakhs) 

Year ended Year ended 
Particulars 

31 March 2022 3 1  March 2021 

Changes in  liabilities arising from financing activities during the year ended 3 1  March 2022 
( t i n  Lakhsl 

Particulars Current Nan ~ ~ u i t y  share ' 
borrowings borrowings Capital 

Opening Balance 88,067.65 57,750.05 i1,621.30 
Conversion of Debenture into Equity " (20,000.00) 2,480.21 
Conversion of ICD into Equity (40,000.00) 4,859.51 

Transfer through BTA (24,359.42) (6,500.00) 
Cash flows (8,682.06) 16,756.44 
Interest expense 4,474.32 
Interest paid/ Conversion in Equity 9,690.90 (6,420.00) 
Conversion of ICD into Preference shares 20,000.00 

Others 3,299.92 
Consolidation Adjustment 
Closing Balance 

Changes in  liabilities arising from financing activities during the year ended 31 March 2021 
( f i n  Lakhs) 

Particulars Current Non Current Equity Share 
borrowings 

Opening Balance 53,157.30 
Conversion of Debenture into Equity 
Cash flows 22,492.60 
Interest expense 5,903.34 
interest paid 
Unwinding cost of compounding financial instrument 

Others 
Consolidation Adjustment 6,514.40 
Closing Balance 88,067.64 

borrowings Capital -- 
59,286.50 11,621.30 
(10,000.00) 1,240.70 

6,131.62 
4,871.94 

(5,442.94) 
2,903.00 

Notes: 
1 The above statement of cash flows has been prepared and presented under the indirect method. 
2 Components of cash and cash equivalents are as per Note 13 
3 The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements 

As per our report of even date attached 

Place : New Delhi 
Date : 13 May 2022 

on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Govlnd Prakash Rathore Pooja P ~ U I  

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 

Place : Noida 
Date : 13 Mav 2022 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly known as Inox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 

CIN: U45207GJ2012PLCO70279 

Consolidated statement of changes i n  equity for the year ended 3 1  March 2022 

A. Equity share capital 

~alance'at the beginning of 
the current reporting period 

errors period period period 

8. Other eauitv . . 
( t i n  Lakhs) 

Security 

Balance as at 31 March 2020 
Additions during the year: 
Transfer on account of Redemption of 

/Security Premium 

Stamp duty paid on increase of authorised 
share capital 

Profit/(Loss) for the year 
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiary 
Other comprehensive income for the year, net 
of income tax (*) 
Adjustment of consolidation 
Total comprehensive income for tha year 

Calance as at 31 March 2021 
Additions during :he year: 
Transfer on account of Conversion of OCD 
Security Premium 

Stamp duty paid on increase of authorised 
share capital 

Profit/(l.oss) for the year 
Other comprehensive income for the year, net 
of inrome tax I*) 
Total comprehensive income for the yea; 
Balance as at 31 March 2022 

(*) Other comprehensive income for the.period classified under retained earnings is In respect of remeasurement of defined benefit plans 

Thr: accompanying notes (1 to 60) are an integrqi part of :he consolidated financial statements. 

As per our report of even date attached 
For Dewan PN Chopra & Co. For on behalf of the Board of Dlrcctors 

Place : hew Cellii 
Date : 13 May 2022 

h l ~ d  Govitid Prakash Rathore I? 
Chief Financial Officer 

Place : Noida 
Gate : 13 May 2022 

Pooja Paul 
Company Secretary 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly Known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

1. Group Statements 

lnox Green Energy Services Limited ("the Holding Company/ the Company") is a public limited company incorporated in 
India. These Consolidated Financial Statements ("the Statements") relate to  the Holding Company and its subsidiaries" 
(collectively referred to as the "Group") and the Group's interest in associates. 

The Group is engaged in the business of providing Erection, Procurement and Commissioning ("EPC") services, 
Operations and Maintenance ("O&MU) services, wind farm development services and Common lnfrastructure Facilities 
for WTGs. Consequent t o  the Business Transfer Agreement ("BTA") dated 3 1  December 2021, the Group is in the 
business of providing Operations and Maintenance ("O&Mn) services, Common lnfrastructure Facilities for WTGs and 
in the business of generation and sale of wind energy (Refer Note 32). 

The Holding Company is a subsidiary of lnox Wind Limited and its ultimate holding company is lnox Leasing and Finance 
Limited. 

The area of operations of the Group'is within India. 

The Holding Company's registered office is located at Survey No. 1837 & 1834 ABS Tower, 2" Floor, Old Padra Road, 
Vadodara- 390007, Gujarat, India. 

2. Statement of compliance and basis of preparation and presentation 

2.1 Statement of Compliance 

These Consolidated Financial Statements comply in all material aspects with the Indian Accounting Standards ("lnd AS") 
notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") and other relevant provisions of the Act. 

2.2  asi is of Measurement 

These Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in lndian Rupees ("Rs."), which is also the Group's functional 
and presentation currency. All amounts have been rounded off to the nearest millions, unless otherwise indicated. 

~ h e s e  Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial 
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the significant 
accounting policies. 

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to  transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or 
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into 
account the characteristics of the asset or liability i f  market participants would take those characteristics into account 
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in 
these Consolidated Financial Statements is determined on such a basis, except for leasing transactions that are within 
the scope of Ind AS 17, and measurements that have some similarities t o  fair value but are not fair value, such as net 
realisable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in fnd AS 36. 

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1,2, or 3 based on the 
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair 
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows: 

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can 
access at the measurement date; 
Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or 
liability, either directly or indirectly; and 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly Known as lnox Wind lnfrostructure Services Limited) 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 

2.3 Basis of Preparation and Presentation 

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard initially adopted ; 
or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use. 

These CFS have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting policies are applied consistently to  
all the periods presented in the financial statements. 

Any asset or liability is classified as current if it satisfies any of the following conditions: 
the asset/liability is expected to  be realized/settled in the Group's normal operating cycle; 
the asset is intended for sale or consumption; 
the asset/liability is held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
the asset/liability is expected to  be realized/settled within twelve months after the reporting period 
the asset is cash or cash equivalent unless i t  is restricted from being exchanged or used t o  settle a liability for at 
least twelve months after the reporting date; 
in the case of a liability, the Group does not have an unconditional right to  defer settlement of the liability for at 
least twelve months after the reporting date. 

All other assets and liabilities are classified as non-current. 

For the purpose of current/non-current classification of assets and liabilities, the Group has ascertained its normal 
operating cycle as twelve months. This is based on the nature of products and services and the time between the 
acquisition of assets or inventories for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents. 

These Consolidated Financial Statements were authorized for issue by the Holding Company's Board of Directors on 13 
May 2022. 

3. Basis of Consolidation and Significant Accounting Polices 

3.1 Basis of consolidation 

~ h e s e '  Consolidated Financial Statements incorporate the financial statements of the Holding Company and its 
subsidiaries. 

Control is achieved when the Group: 
has power over the investee; 
is exposed, or has rights, to  variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and 
has the ability to  use its power to  affect its returns. 

The Holding Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there 
are changes to  one or more of the three elements of control listed above. 

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Holding Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when 
the Holding Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or 
disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit and loss from the date the Holding 
Company gains control until the date when the Holding Company ceases to  control the subsidiary. 

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to  the owners of the Company and to  
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to  the owners of the Company 
and to  the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly Known as lnox Wind infrastructure Services Limited) 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events 
in similar circumstances. If a member of the group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the 
Consolidated Financial Statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments 
are made to that group member's Financial Statements in preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements to ensure 
conformity with the group's accounting policies. 

Al1,intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses, and cash flows relating to  transactions between*: 
subsidiaries of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation. 

3.1.1 Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing subsidiaries 
Changes in the Group's ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over the 
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's interest and the non- 
controlling interests are adjusted to  reflect the changes in their relative interest in the subsidiaries. Any difference 
between the amount that the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or 
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company. 

When the Group losses control of a subsidiary, gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as a difference 
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and 
(ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non- 
controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to  that subsidiary 
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e., 
reclassified t o  profit or loss or transferred to  another category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable Ind AS). 
The fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when the control is lost is regarded as the 
fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under Ind AS 109, or, when applicable, the cost on initial 
recognition of an investment in an associate. 

3.2 Business combinations 

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business 
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets 
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests 
issued by the Group in exchange of control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit 
or loss as incurred. 

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, 
except that: 

deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related to  employee benefit arrangements are recognised 
and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Taxes and Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits respectively; 
liabilities or equity instruments related t o  share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based 
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to  replace share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree 
are measured in accordance with Ind AS 102 Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and 
assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105 Non-current Assets Held 
for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that Standard. 

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling 
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over 
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. 

In case of a bargain purchase, before recognising a gain in respect thereof, the Group determines whether there exists 
clear evidence of the underlying reasons for classifying the business combination as a bargain purchase. Thereafter, the 
Group reassesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and 
recognises any additional assets or liabilities that are identified in that reassessment. The Group then reviews the 
procedures used to  measure the amounts that Ind AS requires for the purposes of calculating the bargain purchase. If 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly Known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

the gain remains after this reassessment and review, the Group recognises it in other comprehensive income and 
accumulates the same in equity as capital reserve. This gain is attributed to  the acquirer. If there does not exist clear 
evidence of the underlying reasons fpr classifying the business combination as a bargain purchase, the Group recognises 
the gain, after reassessing and reviewing (as described above), directly in equity as capital reserve. 

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to  a proportionate share of the 
entity's net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling' 
interests' proportionate share o f  the recognised amounts of the acquiree's identifiable net assets, The choice of 
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured 
at fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another Ind AS. 

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business combination includes'assets or liabilities resulting from 
a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration'is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and 
included as part of the consideration transferred in a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent 
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with corresponding 
adjustments against goodwill o r  capital reserve, as the case may be. Measurement period adjustments are adjustments 
that arise from additional Statements obtained during the 'measurement period' (which cannot exceed one year from 
the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date. 

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as 
measurement period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent consideration 
that is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted 
for within equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured at fair value at 
subsequent reporting dates with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. 

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is 
remeasured to  its acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in  profit or loss. Amounts 
arising from interests in the acquiree prior t o  the acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other 
comprehensive income are reclassified to  profit or loss where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest were 
disposed of. 

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the 
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those 
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities are 
recognised to  reflect new Statements obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, 
if known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that date. 

3.3 Goodwill 

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business 
(see Note 3.2 above) less accumulated impairment losses, i f  any. 

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to  each of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of 
cash-generating units) that is expected to  benefit from the synergies of the combination. 

A cash-generating unit to  which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when 
there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than 
it's carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to  reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to  
the unit and then to  the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount o f  each asset in the unit. Any 
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not 
reversed in subsequent periods. 

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination 
of the'profit or loss on disposal. 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly Known as lnox Wind infrastructure Services Limited) 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

3.4 Investment i n  associates L 

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to  participate 
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those policies. 

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these CFS using the equity method of accounting, 
except when the investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as held for sale, in which case i t  is accounted for in 
accordance with Ind AS 105. Under the equity method, an investment in an associate is initially recognised in the 
Consolidated Statement of Assets and Liabilities at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the.  
profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate. Distributions received from an associate reduce the 
carrying amount o f  the investment. When the Group's share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group's interest in 
that associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the 
associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to  the 
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. 

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity method from the date on which the investee becomes 
an associate. On acquisition of the investment in  an associate, any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group's 
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is 
included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the 
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised directly in equity as 
capital reserve in the period in which the investment is acquired. 

After application of the equity method of accounting, the Group determines whether there is any objective evidence of 
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the net investment in an 
associate and that event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows from the net investment that can 
be reliably estimated. If there exists such objective evidence of impairment, then it is necessary t o  recognise impairment 
105s with respect t o  the Group's investment in an associate. 

When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in 
accordance with Ind AS 36 tmpairment of Assets as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value 
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the 
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with Ind AS 36 to 
the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases. 

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the date when the investment ceases to  be an associate, or 
when the investment is classified as held for sale. When the Group retains an interest in the former associate and the 
retained interest is a financial asset, the Group measures the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair 
value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition in accordance with Ind AS 109. The difference between the 
carrying amount of the associate at the date the equity method was discontinued, and the fair value of any retained 
interest and any proceeds from disposing of a part interest in associate is included in the determination of the gain or 
loss on disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other 
comprehensive income in relation to  that associate on the same basis as would be required if that associate had directly 
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive 
income by that associate would be reclassified to  profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the 
Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity t o  profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity method 
is d.iscontinued. 

The Group continues to  use the equity method when an investment in an associate becomes an investment in joint 
venture. There is no remeasurement to fair value upon such changes in,ownership interests. When the Group reduces 
its ownership interest in an associate but the Group continues to  use the equity method, the Group reclassifies to  profit 
or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income relating 
to  that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would be reclassified to  profit or loss on the disposal of the 
related assets or liabilities. 
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When a Group transacts with an associate of the Group, unrealised gains and losses resulting from such transactions 
are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associate. 

3.5 Revenue recognition 

Revenue is recognised upon transfer.of control of promised products or services t o  customers in  an amount that reflects 
the consideration which the group expects to  receive in exchange for those products or services. 

Revenue from time and material and job contracts is recognised on output basis measured by units delivered, 
efforts expended, number of transactions processed, etc. 
Revenue related to  fixed price maintenance and support services contracts where the Group is standing ready to 
provide services is recognised based on time elapsed mode and revenue is straight lined over the period of 
performance. 
Revenue from services rendered is recognised in profit or loss in proportion to  the stage of completion of 
transaction at the reporting date and when the costs incurred for the transactions and the costs to  complete the 
transaction can be measured reliably, as under: 
Revenue from EPC is recognised on the basis of stage of completion by reference to  surveys of work performed. 
Revenue from operations and maintenance and common infrastructure facilities contracts is recognised over the 
period of the contract, on a straight-line basis w.e.f. signing of contracts. 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is recognised when i t  is 
probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Group and the amount of 
income can be measured reliably. Revenue is net of returns and is reduced for rebates, trade discounts, refunds 
and other similar allowances. Revenue is net of goods and service tax. 
Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume discounts, 
service level credits, performance bonuses, price concessions and incentives, if any, as specified in the contract with 
the customer. 
Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers. Revenue from subsidiaries is recognised based on 
transaction price which is at arm's length. Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned 
over billings on contracts. 
Contract assets are classified as unbilled receivables (only act of invoicing is pending) when there is unconditional 
right to  receive cash, and only passage of time is required, as per contractual terms. 
Unearned and deferred revenue ("contract liability") is recognised when there is billing in excess of revenue. 
The billing schedules agreed with customers include periodic performance-based payments and / or milestone- 
based progress payments, Invoices are payable within contractually agreed credit period. 
In accordance with Ind AS 37, the Group recognises an onerous contract provision when the unavoidable costs of 
meeting the obligations under a contract exceed the economic benefits to  be received. 
Contracts are subject to  modification to  account for changes in contract specification and requirements. The Group 
reviews modification to  contract in conjunction with the original contract, basis which the transaction price could 
be allocated to  a new performance obligation, or transaction price of an existing obligation could undergo a change. 
In the event transaction price is revised for existing obligation, a cumulative adjustment is accounted for. 

Use of significant judgments in  revenue recognition 
The Group contracts with customers could include promises to  transfer multiple products and services to a 

customer. The Group assesses the products / services promised in a contract and identifies distinct performance 
obligations in the contract, Identification of distinct performance obligation involves judgement to  determine the 
deliverables and the ability of the customer to  benefit independently from such deliverables. 

The Group uses judgement to  determine an appropriate standalone selling price for a performance obligation. 
The Group allocates the transaction price to  each performance obligation on the basis of the relative standalone 
selling price of each distinct product or service promised in the contract. Where standalone seiling price is not 
observable, the Group uses the expected cost-plus margin approach to  allocate the transaction price to  each 
distinct performance obligation. 

The Group exercises judgement in determining whether the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time 
or over a period of time. The Group considers indicators such as how customer consumes benefits as services are 
rendered or who controls the asset as it is being created or existence of enforceable right to  payment for 
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performance to  date and alternate use of such product or service, transfer of significant risks and rewards to the 
customer, acceptance of delivery by the customer, etc. 

Revenue for fixed-price contract is recognised using percentage-of-completion method. The Group uses, 
judgement to estimate the future cost-to-completion of the contracts which is used to  determine the degree o f '  
completion of the performance obligation. 

Contract fulfilment costs are generally expensed as incurred except for certain software licence costs which meet 
the criteria for capitalisation.'Such costs are amortised over the contractual period or useful life of licence 
whichever is less. The assessment of this criteria requires the. application of judgement, in particular when 
considering if costs generate or enhance resources to  be used t o  satisfy future performance obligations and 
whether costs are expected to  be recovered. 

3.5.1 Other income 

lnterest income from a financial asset is recognised on time basis, by reference to  the principal outstanding at 
the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate which exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts 
through the expected life of the financial asset to  that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition. 
Insurance claims are recognised to  the extent there is a reasonable certainty of the realizability of the claim 
amount. 
Dividend income is recorded when the right to receive payment is established. lnterest income is recognised 
using the effective interest method. 

3.6 Leasing 

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. The leasing transaction of the Group comprise 
of only operating leases. 

3.6.1 The Group as lessee 

Payments made under operating leases are generally recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term 
of the lease unless such payments are structured to  increase in line with the expected general inflation to compensate 
for the lessors' expected inflationary cost increases. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as 
an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

3.7 Borrowing costs 
Borrowing costs directly attributable to  the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets 
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to  get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to  the cost of 
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. 

lnterest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying 
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. 

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in  which they are incurred. 

3.8 Employee benefits 

3.8.1 Retirement benefit costs 

~ecognition and measurement o f  defined contribution plans: 

Payments to  defined contribution retirement benefit plan viz, government administered provident funds and pension 
schemes are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to  the contributions. 
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Recognition and measurement of de'fined benefit plans: 

For defined benefit plan, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with 
actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each reporting period. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains . 
and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding net 
interest), is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive 
income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected 
immediately in retained earnings and is not reclassified to  profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss 
in the period of a plan amendment.'Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to  the net defined benefit 
plan at the start of the reporting period, taking account of any change in the net defined benefit plan during the year as 
a result of contributions and benefit payments. Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows: 

service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and 
settlements); 
net interest expense or income; and 
remeasurement 

The ~ r o u ~  presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item 'Employee benefits 
expense'. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs. 

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Assets and Liabilities represents the 
actual deficit or surplus in the Group's defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the 
present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future 
contributions t o  the plans. 

3.8.2 Short-term and other long-term employee benefits 

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave, 
bonus etc. in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid 
in exchange for that service. 

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the 
benefits expected to  be paid in exchange for the related service. 

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of the 
estimated future cash outflows expected to  be made by the Group in  respect of services provided by employees up to  
the reporting date. 

3.9 Taxation 

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. 

3.9.1 Current tax 

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as reported 
in the consolidated statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible 
in other years, items that are never taxable or deductible and tax incentives. The Group's current tax is calculated using 
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

3.9.2 Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the 
Consolidated Financial Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred 
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised 
for all deductible temporary differences to  the extent that i t  is probable that taxable profits will be available against 
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which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised 
if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and 
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax 
liabilities are not recognised i f  the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and 
associates, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and i t  is probable that 
the temporary difference will not ,reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible 
temporary differences associated with such investments are only recognised to  the extent that it is probable that there 
will be sufficient taxable profits against which the benefits of the temporary differences can be utilised and they are 
expected to  reverse in the foreseeable future. 

The carrying amount otdeferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent 
that it'is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to  allow all or part of the asset to  be recovered. 

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to  apply in the period in which the 
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted 
by the end of the reporting period. 

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner 
in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to  recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and 
liabilities. 

3.9.3 Presentation of current and deferred tax: 

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to  items that are recognised in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial 
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the business combination. 

The Group offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to  set off the 
recognized amounts and where it intends either to  settle on a net basis, or to  realize the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously. In case of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities, the same are offset i f  the Group has a legally 
enforceable right to  set off corresponding current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets 
and deferred tax liabilities relate to  income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the Group. 

3.10 Property, plant and equipment 

An item of property, plant and equtpment (PPE) that qualifies as an asset is measured on initial recognition at cost. 
Following initial recognition PPE are carried at cost, as reduced by accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if 
any. 

The Group identifies and determines cost of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment separately, if the 
part has a cost which is significant to  the total cost of that item of property, plant and equipment and has useful life 
that is materially different from that of the remaining item. 

Cost comprises of purchase price /,cost of construction, including non-refundable taxes or levies and any expenses 
attributable t o  bring the PPE t o  its working condition for its intended use. Project pre-operative expenses and 
expenditure incurred during construction period are capitalized to  various eligible PPE. Borrowing costs directly 
attributable t o  acquisition or construction of qualifying PPE are capitalised. 

Spare.parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment that meet the definition of property, plant and equipment 
are capitalized at cost and depreciated over their useful life. Costs in nature of repairs and maintenance are recognized 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss as and when incurred. 
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Cost of assets not ready for intended use, as on the Balance Sheet date, is shown as capital work in progress. Advances 
given towards acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each Balance Sheet date are disclosed as 
Other Non-Current Assets. 

~ebreciat ion is recognised so as to  write off the cost of PPE (other than freehold land and properties under construction) 
less their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-line method. The useful lives prescribed in Schedule 
II to the Companies Act, 2013 are considered as the minimum lives. If the management's estimate of the useful life of 
property, plant and equipment at the time of acquisition of the asset or of the remaining useful life on a subsequent 
review is shorter than that envisaged in the aforesaid schedule, depreciation is provided at a higher rate based on the 
management's estimate of the useful life/remaining useful life. The estimated useful lives, residual values and 
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate 
accounted for on a prospective basis. 

PPE are depreciated over its estimated useful lives, determined as under: 
Freehold land is not depreciated. 
On other items of PPE, on the basis of useful life as per Part C of Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. 

The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period 
over which the assets are likely to  be used. 

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are 
expected to arise from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, 
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset 
and is recognised in profit or loss. .. 

3.11 lntangible assets 

lntangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation 
and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. 
The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of 
any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. lntangible assets with indefinite useful lives that 
are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. 

lntangible assets acquired in a business combination and recognised separately from goodwill arc initially recognised at 
their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost). Subsequent to  initial recognition, intangible 
assets acquired in a business combination are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, 
on the same basis as intangible assets as above. 

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or 
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net 
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised. 

Estimated useful lives of intangible assets 

Estimated useful lives of the intangible assets are as follows: 
Software 6 years 

3.12 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill 

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets (other 
than goodwill) t o  determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any 
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to  determine the extent of the 
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impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to  estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group' 
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to  which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and 
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, 
or otherwise they are allocated t o  the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent 
allocation basis can be identified. ; 

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the 
estimated future cash flows are discounted to  their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current 
markdt assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to  the asset for which the estimates of future cash ' 
flows have not been adjusted. If it is not possible to  measure fair value less cost of disposal because there is no basis for 
making a reliable estimate of the price at which an orderly transaction to sell the asset would take place between market 
participants at the measurement dates under market conditions, the asset's value in use is used as recoverable amount. 

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to  be less than its carrying amount, the 
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to  its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is 
recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

When an impairment ~oss'subse~uently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased 
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, to  the extent that the increased carrying amount does not exceed 
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash- 
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

3.13 Inventories 

Inventories are valued at lower of the cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using weighted average cost 
basis. 

Cost of inventories comprises all costs of purchase, duties and taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from 
tax authorities) and all other costs incurred in bringing the inventory to  their present location and condition. 

Cost of finished goods and work-in-progress includes the cost of materials, conversion costs, an appropriate share of 
fixed and variable production overheads and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories t o  their present location 
and condition. Closing stock of imported materials include customs duty payable thereon, wherever applicable. Net 
realizable value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of 
completion and the estimated costs necessary to  make the sale. 

3.14 Provisions and contingencies 

The Group recognizes provisions when a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event exists and 
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to  settle such obligation and 
the amount of such obligation can be reliably estimated. 

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required t o  settle the present obligation 
at the end of the reporting period, ,taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. If the 
effect of time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when 
appropriate, the risks specific t o  the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage 
of time is recognised as a finance cost. 

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but 
probably will not require an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or the amount of such obligation cannot 
be measured reliably. When there is a .possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which likelihood of 
outflow of resources embodying ecqnomic benefits is remote, no provision or disclosure is made. 

Contingent liabilities acquired in  a business combination are initially measured at fair value at the acquisition date. At 
the end of subsequent period, such contingent liabilities are measured at the higher of the amounts that would be 
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recognised in accordance with Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets and the amount initially : 
recognised less cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with Ind AS 18 Revenue, if any. 

3.15 Financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group member becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instruments. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction 
costs that are directly attributable to  the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than 
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value 
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition, Transaction costs directly attributable 
to  the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately 
in profit or loss. 

A] Financial assets 

a) Initial recognition and measurement: 

Financial assets are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. On 
initial recognition, a financial asset is recognised at fair value, in case of financial assets which are recognised at fair 
value through profit and loss (FVTPL), its transaction costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. In other 
cases, the transaction costs are attributed to the acquisition value of the financial asset. 

b) Effective interest method: 

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating 
interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future 
cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, 
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where 
appropriate, a shorter period, t o  thqnet carrying amount on initial recognition. 

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as 
at FVTPL, Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in  the "Other income" line item. 

c) Subsequent measurement: 

For subsequent measurement, the Group classifies a financial asset in accordance with the below criteria: 
i. The Group's business model for managing the financial asset and 
ii. The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. 

Based on the above criteria, the Group classifies its financial assets into the following categories: 

i. financial assets measured at amortized cost: 

A financial asset is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met: 

a) The Group's business model objective for managing the financial asset is t o  hold financial assets in order to collect 
contractual cash flows, and 

b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to  cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

This category applies to  cash and bank balances, trade receivables, loans, certain investments and other financial assets 
of the Group. Such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. 

The amortized cost of a financial asset is also adjusted for loss allowance, if any. 
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ii. Financial assets measured at FVTOCI: 

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCl i f  both of the following conditions are met: 

a) The Group's business model objective for managing the financial asset is achieved both by collecting contractual 
cash flows and selling the financial assets, and 

b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to  cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

Investments in equity instruments, classified under financial assets, are initially measured at fair value. The Group may, 
on initial recognition, irrevocably elect to  measure the same either at FVTOCI or FVTPL. The Group makes such election 
on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Fair value changes on an equity instrument are recognised as other income in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss unless the Group has elected t o  measure such instrument at FVTOCI, 

The Group does not have any financial assets in this category. 

iii. Financial assets measured at FVTPL: 

A financial asset is measured at FVTPL unless it is measured at amortized cost or at FVTOCI as explained above. 
This is a residual category applied to all other investments of the Group. Such financial assets are subsequently 
measured at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value changes are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
Dividend income on the investments in equity instruments are recognised as 'other income' in the Statement o f  Profit 
and Loss. 

d) Derecognition: 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is 
derecognized (i.e., removed from the Group's Balance Sheet) when any of the following occurs: 

i. The contractual rights to  cash flows from the financial asset expires; 
ii. The Group transfers its contractual rights to  receive cash flows of the financial asset and has substantially 

transferred all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset; 
iii. The Group retains the contractual rights to  receive cash fiows but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash 

flows without material delay to  one or more recipients under a 'pass-through' arrangement (thereby substantially 
transferringtall the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset); 

iv. The Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all risk and rewards of ownership and does not retain control 
over the financial asset. 

In cases where Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the financial asset, 
but retains control of the financial asset, the Group continues t o  recognize such financial asset to  the extent of its 
continuing involvement in  the financial asset. In that case, the Group also recognizes an associated liability. 

The financial asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the 
Group has retained. 

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the 
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive 
income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been 
recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. 

e) Impairment of financial assets: 

The Group applies expected credit losses (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of loss allowance on the 
following: 
i. Trade receivables 
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ii. Financial assets measured at amortized cost (other than trade receivables) 
iii. Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

In case of trade receivables, the ~ ' i o u p  follows a simplified approach wherein an amount equal to lifetime ECL is 
measured and recognized as loss allowance. 

In case of other assets (listed as ii and iii above), the Group determines if there has been a significant increase in credit, 
risk of the financial asset since initial recognition. If the credit risk of such assets has not increased significantly, an 
amount equal t o  12-month ECL is measured and recognized as loss allowance. However, i f  credit risk has increased 
significantly, an amount equal to  lifetime ECL is measured and recognized as loss allowance. 

Subsequently, i f  the credit quality of the financial asset improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in 
credit risk since initial recognition, the Group reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL. 

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and 
all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest 
rate. 

12-month ECL are a portion of the lifetime ECL which result from default events that are possible within 12 months from 
the reporting date. Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the 
expected life of a financial asset. 

ECL are measured in a manner that they reflect unbiased and probability weighted amounts determined by a range of 
outcomes, taking into account the time value of money and other reasonable Statements available as a result of past 
events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. 

As a practical expedient, the Group uses a provision matrix to  measure.lifetime ECL on its portfolio of trade receivables. 
The provision matrix is prepared based on historically observed default rates over the expected life of trade receivables 
and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At each reporting date, the historically observed default rates and 
changes in the forward-looking estimates are updated. 

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as expense/income in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss under the head 'Other expensesl/'Other income'. 

B] Financial liabilities and equity instruments 

Debt and equity instruments issued by a Group member are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in 
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity 
instrument. 

i. Equity instruments: - 

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting ail of its 
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a Group member are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue 
costs. 

Repurchase of the Group's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is 
recogliised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group's own equity instruments. 

ii. Compound financial instruments: - 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly Known as lnox Wind infrastructure Services Limited) 

Notes to  the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Compound financial instruments issued by the Group comprise of convertible debentures denominated in INR that can 
be converted to  equity shares at the option of the holder. The debentures will be converted into equity shares at the 
fair value on the date of conversion. 

The fair value of the liability component of a compound financial instrument is determined using a market interest rate 
of a similar liability that does not have an equity conversion option. This value is recorded as a liability on an amortised 
cost basis until extinguished on conversion or redemption of the debentures. The remainder of the proceeds is 
attributable to  equity portion of the instrument net of derivatives i f  any. The equity component is recognised and, 
included in shareholder's equity (net of deferred tax) and is not subsequently re-measured. The derivative component 
is recognized at fair value and subsequently carried at fair value through profit or loss. 

Interest related to  the financial liability is recognized in profit or loss (unless it qualifies for inclusion in the cost of an 
asset). In case of conversion at maturity, the financial liability is reclassified to equity and no gain or loss is recognized. 

iii. Financial Liabilities: - 

a) Initial recognition and measurement: 

Financial liabilities are recognised when a Group member becomes a party to  the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. Financial liabilities are initially measured at the fair value. 

b) Subsequent measurement: 

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Financial 
liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with all changes in  fair value recognised 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

The Group has not designated any f i~ancia l  liability as at FVTPL other than derivative instrument. 

c) Derecognition of financial liabilities: 

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When 
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms 
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the Derecognition of 
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial 
liability derecognized and the considaeration paid is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

3.16 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting 

a) Fair value hedge: 

Hedging instrument is initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and is 
subsequently measured at fair value at each reporting date. Gain or loss arising from changes in the fair value of hedging 
instrument is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Hedging instrument is recognized as a financial asset in 
the Balance Sheet i f  its fair value as at reporting date is positive as compared to carrying value and as a financial liability 
if its fair value as at reporting date is negative as compared to  carrying value. 

' 

Hedged item is initially recognized at fair value on the date of entering into contractual obligation and is subsequently 
measured at amortized cost. The gain or loss on the hedged item is adjusted t o  the carrying value of the hedged item 
and the corresponding effect is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Wedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or when i t  
no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. 
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Note 34 sets out details of the fair values of the derivative instruments used for hedging purposes. 

b) Cash f low hedges 

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is 
recognised in  other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of cash flow hedging reserve. The gain 
or loss relating to  the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity relating to  (effective portion , 
as described above) are reclassified to  profit or loss in the periods when the hedged item affects profit or loss, in the 
same line as the recognised hedged item. However, when the hedged forecast transaction results in the recognition of 
a non-financial asset or a non-financial liability, such gains and losses are transferred from equity (but not as a 
reclassification adjustment) and included in the initial measurement of the cost of the non-financial asset or non- 
financial liability. 

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or when it 
no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. 

Any gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity at that time remains in equity 
and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in profit or loss. When a forecast transaction is 
no longer expected to  occur, the gain or loss accumulated in equity is recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

3.17 Assets classified as held-for-sale 

Assets are classified as held-for-sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction 
rather than through continuing use and a sale is considered highly probable. They are measured at the lower of their 
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. 

Assets classified as held for sale are not depreciated or amortised, Interest and other expenses attributable to the 
liabilities of a disposal group classified as held-for-sale continue to be recognised. Assets classified as held-for-sale are 
presented separately from the other assets in the balance sheet, The liabilities of a disposal group classified as held-for- 
sale are presented separately from other liabilities in the balance sheet. 

3.18 Earnings Per Share 

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributable t o  the equity shareholders of 
the Group by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average 
number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is adjusted for events, such as 
bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares that have changed the number of equity shares 
outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the period attributable to  equity 
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of 
all dilutive potential equity shares. 

3.19 Recent accounting pronouncements: 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under, 
Cornpgnies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to  time. On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, as below. 

Ind AS 16 -Property Plant and equipment - The amendment clarifies that excess net sale proceeds of items produced 
over the cost of testing, if any, shall not be recognised in the profit or loss but deducted from the directly attributable 
costs considered as part of the cost of an item of property, plant, and equipment. The effective date for adoption of this 
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amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2022. The Group has evaluated the amendment and there 
is no impact on its consolidated financial statements. 

Ind AS 37-Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets-The amendment specifies that the 'cost of fulfilling 
a contract comprises the 'costs that relate directly to  the contract'. Costs that relate directly to  a contract can either be 
incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour, and materials) or an allocation of other 
costs that relate directly to  fulfilling contracts (an example would be the allocation of the depreciation charge for an 
item of property;plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract). The effective date for adoption of this amendment 
is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2022, although early adoption is permitted. The Group has evaluated the 
amendment and the impact is not expected to be material. 

4 Critical accounting judgements and use of estimates 

In application of Group's accounting policies, which are described in Note 3, the directors of the Holding Company are 
required to  make judgements, estimations and assumptions about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are 
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience 
and ofher factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to  accounting estimates are 
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of 
revision or future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. 

Following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of 
the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to  the carrying amounts of assets 
and liabilities within the next financial year. 

a) Useful lives of Property, Plant 81 Equipment (PPE): 

The Group has adopted useful lives of PPE as described in  Note 3.10 above. The Group reviews the estimated useful 
lives of PPE at the end of each reporting period. 

b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes 

The Group measures financial instruments at fair value in accordance with the accounting policies mentioned above. 

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements at fair value on a recurring basis, the Group 
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization at the end 
of each reporting period and discloses the same. 

When the fair values of financials assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be measured 
based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques, including the 
discounted cash flow model, which involve various judgements and assumptions. Where necessary, the Group engages 
third party qualified valuers to  perform the valuation. 

Statements about the valuation techniques and inputs used in determining the fair values of various assets and liabilities 
are disclosed in Note 34. 

c) Estimation of uncertainties relating to  the global health pandemic from COVID-19 (COVID-19): 

The World Health Organization announced a global health emergency because of a new strain of coronavirus ("COVID- 
19") and classified its outbreak as a pandemic on 11 March 2020. On 24 March 2020 the Indian government announced 
a strict 21-day lockdown across the country t o  contain the spread of the virus. This pandemic and response thereon 
have impacted most of the industries. Consequent to  the nationwide lock down on 24 March 2020, the Group's 
operations were scaled down in compliance with applicable regulatory orders. Subsequently, during the period, the 
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Group's operations have been scaled up in a phased manner taking into account directives from various Government 
authorities. The impact on future operations would, to a large extent, depend on how the pandemic further develops 
and it's resultant impact on the operations of the Group. The Group continues to  monitor the situation and takei 
appropriate action, as considered necessary in due compliance with the applicable regulations. 

The management has made an assessment of the impact of COVID-19 on the Group's operations, financial performance 
and position as at and for the year ended 3 1  March 2022 and year ended 3 1  March 2 0 2 1  and has concluded that there 
is no impact which is required to  be recognised in the financial statements. Accordingly, no adjustments have been 
made to  the financial statements. 

d) Other assumptions and estimation uncertainties, included in  respective notes are as under: 

Recognition of deferred tax assets is based on estimates of taxable profits in future years, The Group prepares 
detailed cash flow and profitability projections, which are reviewed by the board of directors of the Holding 
Company. The Holding Company's tax jurisdiction is India. Significant judgments are involved in estimating 
budgeted profits for the purpose of paying advance tax, determining the provision for income taxes, including 
amount expected to be paid / recovered for uncertain tax positions - see Note 9 
Measurement of defined benefit obligations and other long-term employee benefits: - see Note 35 

Assessment of the status of various legal cases/claims and other disputes where the Group does not expect any 
material outflow of resources and hence these are reflected as contingent liabilities. Recognition and measurement 
of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources - 
see Note 38 

' Impairment of financial assets - see Note 34 
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5 : Property, plant and equipment 
(t in Lakhs) 

Particulars 
As a t  As at 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

Carrying amounts of: 
Freehold land 
Roads 
Plant and equipment 
Furniture and fixtures 
Vehicles 
Office equipments 

Total 

Note: Assets mortgaged/pledged as security for borrowings: (7 in Lakhs) - 

Particular 

Carrying amounts of: 
Freehold land 
Buildings 
Plant and equipment 
Furniture and fixtures 
Vehicles 
Office equipment 
Total 

All title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of Company. 

As at As at 
31  March 2022 31 March 2021 
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5~ :Property, plant and equipment 

5a : Capital-Work-in Progress (CWIP) as at 3 1  March 2022 

( f i n  Lakhs) 

Total 

87,108.42 
7,050.96 

(3,450.00) 
90,709.38 
24,109.55 

(263 31) 
1,14,555.62 

9,885.59 
4,544.07 

(170.61) 
14,259.05 

5,015.91 
(15.90) 

19,259.06 

Capital-Work-in Progress (CWIP) as at 3 1  March 2021 

Total 

19.18 
13,282.82 

Particulars 

Projects in progress 
Projects temporarily suspended 

Total 

Vehicles 

2.84 

2.84 

2.84 

( f i n  Lakhs) 

Total. 

25,080.76 
19.18 

25,099.94 

Particulars 

Projects in progress 
f'rojects temporarily suspended 

Total 

Office 
Equipment 

143.96 
3.52 

147.48 
1.55 

149.03 

Roads 

3,563.68 
1,365.11 

4,928.79 
3,399.74 

8,328.53 

2,185.70 
1,240.24 

3,425.94 
1,299.81 

Plant and 

-- equipment 

81,654.57 
5,682.33 

-----. (3,285.00) 
84,051.90 
20,548.26 

(28.26) 
1,04,571.90 

7,497.63 
3,271.13 
(170.61) 

10,598.15 
3,689.35 

(15.90) 

Particulars 

Cost or deemed cost: 
Balance as at 1 April 2020 
Additions 
Adjustment 
Balance as at 3 1  March 2021 
Add~ttons 
D~sposal 
Balance as at 3 1  March 2022 

Accumulated Depreciation: 
Balance as at 1 April 2020 
Depreciation expense for the year 
Elim~nated on disposal of Subsidiary 
Balance as at 3 1  March 2021 
D~preclatlon expense for the year 
El~m~nated on d~sposal of Subs~diary 

Amount in CWIP 

Balance as at 3 1  March 2022 

Furniture 
and Fixtures 

217.23 

217.23 

217.23 

73.97 
23.33 

97.30 
21.75 

Land - 
Freehow 

1,526.14 

(1-0) 
1,361.14 

160.00 
(235.05) 

1,286.09 

~ i o u n t  in CWIP 

4,725.75 

1.30 
0.34 

1.64 
0.34 

14,271.60 119.05 1.98 

Office 
Equipment 

11.46 
c.35 

Vehicles 

1.20 
0.86 

More than 3 

- years 
1,447.64 

19.18 
1,466.82 

Less than 1 Year 

9,095.80 

9,095.80 

126.99 
9.03 

136.02 
4.66 

140.68 

Total 

76,450.33 
95,296.56 

Furniture 
and Fixtures 

11z93 
98.18 

Less than 1 Year 

- 20,401.47 

20,401.47 

Plant and 
equipment 

73,453.75 
90,300.30 

1-2 Years 

2,651.90 

2,65120 

2-3 Years 

1,040.41 

1,040.41 

1-2 Years 

2,540.88 

2,540.88 

Roads 

1,502.85 
3,602.78 

Net carrying amount 

Balance as at 3 1  March 2021 
Balance as at 3 1  March 2022 

2-3 Years 

68.30 

68.30 

More than 
3 years 
1,098.00 

19.18 
1,117.18 

Land - 
Freehold 

1,361.14 
1,286.09 



The Holding Company incorporated following wholly-owned subsidiaries (hereafter called as SPVs) under RfS (Request for Selection) for setting up wind 

farm projects as awarded by Solar Energy Corporation of India (SECI). As on 31  March 2022, there are inter olio 12 SPVs in which project progress is as 

below: 

a) The extended scheduled commissioning date (SCoD) of SPV "Nani Virani Wind Energy Private Limited" was 12 September 2021. Considering office 

memorandum dated 17 March, 2022 issued by Ministry of New and Renewable Energy, the Holding Company requested for the time extension in the 

SCoD of the said project by 3 months vide letter dated 24 March 2022 and same is pending as on date. The management is in discussion with authorities 

for necessary approvals/extension. 

b) For SPVs namely "Haroda Wind Energy Private Limited", "Khatiyu Wind Energy Private Limited", "Ravapar Wind Energy Private Limited" and "Vigodi 

Wind Energy Private Limited", the Holding Company has filed petition on 22 March 2022 before Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (CERC), New 

Delhi for termination of letter of award dated 03 November 2017, Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) dated 27 December 2017, for relieving from financial 

implication and releasing of respective bank guarantees. The same is pending before CERC. 

c) Extension for Schedule commissioning date (SCoD) is requested from appropriate statutory body for other SPVs (SECi Ill & IV) for 300 MW and as per 

request, the respective project is estimated to be completed in less than a year. 
$ 

Wind Four Renergy Private Limited 
tlaroda Wind Energy Private Limited 
Vigodi Wind Energy Private Limited 
Nani Virani Wind Energy Private Limited 
Ravapar Wind Energy Private Limited 
Alicnto Wind Energy Private Limited 
Flurry Wind Energy Private Limited 
Tempest Wind Energy Private Limited 
Vuelta Energy Private Limited 
Suswind Power Private Limited 

SECI-II 
SECI-ll 
SECI-II 
SECI-iI 
SECI-Ill 
SECI-Ill 
SECI-Ill 
SECI-Ill 
SECI-IV 

Total CWlP as at 
3 1  March 2022 

Name of wholly-owned subsidiary (SPV) 

[~ lu t te r  Wind Energy Private Limited I SECI-iV . 
The estimated project cost has not exceeded to its original plan. For capital commitment refer note 43A(b). 

SECI 
Tranche 
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(Tin Lakhs) 

As at As at 
Particulars 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

6 : Intangible assets 
Carrying amounts of: 

Software 0.97 1.55 

Details of Intangible Assets 

Particulars 

Cost or Deemed Cost 
Balance as at 1 April 2020 

Additions 
Balance as at 31 March 2021 

Additions 
Balance as at 31 March 2022 

Net carrying amount Software Total 
Balance as at 31  March 2021 1.55 

Balance as at 31 March 2022 0.97 

Software 

407.29 

407.29 

407.29 

38.72 

367.07. 
405.74 

0.58 
406.32 -- 

Balance as at 1 April 2020 

Amortisation expense for the year 
Balance as at 31 March 2021 

Amortisation expense for the year 
Balance as at 31 March 2022 

Total 

407.29 

407.29 

407.29 

38.72 
367.02 
405.74 

- 0.58 
406.32 
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(T in  Lakhs) 

Particulars 
As at  As at 

3 1  March 2022 3 l ~ a r c h  2021 

7 :Investment in  Associates (Trade Investment) 

Non-current 

in equity instruments (unquoted) 
- in fully paid-up equity shares of T 10 each 
Wind Two Renergy Private Limited- 3,25,10,000 equity shares (refer note (i), (ii) & (iii) 

3,251.00 ' 3,251.00 
below) 

3.251.00 3.251.00 

(i) The group has neither right t o  variable returns from its involvement with the investee and nor the ability to  affect those returns 
through its power over the investee . 
(ii) The group has entered into various binding agreements (including call & put option agreement and voting rights agreement) with 
a party to, inter-alia, transfer the shares of such companies at a future date and defining rights o f  the respective parties. In view of 
the provisions of these binding agreements, it is assessed that the group has ceased t o  exercise control over such companies in terms 
of Ind AS 110: Consolidated Financial Statements. Therefore, the group has accounted for investment in  such companies as 
investment in  'associate' f rom the date of cessation of control. 

(iii) The shares have been pledged by the group as additional security for loan availed by the respective associate company. 

8 : Other financial assets 

Non-current 
Security Deposit 
Non-current bank balances (from Note 14) 
Unbilled revenue (See note below) 

Others 
Total 

Current 

Unbilled revenue (See note below) 

Consideration Receivable on Project Undertaking Transfer Agreement (Refer Note 32(2)) 
Consideration Receivable on transfer of Disposal group (refer note no 32(1)) 

Total 
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9 : Deferred Tax 

Year ended 3 1  March 2021 

Year ended 31  M ~ r C 2 0 2 2  Rs. in L?_khs 

Particulars 

Deferred tax assets 

Year ended 31  March 2022 
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) i n  relation to: --- Rs. in Lakhs 

..Opening balance ~ec'o~nised'in Recognised in Adjusted against ~d jus ted  agalnst Closing balance 
profit or loss other consolidation current tax 

Particulars comprehensive liability 
income 

Deferred tax assets/[iiabiiities) i n  relation to: 

I 
Particulars 

6,269.02 
(15,359.32) 

2,685.22 
79.77 

16,440.47 
15.61 

10,130.77 

Property, plant and equipment 
Straight lining of 0 & M revenue 

Allowance for expected credit losses 
Defined benefit obligations 
Equity component of Compound financial 
instrument 
Business loss 
Other deferred tax assets 

Other deferred tax liabilities 

Property, plant and equipment 
Straight lining of 0 & M revenue 
Allowance for expected credit losses 
Defined benefit obligations 
Equity component of Compound financial 
Instrument j 

Business loss 
Other deferred tax assets 
Other deferred tax liabilities 

MAT credit entitlement 
Total 

Recognised in 
Opening balance I I profit or loss 

1,706.46 
(288.86) 

1,242.43 
5.95 

1,758.25 

(246.52) 
(2,080.02) 

2,097.69 

2,097.69 

4,562.56 
(15,606.89) 

1,442.79 
86.70 

(1,758.25) 

16,651.59 
2,184.86 

7,563.36 
2,330.41 
9,893.77 

I MAT credit entitlement 1 2,330.41 1 
I Total 6,020.79 1 3,865.14 

(12.88) 

(12.88) 

- (12.88) 

Recognijrd in 
other 

comprehensive 
income 

536.43 

35.40 
(89.23) 

482.60 

482.60 

Adjusted against 
consolidation 

Adjusted against 
current tax 

liability 

Rs. in Lakh! 

Closing balance 

The Group has recognised deferred tax assets b n  its unabsorbed depreciation 2nd business losses carried forward. The Group t~as executed long term 
Operation & niaint?nance contracts with the customers. Revenue in respect of such contracts will get recognised in future years as per the accounting 
policy of the group. Based on these contracts, the group has reasonable certainty as on the date of the balance sheet, t lu!  there will be sufficient 
taxable income availebir? t o  realize such assets in the $:ear future. Accordingly, the Group has created deferred tax assets on its carried forward 
unabsorbed depreciation and business losses. 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly known as lnox Wind Infrastructure SeNlces Limited) 
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

(7 in Lakhs) 

Particulars 
As at AS at 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

9A : Income tax assets (net) 

Non-current 
Income tax paid (net of provisions) 
Paid under Protest 

Total 

10 :Other assets 

Non-current 
Capital advances 
Balances with government authorities 

-Balances in service tax, VATand GST accounts 
Prepayments - others 

Total 

QmwLt 
Advance to suppliers 
Balances with government authorities 

-Balances in Service tax, VAT& GSTaccounts' 
- Paid under Protest 

Prepayments -others 
Advance for Expenses 
Other Recoverable 

Total 8,996.04 28,734.56 
'Subject to reconcilation with 2A& 28 and includes GSTinput ta* credit blocked by the department amounting? 640.00 

Lakhs (31 March 2021 : T640.00Lakhs) 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LlMiTED (formerly known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 
Notes to the consolldatcd financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

(< in Lakhs) 

Particulars 
As at As at 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

11 : Inventories 
(at lower of cost and net reallsablevalue) 
Construction materials 2,137.81 10,186.67 
Work-in-progress' 25.311.62 

Total 
'See Note No. 51 

12 : Trade receivables (Unsecured) 

(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated) 
Current 
Considered good* 
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses 

Total 
'Ageing Refer Note 45 

13 :Cash and cash equivalents 

Balances with banks 
in Current accounts 
in Cash credit accounts 

Cash on hand 

Totai 

14 :Other bank balances 

Fixed deposits with original maturity period of less thiln 3 months 4,049.32 

Fixed deposits with original maturity period of more than 3 months but I2ss than 12 210.14 
months' 
Fixed deposit with original maturity fcr more than 12 months* 3.158.54 1,195.71 

7,207.86 1,405.85 

Less: Amount disclosed under Note 8 -'Other financial assets-Non current' 642.69 478.25 

Noter: 
'Other bank balances include margin money deposits krpt as security against bank 

guarantees as under: 
a) Fixed deposits with original maturityfor more than 3 months but less than 12 months 210.14 

b) Fixed deposits with original maturityfor more than 12 months 3,158.54 1,195.71 

15 : Loans 
Current 

inter-corporate depos:ts to associates, considered good 

-Inter-corporate deposits to other parties 
Total 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Llmitcd) 
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

(7 in Lakhs) 

AS at As at 
Partlcula,rs 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

Non-current 
Provlsion for employee beneflts (Refer Note 35) 

Gratuity 
Compensated absences 

Total 

Current 
Provlsion for employee benefits (Refer Note 35) 

Gratuity 
Compensated absences 

Total 

20 :Other Llabllities 

Non-current 
Income received in advance 
Total 

Current 
Advances received from customers 
Income received in advance 
Statutory dues and taxer payable 
Other Payables 
Total 



iNOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Serviccs Limltcd) 
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the ycar ended 31 March 2022 

( t i n  Ldkhs) 

As at As at 
Particulars 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

21 : Current borrowlngs 

Secured borrowings 
From banks 

-Cash Credit ('1 491.39 7.453.79 
-Over Draft (") 18.289.30 
-Working Capital Demand Laand 1") 10,000.00 

Rupee term loans 
-ShortTerm Loan 1,30C.00 

Unsecured borrowings 
From related parties 

-inter-corporate deposits from holding company (11) 12,925.65 62.324.61 

-0.01% Non-convertible, Non-Cumulattve, Participating, Redeemable Preference 20,000.00 

Shares (NCPRPS) (Refer Note 18A1 

Current maturities of non-current borrowings (Refer Note 18) 

Less: Disclosed under Note 23: "Other current financial liab~l'lius" 

-Interest accrued but not due 
Total 

Terms of repavment 
'Cash credit Rs 491.39 Lakhs (Previous year Rs 4,953.79 Lakhs)taken from yes bankcarries interest @ MCLR plus 0.35% against 
corporate guarantee of Gujarat Fluorochemicals Limited and First Pari Passu charge on Current assets & Second cttaree on 
moveable fixed assets of the company. 

"Over Draft facility Nil (Previous year Rs. 18,199.48 Lakhs) taken from IDBl bank Limited carries lnterest @ MCLR plus 15bps 

pa against Fixed Deposit of Gujarat Fluorochemicals Limited. 

Working captai demand loan taken during the year amounting to Rs. 10,000 Lakhs carries interest @ MCLR plus 2.50% against 
corporate guarantee of Gujarat 

11 Inter-corporate deposit from holding company is unsecured, repayable on demand and carries interest @ 7.00% p.a. to 
12.00%p.a. 
For short term loan- terms of repayment and secdrities etc. Refer Note 18 

22 :Trade payables 

Current 
-Dues to micro and small enterprises 
-Dues to others' 

Total 
'Ageing Refer Note 45a 

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21 
Princi~al amount due lo  ruoniiers under MSMED Act at the vear.end K G  5 6  

Interest accrued and due to suppliers under MS.ME0 Act on tho above amount, unpaid 
3.65 

at the year end. 
Payment made to suppliers (other than interest) beyond the appointed date during the 116.76 
vear 
interest paid to suppliers dnder section 16 of MSMED Act durile the ycar 
interest due and payable to suppliers under MSMED Ac: for payments already made. 

Interest accrued and not pa~d to suppliers under MSMEO Act up to the year end 156.41 

Note: The above information has been disclosed jr: respect of parties which have been identified on the basis of the 
information available with the Group. 

23 : Other financial iiablliiies 

Non-currdnt 
Derivative financial liabilities 
Total 

Current 
Current maturities of non-current borrowings (Refer Note 19) 
interest accrued 
-on borrowing 
-on  advance from customers 
Creditors fur capital expenditure 
Consideration payable for business combinations 
Purchase Consideration Payable 
Employee dues payabier 
Other Payables 
Expenses payables 

Total 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly known as lnox Wind infrastructure Services Limlted) 
Notes to  the consolidated financlal statements for the year endcd 3 1  March 2022 

16 : Equity share capltal (7 i n  Lakhs) 

Particulars As at As at 
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

Authorisad capital 
30,00,00,000 equity sharesof? 10 each 30,000.00 15,200.00 

Issued, subscribed and paid up 
23,50,16,258 equity shares of 7 10 each 23,501.63 12.861.99 

23,501.63 12.861.99 

(a) Reconclllatlon of the number of Equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year 

Particulars As a t  31 March 2022 As st 31  March 2021 
No. o i  sharer ll in Lakhr) No. of sharer (7 in Lakhr) 

Outstanding at the beginning o f the  year 
Sharer issued during the year' 
Outstanding at the end of the year 

(b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to  equlty shares 
The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value o f ?  10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held and entitled to  receive dividend as 

declared from time to  time. in  the event o f  liquidation o f  the Company, the holders o f  equity sharer will be entitled to receive the remaining assets o f  the Company, in 
proportion of their shareholding. 

l c )  Shares held by holding company 
Particulars Ar at 31 March 2022 Ar at  31  March 2021 

No. of sharer (7 InLakhr) No. of shares It in Lakhr) 

Id) Details of shares hold by each shareholder holdlng more than 5% shares: 

Name of Shareholder 
As 81 31 Match 2022 As at  31 March 2021 

No. o f  S h a r e r  % o f  holdinl  No. o f  Shares % o f  holding 

inox Wind Limited(') 22.05,31,701 93.842 12,65,72,781 98.41% 

1') including shares held through nominee shareholders 

(e) Allotment of Equity Shares by way of Conversion 
During the year ended 3 1  March 2022, the Company has converted i ts4th & 5th trenchesofdcbentures amounting t o 7  10,000.00 lakh each into 2,48,01,587 number 01 
shares and unsecured debt amounting to  7 39,187.57 Lakh Into 4,85,95,701 numberof shares at a price of 7 80.641 pershare. 

During the yearended 31 March 2021, the Company has convened it's 3rd trenches of debentures amounting t o ?  10,000.00 lakhs each into 5,88,23,529 number ofsharer at 
a price o f t  80.60lper share. 

I f )  Allotment of Equity Shares in  lieu of other than Cash Consideration 
During the year ended 3 1  March 2022, the company has issued 3,29,99,043 number o f  shares at a price of 780.641 pershare, for a consideration other than cash in lieu o f  the 
debt/iiability/provisions owed to  the allottees on account of receipt of material / se~ ices /a ther r / i n te re t  etc. from time t o  time. 

(g) Shareholding of Promoters as under: 
As at 31  March 2022 
Share held by promoters at the end of the year 
Promoter Namc I !NO. of Share I \%of totalshare ] 
lnox Wind Limited I 1 22.05.31,701 1 93.84% 
Totai I 1 22,05,31,701 1 93.84% 

As at 3 1  March 2021 

%Changes during 
. the year 

-4.57% 
-4.57% 

% Changes during 
the year 

-1.59% 
-1.59% 

Share held by promoters at the end o f the  year 
Pronlotcr N a l ~  1 ]NO. of Share 

lnox Wind Limited I ( 12,65,72,781 
/%of total Share 
1 98.41% 

Total I 1 12,65,72,781 1 1 48.41%1 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31  March 2022 

17 : Other equity 
(f in. Lakhs) 

Particulars 
As at As at 

31  March 2022 31  March 2021 

Security Premium 
Retained earnings 
General reserve 
Total 

17 (i) Debenture redemption reserve 

Balance at beginning of the year 
Less: Transfer to General Reserve on redemption of debenture 
Balance at the end of the year 

During the year ended 31  March 2021, the company has redeemed the redeemable non convertible debenture accnrdirlgly 

debenture redemption Reserve has been transferred to  General reserve. 

17 (ii) Security Premium: 

Balance at beginning of the year 
Add: Addition during the year 
Less: Stamp duty paid on increase of authorised share capital 
Balance at the end of the year 

17 (iii) Retained earnings: 

Balance at beginning of the year (30,679.58) (15,339.81) 

Profit/(loss) for the year (9,319.62) (15,367.20) 
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax 28.64 14.60 

Transfer on account of Conversion of Optionally Convertible Debentdres (OCDs)* 3,290.28 

Eliminated on disposal of subsidiary 12.83 

Balance at the end of the year (36,680.28) (30,679.58) 

*As mentioned in note lG(e) of the Consolidated Financial Information, the Company has redeemed the all tranches of OCDs by way 
of conversion into its equity shares and accordingly Equity component has been transferred to Retained Earnings. 

The amount that can be distributed by the Company as dividends to  its equity shareholders is deterrnincd based or1 the separate 
financial statements of the Company and also considering the requirements of the Conipanies Act, 2013. Thus, the amounts 
reported above may not be distributable in entirety. 

17 (iv) General Reserve: 

Balance at beginning of tl ie year 1,500.30 

Add. Transfer on account of redemption of debentures .- 1,800.00 

Balance at tha end of the year 1,800.00 1,800.00 --- 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LiMiTED (formerly known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 
Notes to  the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 3 1  March 2022 

18: Noncurrent borrowings ( t i n  Lakhs) 

As at As at 

Particulars 3 1  March 2022 3 1  March 2021 

Secured loans 
a) Debentures 
9.50% Redeemable non convertible debentures (NCDs) 
b) Rupee term loans 
From banks 
From Financial Institution 
c) Working capital term loans 
From banks 

Unsecured loans 
a) Debentures 
Optionally convertlble debentures - Liability portion of 
compound finakciai instrument 

Total 46,060.89 57.749.98 

Less: Disclosed under Note 21: current borrowings 
-Current maturities of non-current borrowings 

Less: Disclosed under Note 23: Other current financial liabilities 

-Interest accrued 
Total 

Terms of repayment and securltlcs etc. 
a) 9.50% Redeemable non convertible debentures (NCDs) 
i) 195 non convertible redeemable debenturesof 710 Lakhs each fully paid up are issued at par, and carry Interest @ 9.50% p.a. 
payable semi annually. The maturity pattern of the debentures is as under: 

Scp-23 
Total 

First par1 passu charge a n  all the movable fixed assets and first ranking exclusivechargeon the immovable property of the Issuer 
situated in  the districts o f  Amreii, Surendranagar and Rajkot in Gujarat. NCD's are further secured by an unconditional, irrevocable 
and continuing Corporate guarantee from "Gujarat Fluorachemicair Ltd". 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 
Notcs t o  the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 Msrch 2022 

b) Rupee term loah from lClCl Bank Ltd:- 
working ~ap i ta i  iong term loan is secured by second pari passu charge on existing & future movable fixed ssrets and current assets 
to Yes Bank carries interest MCLR+2.5% p.a. Principal repaymerlt pattern of the loan is as under: 

(7 in Lakhsl 

Month Principal Principal 

Apr-22 291.67 
May-22 291.67 
Jun-22 291.67 
Jul-22 291.67 
Aug-22 291.67 
Sep-22 291.67 
Oct-22 291.67 
Nov-22 291.67 
DPC-22 291.67 
Ian-23 291.67 
Feb-23 291.67 
Mar-23 291.67 
Apr-23 291.67 
May-23 291.67 
Jun-23 291.67 
Jul-23 291.67 
Aug-23 291.67 
Sep-23 291.67 
Oct-23 291.67 
Nov-23 291.67 

291.67 Dec-23 
Ian-24 291.67 
reb-24 291.67 
Mar-24 291.67 
Apr-24 291.67 
May-24 291.67 
Jun-24 291.67 
Jui-24 291.67 
Aug-24 208.33 
Sep-24 208.33 
Oct-24 208.33 
Nov-24 208.33 
Dec-24 208.33 
Jan-25 -- 208.33 
Total 9.416.67 - 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Servlces Llmited) 
Notes to  the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 3 1  March 2022 
c) Rupee term loan from lnduslnd Bank Lld:- 
Rupee term loan is taken from indusind Bank Ltd is secured by second pari pasru charges on the current assets, cash flows and 
receivables both present & Future o f the  Company and carrier interest @ MCLR plus 0.20% pa .  Principal repayment pattern o f the  
loan is as under: 

Month Principal Principal 
Mar-21 400.00 
Jun-21 400.00 
Sep-21 500.00 
Oec-21 500 00 
Mar-22 500 00 
lqn-22 500.00 500 00  
Ssp-22 500.00 500 00 
Total 1,000.00 3,300.00 

d) Rupee term loan from Yes Bank Ltd: 
Rupee term l ~ a n  taken f r ~ m  Yes Bank Ltd is secured by unconditional and irrevocable corporate guarantee from Gujarat 
fluorochemicals Limited and second charge on existing and future movable fixed assets of the Group and carrier interest @ 9.85% 
p.a. Principal repayment pattern o f  the loan is as under: 

Month Princlpal Principal 
Jul-21 250.00 
Total 2 S O K  

e) Working capital long term laan from Yes Bank Ltd: 

Working capital long term loan is secured by second pari passue charge on existing & future movable fixed assets and current 
assets to  Yes Bank carries interest MCLR+l% with a capping @ 9.25% p.a. 100% credit guarantee by National Credit Guarantee 
Tmst Company Llmited. Principal repayment pattern of the loan is as under: 

Month Principal Principal 
Feb-22 50.00 

Jan-26 
Total 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 
Notcs to  the conrolldated financial statements for the vear ended 3 1  March 2022 

f )  Optionally Convcrtlble Debentures (OCDs) (unsecured) : 
The debentures o f  1.1.000 each, fully paid up, are issued t o  the holding Company. at par, and carry interest @ 4% p.a. The entire 
amount o f  debentures is convertlble into fully paid upequity sharesof l  10 each at the option o f  the debenture holder, at the end 
o f  the term o f the  respective debentures.The equityshares will be issued at the price as per the valuation report to  be obtained at 
each cunvorsion date. l f no t  converted, the debenturesare redeemable at par. The maturity pattern o f the  debentures is as under: 

For the year ended 3 1  March 2021 
Debenture Series Dale of allotment Maturlty Number of Amount 

Period Debentures (7 In Lakh) 
Series E , 17th Nov.2015' 7 years 10.00.000 10,000.00 
Series D 5th Nov.2015 6 years 10.00.000 10,000.00 

Total 20,00,000 2 0 , O E  

' Series E OCDs with date ofallotment 17 November 2015 and maturity period 7 years were premature converted into equity 
sharer ofT10 each during the year ended 3 1  March 2022. 

The optionally convertible debentures are presented in the balance sheet as follows: 

Particulars 
As at As at 

3 1  March 2022 3 1  March 2021" 
Face value of debentures Issued 20.000.00 
Less: Equity component of optionally convertible debentures 5,031.62 

14,968.38 
Less: Derivative portion 480.23 

14,488.15 
Add: Effect o f  unwinding cost, gain/loss on derivative portion and 
interest paid - 5,616.18 

Equity component o f  optionally convcrtlble debentures 
5.031.62 

T h e  equity component o f  optionally convertible debentures has been prsented on the face o f  the balance sheet net ofdeferred 
tax o f  Rs. 1,741.34 Lakhs. 

g) Rupee Term loan from HDFC 
Term loan is taken from HDFC Bank by frist pari passu charger an the plant and machinrw of the Company and carries interest 
MCLRtl p.a. Restriced to  9.5% Principal repayment pattern u f the  loan Is as under: 

(7 I n  Lokhs) 
Month Prlnclpi~l -. Principal 
Apr-23 416.67 
May-23 416.67 
Jun-23 416.67 . - 
Jul-23 r l6 .67  
Aug-23 416.67 
Sep-23 116 67 
06-23  416.67 
Nov-23 416.67 
Dec-23 416.67 
Jan-24 416.67 
Feb-24 416.67 
hlar-24 
Total 

h) R rpce Term Loan from Power Finance Corporation (31 March 2022: 716,439.75 Lakhs, 3 1  March 2321 :1.10,000 Lakhs) 
pate of interest: 
The rate o f  Interest is 10.50%, with 1 year reset ar per PFC policy. 
Remvment ofLaan: 
Their an shall be repaid in 204 structured monthly instaiment, payable on standard due dater, commencing frorn thestandard 
due date, falling 12 months after schcduled Commissioning date (COD) o f the  project or COD, whichever is earlier. 

Prirran Securitv: 
a) rirst charge by way o f  mortgage over all the immovable properties and hypothecation of movable properties including piant & 
machinew, machinery spares, equipment, tools ti accessories furniture & fixtures, vehicles, over ail the intangible, goodwill, 
uncalled capital and first charge on operating rash flows, book dcbtr, receivables, can,rnirsbns, revenues. 

. 

Collateral Security; 
a) Pledge 51% cqulty shares & 51% o f  compuisor/ convertible debentures (CCDs) o f  the Company 
b) DSRA: 2 (Two) quarters o f  principal & Interest payment 
lrlterim Collateral Securitv: 
a) P led~e  over additional 26% equity shares & 26% olCCDs til l creation and perfection of security. 
b) Corporate Guarantee o f  lnox Wind Limited 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly known as inox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

18A : Preference share capital 
(T in  La khs) 

Particulars 
As at 4s at 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

Authorised capital 

20,00,00,000 (31 March 2021: Nil) 0.01% Non-Convertible, Non-Cumulative, Participating, Redeemabie 
20,000.00 

Preference Shares o f f  10 each 

Issued, subscribed and paid up 

20,00,00,000 (31 March 2021: Nil) 0.01% Non-Convertible, Non-Cumulative, Participating, Redeemable 
20,000.00 

Preference Shares of 710 each 

(a) Reconciliation of the number of 0.01% Non-Convertible, Non-Cumulative, Participating, Redeemable Preference Shares outstanding at the beginning 
and a t  the end of the year: 

As at As at 

Particulars 31  arch 2022 31 March 2021 

No. of shares ( f i n  Lakhs) No. of shares (7 in Lakhs) 

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 

Shares issued during the year 20,00,00,000 20,000.00 

Outstanding at the end of the year 20,00,00,000 20,000.00 

(b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to 0.01% Non-Convertible, Non-Cumulative, Participating, Redeemable Preference Shares: 

The Company has only one class of preference shares having par value of T 10 per share. These preferene shares are bearing coupon rate @0.01% and are 
Non-Convertible, Non-Cumulative, Participating, Redeemable Preference Shares (NCPRPS), fully paid-up, at par. These preference shares shall be redeemed at 
any time within a period of 5 years from the date of allotment and subscriber to these NCPRPS also has right to  demand the redemption at any time within a 
period of 5 years from the date of allotment. These NCPRPS shall rank for dividend in priority to  the Equity Shares of the Company and the holders of NCPRPS 
will be entitled to receive a participatory dividend in a financial year in which the Company pays dividend to its equity shareholders (I1articip;tory dividend). 
Such participatory dividend will be payable at the same rate as the dividend paid on the equity shares. NCPRPS shall, in case of winding up, be entitled to rank, 
as regards repayment of capital and dividend (if declared by the Company), up to the commencement of the winding up, in priority to the equity Shares and 
shail also be entitled to participation in profits or assets or surplus funds, on the event of winding-up which may remain after the entire capital has been 
repaid. Holders of NCPRPS shall be paid dividend on a non-cumulative basis. NCPRPS shall not be convertible into Equity Shares, shall not carry any voting 
rights, shall be redeemable at par at any time within a period not exceeding 5 (five) years from the date of allotment as per the provisions of the Companies 
Act. 2013. 

(c) Allotment of NCPRPS by way of Conversion 
During the year, the Company has converted unsecured debt amounting t o t  20,000.00 Lakhs into 20,00,00,000 number of shares at a price o f f  101 per share. 

(d) Shares held by holding company 
AS at AS at 

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

No. of shares ( f i n  Lakhs) No. of shares (7 in Lakhs) 

lnox Wind Limited 20,00,00,000 20,000.00 

(e) Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares: 
As at As at 

Name of Shareholder 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

No. of Shares %of holding No. of Shares %of holding 

lnox Wind Limited 20,00,00,000 100.00% 

(f) Shareholding of Promoters as under: 
As at 31 March 2022 

Share held by promoters at the end of the year 

Promoter Name 

lnox Wind Limited 

Total 

As at 31 March 2021 

Share held by promoters at  the end of the year 

Promoter Name 

lnox Wind Limited 

Total 

No .of Share %of total Share 

2,00,00,00,000 100.00% 

2,00,00,00,000 100.00% 

No .of Share %of total Share 

0.00% 

0.00% 

% Changes during 
the period 

% Changes during 
the period 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

Rs. in Lakhs 
Particulars Year ended Year ended 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

24 : Revenue from Operations 

Sale of services 
Other operating revenue 
Total 

25 : Other Income 
a) lnterest income 
Interest income calculated using the effective interest method: 

On fixed deposits with banks 
On Inter-corporate deposits 
On long term investment 

Other interest income 
On Income tax/Vat refunds 
CBG interest income 

b) Other gains 
Net gaitts on derivative portion of compound financial instrument 

c) Gain on investment carried at FVTPL 
Gain on fair valuation of investment in Mutual Fund 

d) Other non operating income 
Insurance claims 
Misc Balances Write Back 
Profit on sale of Investment 
Profit on cancellation of O&M Contract 
Other Income 
Total 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES L1MlTE.D (formerly known as lnox Wind 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

Rs. in Lakhs 
Year ended Year ended 

Particulars 31  March 2022 31  March 2021 

26 : EPC, O&M, Common infrastructure facility and site development expenses 

Construction material consumed 

Equipments & machinery hire charges 
Subcontractor cost 

O&M repairs 

Legal & professional fees & expenses 

Stores and spares consumed 
Rates & taxes and regulatory fees 
Rent 

Labour charges 
Insurance 

Security charges 

Travelling & conveyance 
Miscellaneous expenses 

Total 

26a: Purchase of stock in trade 

Purchases of stock-in-trade 
Total 2,219.83 
During the year ended 3 1  March 2022, material amounting to t 2,219.00 lakhs related to transferred undertaking has been 
received by the Holding Company and same has been accounted as a purchase of stock in trade and the has been booked and 
transferred to RESCO. 

26b: Change in inventory 

Opening Stock 

Project inventory 

Less : Closing Stock 

Project inventory 
(Increase) / decrease in stock 

27 : Employee benefits expense 

Salaries and wages 
Contribution to provident and other funds 

Gratuity 
Staff welfare expenses 

Total 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly known as lnox Wind 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

Rs. in Lakhs 
Year ended Year ended 

Particulars 3 1  March 2022 31 March 2021 

28 : Finance costs 
a) lnterest on financial liabilities carried at amortised cost 

lnterest on borrowings 

lnterest to related parties 
lnterest to related parties 

b) Other interest cost 

lnterest on delay payment of Taxes 
Other interest 

c) Other borrowing costs 

Bank Guarantee Charges 

Corporate guarantee Charges 
3) Unwinding cost of compound financial instrument 

Total 

29 : Depreciation and amortisation expense 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 
Amortisation of intangible assets 

Total 

30 : Other Expenses 

Directors' sitting fees 

Rent 
Legal and professional fees and expenses 

Allowance for expected credit losses 
Liquidated damages 
Loss on ~onvesion of Optionally Convertible Debentures 

lnterest on TDS 

Miscellaneous expenses 

Total 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

31. Earnings per share 

Year ended Year ended 
Particulars 

31 March 2022 3 1  March 2021 

Basic earning/(loss) per share 

Net Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to the equity share holder from continuing operations ( f  
in iakhs) 

Net Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to the equity share holder from discontinuing operations 
(7 in lakhs) 

~ e i ~ h t e d ' a v e r a g e  number of equity shares used in  calculation of basic EPS (Nos) 
Weighted average number of equity shares used in calculation of diluted EPS (Nos.) 

Basic earnings per share 710 each (for continuing operations) (not annualised) (in T) 

Diluted earning per share 710 each (for continuing operations) (not annualised) (in 7) 

Basic earnings per share 710 each (for discontinued operations) (not annualised) (In 7) 

Diluted earning per share 710 cach (for discontinued operations) (not annualised) (in 7) 

Note: The anti-dilutive effect for the year ended 3 1  March 2022 and 3 1  March 2021 is ignored. 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED ( former ly  k n o w n  as lnox  W i n d  Infrastructure Services Limited) 
Notes t o  t he  consolidated financial statements f o r  t h e  year ended 3 1  rJlarch 202% 

32 : No te  o n  Discont inued Operations: 

1. Slump Sale of the Erection, Commissioning and Procurement Business (referred t o  as 'EPC Business'): 

On 06 October 2021, as a part o f  the business reorganisation, the Holding Company's Board of Directors have approved transfer 
of its EPC business to  wholly owned subsidiary ('WOS') of its Holding Company, inox Wind Limited('lWL1), RESCO Global Wind 
Service Limited ('RESCO'), with an objective to  segregate the EPC Business and Operations and Maintenance Busiriess(referred as 
'O&M Business') o f  the Holding cokpany. The divestment has been approved by the shareholders of the Company in their Extra- 
ordinary General Meeting held on 2 1  October 2021. 

Subsequently on 3 1  December 2021, to implement the above divesture, the Holding Company has executed a S~lsiness Transfer 
Agreement ('BTA') with RESCO t o  transfer EPC business undertaking, together with all assets and liabilities as specified in the OTA 
in relation t o  the EPC business as a going concern through slurnp sale. The assets and liabilities o f  the EPC business amounting to 4 
98,598.55 Lakhs and 4 98,128.71 Lakhs respectively are transferred to RESCO from the date ETA becoming effective and 
difference on assets and liabilities amounting 4 469.84 Lakhs on transfer of the EPC Eusiness undertaking has recorded as 
purchase consideration receivable. The holding company has completed its compliance with the terms and conditions of BTA on 
3 1  December 2021 and consequently, the BTA has become effective from that date. 

2. Project Undertaking Transfer Agreement (hereinafter referred as "PUTA"): 

On 2 1  December 2021, as a part of the business reorganisation, Board of Directors o f  the WOS namely Wind Four Renergy Private 
Limited ("WFRPL") in  their meeting held on 15 November 2021 have approved transfer of its Business of generation and sale of 
wind energy (referred to  as 'Project Business') to  RESCO. The divestment has been approved by the shareholders of the Company 
in their Extra-ordinary General Meeting held on 20 December 2021. 

Subsequently on 2 1  December 2021, to  implement the above divesture, WFRPL has executed a PUTA with RESCO to  transfer 
Project, together wi th all assets and liabilities as specified in  the PU'TA. The assets and liabilities o f  the Project Business amounting 
to t 4,280.72 Lakhs and 4 4,277.93 Lakhs respectively are transferred to RESCO and difference on Assets and liabilities amounting 
4 2.79, Lalths on transfer of the Project Business has recorded as purchase consideration receivable. . 

3. Share Sale Purchase Agreement: 
On 06 October 2021, as a part o f  the business reorganisation, the Holding Conlpany's Board of directors have approved transfer of 
RESCO t o  its holding company lnox Wind Limited ('IWL'). 

> 
Further, on 06 October 2021, as a part of the business reorganisation, the Holding Company's Boatd o f  directors have approved 
transfer of following wholly owned subsidiaries (WOSs) t o  RESCO: 

a) Marut-Shakti Energy India Limited 
b) Satviki Energy Private Limited 
c) Sarayu Wind Power (Tallimadugula) Private Limited 
d) Sarayu Wind Power (Kondapuram) Private Limited 
e) Vinirrmaa Energy Generation Private Limited 
I) RBRK Investments Limited 

In respect c f  above business re-organisation t o  implement the divesture the ttolding Company has executed Share Purchase 
Agreement (SPA) with IWL and RESCO on 18 October 2021 & 25 October 2021 against sale consideration amounting to  4 1 Lakh 
and T 158.61 Lakhs respectively. The respective subsidiaries company has completed its compliance with the terms and 
conditions of SPA on 19 October 2021 and 29 October 2021 respectivley and consequently, the BTA has become effective from 
respective that date. 

4. The activities of the EPC business, Project Business and transfer of the all subsidiaries as mentioned in para 3 above of the Holding 
Company, are considered as "Disposal Group", and presented as discontinued operation in  accordance with the provisions o f  
Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 105 - 'Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations'. 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED ( former ly  k n o w n  as lnox  W i n d  Infrastructure Services Limited) 

Notes t o  t h e  consolidated financial statements f o r  t h e  year ended 3 1  March  2022 

32 : No te  o n  Discontinued Operations: 
5. Financial performance and cash flows for the Disposal Group: 

S. No. 

a) 

b) 

1 

Particulars 

Analysis of profit/(loss) f rom discontinued operations 

Revenue from operations 
Other Income 
Total Income 

Expenses 
EPC, O&M and Common infrastructure facility expense 
Changes in  inventories of work-in-progress 
Purchases of stock-in-trade 
Employee Benefits Expenses 
Finance Costs 
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 
Other Expenses 
Total Expense 
Less: Expenditure capitalised 
Net Expenses 
Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax 
Share of profit/(loss) o f  associates 
Profit/(Loss) before tax (III+IV=V) 
Exceptional ltems 
Profit/(Loss) before tax f rom discontinued operations 
Tax Expense 
Profit / (loss) after tax f rom discontinued operations 

Other Comprehensive Income 
ltems that will not be re-classified t o  profit and loss 
Re-measurements of the def~ned benefit plans 
Taxonabove 
Total Other Comprehensive Income 
Total Comprehensive income for the year 

Net cash f low attributable t o  the discontinued operations* 
Net Cash (outflows)/inflows from operating activities 
Net cash used in investing activities 
Net cash (outflows)/inflows from financing activities 

Net  cash (outf lows)/ inf lows 
* For the year ended 3 1  March 2022, the bus~ness operation of d~sposal Group has been 
not appl~cable 

3 1  March 2022 

9,282.37 
107.80 

9,390.17 

3,356.70 
1,546.57 
2,995.22 

823.31 
4,957.70 

1.52 
6,651.14 

20,332.16 

20,332.16 
(10,941.99) 

(10,941.99) 

(10,941.99) 
(2,122.14) 
(8,819.85) 

(7.17) 
2.50 

(4.67) 
(8,824.52) 

transferred hence net cash 

3 1  March 2021 

7,143.17 
1,538.50 
8,681.67 

7,184.80 
,328.64 

586.81 
8,442.62 

2.83 
7,388.97 

23,934.67 

23,934.67 
(15,253.00) 

(744.24) 
(15,997.24) 

(15,997.24) 
(3,404.02) 

(12,593.22) 

21.40 
(7.48) 
13.92 

(12,579.30) 

(5,193.80) 
(1,504.40) 
6,661.80 

(36.40) 

outflows/ ~nflows IS  



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED ( former ly  known  as lnox W ind  Infrastructure Services Limited) 
Notes t o  t he  consolidated financial statements fo r  t he  year ended 3 1  March  2022 

32 : Note  o n  Discontinued Operations: 
6. To give effect of the aforesaid BTA agreement, Project Undertaking Transfer Agreement and Share Sale Purchase Agreeme'l~t as 

stated above: 

a. As required under the Ind AS 105, Group has re-presented the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for prior periods 
presented in  the consolidated Statements so that the disclosures relate t o  all operations that have beer1 discontinued at 
the end o f  the reporting period for the latest period is presented. 

b. The EPC Business has historically operated as part of the Holding Company and not as a standalone entity. The figures 
representing the operations of the EPC Business have been derived from the Company's accounting records and are 
presented as a discontinued operation. As part of the Company, the EPC Business is dependent upon the Company for all 
o f  its working capital and financing requirements as the Iiolding Company uses a centralized approach t o  cash 
management and financing of its operations. Accordingly, Finance Cost on all general-purpose borrowings including 
current maturities, have been allocated based on the working capital requirement worked out by management on a 
reasonable basis for EPC business In each financial year. 

c. lncome and expenses pertaining to  EPC Business have been allocated on a reasonable basis taking into consideratior1 the 
respective cost/profit centres and employee head count and certain common expenses have been allocated basis the 
proportionate o f  total expense of the EPC Business and O&M Business. 

d, l'he Holding company is in  the process of compliance of various procedural terms and conditions as mentioned in the 
respective lender's No Objection Certificate (NOC) and condition subsequent t o  the RTA. 

7. Contingent Liability for the Disposal Group: The Contingent ~ i a b i l i t ~  for 30 assumed legal proceeding associated with ETA and 
Contingent Liability for SPA associated with Disposal Group which has been transfprred are as under: 

(a) Claims against the Disposal Group not acknowledged as debts: claims miisleby contractors - t 597.80 Lakhs 

Some of the suppliers have raised claims including interest on account o f  non payment in  terms o f  the respective contracts. Th? 
Disposal Group has contended that the suppliers have not adhered t o  some of the contract terms. At prescnt the matters are 
pending before the jurisdictional authorities or are under negotiations. 

(b) Claims against the Disposal Group not acknowledged as debts: claims made by customers - t 5,709.10 Lakhs 

(c) Claims made by vendors in National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) S 2,528.90 Laklis 
(d) Claim against the disposal Group by the supplier - t 22.70 Lakhs 
(e) In respect of Service tax matter - 4 265.80 Lakhs 
The Disposal Group has received orders for the period April 2016 to  March 2017, in respect of Service Tsx, levying demand of 7 

265.80 Lakhs on account o f  advance revenue received on which service tax has been already paid in financial year ended 3 1  
March 2016. Since Service Tax Liability has been already discharged on suctl advance revenue, The Group has filed appeals before 
CESTAT. The Group has pad t 19.90 Lakhs as pre deposit for filling of appeal. 

(f) In respect o f  !ncome tax matter - 4 580.20 Lakhs 
The Disposal Group has received orders for the period Assessment Year 2016-17, in  respect o f  Income Tax, levying demand of 4 
580.20 Lakhs on account of addition in lncome without considering the modus operandi of the business o f  the Disposal Group. 
The Group has filed appeal before commissioner of Income Tax (CIT Appeals) The Disposal Group has paid T 10.00 Lakhs under 
protest. 

All the above legal proceedings, shall be continued, prosecuted, defended and enforced by the RESCO. For the avoidance of 
doubt, i t  is clarified that the cost and expenses incurred in continuing, prosecuting, defending and enforcing the above Legal 
Proceedings shall be t o  the account of the RESCO. If pursuant t o  any such above Legal Proceedings, any penalties, interest or 
monetary liability of any nature whatsoever is required to  be paid after the Closing Date, all such penalties, monetary liabilities 
and interest payments shall be discharged by the RESCO. 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 

Notes t o  the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

32 : Note on Discontinued Operations: 
8. The Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss may not include all the actual expenses that would have been incurred had the EPC 

business operated as a standalone company during the periods presented and may not reflect financial performance had it 
operated as a standalone company during such periods. Actual costs that would have been incurred if EPC business had operated 
as a standalone company would depend on multiple factors, including organizational structure, capital structure, strat&ic and 
tactical decisions made in various areas, including information technology and infrastructure. 
Therefore, the resulting financial performance in these consolidated Financial Statements may not be that which might have 
existed if the EPC business had been a standalone company. 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 
Notes to the consolidated financigl statements for the year ended 3 1  March 2022 

33. Capital Management 
For the purpose of the Group's capital Management, capital includes issued equity share capital, security 
premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Group. 
The Group's capital Management objectives are: 

to ensure the Group's ability to continue as a going concern 
= to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing products and services commensurately with the level 
of risk. 
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and 
the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust 
the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group monitors 
capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total equity. The Group includes within net debt, 
interest bearing loans and borrowines, trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents, excluding 
discontinued ~perations, if any. 

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as follows: 
Rs. in Lakhs 

Particulars t------ 
Non-current barrov~ings 
Current borrowings 
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 
Total debt 
Less: Cash and bank balances (excluding bank deposits kept 
as lien) 
Net debt 
Total Equity 

-- 

31 March 2022 1 3 1  March 2021 1 

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Group's capital Management, amongst other things, aims to ensure 
that it meets financial ccvenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capita! 
structure requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital 
during the year ended 3 1  March 2022 and 31 March 2021. 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

34. Financial Instruments 

Ii) Categories of financial instruments Rs. in  Lakhs 

Particulars 

(a) Financial assets 

Measured at amortised cost 

(a) Cash and bank balances , (b) Trade receivables 
1 (c) Loans 
(d) Other financial assets 

1 Measured at fair value through profi; or loss (FVTPL) 

/(a) Investment in mutual funds 

Total 

(b) Financial liabilities 
Measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 
Derivative financial liabilities 

The carrying amourit reflected above represents the entity's maximum exposure to credit risk for such financial assets. 
Investment in associates are classified as equity investment have been.accounted as at historic cost. Since these are 
scope out of Ind AS 109 for the purpose of measurement, tlie same have not been disclosed in the above table. 

Measured at amortised cost 

(a) Borrowings 
(b) Trade payables 
(c) Other financial liabilities 

(ii) Financial risk management 
The group's corporate finance function provides services to the business, coordinates access to financial market, 
monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the group through internal risk reports which 
analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of the risk. These risks include market risk (including currency risk; interest 
rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. 

90,416.60 
8,026.26 
1,827.57 

1,00,270.43 

(iii) Market Risk 
Market risk is that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of change in 
market price. The Group does not have any foreign currency exposure and hence is not subject to foreign currency 
risks. Further, the Group does not have any investments so the group is not subject t o  other price risks, Uarket risk 
comprise of interest rate risk and other price risk. 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LINlITED (formerly known as Inox Witid Infrastructure Services Limited) 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31  March 2022 

34. Financial lrlstruments 
(iii)(a) Interest rate risk management 
interest rate risk refers to the possibility that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market interest rate. The group is exposed to interest rate risk because it borrows funds at both 
fixed and floating interest rates. The risk is managed by the group by inaintaining an appropriate mix betweer! fixed and 
floating rate borrowings. 

lnterest rate sensitivity analysis 
The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for floating ,-ate liabilities 
at the end of the reporting period. For floating rate liabilities, a 50 basis point increase or decrease is used when 
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents management's assessment of the 

reasonably possible change in interest rates. 

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the group's profit for 

the period ended 31 March 2022 would decrease/increase by t 95.77 Lakhs net of tax (31 March 2021 would 
decreasejincrease by $ 109.60 Lakhs net of tax). This is mainly attributable to the group's exposure to interest rates on 

its va-iable late borrowiligs. 

(iii)(b) Otller price risks 
The group's non listed equity securities as susceptible to market price r is !~ arising from uncertianties about future 
values of the investment securities. Management monitors the investment closely to mitigate its impacl o n  profit and 

cash flows. 

. . 
(iv) Credit risk management 
Credit risk refers to risk that a counterparty will default on its cor~tractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the 
Groilp. Cretlit risk arises primarily from financial assets such as trade receivables, other balances with banks, loans and 
other receivahlcs. 

a) Trade receivables 
Credit risk arising from trade receivables is managed in accordance with the Group's established policy, procedures and 

control relating to customer credit risk management. The Group is providing O&M services and is tidving long term 
contracts with such customers. Accordingly, risk of recovery of such amounts is mitigated. Customers wtio lepresents 

more than . .  . 5% of t,he total balance of Trade Receivable as at 3 1   arch . . .  2022 /s $3.542.77 lalchs (as at  31Pvlaich 2321 . is , 

$1,3236.80 Lakhs) are due from 6 major customers who arc reputed parties. All trade receivables are reviewed i!lcl 

assessed for default at each reporting period. 

For trade receivables, as a practical expedient, the Group computes credit loss allowance based on a provislorr matrix. 

The provision matrix is prepared based on historically observed default rates over the expected life of trade receivables 
and is adjusted for forward-loolting estimates. The provision matrix at theend of the reporting period is as foliows. 

Expected credit loss (%) -- 
Ageing -- 
0-1 Year 
1-2 Year 
2-3 Year 
3-5 Year 15% 
Above 5 Year ---- 100% 100% 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

34. Financial Instruments 

Above 5 Year I 

Age of receivables 

Gross trade receivables 1 7,053.31 
* Expected credit loss(ECL) is not calculated for Balance oustanding with related party. 

Particulars 

0-1 Year 
1-2 Year 

2-3 Year 

3-5 Year 

Rs. in  Lakhs 
I 

As at 
3 1  March 2022* 

5,643.54 
669.88 

515.21 
224.68 

31 March 2021* A s a t  I 

Balance at beginning of the year 

Movement in expected credit loss allowance- Further Allowance 

Movement in expected credit loss allowance - on account of transfer of EPC 
Business 

Movement in  the expected credit loss allowance : 

Movement in expected credit loss allowance- Amount written off/(Amount written 

back) 

Balance at end of the year 

Particulars 

b) Loans and Other Receivables 
The Group applies expected credit losses (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of loss allowance on the loans 
given by the Group to the external parties. ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the 
group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), 
discounted at the original effective interest rate. 

The Group determines if there has been a significant increase in credit risk of the financial asset since initial recognition. 
If the credit risk of such assets has not increased significantly, an amount equal to 12-month ECL is measured and 
recognized as loss allowance. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, an amount equal to lifetime ECL is 
measured and recognized as loss allowance. 

2021-2022 

12-month ECL are a portion of the lifetime ECL which result from default events that are possible within 12 months 
from the reporting date. Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from al! possible default events over the 
expected life of a financial asset. 

2020-2021 

ECL are measured in a manner that they reflect unbiased and probability weighted amounts determined by a range of 
outcomes, taking into account the time value of money and other reasonable information available as a result of past 
events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. 

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/expense in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss under the head 'Other expenses'. 

c) Other financial assets 



INOX GREEN ENEKGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 3 1  March 2022 

34. Financial Instruments 

(v) Liquidity Risk Management 

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the committee of board of directors of the Group, 
which has established an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Group's short, 
medium and long-term funding and liquidity management rcquircments. The Group manages liquidity risk by 
maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast 
and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. 

(vi) Liquidity risk table 
The following tables detail the Group's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with 
agreed repayment periods. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flov~s of financial liabilities 
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The tables include both interest and principal 
cash flows, To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate 
curves at the end of the reporting period. The contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on which the Group 
may be required to pay. 

a) Non-Derivative Financial Liabilities : 
The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities including estimated interest 
payments as at 3 1  March 2022: 

Rs. in  Lakhs 
1 particulars I Less than 1 year I 1 to  5 year I 5 years and I ~ o t a l -  

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities including estimated interest 
payments as at 3 1  March 2021: 

Particulars 

Borrowings 

Trade payables 

Derivative financial liabilities 
Other financial liabilities 

Less than 1 year I 1 to 5 year I 5 years and I Total 

The above liabilities will be met by the Group from internal accruals, realization of current and non-current financial 
assets (athe; tkar: strategic investments). Further, the Group also has unutilised financing facilities. 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LiMlTED (formerly known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 

Notes t o  the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31  March 2022 

34. Financial Instruments- continued 

(vii) Fair Value of the  Entity's financial assets and financial 1iabi:ities that sre measured a t  fair value on a recurring basis: 

Financial assets/(Financial 
liabilities) 

(viii) Fair value o f  financial assets and financial liabi1ities:ha: are not measured at  fair value (but fair value disclosures are required) 

(a) Optionally convertible 

debentures (Refer Note 20) 

Rs. i n  Lakhs 

Relationship of 

unobservable 

inputs t o  fair 

value 

The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost in the financial statements are a reasonable approximation of their fair values since the group does 

not anticipate that the carrying amounts would be significantly different from the values that would eventually be received or settled. 

Fair Value as at  

During the year, there were no transfers between Level 1 and level 2 

(480.23) 

Fair Value 

Hierarchy 

As at  

3 1  March 2022 
31 March 2021 

Level 2 

Valuation Technique(s) & key inputs used Significant 

unobservable 
input(s) 

Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows are estimated based 

on forward exchange rates (from observable yield curves at  

the end o f  the reporting period) and contract interest rates, 

discounted at a rate that reflects the credit risk of various 

counterparties. 

NA 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

35. Employee benefits: 

(a) ~ e f i n e d  Contribution Plans 

The group contributes to the Government managed provident and pension fund for all qualifying employees. 

Contribution to provident fund of % 80.80 Lakhs (31 March 2021 f 85.40 Lakhs) is recognized as an expense and included 
in "contribution to provident and other funds" in Statement of Profit and Loss. 

(b) Defined Benefit Plans: 
The Company has defined benefit plan for payment of gratuity to  ail qualifying employees. It is governed by t h~ !  Payment 
of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under this Act, an employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to the specified 
benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the employee's length of service and salary at retirement age. The 
Company's defined benefit plan is unfunded. 

There are no other post retirement benefits provided by the Company. 

The most recent actuarial valuation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out as at 31  March 
2022 by MIS Charan ~ u ~ t a  Consultants Pvt. Ltd., Fellow of the Institute of the Actuaries of India. The prese~lt value of 
the defined benefit obligation, the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the projected 
unit credit method. 

-- Rs. in Lakhs 
MoVvernent in the present value of the defined benefit --I---- 

Gratuity 
obligation are as follows : - 

Interest cost ----- 
Current service cost --- 

Particulars 
Opening defined benefit obligation 
Acquisition adjustment in - 

Benefits paid 
Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligations 
Present value of obligation as at the year end 

31 March 2022 

147.99 

Interest cost 
Amount recognised in profit or loss I-- Actuarial faain)/loss 44.83 

31 March 2021 

137.63 

Components of amounts recognised in profit or loss and other comprehensiv~ income are as under: 

Rs. in Lakhs 

;a) arising from changes in financial assumptions 
h>rising from experience adjustments 
Amount recognised in other comprehensive income 
Tot i -  t 

31 March 2021 --d 35.66 

Gratuity I 31 March 2% 
Current service cost 34.28 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 
Notes to  the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

35. Employee benefits: 

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations of gratuity are as follows: 

Estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and 
other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market. 

Particulars 
Discount rate (per annum) 
Expected rate of salary increase 
Employee attrition rate 

Mortality 

These plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as interest rate risk and salary risk. 
a) Interest risk: a decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability. 
b) Salary risk: the present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan 
participants. As such, a variation in the expected rate of salary increase of the plan participants will change the plan 
liability. 

Sensitivity analysis 
Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of defined obligation are discount rate and expected salary 
increase. The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective 
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant. 

31  March 2022 
7.13% 
8.00% 

5% 

31  March 2021 
6.70% 
8.00% 

5% 

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation 
as it is unlikely that the change in assumption would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be 
correlated. Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation 
has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that 
applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability reco~nised in the balance sheet. 

IALM(2012-14)Ultimate Mortality 
Table 

Particulars 

Impact on present value of defined benefit obligation: 

If discount rate is increased by 0.50% 
i f  discount rate is decreased by 0.50% 

If salary escalation rate is increased by 0.50% 

If salary escalation rate is decreased by 0.50% 

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years. 

Gratuity 
31  March 2022 

(7.27) 
7.91 

7.05 

(6.58) 

31 March 2021 

(7.42) 
8.12 

7.61 

(7.01) 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 
Notes to the consolidated financial stitements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

35. Employee benefits: 

Expected outflow in future years (as provided in actuarial report) 

Rs, in Lakhs r Particulars Gratuity 
31 March 2022 I 31 March 2021 

Expected outflow in 1st Year 

Expected outflow in 2nd Year 
Expected outflow in 3rd Year 
Expected outflow in 4th Year 

Expected outflow in 5th Year 
Expected outflow in 6th to 10th Year 

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation for the year ended 31 March 2022 is 14.01 (31 March 2021: 
14.01 years) 

(c) Other lcng term employment benefits: 
Annual leave &Short term leave 

The liability towards compensated absences (annual and short term leave) fcr the year ended 31  March 2022 based 011 
actuarial valuation carried out by using Projected accrued benefit method resulted in illcrease in liability hy 't: 6.59 Iakhs 
(31 March 2021 7 5.55 Lakhs), which is included in the employee benefits in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and 
Loss. 

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations of compensated absences are as follows: 

Particulars 

7.13% 

Expected rate of salary increase 8.00% 
Employee attrition rate 

Mortality rate 
IALM(2012-14)Ultitnate Mortality 

Table 



iNOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly known as lnor Wind Infrastructure Services Limlted) 
Notes to the consoiidated financial statements for the year ended 3 1  March 2022 

36. Related Partv Disclosures: 

i. Where controi exists 
inox Wind Limited liWL) - holding company 
inox Wind Energy Limited (IWEL) - holding company of IWL 
lnox Leasing and Finance Limited - ultimate holding company 

ii. Other Related ~a r t i es  wi th  whom there are transactions durinr! the veal 

Key Management Personnel (KMP) 

Mr. Manoj Shambhu Dixit - whole-time director i n  inox Wind lnfrastructure Services Limited 
Mr. Mukesh Mangiik - Non Executive Director in lnox Wind infrastructure Services Limited (up to 18 May 2020) 
Mr. Mukesh Mangiik - whole-time director in lnox Wind infrastructure Services Limited (w.e.f. 19 May 2020) 

Mr .  Vineet Davis - whole-time director in lnox Wind lnfrastructure Services Limited (up to 18 May 2020) 

Mr. Vineet Davis - Non Executive Director in inox Wind infrastructure Services Limited (w.e.1. 19 May 2020) 

Mrs. Bindu Saxena- Non executive director (w.e.f 14 December 2021) 

Mr. Shanti Prashad Jain - Non executive director 

Mr. V.Sankaranarayanan - Non executive director 

Mr. Bhupesh IuneJa - Non Executive Director i n  Marut Shakti Energy india Limited 
Mr. Mukesh Patni - Non Executive Director in Marut Shakti Energy India Limited 

Mr. Vineet Valentine Davis - Non Executive Director in Marut Shakti Energy india Limited 

Associates If 
1. Wind One Renergy Limited (formerly known as Wind One Renergy Private Limited) 
2. Wind Two Renergy Private Limited 
3. Wind Three Renergy Limited (formerly known as Wind Three ReFergy Private Limited) 

4. Wind Four Renergy Private Limited 

5. Wind Five Renergy Limited (formerly known as Wind Five Renergy Private Limited) 
6. Khatiyu Wind Energy Private Limited (Upto?S December 2018)' 
7. Ravapar Wind Energy Private Limited (Upto On 15 December 2018)' 
8. Nani Virani Wind Energy Private Limited (Upto On 15 December 2018)' 

Fellow Subsidiaries 
Gujarat Fluorochemicais Limited ("GFCL") (earlier known as inox Fluorochemicais Limited) 
GFL Limited (earlier known as Gujarat Fluorochemicals Limited) 
inox Renewabies Limited (iRL) - Subsidiary of GFL Llmited (upto 0 1  Aprii 2021) * 
inox Leisure Limited (ILL) - Subsidiary of GFL Limited 

Waft energy Private Limited 

Resco Giobai Wind Service Private Limited (w.e.f. 19 October 2021) 
Marut Shakti Energy india Limited (w.e.f.29 October 2021) 

Satviki Energy Private Limited (w.e.f. 29 October 2021) 

Sarayu Wind Power (Taiiimadugula) Private Limited (w.e.f. 29 October 2021) 
Vinirrmaa Energy Generation Private Limited (w.e.f. 29 October 2021) 

Sarayu Wind Power (Kondapuram) Private Limitcd (w.e.1. 29 October 2021) 

RBRK investments Limited (w.e.f. 29 October 2021) 

'The Hon'ble National Company Caw Tribunal, Ahrnedabad Bench ("NCLT") vide its order dated 25 January 2DZl has approved a Composite Scheme of Arrangement ("the Scheme") between GFL Limitcd, 
inox Renewables Limited and lnox Wind Energy Limited (wholly-owned subsidiaries of GFL Limited) as detailed below: 

a) Part A - Amalgamation of lnox Renewabies Limited into GFL Limited w.e.f.01 Aprii 2020 and 
b) Part B - Demerger of the Renewable Energy Business (as more particularly defined i n  the Scheme) and strategic investment of GFL Limited in inox Wind Limited and other assets and liabilities pertaining 
to the said business into lnox Wind Energy Limited, a newly incorporated company for the purpose of vesting of the Renewable Energy Business w.e.1. 0 1  Juiy 2020. 
The aforesaid Scheme become effective from 9 February 2021. Upon the said Scheme becoming effective, inox Wind Limited has become the subsidiary company of inox Wind Energy Limited w.e.f. 01 Juiy 
2020. 

" Various binding agreements entered into with party has ceased t o  exit w.e.f. 01 Jan 2021, as per term and conditions of the agreement. The group has gained controi over such companies in terms of ind 
AS 110: Consoiidated Financial Statements. Therefore, the group has accounted for investment in such companies as investment in 'subsidiary' from the date of gaining control. 

# iWiSL has formed above wholly-owned subsidiaries for the purpose of carrying out bus~ness of generation and sale of wind energy. iWiSL has entered into various binding agreements with a party to, inter. 
aiia, transfer the shares of such companies at a future date and defining rights of the respective parties. in view of the provisions of these binding agreements, it is assessed that iWtSL has ceased t o  exercise 
control over such companies in terms of ind AS 110: Consoiidated Financiai Statements. Therefore, iWlSL has accounted for investment in such companies as investment in 'associate' from the date of 
cessation of controi. 

Note-Related party relationship are as identified by the Group and relied upon by the audiotrs. 

The following table summarizes related-party transactions and balances included in the consolidated financial statements: 
( t i n  Lakhs) - 

lParticuiarS I Holding company I Associates / Fellow subsidiaries 1 Total I 
]A) Transactions during the year I 3 1  March 2022 1 31  March 2021 I 31 March 2022 I 3 1  March 20211 3 1  March 2022 ( 3 1   arch 20211 3 1  March 2022 1 3 1  March 2 6 1  I 

I Purchase of goods and services 1 1 -1 1 I I 

Sale of goods and services 
inox Wind Limited 
GFL Limited 
inox Wind Energy Limited 
Gularat Fluorochemlcals Limited 
Marut Shakti Energy India Ltd 
Wind One Renergy Limited 
Wind Two Renergy Private Limited 
Wind Three Renergy Limited 
Wind Five Renergy Limited - 
inox Renewables Limited 
Resco Giobai Wind Service Private Limited . 
Total 

5,320.90 

43.20 

6.06 33.63 -- 
5.88 160.82 

-- -- 836.32 
5,364.10 2.438.74 24.06 503.85 1,501.20 514.14 6,889.36 3,456.73 

2,365.62 
18.06 
55.06 

6.06 
6.06 

55.61 
253.79 

539.85 
125.03 

514.14 

5,320.90 

43.20 
539.85 
125.03 

6.06 
6.06 

2,365.62 
18.06 
55.06 

514.14 

55.61 
253.79 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Scrvlces Limited) 
Notes to thc consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

36. Related Parj!&&closures: 

-- -- - - --- 
- -- -- 

-On inter-corpxatrt deposit 2,121.22 3,349.62 
-On debentures . 473 42 -- -- 1,"6.11_ :--- -- 

. -Sn preferertcs snares 0.74 
, . 

-- 
. . 946.43 1,674.90 

- ---- 
174.52 - 

-On In ter -corbrzc  deposit 392.94 - 525.48 -- 392.94 525 4 8  - 
---- 2,=32 5,086.33 - 946.43 1,674.90 

lnox Wind Limited 
inox Renewabi3s Limited 
Gujarat Fluorochemlcals Limited 
Total 

Purchase return of goods and services 
lnox Wind Limited 
Total 

9,973.48 

9,973.48 

inter-corporate deposits t a k e n  
lnox Wind Limited 98,793.52 54,333.94 -- - 93,793.52 54,333.94 
Total 98,793.52 54,333.94 98,793.52 54,333.94 

1 -  

Holding company Ass~clates Fcilo-w subsidiaries 
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

- 
50,374.16 41,197.84 - - 
10.000.00 -- 10,00C.00 
60,374.16 41,197.84 

4,038.02 
4,038.09 

14,738.87 

- 

14,738.87 

13,403.00 
13,403.00 

108.16 
108.16 -- 

-.pp,pp -- 
4.038.09 13,403.00 - -- .- . . - 

- 4,031.09 13,403.00 

9,973.48 

9,973.48 

14,738.87 

108.16 
14,847.03 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly known as lnox Wlnd Infrastructure Services Llmiled) 
Notes t o  the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

36. Related Partv Disclosures: 
(7 in Lakhs) 

I 
Optionally Convertible Debentures converted t o  Equity Share 
lnox Wind Limited I 20,000.00 10,000.00 
Total 20,000.00 10,000.00 

I I 

Particulars 

A) Transactions during the year-cant. 
Guarantee Charges paid 
Gujarat Fluorochemicals Limited 
lnox Wind Energy Limited 
GFL Limited 
Total 

Guarantee Charges received 
Resco Global Wind Service Private Limited 
Total 

L 

issue of Preference Shares 
lnox Wind Limited 20,000.00 - .  20,000.00 
Total 20,000.00 20,000.00 

0.02 0.02 -- 
0.02 0.02 
0.02 0.02 
0.02 0.02 - 

RBRK investment9 Lln~ited 0.02 0.02 - 
0.10 0.10 ---- 

22.20 
22.20 

p - P a I d  
Gu arat Fluorochemicals Limited 3.04 2.90 
Total 3.04 2.90 3.04 2.90 

Holding company 

t i n  Lakhs) 
Particulars Holdln com an Associates Fellow subsidiaries Total -- I 31 March 202: I 3: A r c h  2021 I 31 March 2022 I 31 March 2021 I 31 ~ a r c h  2022 I 31 March 2021 I 31 March ,022 /kc, 20211 

31 March 2022 

40.80 

40.80 

22.20 
22.20 

31 March 2021 

-. 

Associates 

- 

31 March 2022 

A) Tiansactions during the year-cont 
Reimbursement of expenses pald/paymei~t made on 
behalf of the Group 
inox Wtnd Limited 
Wlnd T v ~ o  llenergy Prtvate Llm~ted 
Gujarat F luorochemlca ls~ i ted 
lnox Wind Energy Limited 
Resco Global Wtnd Service Private Limited 

Wind Three Renergy Limited 
Wlnd Ftve Renergy Limited 

Wsnd one Renergy Lilnlted 
Total 

Reimbursement of expenses received/payment made 
on behalf by the Group 
lnox Wind Llmtted 
lnox Wtnd Energy Lirnlted 
Gujarat Fluorochemicnls Limited 
Waft Energy Private Limited 
Total 

31 March 2021 

Fellow subsldlarles 

31 March 2022 

693.52 

693.52 

Total 

1,788 18 

1,788.18 

1,286 80 
51 06 

1,337.86 

31 March 2021 

455.53 

- 
101.11 
556.64 

31 March 2022 

693.52 
40.80 

734.32 

31 March 2021 
4 

455.53 

101.11 
556.64 

675 05 

331 41 

1,006 46 

1,300 65 

100 87 

1,401.52 

- 

59 SO 

444 50 
846 30 

7 
1,955.30 

- 

-- 

337 90 

161 46 

479.36 

-- 

0 22 
0.22 

337 90 

331 90 

--- 

4 72 
4.72 

1,788 18 
59 50 

337 90 

1 6 1 4 6  
444 50 -- 
846 30 
605 00 

4,- 

1286 80 
51 06 

dpp 
1,338 08 

-- 

6/5 05 - 
- 

337 90 
331 41 

1,344 36 

1,300 65 

100 87 
1 7 2  

1,406 24 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly known as lnox Wlnd infrastructure Services Llmited) 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 3 1  March 2022 

56. ~ela<ed Partv Disclosures: 

Particulars 

interest accrued on pieference sharas I 
lnox Wind Limited 0.66 

-- 
-- 

Total 0.66 - - - 0.66 

Holding company 

a) Amounts payable 
Trade and other payable~ 
inox Wind Limited 
Gujarat Fiuorochemicals Limited 
GFL Limited 
lnox Wind Energy Limited -- 
Resco Global Wind Service Private Limited 
Waft energy Private Llmited 
Satvlki Energy Private Limited 
Wind Two Renergy Private Limited 
Total 

lnox Wind Limited 12,925.70 47,826.70 
GFL Limited 
lnox Wind Energy Limited 10,000.00 --- 
Total 12,925.70 57,826.70 - 12,925.70 57,626.70 1 
Debentures -- 
lnox Wind Limited 20.000.00 
Total 20,000.00 

y17/T-2d 
-- 

i 

2,179.24 

2,179.24 

Redeemable Preferc~ice Shares I I 
lnox Wind Lim led 20,000 00 - ~0.'10000 
Total I-- ! 20,000.00 1 

Assoc,lat;s 1 Fellow subsidiaries Total 

3 1  March 2022 3 1  Mar 2021 3 1  March 2022 3 1  Mar 2021 3 1  March 2022 B) Balance as at the end of the year / 3 1  March 2022 

- 
Interest payable oninter-corporate deposit 
lnox Wind Limited 226.64 3,457.54 - - 3,467.54 
lnox Wind Energy Limited . - 1,030.37 - - 1,030.37 
Total 226.64 4,497.91 226.64 4,197.9?_ - ; 

-- ----- 
Interest payablc on debentures 
inox Wind Limited 328.42 328.42 
Total 328.42 328.42 

3 1  Mar 2021 

26,251.21 

0.17 

26,251.38 

Interest payable on Advance 
Gujarat Fluorcchemlcals Llmited 
Total --+---' 2,415.67 2,415.67 

I 
--- - . 

b) Amount reccivaLle 
Trade and other r e ? l c  - 
GFL Limited - - . -  ---1:- 
Gujarat Fiuorochemicals Limitcd 
lnox Wind Limitcd 
inox Wind Energy Limited 
Wind One Renergy Limited - 
WindTwo Renergy Private Limited 
WindTnree Renrrgy Limited 
Wind Five Rencrgy Limitcd 
Waf1 encr Private LlmJted 

+ervlce private Limitej 
Totai - 112.03 934.13 . 

- 

- ,  

57.92 
57.92 

-- Holding company q v p -  Asocii~tes 7- Fellow s u , h s ~ a r i e j I  Total 

8) Balance as at the end of the year 3 1  March 2022 I 3 1  Mar 2021 31 March 2022 1-31 Mar 2021 3 1  March 2022 3 1  Mar 2021 3 1  March 2022 I 3 1  Mar 2C21 

pp 

-- 

2,179.24 26.251.21 
pp 

106.90 720.93 106.90 
i,345.42 - 1,345.42 

537.54- 537.54 
4.72 -- 4.72 

4.73. 

649.17 

- 

2 , 0 7 1 1 z  

4 .= 
- 57.92 

2,886.33 28,32,,15 I 
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INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIIAITFD (formerly known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) . 
Notes to the ronsolideted financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

36. Related Partv Dlsclosu~es: - 
650.26 

' 0.45 
72.57 

0.01 
650.00 
0.41 
51.74 

Total 

0.01 RBRK investments Limited 
Wind Flve Renergy Limited 
Wind One Renergy Limited 
Wind Three R e n e w  Limited 

723.28 

650.00 
0.41 
51.74 

2,899.48 

650.26 
0.45 
72.57 

2,197.33 702.15 723.28 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formcrly known as lnox Wlnd Infrastructure Sovlces Limited) 

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for t i le year ended 31 March 2022 

36. Related ParN Discl~sures: 

C) Guarantees 

Particulars - 
a) Balance as at the end of the year-cont. 

interest on Inter-co2orate deposit r e c e i u a k  

GFL Limited ("GFL") (earlier known as Gujarat Fiuorochemicais Limited), has issued guarantee and provided security in respect of borrowirtgs by the group. The 0uts:anding baiances of such borrowings as at 
31 March 2022 is Nil (as at 31 March 2021 is t 7.453.00 Lakhs). Further, GFL Limited has issued performance Bank Guarantee ns at 31 March 202: is Nil (as at 3: March 2021 is T 3,125.00 Lakhs). 

Gujarat Fiuorochemicais Limited ("GFCL") (eariicr known as inox Fiuorochemicais Limited), the fellow suts~diaries company, has i r s ~ e d  guarantee a l d  prcvided seccr;!y in respect of borruw~ngs by t!le group. 
1 he outstanding balances of such borrowings as at 31 March 2022 is i 3,2416.70 Lakhs (31 March 2021 is 7 77,399.00 Laki~s). Further GFCL has isstreo performance Bank Guarantee as at 31 March 2022 Is t 

17,300.00 Lakhs (31 March 2021 is T 3,425.00 Lakhs). 

inox Wind Limited the iioiding Company, has issued euarantee and provided security in respect of borrowings by the croup. The outstilniling b ~ i a n c ~ s  o i  suci~ borrowings as at 31 March 2022 is 7 9,417 00 
iakhs. 

Holding company 

The company has providea cecurity i.e first pari-passu charge over the movable fixed assets, both present and future, against Term Loan from financial instit~rtion taken by lnox Wind Limited (IWL) 

0.79 0.79 
196.12 
0.20 
18.17 - 36.78 

0.82 215.31 

31 March 2022 

Notes: 

Fellow subsloiaries Total 

31 March 31 Mar 2021 

125.90 
0.17 
16.78 
142.85- 

Associates 

Marut Shakti Energy India Limited 
Resco Giobai Wind Service Frivate Limited 
Wind Five Renergy Limited 
Wind One Renergy Limited 
WlndThree Ronergy Limited- 
Total 

(a) Sales, purchases and service transactions with related parties are made at arm's length price. 
(b) Amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash or receiptsfprovision of goods and services. 

31 March 2022 

196.12 
0.20 
15.17 
214.49 

(c) No expense has been recognised for the year ended 31 March 2022 and for the year ended 31 March 2021 for bad or doubtful trade receivables in respect of amounts owed by related parties. 
(d) There have been no other guarantees received or provided for any related party receivables or payabies. 

31 Mar 2021 

(e) Com ensation of Key management personnel +- I I I 
Jsart/cu~ars, I 31 March 2022 I 31 March 2021 I 
ti) Remuneration paid - 
-Mr .  Manoi Dixit 
-Mr .  Vineet Davis t-- 

I Particulars I 3 1  March 2022 1 31 March 2021 1 

-Mr .  Mukesh Manglik 

Sitting fees paid to directors L Total 

Short term benafits 
Port empiovment benefits* 
Lone term employment benefits' 
Share based payments 
Termination b?nefits 
Sitting fees pa;d to directors 9.80 7.80 

73.49 134.06 

31.30 
32.39 

33.11 
43.21 1 

9.80 

73.49 

49.94 

134.06 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly hnown as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 

Notes to the consolidated financial statemcltts for the year ended 31 March 2022 

36. Related Partv Disclosures: 

'As the liabilities for the defined benefit plans and other long term benefits are provided on actuarial basis for the Company, the amount pertaining to KMP are not ircluded above. 

The remuneration of directors and Key Management Personnel (KMP) Is determined by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee having regard t o  the performance of Individuals and market trends 

Contribution to provident Fund (deflned contribution plan) is t 2.40 Lakhs (March 2021 T 6.50 Lakhs) included in the amount of remuneration reported above. 

(b) Disclosure required ~ lndr r  section 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013 

-- 

[ Marut Shakti Energy lndta L~m~ted I inter Corporate Dcposlt 

Loans to related parties: -- 

Name of the Party 

RBRK investments Lim~ted I Inter Corpor 
Wind One Renergy Limited I inter Corporate Deposlt I 0.41 

N A 

Nature 

Sarayu Wind Power (Tallimaduguia) Private Limited 
Sarayu Wind Power (Kondapuram) Private Limited 
Satviki Energy Private Limited 
Vinirrmaa Energy Generation Private Limited 

Inter-corporate deposits are unsecured and repayable on demand and carries interest @ 12% p.a. These 1oans.Securities and Guarantee are given for general business purposes 

I Wlnn Tllrca Rcncrgf t~u l~ ted ( Intel Lorpurate Oepor t I 51.74 1 72.57 

31 March 2022 

inter Corporate Deposit 
Inter Corporate Deposit 
Inter Corporate Deposit 
Inter Corporate Deposit 

Won:, F l \ r .  Hvnrrgy rirwled I Inter Corporate Deporlt - - . . .- I inter Curpurate 0epor:t - .- 

31 March 2021 

ate Deposit 

0.10 
0.10 
0.10 
0.10 

650.00 - - 
2,197.28 

(c) Additional disclosure in respect of loans given.asrcqu1red by the Listing 

N A 
NA 
N A 
N A 

0.10 

650.26 
hA 

Name of the loanec 

Marut Shakti Energy India Limited 
Sarayu Wind Power (Tailimad~~gula) Private limited 
Sarayu Wind Power [Kondapuram) Private Limited 
Satviki Energy Private Limited - 
Vinirrmaa Energy Generation Private Lim~ted 
RCRK investments Limited 
Wind One Renergy Limited 

-- 
Wind Three Renergy Limited 

Wind Five Renergy Limited 

Resco Global Wind Service Private Limited 

Agreement: 

Amount of loans 

at the year end 

0.10 
0.10 
0.10 
0.10 
0.10 
0.41 
0.45 
51.74 
72.57 
650.00 
650.26 

2,197.28 

N A 

Year 

31 March 2022 
31 March 2022 
31 March 2022 
31 March 2022 
31 March 2022 
31 March 2022 
31 March 2022 
31 March 2021 
31 March 2022 
31 March 2021 
31 March 2022 
31 March 2021 
31 March 2022 

Maximum 

balance during 

the year 

0.10 
0.10 
0.10 

0.10 
0.10 
0.05 
0.45 

- 72.57 
72.57 
650.26 
650.26 

2,197.28 

Investment by 

the loanee In 

shares of the 

company 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 
Notes to  the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

37. lncome tax recognised in  Statement of  Profit and Loss 
Rs. in Lakhs 

Year ended Year ended 
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

Current tax 
In respect of the current year 
Taxation pertaining to earlier years 

Deferred tax 
In respect of the current year 

Total income tax expense recognised in the current year 

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows: 

Particulars 
Year ended Year ended 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

Profit/(loss) before tax for the year from continuing operations 
Profit/(Loss) before the tax for the year from discontinued operations 

Income tax expense* (3,988.03) (6,720.24) 
Effect of  expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profits 49.90 

Deferred tax on losses of subsidiaries not recognised 2,884.15 

Others 1,890.30 (77.20) 
(2,097.73) (3,863.39) 

Taxation pertaining to  earlier years 
lncome tax expense recognised in  Statement of  Profit and Loss 

*The tax rate used for the year ended 31  March 2022 and 31  March 2021 is 34.944%. The tax rate is corporate tax rate 

payable by corporate entities in India on taxable profits under the Indian tax law. 

Provision for tax in the consolidated financial information for the year ended 31  March 2022 and 31 March 2021 are only 
provisional in the respective years and subject to change at the time of filing of lncome Tax Return based on actual 
addition/deduction as per provisions of lncome Tax Act 1961. 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 
Notes t o  the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31  March 2022 

38: Contingent liabilities 

(a) Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts: claims made by contractors t 4,344.40 Lakhs (as at 31  
March 2021: T 5,450.40 Lakhs). 

Some of the suppliers have raised claims including interest on account of non payment in terms of the respective 
contracts. The Company has contended that the suppliers have not adhered to  some of the contract terms. At 
present the matters are pending before the jurisdictional authorities or are under negotiations. 

b) Claim made by customer not acknowledged as debts Nil (as at 31  March 2021: T 932.00 Lakhs). 

c) Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts: claims made by customers - T 1,2102.10 Lakhs (as at 31 
March 2021: amount not ascertainable) 

d) Claims made by vendors in National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) t 947.70 Lakhs (as at 3 1  March 2021: T 
714.50 lakhs) 

e) Claim against the Group by the supplier : 4 22.71 lakhs (as at 3 1  March 2021 : T 22.71 lakhs) 

f) in respect of Service tax matter- Nil (as at 31 March 2021: T 265.80 lakhs) 

The Group has received orders for the period April 2016 t o  March 2017, in  respect of Service Tax, levying demand 
o f f  265.80 lakhs on account of advance revenue received on which service tax has been already paid in financial 
year ended 3 1  March 2016. Since Service Tax Liability has been already discharged on such advance revenue. The 
Group has filed appeals before CESTAT. The Group has pad t 19.93 lakhs as pre deposit for filling of appeal. 

g) In respect of lncome Tax matters Nil (as at 31  March 2021: t 580.20 Lakhs). 

The Group has received orders for the period Assessment Year 2016-17, in respect of lncome Tax, levying demand 
of T 580.20 Lakhs on account of addition in income without considering the modus operandi of the business of the 
Group, The Group has filed appeal before commissioner of lncome Tax (CIT Appeals) The Group has paid T 10.00 
Lakhs under protest, 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 
Notes t o  the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31  March 2022 

h) In respect of VAT/GST matters 4 2,259.10 Lakhs (as at 31  March 2021: 4 155.00 Lakhs) 

The group had received assessment orders for the financial years ended 3 1  March 2017 for demand of 4 185.30 
Lakhs, in respect of Andhra Pradesh on account of VAT and CST demand on the issue of mismatch in Input Tax 
Credit and non submission of statutory forms. The group has filed appeals before the first appellate authority in the 
matter of CST and VAT demands. 

The Group has received Entry Tax Assessment Order from Rajasthan Tax Department with demand of 4 646.90 
Lakhs during the year on the Inter State Purchases made during the FY 2015-16,2016-17 & 2017-18 (till June) on the 
assumption that the assessee has not paid any VAT/Local Tax on the final product. The Group has filed application 
for reopening of the assessment and it is pending for disposal as on date. The Group has also received tax demand 
from kerela VAT for 4 251.10 Lakhs, and the Group has received show couse notice of $ 1,125.20 Lakhs from GST 
Vadodara on account of input tax credit utilization and reply of same has been filed. 

i) The Group has provided security i.e first pari-passu charge over the movable fixed assets, both present and 
future, against term Loan from financial Institution taken by Inox Wind Limited (IWL) 

j) In respect of Performance Bank Guarantee to  Solar Energy Corporation of India is 7 3,718.80 Lakhs (as at 31 
March 2021: 4 Nil) 

The Holding Company has filed petition for "Harcda Wind Energy Private Limited", "Khatiyu Wind Energy Private 
Limited", "Ravapar Wind Energy Private Limited" and "Vigodi Wind Energy Private LimitedN, on 22 March 2022 
before Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (CERC), New Delhi for termination of letter of award dated 03 
November 2017, Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) dated 27 December 2017 for 200 MW, for relieving from 
financial implication and releasing of respective bank guarantees. The same is pending before CERC. 

k) Other claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts 4 216.00 Lakhs (as at 3 1  March 2021: Nil). 

In respect of above matters, no additional provision is considered necessary as the Company expects favourable 
outcome. Further, it is not possible for the Company to  estimate the timing and amounts of further cash outflows, if 
any, in respect of these matters. 
Further, the company may be liable to pay damages/ interest for specific non- performance of contractual 
obligation. The actual liability on account of these may differ from the provisions already created in the books of 
accounts and disclosed as contingent liability. 
Due to  unascertainable outcome for pending litigation matters with Court/Appellate Authorities, the management 
expects no material adjustments on tlie consolidated financial statements. 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 
Noteo t o  the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 3 1  March 2022 

39: Capital & Other Commitments 

Capital Commitments 
(a) Estimated amounts of contracts remaining to  be executed on capital account and not provided for (net of 
advances) is t 984.65 Lakhs , (31 March 2021: t 2,295.20 Lakhs). 

(b) Estimated amounts of capital commitment for setting up wind farm projects as awarded by SECl is T 3,23,970.70 
Lakhs (31 March 2021: is t 3,08,828.10 Lakhs) 

Other Commitments 
(a) Bank Guarantee issued by the Company to  Power Grid Corporation of lndia Limited for 4 2,850.00 Lakhs (31 
March 2021: t 2,500.00 Lakhs) 

(b) Bank Guarantee issued by the Group to  its customer for 4 1,669.00 Lakhs (as at 31  March 2021: S 1,475.00 
Lakhs). 

c) Group has issued Performance Bank Guarantee to  Solar E~ergy Corporation of lndia is t 6,507.90 Lakhs (as at 31  
March 2021: t 11,000.00 Lakhs) 

d) Corporate Guarantee of T 5,000.00 Lakhs given to  Financials Institution against loan taken by group (as at 31 
March 2021 T 5,000.00 Lakhs) 

40: Leases 

"Leases1', which is mandatow w.e.f. 0 1  April 2019, has replaced existing Ind AS 17 - "Leases1'. The Group neither 
have any existing material lease contracts as on 01  April 2018 nor executed subsequently till 31  March 2022. The 
adoption of the standard does not have any impact on the financial statement of the group. Following are the 
details of lease contracts which are short term in nature: 

i. Amount recognized in  consolidated statement of profit and loss Rs. in  Lakhs 

41  : Balance Confirmation 

Particulars 

Included in rent expenses: Expense relating to  short-term leases 

ii. Amounts recognised in  the consolidated statement of cash flows 

The Group has a system of obtaining periodic confirmation of balances from banks, trade receivables/payables, 

advance to  vendor and other parties. The balance confirmation letters as referred in the Standard on Auditing (SA) 

505 (Revised) 'External Confirmations', were sent to banks and parties and certain parties' balances are subject to 

confirmation/reconciliation. Adjustments, if any will be accounted for on confirmation/reconciliation of the same, 

which in the opinion of the management will not have a material impact. 

Particulars 

As at 

31 March 2022 

128.95 

As at 
31 March 2021 

7-47-20 

As at 
31 March 2022 

As at 

31 March 2021 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly known as lnox Wind lnfrastructurc Services Lirnited) 
Notes to  the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31  March 2022 

42: Details of subsidiaries 

Name of subsidiary i Proportion of ownership interest and 
Place of 

voting power held by the Group 
incorporation and 

I operations I As at 1 Asat 

There are no restrictions on the Parent or the subsidiaries' ability to access or use the assets and settle the llobilitics of the Group. 
Refer Note 7 & 36 in respect of particulars of subsidiary companies which haw become 'associate' on cessation of control. 

A) Subsidiaries of IGESL: 
31  March 2022 

- 

31 March 2021.1 

Marut Shakti Energy India Limited (upto 28 October 2021)** India N A 
1 

100.009: -' 
Satviki Energy Private Limited (upto 28 October 2021)** India N A 
Sarayu Wind Power (Tallimadugula) Private Limited (upto 28 Octqber 2023)** India 
Vinirrmaa Energy Generation Private Limited (upto 28 October 2021)** India 
Sarayu Wirid Power (Kondapuram) Private Limited (upto 28 October 2021)*)- Irtdia 100.09% 
RBRK Inve5tments Limited (upto 28 October 2021)** India - NA 100.30% 
Vasupr~da genewables Private Limited - -- India 
Suswind Power Private Limited India 
Ripudanian U p  Private L i m i s  India 
Vibhav Energy Private Limited - India 100.00% 100.00% 
Iiaroda Wind Energy Private Limited India 100.00% - , 100.00% 
Vigodi Wind Energy Private Limited I n d L  

---./ 
Aliento Wind Energy P r w m i t e d  
Tempest Wind Energy Private Limited 

100.00% 1OO.OOX 

lndia .-a 100.00% -- -- - 
---I lnd!a 

Flurry Wind Energy Private Limited lO0.09Jk ! - - - - . --, 
Vu-elta Wind Energy Private Limited lndia 1!10.00% - 
Flutter VJind Energy Private Limited . India 

-- 

N a n i n i  'Wind Energy P r i v a t e x e d  - -- lridia ---- --- . 100.1)0% 
Ravapar Wind EnergyPrivate Liniited- . India -- lOO.OC% 
Khatiyu Wind Energy Private Limited ----- India 
Sri Pavac-energy Private*ted* India 
Rerco Global Wind Service Private Limited (upto 18 October 2021)** - India 
Wind Four Rcnergy Private Limited (w.e.f. 0 1  January 2022) India . - - . - -- 
B) Associates of IGESL: 
Wind 'Two Renergy Private Limited India 

lndia 
Wind Five Renfrgy Limited India 
Wind One Renergy Limited India 100.0056 

I .  

Ail subsidiarie, and associates of IGESL are engaged in the business of providirig wind farm development servircs and sale of wind erleigy. -: ..: " ' 

. . 
I 

The financial year of the above companies is 1 April to  31  March. 
. . 

*The IGESL has sold,its illvestment in Sri Pavan Energy Limited 011 22 N~ay 2020 at a consideration of 9 5.10 lacs. 

**Refer ~ o t e  32 

India 100.00% - - - 
100.00% 

100.00% - - - -- - 
100.037> 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED I f o r m e d ~  known as lnox Wlnd Infrartrudureservicrr Umitedl 
Notes t o  the con$~lidated l inan~iaistatementr lor the vcarended 31 March 2022 

4 3  Dilr lowre 01 additional Information as required by the S<hedule Ill: 

la) h. at and lor the year mded 31 March 2022 

Name of the entity in  the Group 

I ~ e t & l r t r ,  1.e.. total assets Share inothr r  Shara In ta ts t ramprrh~nr lva 
minus total lhbil i t ier 1 profitarlorr I lntome 

inox IVlnd Infrartrudure Services Limited 

Indian 
Marut Shakti EneraIndia Limited 
Saravu Wlnd Power ITallimadulula) PrCaie Limlted 
S ~ R V U  Wind Power 1Kondaputam)Pri~ate Limlted 
Satviki Energy Private Limlted 
Vinirrmaa Energy Generation Private Limited 
RBRK lnvertmentr Limited 
Ripudaman Uria Private Limited 
SUIwind Power Private Llmlted 
Varu~rada Renewabler Private Limited 
Vibhav Enerlv Private Limited 
tfaroda Wind Eoera Private Limited 
V i ~ o d l  Wind Ener~v Private Limited 
Allen10 Wind Eneray Private Limited 
Tempest \Vind Enerw "lPiite Limited 
Flurry Wind Enera Private Limited 
VudD Wlnd Enerm Private Umited 
Flutter Wlnd Enerm Private Limlted 
NaniVlrani Wind Ener~y Prlvate Limited 
Rdva~ar'Nlnd Enerm Private Limited 
Khati~l i  Wlnd Enera Private Llmited 
Relro Global Wind Service Private Limited 
Wlnd Four Renergy Private Limlted 
Non-controlilnp. lntererl in  rubridiarler 

A r % a f  
canrolidated 

net assets 

lI\lrotiate> 
\vind Two Reneray Private Limlted 

IWnd FoulRenew Private Llmltedd 
Wlnd Five Renct~v Limited 
Wind One RenerRy Llmited 
XlndTbrec Renerlv Limltea 
Canrolidetion elimlnatlnnr Iadlurtm.~nt~ 

Amount 

I I I i I I I I 
I l w . W % l  80.662.45 1 ~W.W%! 19.319.6211 ~w.w%I 2 M 7  I ~w.oo%~ 19.195.6SI 

(a) h. at and for the year ended 31 March 2021 

As % of 
ronrolid=tcd 
profat or lor% 

share Inother share in  total comprehentlve 
nmprehensiva1ncome / hcome I 

Amount 

Name of tne entityln the Group 

i 

As % of 
ronrolldated 

other 
comprehenrlve 

1n<om. 

I I 

h. % of 
A' % of & % o f  conrolldated 

ranrolldated fimaunt conrolldated Amount other 

Amount 

A $ % o f  
conraildated 

other 
ramprahenslve 

inrom. 

Inor Wind infiartructure Servicer Limited 

I 

Amount 

Isubrldiaricr (Group's share) 

lndlao --- 
Marut ShaktlEnergy India Limited 

S~~PIU Wind Power 1Tailimadululal Private Limited 
Saravu VJind Power 1Kondapuram)Private Limited 
Satvlki Energy Private Limltrd 
Vlnirrmaa Enere, Generation Private Limited 
RORK lrlvertmentr Limited 
Piplidaman Urja Private Limlted 
Suswind Power Private Llmit.?d 
Valurrada Reneivabler Private Limited 
Vlbhav Energy Pri.,ate Limited 
ttaroda \Vlnd Enersy Private Lirnired 
Vlgodi Wind Eliergy Private Limited 
nlienlo Wind Energy Private Llnited 
Tampest Wlnd Enetey Private Limited 
Flurry Wlnd Energy Pllrate Linlited 

bVueltr Wind Er.erpvPrlvateLimlted 

/~avapar  Wind Energy Private Limited 
i ~ n a t f y u  W;nd Energy Private Llmited 
Rerco Glotal Windservice Prlvlle Limited 

I 
I ~ ~ ~ - ~ ~ ~ t ~ ~ l l l ~ ~  Interest In subridiarier 
ts lo th ter  
Win? Two Rencrg, Private Lin,ted 
Wlnd four Renergy Pritate Lim:tedI'! 
Wlnd Five Rznergy PliVate Limited 
Wind One Renergy Private Limited 
Wlnd Three Renergy Private Llmlted 

!')See Ncte 7 & 36 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 

Notes t o  the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

44: Interest in  Other Entities: 

Summarised Financial Information Rs. in  Lakhs 

I I Associates I 
Particulars 

- 31 March 2 0 2 4  

\(A) Non-Current Assets 1,24,063.63 1 1;48,821.74 1 - 1 - -- 
(B) Current Assets 

-- i) Cash and cash equivalent - 
ii) Others 10,259.86 2,8011.41 

Total Current Asset 10,394.72 

1,34,463.35 3,52,462.93 

I(A) Non-Current Liabilities 1 

Total Non-Current Liabilities 1,03,990.834 
(B) Current Liabilities 

i) Financial Liabilities 33,483.06 
ii) Non Financial Liabilities 

l ~ o t a l  Current Liabilities I 2 9 , 5 8 0 a  - -33,579.35 i - 1  

Summarisdd Performance Rs. in  L ~ k h s  yTiu ~ars  
Associates 1 

t- 1 31 March 2022 1 
, 4 -- 31 March 2021 -- 

I 

Revclnue 

Profi! and Loss before Tax 
. - - -- - - 
TaxExpense - 

Year ended I ~ e a r e n d c d ]  

IVci;t arid Loss after Tax --- 
Other Comprehensive Income --- 
Total Coni~rehcnsive Income 
Depreciation and Amortisation -- 
Interest Income -- -. -- - - - - - 
Interest Expense 

Recoriciliation of Net Assets considered for consolidated financial statement t o  net asset as per asjoclate 

financial statement 

Particulars 

l ~ e t  Assets as per Entity Financial 12,873.55 1 ?.4~i)U 
~dd)(Less) : Consolidation Adjustment - - -- -. - - (9,622.55) 1 (11,64ld4)/ -- - - - - - - - - - - - - --- - . . -. - - --- 
Net / \~sets  as cer Consolidated Financial~ 3.251.00, . 'i.25?.00 



44: lnterest i n  Other Entities: (Continued) 

Reconciliation of Profit and Loss/ OCI considered for consolidated financial statement t o  net asset as per 

associate financial statement 
Particulars 

Profit/(loss) as per Entity's Financial 

Add/(Less) : Consolidation Adjustment 
Profit/(loss) as per Consolidated Financials 
OCI as per Entity's Financial 

Add/(Less) : Consolidation Adjustment 
OCI as Der Consolidated Financials 

lnterest in  Associates 

Add: Company become associate during the year 
Add:- Share of profit for the year L 

Associates 

3 1  March 2022 
(216.14) 
. 216.14 

/particulars 

(a) Wind One Renergy Private Limited 

I ~ d d : -  Share of OCI for the vear I - I - I 

As at 

31  March 2021 
(5,653.58) 

3,010.23 
(2,643.35) 

As at 

As at 
3 1  March 2022 

As at 1 
3 1  March 2021 

Balance as at 31st March 
(b) Wind Two Renergy Private Limited 

Interest as at 1st April 

Add: Shares Purchased during the year 
Add:- Share of profit for the year 
Add:- Share of OCI for the year 

Balance as at 31st March 
(c) Wind Three Renergy Private Limited 
Interest as at 1st April 
Add: Com~anv  become associate during the vear 

3,251.00 

Add:- Share o f  profit for the year 
Add:- Share of OCI for the year 

Balance as at 31st March 
(d) Wind Four Renergy Private Limited 

I ~ d d : -  Share of ~ r o f i t  for the vear 1, - I 1790.3511 

3,251.00 

3,251.00 

(1.00) 

-- 
lnttrest as at 1st April - 

[ ~ d d : -  Share o f  OCI for the year 

3,251.00 

1.00 

1,851.00 
Add: Shares ~urclyased during the year ---I 740.40 

Add:- Share of OCI for the year 
Balance as at 31st March 

Less:- Amount transferred* 

Balance as at 31st March 

(e) Wind Five Renergy Private Limited 

Interest as at 1st April 
Add: Shares Purchased duririg the year 
Add:- Share of profit for the year 

* TQe above companies have ceased to be associates during the year and have become subsidiary of the Group. (Refer Note 45) . 

(1,801.05) 

1,851.00 

(1,851.00) 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED ( fo rmer ly  k n o w n  as lnox W i n d  Infrastructure Services L imi ted) 

No tes  t o  t h e  consol idated f inancia l  s ta tements  f o r  t h e  year ended  3 1  M a r c h  2022 

Trade Receivable ageing schedule As a t  3 1  March 2021 

I- Outstanding for  fol lowing periods f rom due date o f  payment / date 

of transaction 7 - 1  

Note 45: 
Trade Receivable ageing schedule As a t  3 1  March 2022 

Particulars 

(i) Undisputed Trade receivabie 
considered good 

(ii) Undisputed Trade receivabie -which 
have significant increase in credit risk 

(iii) Undisputed Trade receivable -credit 
impaired 

( i j  Undisputed Trade receivable I 1 2,788.54 1 2,542.89 / 7,396.53 1 1.1.01.81 1 10,761.64 1 25,391,40 
considered good 

i~articulars 

(ii) Undisputed Trade reccivablc - 
which have significant increase i n  

credit risk -L 
(iii) Undisputed Trade :rceivaSle - 
credit impaired I - 

Total 

5,813.09 

Outstanding for following periods from due dote ofpoyment/date of 
tronsoction , 

Less than 6 

(iv) Disputed Trade receivable I 288.74 1 179.51 1 351.80 1 237.97 1 0.31 / 1.058.34 
considered good 

Less than 6 
month 

4,413.22 

6 months -1 More  than  3 

(vj Disputed Trade rrceivable -which 

have significant increase i n  credit risk 

n ion th  Year 1 1 2 e r s  1 2 s yesrs rota' 

Trade receivable -credit 

6 months -1 

Year 

495.24 

Note 45a. : : - 
Trade Payabla a p i n g  schedule Irs a t  31 March 2022 

- - - - - . - - - - - . - 
Outstanding for followlne periods from due d ~ t e  of 1 7 

1-2 Years 

651.70 

payment / date of transactloll 
Particuiars 

(1) MSM! 

-- --- 
(~i i )  Disputed dues-MME . . 
-- 
fiii! Gis~utod due:-Others 

2-3 Years 

249.79 

Trade i'ayabie ageing schedule As a t  3 1  March 2021 

7. I Outstanding for  fol lowing periods f rom due date o f  I 1 

More than 3 
years 

3.14 

payment / date of transaction 
~ar t i cu la rs  Total 1 

Less than 1 More  than 3 
1-2 Years 2-3 Years 

years 

(ii) Others { 25,016.;2 1 12,882,; 1 3,692.;; 1 .!,290.; 1 49,881.; 1 
(iii) Disputed rlues.MSME 

l(iii) Disputed dues-Others 245.53 [ 783.37 [ 760.36 1 187.211 ( 1,976,541 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 

Notes t o  the  consolidated financial statements for the  year ended 3 1  March 2022 

46. Ratio as per the Schedule Ill requirments 

a) Current Ratio= Current Assets divided by Current Liability (7 in Lakhs) 

Particualrs 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

Current Assets 34,311.78 1,04,414.29 
Current Liability 75,380.68 2,23,541.70 
Ratio 0.46 0.47 
%Change from previous period -2.55% 165.79% 
Reason for change more than 25% : Not Applicable 

b) Debt Equity ratio=Total debt divided by Total equity where total debt refer to sum of current & non current 
borrowing 

Particualrs 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

Total Debt 90,778.69 1,45,820.33 
Total Equity 80,662.46 4,296.20 
Ratio 1.13 33.94 
%Change from previous period -96.68% 191.42% 
Reason for change niore than 25% :There has been fluctuation in cash flow due to operating and other activity. 

c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio (DSCR)=Earning available for debt services divided by total interest and principle 

Particualrs 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 
-- 

Net operating income 10,026.02 174.94 
Debt Scrvice 
Principal Repayment 90,416.60 1,41,102.40 
interest 362.09 4,717.93 

90,778.69 1,45,820.33 
Ratio 0.11 0.00 
%Change from previous period 9105.89% -98.77% 
llcason for change more than 25% : There has beem fluctuation in cash flow. 

d) Return on Equity Ratio=Net profit after tax divided by Equity 

Particualrs 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

Net profit (495.10) (15,366.14) 
Total Equity 80,662.46 4,296.20 
Ratio (0.01) (3.58) 
%Change from previous period -99.83% 561,05% 
Reason for change more than 25% : There has been fiuctuation in operating profit. 

e) Inventory turnover ratio=Cost of materials consumed divided by average inventory 

Particualrs 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 - -- 
Cost of material consumed 4,829.57 12,903.77 
Average inventory 1,710.07 35,723.21 
Ratio 2.82 0.36 
%Change from previous period 631.86% -43.29% 
Reason for change more than 25% : due to fluctuation in commissioning schedule date. 

f) Trade Receivable turnover ratio= Sales divided by average receivables 

Particualrs 3 1  March 2022 31 March 2021 
-- 
Sales 17,216.63 24,367.96 
Avcrage revcivables 5,735.28 23,653.02 
Ratio 3.00 1.03 
%Change from previous period 191.38% -44:16% 

Reason for change more than 25% : due to fluctuation in commissioning schedule date. 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERViCES LIMITED (formerly known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 

Notes t o  the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31  March 2022 

46. Ratio as per the Schedule Ill requirments 

g) Trade Payable turnover ratio=Purchase divided hy %age trade payables - -- -- 
Particualrs 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

---- -- - 
Purchase 5,685.05 12,453.96 
Average trade payable 11,056.33 46,507.28 
Ratio 0.51 0.27 . - ---- - 
%Change from p r e v i ~ s  period -- 92.02% -44.65% 

Rcason for change more than 25% :Due to fluctuation in cash flows. 

h) Net capital turnover ratio= Revenue from operatio~is divided by Net working capital whereas net working capital= current assets- 
currents liabilities 

Particualrs 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 
- ---. - - - -- 

Revenue from operations 17,216.63 24,367.96 
Net Working capital (41,068.90) (1,19,127.41) 
Ratio (O.42)  (0.20) 
%Change from previous period l04.94,0 ,,, 124.15% 

Rcason for change more than 25% :There has been fiuctba!ion in operating profit and cash flows and due to comn,!ssiong scheduie date. 

i) Net profit ratio=Net profit after tax divided by Revenue fmm operations 

Particualrs 31 March 2022- 31 March 2 q 2 3  

Net Profit (.?95.10) (15.366.14) 
Revenue from operations 17,216.63 211,367.96 
Ratio (0.03) (0.63) 
?/.Change from previous period -95.44% 383.86% 
Reason for change more than 25% :There has been fluctuation in operating profit. 

j) Return on capital employed=Earning before Interest and taxes(EB1T)divided by Capital Employed --- 
Particualrs 31 March 2022 31 Fflarch 2021 

EBlT 5,0G9.53 (47,315 1.47) 
Capital employed 1,36,682.93 '1,57,3j9.0~ 
Ratio 0.04 (3.1C) 
%Change f r ~ ~ n v i o u s  period -1 35.39% -168.73% -- -- - -. . - - - -- -- -- 
Reason for change more than 25% :There has been fluctuation ill operi~tin[: profit. 

2) R e t ~ ~ r n  on investment= Net profit divided by Net Wwth . ---- 
Particualrs 31 March 2027. 31 Fvlarrh 2021. ---- 
Net profir (495.10) (15,365.14) 
Net worth 80,662.46 4,296.20 
Ratio (Oso1) (3.58) 
%Chan;e frorn previous period -- -99.83% 561.06% - -- - - - - . - - - 
Reason for change more than 25% : There has been fluctuation in operating profit. 



INOXGREEN ENERGY SERVICES UMITED (formerly known 0s Inox Wlnd infrastrurture Serricar Um1t.d) 
Notes to  the mnsol ldatrd nnanrial  r tatementr for theyear ended 3 1  Mar rh  2022 

47.1 As per ind AS 108'OperatlngScgment~'ti?e Group has fallowing business segments: 

r) Operation & Maintenance (O&M) - Provldlog Operation & Maihtenance (O&M) services I n d  Common infrastructure fadllliar 

b) Erection, Procurement & Camml~rloning (EPC). provldiog Erect lob Procurement & Comml~rloning (EPC) iervicer and development 
ofwind farms 

E )  Power gererafian 

47.2The entire revenue of O & M  and EPC segment is from domertlcmarket. 

47.3 information about Primary (Surinerr) Segments 

(Rl.ln Lakh.) 
I 

1 1 ~Segmenl Revenue 
8. Operation & Maintenance 
11. Erection. Procurement & Cammirrloning 

1A External Revenue- Condnulilg Operations 
18  Exte,nal Sevenur . Oircaotinuing Operations 

2 Sermsnt Rasult 
I. Operation& Mainternwe 
ti. Erection, Procurement & Cammirrloning 
ill Powergeneratton 
I,. Total Segment Result 
v. Add/(Lerr): Unaliocable l~comeIlEzpenses)[nel) 
vi. Add:Olher income 
vil. Leir:Finance cost 

U\ Net Proiit/(Lorr) After Tax - Continuing Operatlonr 
28 Net P,ollt/(Losr) AherTax - Dlrmntinuing Operatlonl 

1. S a g m ~ n l  ASlelS 
1 Operation & Maintenanre 
it. Erection. Procurement & Comrnlrrionlng 
ill. Power generatioil 
1". Total Segment A r l c t l  

It. Segment U~b i l l t i es  
4. Operation & Maintenance 
ii. Erection, Procurement & Commlsrionlng 
ill. Power generation 
1". Total Sagment U.billtief 

Ill. S e ~ m e n l  Capital Employed 
I. Operation & Maintenance 
11. Erection. Procurement & Commirrtonin~ 
lit. Power *eneration 
iv. Total Segmsnt Capit.l Employad 

IV. Dep!sdation &Amort lzat ion 
I. Operation & Maintenance 
it. Erection, Procvrement & Commir~ioning 
lii. Power generation 
ir. Total Dsp,eriatlon &Amor t i l a t ian  

V. Mat r r la l  N o n a r h  erpsnrsr l o t h e r t h a n d s p r s t l ~ t l o n )  
i. Operation & Maintenance 
it. Erection, Procurement & Commirrioning 
lii. Power generation 
iv. Total Material  Non-rash expenras (other than  doprsrl.llon) 

47.4 Revenue from malor Prodlictr & Services 

Onecurtamerr In year ended 3 1  Mar rh  2022. Four Curtomerr in  year ended 31  March 2021 contributed more than 10% o f  the fatalG~oup'r 
revenue amounting to  72.048.90 Lakhr & 31  March2021:t  4.949.10Lakhs 

(b) Other operating revenue 
Less: Inter Segment Revenue 
Erection and Procurement , 

Total 

3,022.09 

26.399.00 

36.64 

24,367.91 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

48: The Group has policy to recognise revenue from operations & maintenance (O&M) over the period of the 
contract on a straight-line basis. O&M agreement of 111 WTGs (31 March 2021 Nil WTGs) has been 
cancelled/modified with different customers and also certain services are to be billed for which services have been 
rendered. The company's management expects no material adjustments in the standalone financial statements on 
account of any contractual obligation and taxes & interest thereon, if any. 

49: Impact of Covid-19 

Due to outbreak of COVID-19 globally and in India, the company's management has made initial assessment of 
impact on business and financial risks on account of COVID-19. Considering that the company is in the business of 
Erection, procurement and operation & maintenance services of Wind Turbine Generator in Renewable Energy 
Sector, the management believes that the impact of this outbreak on the business and financial position of the 
company will not be significant. The management does not see any risks in the company's ability to continue as a 
going concern and meeting its liabilities. The company has used the principles of prudence in applying judgments, 
estimates and assumptions and based on the current estimates, the company expects to recover the carrying 
amount of trade receivables including unbilled receivables, investments, inventories, advances and other assets. 
Further, Commissioning of WTGs and maintenance services against certain purchase/service contract does not 
require any material adjustment on account of delays, if any considering disruption due to COVID-19. The eventual 
outcome of impact of the global health pandemic may be different from those estimated as on the date of approval 
of these financial statements. Due to the nature of the pandemic, the Company will continue to monitor 
developments to identify significant uncertainties in future periods, if any. 

50: Note on Advance received from customers 

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group has signed supply contracts for 125.4 MW Wind power projects of 
38 Nos of 3300 KW WTG (Model WT3000DF) in the State of Gujarat with Gujarat Fluorochemicals Limited (GFCL). 
The Group has received the interest bearing advance of ? 16,678.20 Lakhs against the contracts. The Group is in 
process of fulfilment of the terms and conditions of the contracts. The same has been transferred to RESCO under 
BTA executed on 31 December 2021. 

51: Group has work-in-progress inventory amounting as on 31 March 2022 is Nil (as on 31 March 2021 41,3874.40 
lac) for project development, erection & commissioning work and Common infrastructure facilities in different 
states. The respective State Governments are yet to announce the policy on Wind Farm Development. In the view of 
the management, the group will be able to realise the Inventory on execution of projects once Wind Farm 
Development policy is announced by respective State Governments. The same has been transferred to RESCO under 
BTA executed on 31 December 2021. 



INOX GREEN ENERGY SERVICES LIMITED (formerly known as lnox Wind Infrastructure Services Limited) 
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

52: Partlculars of payment to Auditors 

Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended 
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

Statutory audit 9.25 14.40 
Tax audit and other audits under Income-tax Act 2.50 2.50 
Taxation matters 5.62 

Certification fees 41.54 1.09 
Out o(Pocket Expenses 0.28 

Total 59.19 17.99 

53: Revenue from contracts with customers as per Ind AS 115 

IA) Disa~reaated revenue Information 

in'the following table, revenue from contracts with customers is disaggregated by primary major products and service lines 
Since the Group has only one reportable business segment, no reconciliation of the disaggregated revenue is required: 

Reportable segment/Manufacture of Wind Turbine 

Rs, in Lakhs 

Partlculars For theyear ended For the Year ended 

-- 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 
Major Product/ Service Lines 

Sale of services 15,773.28 24,331.32 
Others 1,443.35 36.64 

Total 

10) Contract balances 

All the Trade Receivables and Contract Liabilities have been separately presented in notes to accounts, 

54: Corporate Social Responsibilities (CSR) 

(a) The gross amount required to be spent by the Group during the year ended 31 March 2022 towards Corporate Social 
Responsibility (CSR) is Nil (for the year ended 3 1  March 2021: Nil). 

(b! Amount spent during the year ended 31 March 2022: 

Rs. in Lakhs 

Particulars 

(i)'Construction/acquisition of any fixed assets 

55 :The Code on Social Security, 2020 ('Code') relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits 
has received Presidential assent on 28th September 2020. The Code has been published in the Garetto of India. However, the 
effective date of the Code is yet to be notified and final rules for quantifying the financial impact are also yet to be issued. In 
view of this, the Company will assess the impact of the Code when relevant provisions are notified and will record related 
impact, if any, in the period the Code becomes effective. 

Total 

(ii) On purpose other than (i) above - Donations k- 
(Figures in brackets pertain to 31 March 2021) 

(Nil) 

(Nil) Nil 

(Nil) 

(Nil) Nil 

(Nil) 

(Nil) 

Nil 



56: There is no amount required transferring to the investor Education and Protection Fund 

57: The Previous year figures have been regrouped, wherever necessary to confirm the respective year preientation. Tho 
figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee and any discrepancies in any note between the total and sums o f  :he 
amounts are due to rounding off. 

58: Other statutory Infor,nation 

(i) There i r s  no changes or satisfaction which are to be registered with tne registrar of companies duri~l: the year ended March 
31,2022 and March 31,2021 except below: 

The Lender AHKA Ftncap has confirmed that ent ip facility has been paid by the Group. The Sroup has confirmed that rhe Charge 
satisfaction of the faciiity is pending and viili be satisfied in due course. 

(ii)The Group complies with the number of layers of compatiies in accordance 1~1th ciause 87 of Section 2 of t i e  Act read with 
the Companics (Restriction on number of layers) rules 2017 during the year ended Marcli 3i, 2022 and March 3:, 2021. 

(iii)The Grogp has not invested or traded in cryptocurrency orvirtrtal cu~rency during the year ended March 31,2022 and 
March 31,2321. 

(iv) No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the company for holding Gonarni oroperty under the 
Proliibition o i  Benami Property Transaction Act 1988 (as amended in 2016) fformally the Henami Transactions (Prohibttion) Act, 
1988 (45 of 1988) at~d  Rules made thereunder during the year ended March 31,2022 and March 31,2021. 

(v)The Group has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government 
authorities during the year ended March 31,2022 and March 31,2021. 

(vi)The Grnu? has riot entered into any scheme of arrangement cpprovdd by the competent tuthorlty in terms of sections 252 
to 237 of the Companies Act 2011 during the year ended March 31,2022 and March 31,2021. 

(vii) During the year ended March 31,2022 and March 31,2021, the Company has not siirrendered or disc!osed as income any 
transactions not recorded in the books of accounts in the course of tax assessments under the ircorre Tax Act, 1961 ( s ~ c h  as 
search or sutvsy or an). other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act 1961). 

' 

a, directly o: indirectly land or invest in other personn or entities identified in any manner whaisoever by or on behalf cf the 
~ o n i p a n ~ ~  (ultimate bens!iciaries) or 

b. provide a& Guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf cf tho ~l t imate beneficiaries. 

(v~ii) E).cept below, During the year ended March 31,2022 and March 31,2021, the Comp?ny hss nat received any funds from 
any pe;sons or entitles including foreign entities (Funding party) with the understanding (whe!her recorded in writing or 
otherwise) that the company shall : 

a, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities tdentilied in any manne- whatsoever by or on bchalf of tne 

funding party (ultimate beneficiaries) or 

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries. 

For tho year ended 31 March 2021: Nil 

Funding Party/UItimate Benlficary 

party 

-- 
lnox Wind Llniited 

Inox Wind I.irnite3 

In resdect of above transictisn, the company has complied rc!evam provisions of the Foreign ~xchange Management Act, 1999, 
Companies Act 2013 and Prevention of Money-Laundering Act, ZOO2 to the extent appiicabte. 

- 
Fund Fund Date of FunJ 

551.31 

212.88 

2,200.81 



(ix) Quartelry returns or statements of the current assets filed by the Company with banks or financial institutions are in 
agreement with books of accounts except below:- 

For the year ended 31 March 2022 

Name of Lender and Type of 
facilities 

Yes Dank and IClCl Bank (Cash 
CreditIWorking CapitalJDemand 

Loan) 
Yes Bank and ICiCI Bank (Cash 
CreditlWorking Capitai/Demand 

Loan) 
Yes Bank and IClCl Bank (Cash 
CreditJWorking CapitalJDemand 

Loan) 
Yes Bank and ICICI Bank (Cash 

CreditIWorking CapitalIDemand 

Loan) 
Yes Bank and iCICi Bank (Cash 
CreditJWorking ~apital/Demand 

Loan) 
Yes Bank and iCiCi Bank (Cash 
CreditJWorking Capital/Demand 
Loan) 
Yes Bank and iClCi Bank (Cash 
CreditIWorking CapitalIDemand 
Loan) 
Yes Bank and lCiCi Bank (Cash 

CreditIWorking CapitalJDemand 
Loan) 

Name of Lender and Type of 
facilities 

Yes Bank and lndusind Bank (Cash 

Return ' 

period/Type 

lune'2l (Debtors) 

{ ~ n ~ ~ ~ ~ o r y ,  

Sep'21 (Debtors) 

;::::tory) 

Dec'2l (Debtors) 

~ ~ ~ : ~ t o r y )  

gL,"d:: 
~ n ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ v ,  

i n  C a p i t a D r n a d  o e b t o r ~  2,58720 I 28.00 

Loan) 
Yes Dank and lndusind Bank (Cash 
CreditIWorking CapitaiJDemand { ~ ~ v ~ ~ v , ,  3,299.60 (11.38) 

Return 
period/~ype- 

amount reconciles 
with gross debtors 

I I 

Credit/Working CapitalJDemand !Sepn2O (Debtors) 

Yes Bank and lndusind Bink (Cash 
CreditIWoriiing CapitalJDemand 

The reported 
6.03 amount reconc~les 2,703.00 1 2,709.03 1 (234.72/ 

with gross debtors 

3,506.70 3,271.98 

Vaiue as per 
returns 

Vaiue as per I submitted 

Value as per 
returns 
submitted 
with lenders 

The reported 
2,509.50 

;::;/Working ~ a p i t a l / ~ a m i n d  ~"ec'20(~ebtors) 1 ;::5;.65 1 ;:;;5.;; 1 33.33 

Yes Bank and indusind Bank (Cash 

CredltlWorking CapitailDemand ~ ~ ~ ~ n 9 0 r y ,  9.63 

Reconciliation 
amount 

- 

15.59 

114.23 

9.98 

954.17 

(182.82) 

0.05 

82.99 

(233.12) 

with lenders 

2,678.51 

3,362.70 

2,878.00 

3,046.00 

798.70 

127.49 

623.91 

446.90 

- 

Sep,20 
(Inventory) 

amount reconciles 
with gross debtors 

Reason of material 
discrepancies 

The reported 
amount reconciles 
with gross debtors 

The reported 
amount reconciles 
with gross debtors 

The reported 
amount reconciles 
with gross debtors 

The reported 
amount reconciles 
with gross debtors 

,accounts 

2,694.10 

3,476.93 

2,887.98 

4,000.17 

615.88 

127.45 

706.90 

213.78 

Value as per 
Of 

accounts 

3,489.50 

Reconciliatlon 
amount 

Reason of material 
dlscrepancles 

The reported 

3,449.05 (40.45) 

with gross debtors 

The re~or ted  



59.The "Board of Directors of the Company had approved fund raising, subject to receipt of requisite approvals inciuding the 
approval of the shareholders, market conditions and other considerations, by way of an initial public offer of its Equity Shares 

comprising of fresh issue of Equity Shares ("Fresh Issue") and/ or an offer for saie of Equity Shares by certain existing and eligible 
shareholders of the Company (together with the Fresh Issue, "Offer") in accordance with the Companies Act. 2013 and the Rules 

made thereunder, the Securities and Exchange Board of lndia (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, 
as amended and other applicable laws. 

In connection with the Offer, the Company has filed a draft red herring prospectus (''DRHP") with the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India ("SEBI") on 7 February 2022. The proposed Offer consists of a Fresh Issue of Equity Shares aggregating upto T 
37,000.00 Lakhs and an offer for saie of Equity Shares aggregating upto S 37,000.00 Lakhs by the lnox Wind Llmited. 

The Company has withdrawn DRHP vide their bbard resolution dated 28 April 2022 and communicated to Book Running Lead 
Managers to the Offer ("BRLM") vide letter dated 28 April 2022. 

Further, the Board of Directors of the Company in their Meeting held on 9 May 2022 have accorded a fresh approval, subject to 
receipt of requisite approvals inciuding the approval of the shareholders, market conditions and other considerations, by way of 
an ~nitiai public offer of its Equity Shares compr~sing of fresh issue of Equity Shares by the Company aggregating upto T 
50,000.00 Lakhs ("Fresh Issue") and/ or an offer for sale of Equity Shares by certain existing and eligible shareholders of the 
Company (together with the Fresh issue, "Offer") in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, 
the Securities and Exchange Board of lndia (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as amended and 
other applicable laws. 

60. The Hoiding Company incorporated a Wholly-owned subsidiary namely "Wind Four Renergy Private Limited" (WFRPL) for 
setting up wind farm projects as awarded by Solar Energy Corporation of lndia (SECI) under Tranche - I (SOW). The Holding 
Company had invested funds in WFRPL in the form of Equity Share Capital for the execution of projects. The Holding Company 
had invested amounting to T 2,591.40 Lakhs in the Equity Shares. During the previous year, the Holding Company had filed an 
appeal against the Central Electrical Regulatory Commission (CERC) order dtd. 08 March 2021 in Appleliate Tribunal for 
Electricity ("APTEL") for further extension of scheduled commission date (SCoD). During the year, APTEL vide its order dtd. 11 
January 2022 condoned the delay and extended the SCoD from its date of order. Subsequently, CERC filed an appeal against the 
APTEL order in Honorable Supreme Court. in view of the management, the Holding Company will be able to realize the money 
from WFRPL once the project will commission subject to the outcome of the resolution of the matter with the regulators / Court 
and improvement in its future operational performance and financial support from the Holding Company. 

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors b 

Place : New Delhi 
Date : 13 May 2022 

Govind Prakash Rathor ~ o o j a  P;UI 

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 

Place : Noida 

Date : 13 May 2022 




